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PART I

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND INDUSTRY DATA

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwdodking statements. All statements other than statds of historical fact contained
this Annual Report on Form 10-K are forward-lookstgtements, including statements regarding thgrpss and timing of our clinical
programs, regulatory filings and commercializatamtivities, and the potential clinical benefitsfeta and market potential of our product
candidates, as well as more general statementeliegaur expectations for future financial and g@nal performance, regulatory
environment, and market trends. In some casescaoudentify forward-looking statements by termogy such as “may,” “would,” “should,”
“could,” “expects,” “aims,” “plans,” “anticipates,'believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “projects,pdtential,” or “continue”; the negative of
these terms; or other comparable terminology. Tketements include but are not limited to statemeggarding the potential for, and timing
of, approval of the AMR101 New Drug Application, DA, by the United States Food and Drug Admintstra or FDA, and the next steps
we may take thereto; the safety and efficacy ofpoduct candidates; the scope of our intellegtuaperty protection and the likelihood of
securing additional patent protection and regujagxclusivity; estimates of the potential marketsdur product candidates; the likelihood of
qualifying additional third party manufacturing qliprs and estimates of the capacity of manufaetuaind other facilities to support our
products; our operating and growth strategies;jmaustry; our projected cash needs, liquidity aagitl resources; and our expected future
revenues, operations and expenditures.

Forward-looking statements are only current préatist and are subject to known and unknown riskeertainties, and other factors that
may cause our or our industry’s actual resultsleef activity, performance, or achievements tartaerially different from those anticipated
by such statements. These factors include, amdreg things, those listed under “Risk Factors” enit1A of Part | of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K and elsewhere in this Annual Report omFb0-K. These and other factors could cause esultiffer materially from those
expressed in these forward-looking statements.

Although we believe that the expectations refledtethe forward-looking statements contained i thhnual Report on Form 10-K are
reasonable, we cannot guarantee future result®rpence, or achievements. Except as requiredvoyves are under no duty to update or
revise any of such forward-looking statements, Wwets a result of new information, future evemtstberwise, after the date of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Unless otherwise indicated, information containethis Annual Report on Form 10-K concerning owdurct candidates, the number of
patients that may benefit from these product catd&land the potential commercial opportunity fargroduct candidates, is based on
information from independent industry analysts #rndi-party sources (including industry publicasosurveys, and forecasts), our internal
research, and management estimates. Managemenéaestiare derived from publicly available inforroatreleased by independent industry
analysts and third-party sources, as well as data bur internal research, and based on assumptiads by us based on such data and our
knowledge of such industry, which we believe tadgsonable. None of the sources cited in this AnReport on Form 10-K has consented to
the inclusion of any data from its reports, noréaaxe sought their consent. Our internal researsimbabeen verified by any independent
source, and we have not independently verifiedthimgl-party information. While we believe that suaformation included in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K is generally reliable, suclinfation is inherently imprecise. In addition, gjons, assumptions, and estimates of our
future performance are necessarily subject to b tiggree of uncertainty and risk due to a variéfiactors, including those described in “Risk
Factors” in Item 1A of Part | of this Annual Report Form 10-K and elsewhere in this Annual ReparEorm 10-K. These and other factors
could cause results to differ materially from thegpressed in the estimates made by the indepepdeigs and by us.
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ltem 1. Business

References in this report to “Amarin,” the “Compahywe,” “our” and “us” refer to Amarin Corporation plc and its subsidiaries, on a
consolidated basis, unless otherwise indicated.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes the reggisti and unregistered trademarks and service madkber parties.

Amarin Corporation plc (formerly Ethical Holding&pis a public limited company incorporated untlex laws of England and Wales.
Amarin Corporation plc was originally incorporatiedEngland as a private limited company on March989 under the Companies Act 1985,
and re-registered in England as a public limiteehgany on March 19, 1993.

Our registered office is located at One New Chahgadon EC4M 9AF, England. Our principal officeg docated at 2 Pembroke Hou
Upper Pembroke Street 28-32, Dublin 2 Ireland. @imary office in the United States is located 480 Route 206, Bedminster, NJ 07921,
USA. Our telephone number at that location is (908)-1315.

For purposes of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, andlinary shares may also be referred to as “comshares” or “common stock.”

Overview

We are a latestage biopharmaceutical company with expertisgid kcience focused on the treatment of cardiavasalisease. Our lei
product candidate is AMR101, an ultra-pure omedatty acid, comprising not less than 96% icosapéimyl, or ethyl-EPA. We are developing
AMR101 for the treatment of patients with very higiglyceride levels and high triglyceride levets,hypertriglyceridemia. Triglycerides are
fats in the blood.

In September 2011, we filed a New Drug ApplicationNDA, with the U.S. Food and Drug Administratjam FDA, seeking marketing
approval for the use of AMR101 in the treatmenpatients with very high triglyceride level& 00 mg/dL), or what we refer to as the
MARINE indication. The FDA has assigned a PreswipDrug User Fee Act, or PDUFA, date of July 2612. The PDUFA date is the goal
date for the FDA to complete its review of the NDie NDA for the MARINE indication is supported bySpecial Protocol Assessment, or
SPA, agreement with the FDA.

We plan to separately seek approval for the treatmiepatients with high triglyceride level& (00 and <500mg/dL) who are also on
statin therapy for elevated levels of low-densippprotein cholesterol, or LDL-C, (which we referas mixed dyslipidemia), or the ANCHOR
indication. The ANCHOR indication is also supporbgda SPA agreement with the FDA.

The potential efficacy and safety of AMR101 wengdstd in two Phase 3 clinical trials, the MARINEatrand the ANCHOR trial. These
trials showed favorable clinical results in theispective patient populations in reducing trigljdetevels without a statistically significant
increase in LDL-C levels and, in the 4 gram AMRKNCHOR results, with a statistically significantalease in LDL-C levels. These trials
also showed favorable results, particularly with fhgram dose of AMR101, in other important lipidianflammation biomarkers, including
Apo B (apolipoprotein B), non-high-density lipopgot cholesterol, or non-HDL-C, Total-Cholestera@ry low-density lipoprotein cholesterol,
or VLDL-C, Lp-PLA2 (lipoprotein-associated phospipalse), and hs-CRP (high sensitivityr€active protein). In each of these trials, AMR!
exhibited a safety profile comparable to placebo.

In November 2010, we announced the favorable resfiithe Phase 3 MARINE trial, and in April 2011 aenounced the favorable
results of the Phase 3 ANCHOR trial. The resultbaih of these studies were submitted to the FDpaasof the NDA for the MARINE
indication. To obtain FDA approval of AMR101 for
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the ANCHOR indication, based on communications whth FDA, we believe that we must first obtain amal of AMR101 in the MARINE
indication and be substantially underway with al@arascular outcomes study at the time of the sabimm of an NDA to the FDA for the
ANCHOR indication. Based upon feedback from the FW consistent with the respective SPAs for theRINE trial and ANCHOR trial,
we do not believe the final results of an outcostesly are required for FDA approval of AMR101 faher indication.

In December 2011, we announced commencement @mnpakdsing in our cardiovascular outcomes studdMR 101, titted REDUCEFT
(Reduction of Cardiovascular Events with EPA —iwéation Trial), that is designed to evaluate tfic@cy of AMR101 in reducing major
cardiovascular events in an at-risk patient popiadn statin therapy. The REDUCE-IT study is als® subject of an SPA agreement with the
FDA. If successful, we believe the results of #tisdy could lead to a broadening of the marketm@kfor AMR101 beyond the MARINE ar
ANCHOR indications.

Hypertriglyceridemia refers to a condition in whigatients have high levels of triglycerides in th@odstream and has been recognized
as an independent risk factor for cardiac diseAseestimate that over 40 million adults in the ddiStates have elevated triglyceride leveds (
200mg/dL) and approximately 4.0 million peoplehie tJnited States have very high triglyceride le¥&d$00 mg/dL). Triglycerides provide
important information as a marker associated withrisk for heart disease and stroke, especiallyrvan individual also has low high-density
lipoprotein cholesterol, or HDL-C (often referredas “good” cholesterol) and elevated levels of EDl(often referred to as “badholesterol)

We are now preparing for the commercialization 8R101 for use in the MARINE indication, subjectRDA approval. In preparation
for commercialization, during 2011 we secured add#l agreements for the clinical and commercialpdy of AMR101. We also filed
additional patent applications and continued tles@cution of currently pending patent applicatiaspart of a strategy to enhance and extend
the proprietary position of AMR101. We will seekpmotect the potential commercial exclusivity of RH01 through a combination of
obtaining and maintaining intellectual propertyhtiggand regulatory exclusivity, taking advantagenahufacturing barriers to entry and
maintaining trade secrets.

We are currently considering three potential p&dhshe marketing and sale of AMR101: strategidatmbration, acquisition and self-
commercialization, the latter of which could inodud third-party collaboration. From time to time have held discussions with larger
pharmaceutical companies on potential collaboratamd other strategic opportunities, and we may liscussions regarding such
opportunities in the future. These strategic opputies may include licensing or similar transacsipjoint ventures, partnerships, strategic
alliances, business associations, or a sale afdhmpany. However, no assurance can be given akda ar whether we will enter into any st
strategic transaction. Until such time that we et such a strategic transaction, if ever, wangb continue to execute on our plans to lat
market and sell AMR101 on our own.

The U.S. market is currently the primary focus ofidin for the initial commercial launch of AMR10Q@pportunities to market and sell
AMR101 outside the United States are also undduatian.

January 2012 Financing and Financial Position

On January 9, 2012, Amarin, through its wholly-odisebsidiary Corsicanto Limited, a private limitmzimpany incorporated under the
laws of Ireland, completed a private placementid&d0 million in aggregate principal amount 0f3t50% exchangeable senior notes due
2032. The notes are the senior unsecured obligatib@orsicanto and are guaranteed by Amarin Catjmor plc. The notes bear interest at a
rate of 3.50% per annum, payable semitually in arrears on January 15 and July 15 cff gaar, beginning on July 15, 2012. The notes ra
on January 15, 2032, unless earlier repurchasddeneed or exchanged. On or after January 19, 204 Way elect to redeem for cash all or a
portion of the notes for the principal amount o tiotes plus accrued and unpaid interest. On datdnoary 19, 2017, January 19, 2022 and
January 19, 2027, the holders of the notes mayinethat we repurchase in cash the principal amofitite notes plus accrued and unpaid
interest. At any time prior to January 15, 203Zupertain circumstances, which circumstances dechur issuing a notice of redemption to
the note holders, the price of Amarin shares tigdinove 130% of the exchange price, or certainr@bents defined in the note agreement, the
holders of the notes may elect to
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convert the notes. The exchange rate for conversiaf©3.4752 ADSs per $1,000 principal amount efribtes (equivalent to an initial
exchange price of approximately $8.8125 per AD&)ject to adjustment in certain circumstancesuiticlg adjustment if we pay cash
dividends. Upon exchange, the notes may be se#tteinarin’s election, subject to certain condiipin cash, ADSs or a combination of cash
and ADSs.

The proceeds received by Amarin from the Janualy 2iebt offering were approximately $144.3 millioet of estimated fees and
transaction costs. Together with our cash balah@416.6 million at December 31, 2011, we belidwvat tve have sufficient financial resources
to fund our projected operations for at least thet twelve months, including the advancement oRE®UCE-IT cardiovascular outcomes
study and preparations for and commercial launchMR101 on each of the three potential paths wecarsidering for commercialization
subject to timely regulatory approval. Unless wteeimto a strategic collaboration in support afoenmercial launch, we may need to raise
additional capital to support these efforts on @un.

Phase 3 Clinical Trials

In November 2010, we reported favorable top-lireutes from the MARINE trial, the first to compledé our two concurrently run Phase
3 clinical trials of AMR101. In the MARINE trial, MR101 was investigated as a treatment for patieittstriglyceride levels of 5500 mg/dL.
Patients with this level of triglycerides are claegized as having very high triglyceride levels oatlined in the National Cholesterol
Education Program (NCEP) Expert Panel (Adult TreattiPanel Ill, 2002), or the NCEP Guidelines. ThH&RINE trial was a multi-center,
placebo-controlled, randomized, double-blind, 12kvpivotal study to evaluate the efficacy and sadéét?2 grams and 4 grams of AMR101 in
229 patients with fasting triglyceride level$60 mg/dL. The primary endpoint in the trial was glercentage change in triglyceride level from
baseline compared to placebo after 12 weeks ditierat. Reported top-line results of this studyuided announcement that AMR101 met the
primary endpoint at both the 4 gram and 2 gram sldseaddition to achieving the primary endpointtaé trial, no statistically significant
increase in low-density lipoprotein cholesterolL&1-C, was observed in this trial at either doaeboth doses AMR101 also showed a
decrease in Apo B (Apolipoprotein B) compared tacpbo, a sensitive biomarker which is generallysim®red to be a better predictor of
residual cardiovascular risk than LBL.-The reduction in Apo B compared to placebo wasssically significant at the 4 gram dose, but i
2 gram dose. Additionally, we observed in the taigafety profile for AMR101 similar to placebo.eSe—Our Lead Product Candidate—The
MARINE Trial.”

In April 2011, we reported favorable top-line rasiffom the ANCHOR trial, the second of our two &8 clinical trials of AMR101. In
the ANCHOR trial, AMR101 was investigated as aftimeent for patients with triglyceride levels o280 and <500 mg/dL who are also
receiving statin therapy. Patients in this triad eharacterized as having high triglyceride levatsoutlined in the NCEP Guidelines, with mi
dyslipidemia (two or more lipid disorders). The ANOR trial was a multi-center, placebo-controlleahdomized, double-blind, 12-week
pivotal study to evaluate the efficacy and safét® grams and 4 grams of AMR101 in 702 patientigh triglycerides who were on
optimized statin therapy. The primary endpointie trial was the percentage change in triglycegdel from baseline compared to placebo
after 12 weeks of treatment. Reported top-lineltes this study included an announcement that AldRmet the study’s primary endpoint at
both the 4 gram and 2 gram doses. In addition, AMRhet some of the secondary and exploratory effieamdpoints in the trial, including at
both doses the key secondary endpoint of LDL-C inderiority to statin therapy alone (which was obvgel with a statistically significant
decrease in LDL-C at the 4 gram dose), and at ogles statistically significant decreases in ApmoBipared to placebo. Additionally, we
observed in the trial a safety profile for AMR10d8ar to placebo. See “—Our Lead Product Candidaibe ANCHOR Trial.”

In addition to achieving the primary endpointsité MARINE and ANCHOR trials for triglyceride rediart compared to placebo and
LDL-C and Apo B results described above, AMR10Xtipalarly at the 4 gram dose, demonstrated indtigals significant reductions in
various secondary and exploratory efficacy endgainimpared to placebo for other lipid and inflamomabiomarkers which we believe are
important as they potentially represent additigmraldictors of cardiovascular risk. These biomarkeckide total cholesterol; non-HDL-
cholesterol; VLDL-C; Lp-PLA2 (Lipoprotein-phosphplse A2), an enzyme found in blood and
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atherosclerotic plaque and high levels of whichenbagen implicated in the development and progressiatherosclerosis; and high sensitivity
C-reactive protein, or hsCRP, an important marfesascular inflammation.

The MARINE and ANCHOR trials were conducted undsparate SPA agreements with the FDA. An SPA isvafuation by the FDA ¢
a protocol with the goal of reaching an agreemieat the Phase 3 trial protocol design, clinicalpmidts, and statistical analyses are acceptable
to support regulatory approval. The FDA agreed, thased on the information we submitted to the agethe design and planned analysis of
the MARINE and ANCHOR trials adequately addressabjectives necessary to support a regulatory ssdiori. An SPA is generally binding
upon the FDA unless a substantial scientific isssgential to determining safety or efficacy is tifesd after the testing begins. There is no
assurance that the FDA will ultimately consideheitof our SPAs to be binding. Moreover, any chaoge study protocol can invalidate an
SPA. If the FDA does not consider either of the SBAbe binding or makes a determination that wiendt follow the SPA appropriately, the
agency could assert that additional studies or @eaequired to support a regulatory submission.

During 2011, both MARINE and ANCHOR Phase 3 pivatalical trial results were presented at a nundfenedical and scientific
meetings, including the National Lipid Associatidviay), the European Society of Cardiology (Augwstyl the American Heart Association
(November). Additionally, the MARINE Phase 3 cliaicesults were published in the September eddforhe American Journal of
Cardiology, a prominent, peer-reviewed journal. We plan toticme to publish additional data from both the MAIE and ANCHOR trials in
peer-reviewed journals.

Cardiovascular Outcomes Study

In August 2011, we reached agreement with the FDAr SPA for the design of the REDUCE-IT (Reductib€ardiovascular Events
with EPA—Intervention Trial) cardiovascular outcosretudy. In December 2011, we announced that tbiepfatient was dosed in the
REDUCE-IT study. This study is designed to evaldheeefficacy of AMR101 in reducing major cardiogakar events in an at-risk patient
population on statin therapy. REDUCE-IT is a muokter, prospective, randomized, double-blind, gitaccontrolled, parallel-group study to
evaluate the effectiveness of AMR101, as an adtbatatin therapy, in reducing first major cardiswalar events in an at-risk patient
population compared to statin therapy alone. Thgrobarm of the study is comprised of patientsoptimized statin therapy. The active arn
the study is comprised of patients on optimizetrstaerapy plus AMR101. All subjects enrolled iretstudy will have elevated triglyceride
levels and either coronary heart disease or ristofa for coronary heart disease. This study véltbnducted internationally. Based on the
results of REDUCE-IT, we may seek additional intlmas for AMR101 beyond the indication studied e tANCHOR and MARINE trials
such as a potential indication for prevention afltavascular events, although there can be no asseras to whether the results of the study
will support any such indication.

In September 2011, we engaged a clinical reseaganaation, or CRO, and began initial trial anidickl site preparation for REDUCE-
IT. We anticipate utilizing approximately 300 clai sites in connection with the trial, the largesmber of which will be in the United States.
We, with the support of our CRO, are currently\aein qualifying and training such sites. The stiglgcheduled to be completed in
approximately six years and is anticipated to idelapproximately 8,000 patients. We expect to bstamtially underway by the end of 2012.

Consistent with our SPA for the ANCHOR trial, warantly intend to file a supplemental NDA, or sNDgeeking approval of the
ANCHOR indication after the REDUCE-IT cardiovasautaitcomes study is substantially underway. The ANBnnot be filed until after both
the initially submitted NDA for the indication stied in the MARINE trial is approved and the cardiseular outcomes study is substantially
underway.

Lipid Disorders and Cardiovascular Disease

Heart attacks, strokes and other cardiovasculartsvepresent the leading cause of death and tiigathong men and women in
western societies. According to the American Héagociation's2010 At-A-Glance Repoytover 831,000 deaths in the United States were
caused by heart disease and stroke, substantially than the approximately 560,000 reported dezhsed by cancer.
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Hypertriglyceridemia refers to a condition in whigatients have high levels of triglycerides in th@odstream and has been recognized
as an independent risk factor for cardiovasculseate. Triglyceride levels provide important infatimn as a marker associated with the risk
for heart disease and stroke, especially whendirittual also has low high-density lipoprotein abeterol, or HDL-C (often referred to as
“good” cholesterol), and elevated levels of LDL-@tén referred to as “bad” cholesterol).

We estimate that over 40 million adults in the EdiStates have elevated triglyceride levels >208mghd approximately 4.0 million
people in the United States have very high trigligielevels (_>500 mg/dL). Since 1976, mean triglyceride levelgehimcreased, in concert
with the growing epidemic of obesity, insulin réaisce, and type 2 diabetes mellitus. In contrasgmlDL-C levels have receded.

Mixed dyslipidemia refers to a condition in whichtignts have a combination of two or more lipid @omalities including elevated
triglycerides, low HDL-C, and/or elevated LDL-C. ®dhypertriglyceridemia and mixed dyslipidemia aoenponents of a range of lipid
disorders collectively referred to as dyslipidenigslipidemia has been linked to atherosclerogimmonly referred to as hardening of the
arteries.

Limitations of Current Therapies

It is estimated that fewer than 4% of U.S. adulith wiglyceride levelsz 200 mg/dL are currently receiving prescription noagiion for
lowering triglycerides. Many of these patients taldng statin therapy directed primarily at loweritheir LDL-C levels.

The leading treatments to lower triglyceride leaais fibrates (fenofibrate and gemfibrozil), statamd a prescription only omega-3 fatty
acid, known as Lovaza in the United States, arfdraacor® in Europe. The use of fenofibrates can feabnormal liver function tests (an
increase in ALT (alanine transaminase) or AST (esp&transaminase), which are liver enzymes, amd@mmonly measured clinically as a
part of a diagnostic liver function test to detemmliver health), especially when used with statirtee use of gemfibrozil can lead to
rhabdomyolysis (severe breakdown of muscles), éshewhen used with a statin. Lovaza is compriséthe omega-3 ethyl esters of
eicosapentanoic acid, or EPA, and docosahexaenimica DHA, and other fatty acids. We believe tb&tA may increase LDL-C levels and
thereby partially offset one of the typically desibenefits of lipid-lowering therapies, whichasviering LDL-C.

Potential Benefits and Market Opportunity for AMR101

AMR101 is comprised of not less than 96% pure eERA and contains no DHA. We believe that the reahof DHA mitigates against
the LDL-C raising effect observed in omega-3 foratigins that include DHA, as well removing the fighgte and smell that is sometimes
associated with DHA. Based on the results of theRWE trial, AMR101 was the first omega-3 based piido demonstrate statistically
significant triglyceride reduction without a staitigally significant increase in LDL-C in this vehigh triglyceride population.

We believe that the results of the MARINE trial 2aelR101's DHA-free composition suggest that AMR1liHs the potential to become
a “best-in-class” EPA based triglyceride-lowerirggat in the United States and the European Unioadtition, currently no omega-3 based
product is approved for lowering high triglyceridagpatients with mixed dyslipidemia. If approvegithe FDA, we believe that AMR101 has
the potential to become “first-in-class” in the ggEption-grade omega-3 market for lowering triglsides in patients with mixed dyslipidemia.

We believe the potential market for AMR101 is laegel growing. We estimate that drug treatment jgeincholesterolemia patients
exceeds $26.5 billion per year in the United Statéth sales dominated by statin therapies. U.esgaf fibrates as a class of products were
approximately $2.6 billion in 2010 with Tricor afdilipix leading the class. U.S. sales of Lovaz&@10, as reported by GlaxoSmithKline plc,
were over $900 million, and worldwide sales of Loamacor in 2011 exceeded $1.3 billion, reflecingstantial annual growth both in the
United States and Europe.
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Our Commercialization Strategy

Our strategy is to seek FDA approval for AMR101dghen the results of the MARINE and ANCHOR trialsil we continue to condu
the REDUCE-IT trial and consider additional trisdsfurther expand the potential indications of t@eAMR101. The indication evaluated in
the MARINE trial is independent of the ANCHOR tratd can be submitted independently for FDA apgdrdmeSeptember 2011, we filed a
NDA with the FDA seeking marketing approval for tMARINE indication. The FDA has assigned a PresmipDrug User Fee Act, (
PDUFA, date of July 26, 2012 for the completiontsfreview of this NDA. In order to obtain a segaradication for AMR101 based on the
ANCHOR trial results, the FDA requires that the MINE indication be approved and that we have a@dihoutcomes study substantially
underway at the time of the NDA filing for the ANCHR indication. Based upon feedback from the FDA eomsistent with the respective
SPAs for the MARINE trial and the ANCHOR trial, e not believe the final results of an outcomesdstare required for FDA approval of
AMR101 for either indication.

We are currently considering three potential p&thshe marketing and sale of AMR101: strategidadmbration, acquisition and self-
commercialization, the latter of which could inobud third-party collaboration. From time to time have held discussions with larger
pharmaceutical companies on potential collaboratemd other strategic opportunities, and we ma lddscussions regarding such
opportunities in the future. These strategic opputies may include licensing or similar transaetipjoint ventures, partnerships, strategic
alliances, business associations, or a sale afdhmpany. However, no assurance can be given akda ar whether we will enter into any st
strategic transaction.

Until such time that we enter into such a stratéiginsaction, if ever, we plan to continue to exean our plans to launch, market and
sell AMR101 on our own. This includes making pregiamns for securing a sufficient commercial suppfAMR101 and expanding sales and
marketing capabilities. If we launch AMR101 on @wn, assuming a timely FDA approval, we are targeéin early 2013 launch and we
expect to begin hiring the majority of the requisadles force after NDA approval. In this scenasie,would seek to initially target the
clinicians who are top prescribers of other lipggulating therapies. We believe accomplishingfitiidhe indication studied in the MARINE
trial will require a sales force of approximate§2to 300 representatives in the United States.

We are actively conducting market research to ifieabur positioning, pricing and reimbursementtstyg with health plans and
pharmaceutical benefit managers in preparatioa fmoduct launch.

The U.S. market is currently the primary focus ahdxin for the initial commercial launch of AMR10@pportunities to market and sell
AMR101 outside of the United States are also uegafuation.

Our Lead Product Candidate
The MARINE Trial

The MARINE trial, the largest study ever conductéth omega-3 fatty acids in treating patients widity high triglycerides £ 500
mg/dL), was a Phase 3, multi-center, placebo-ciattorandomized, double-blind, 12-week study. &8 were randomized into three
treatment arms for treatment with AMR101 4 gram/dagram/day or placebo. Patient enroliment in thé began in December 2009, and
enroliment and randomization was completed in At@040 at 229 patients. The primary endpoint inttla was the percentage change in
triglyceride level from baseline compared to placalier 12 weeks of treatment. The MARINE study wegiired to meet a stringent level of
statistical significance of 1% (p < 0.01) in ourAS&reement with the FDA.

On November 29, 2010, we reported top-line dataferMARINE trial. In the trial, MARINE met its priary endpoint at doses of 4
grams and 2 grams per day with median placebo-&djusductions in triglyceride levels of 33% (p ©@1) compared to placebo for 4 grams
and 20% (p = 0.0051) compared to placebo for 2 grarhe median baseline triglyceride levels were m@gadL, 680 mg/dL and 657 mg/dL f
the patient groups treated with placebo, 4 gramSMiR101 and 2 grams of AMR101, respectively.
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In a pre-specified secondary analysis in the suljgad patients with baseline triglyceride > 750 dig/representing 39% of all patients,
the effect of AMR101 in reducing triglyceride lesdtom placebo was 45% for 4 grams and 33% fora2ngt both statistically significant (p =
0.0001 for 4 grams and P=0.0016 for 2 grams, msdy). The median baseline triglyceride leveighis subgroup were 1052 mg/dL, 902
mg/dL and 948 mg/dL for placebo, 4 gram and 2 ggaoups, respectively. Twenty-five percent of paten this trial were on background
statin therapy. These patients had greater meddurction in triglyceride levels, which was alsdistecally significant.

In addition, patients did not experience a statilly significant increase in median LDL-C compateglacebo at either dose (-2.3% for
the 4 gram group and +5.2% for the 2 gram groupNfpl- In addition, there was a statistically sigeaht decrease in median non-H@L total
cholesterol less so-called “good cholesterol”) canepl to placebo with both of the AMR101 treatedugo(-18% for the 4 gram group [p <
0.001] and -8% for the 2 gram group [p < 0.05]).

The MARINE trial results also included statistigadiignificant reductions compared to placebo iresavimportant lipid markers,
including Apo B (apolipoprotein B) (8.5%), Lp-PLARpoprotein-phospholipase A2) (13.6%), VLDL-C (ydow-density lipoprotein
cholesterol) (28.6%), Total Cholesterol (16.3%)] &a8CRP (high-sensitivity C-reactive protein) (36)at the 4 gram dose. For these achieved
endpoints, p-values were <0.01 for most and <@%H. The 2 gram dose also showed reductionspaf B (2.6%), Lp-PLA2 (5.1%), VLDL-
C (15.3%), Total Cholesterol (6.8%), and hsCRP1%).compared to placebo. For these achieved endpphvalues were not significant for
most and <0.05 for all. Apo B (Apolipoprotein B)lhglieved to be a sensitive biomarker of residaatliovascular risk and is generally
considered to be a better predictor of residualiosascular risk than LDL-C. LPLA2 is an enzyme found in blood and atheroscleqiaque
high levels have been implicated in the developraedtprogression of atherosclerosis.

In the MARINE trial, patients treated with 4 graper day of AMR101 experienced a significant redurcin median placebo-adjusted
lipoprotein particle concentrations of total LDLdasmall LDL. When looking at lipoprotein particlertcentrations and sizes as measured with
nuclear magnetic resonance spectroscopy, AMR1Gamgper day, compared with placebo, significardtjuced median total LDL particle
count by 16.3% (P=0.0006), which is an importaotdain atherogenesis. LDL particle count and AparB important risk markers for the
prediction of cardiovascular events. Small LDL detcount was reduced by 25.6% (P<0.0001) compaitrdplacebo, which is a common
risk factor for cardiovascular events in patienithwliabetes. AMR101 2 grams per day, compared plabebo, significantly reduced median
small LDL particle count by 12.8% (P <0.05) anduegld median total LDL particle count by 1.1% (NIS)L particle size did not change
significantly for the 2 or 4 grams doses.

AMR101 was well tolerated in the MARINE trial withsafety profile comparable to placebo. There wergeatment-related serious
adverse events in the MARINE study. No significelminges in fasting blood glucose, hemoglobin Alid) gigns, electrocardiograms, or liy
or kidney function were observed with either AMRIfiise.

Patients enrolled in the MARINE trial were giver thption to be treated with AMR101 for a periodupfto 40weeks after their last do
in the pivotal trial. Once participants complethd tandomized, double blind, placebo-controlledvE2k MARINE registration trial, patients
in all three randomized groups (4 grams, 2 grandispdacebo) were offered the opportunity to paratépin the open label extension, or OLE,
phase. Patients in the OLE phase received 4 gramdgy of AMR101 for a period of up to an additiof@ weeks. As is typical of such
extension phases, the OLE phase was not a couwttolé, as differentiated from the randomized, llewblind, placebo-controlled 12-week
MARINE registration trial. In the OLE phase, paipi&gnts were not randomized at entry, AMR101 adriai®n was open-label (and thus not
blinded), and no placebo group was maintained. Alsce patients entered in the OLE phase, invdstigavere free to add or modify other
lipid-altering nutritional, lifestyle and drug treaent regimens. Given the lack of randomizatior,dpen-label design, the addition of various
other lipid-altering drugs and changes to dosexisting lipid-altering drugs, as well as the latlplacebo control, neither we nor our
independent advisors were able to draw efficacylkmions from the data. However, we have conclutatithe MARINE OLE phase reveal
no new safety signals after an additional 40 wedlexposure to AMR101, whether used alone or inlmoation with other lipid-altering
regimens.
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The ANCHOR Trial

The ANCHOR trial was a multi-center, placebo-coliah randomized, double-blind, 12-week pivotaldstin patients with high
triglycerides (>200 and <500 mg/dL) who were on optimized staterdpy. Patients were randomized into three armgdatment with
AMR101 4 gram/day, 2 gram/day or placebo. Patientlément in this trial began in January 2010, andoliment and randomization was
completed in February 2011 at 702 patients. Thagmy endpoint in the trial was the percentage caamdriglyceride level from baseline
compared to placebo after 12 weeks of treatment.

In April 2011, we reported tofine results from the ANCHOR trial. The ANCHOR ftriaet its primary endpoint at doses of 4 grams2
grams per day with median placebo-adjusted redugiio triglyceride levels of 21.5% (P<0.0001 valfe)4 grams and 10.1% (P=0.0005) for
2 grams. The median baseline triglyceride levelev@9 mg/dL, 265 mg/dL and 254 mg/dL for the pdtgroups treated with placebo, 4
grams and 2 grams of AMR101 per day, respectividhe. analysis of subgroups by baseline triglycetéatles showed that higher baseline
triglycerides resulted in greater triglyceride retions.

One of the trial's secondary endpoints was to destrate a lack of elevation of LDL-C in order to &Voffset to the primary target of
cholesterol lowering therapy. The trial’s non-indeity criterion for LDL-C was met at both AMR10Jdes. The upper confidence boundaries
for both doses were below the pre-specified +6% iDthreshold limit. At the 4 gram dose the upperficience boundary was below zero (-
1.7%) and at the 2 gram dose the upper confideoaedary was close to zero (0.5%). For the 4 graenslay AMR101 group, LDL-C
decreased significantly by 6.2% from baseline veggdacebo, demonstrating superiority over placgs®0067). For the 2 grams per day
group, LDL-C decreased by 3.6% from baseline veptasebo (p=0.0867), which is not a statisticalfngicant decrease.

Other secondary efficacy endpoints included theiareplacebo-adjusted percent change in non-higlsityelipoprotein cholesterol (non-
HDL-C), apolipoprotein B (Apo B), and lipoproteirssociated phospholipase A2 (Lp-PLA2). The 4 grasedeas associated with statistically
significant reductions in non-HDL-C (13.6%, p<0.a90Apo B (9.3%, p<0.0001), Lp-PLA2 (19%, p<0.00@hd high-sensitivity C-reactive
protein (hsCRP) (22%, p<0.001), at week 12 comptrgdiacebo. The 2 gram dose was associated vaitistitally significant reductions in
non-HDL-C (5.5%, p<0.01), Apo B (3.8%, p<0.05), BhA2 (8.0%, p<0.0001) and a non-statistically sfigaint reduction in high-sensitivity
C-reactive protein (hsCRP) (6.8%) at week 12 combén placebo.

AMR101 was well tolerated in the ANCHOR trial wighsafety profile comparable to placebo. There wergeatment-related serious
adverse events in the ANCHOR study. No significdr@nges in fasting blood glucose, hemoglobin Alita) gigns, electrocardiograms, or
liver or kidney function were observed with eit#viR101 dose.

Observed Efficacy of Ethyl-EPA

Prior to commencing Phase 3 trials for AMR101, vgertbt conduct Phase 2 trials for the patient pafohs being studied in the
MARINE and ANCHOR trials. Such Phase 2 studies werterequired as part of the SPAs for either tahong the reasons why Phase 2 ti
were not conducted or required is that the actigeddient in AMR101, ethyEPA of not less than 96% purity with no DHA, hagbapprove
by regulatory authorities in Japan and marketetbghida Pharmaceutical Co. for over a decade. padaethyl-EPA is marketed under the
product name of Epadel and is indicated for hyp&timia and peripheral vascular disease and whechnderstand had 2009 revenues in
Japan that exceed $500 million per year. Clinieahdrom Japan show that Epadel is effective imced) triglycerides. In addition, in an
outcomes study called the Japan EPA Lipid InteieenBtudy, or JELIS study, which study consistednofe than 18,000 patients followed
over multiple years, Epadel, when used in conjamctiith statins, was shown to reduce cardiovas@auants by 19% compared to the use of
statins alone. In this study, cardiovascular evdatseased by approximately 53% compared to stalimee in the subset of patients with
triglyceride levels o 150 mg/dL (average 269 mg/dL at entry) and HDL-© wa/dL.
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Observed Clinical Safety of AMR101

Prior to commencing the MARINE and ANCHOR trialsg wonducted a pre-clinical program for AMR101, inthg toxicology and
pharmacology studies. In addition, we previoushestigated AMR101 in central nervous system diswrdeseveral double-blind, placebo-
controlled studies, including Phase 3 trials in tihgton’'s disease. Over 1,000 patients have besadiwith AMR101 in these studies, with
over 100 receiving continuous treatment for a yeanore. In all studies performed to date, AMR1@% Bhown a favorable safety and
tolerability profile. In the MARINE trial, the patnts dosed with AMR101 demonstrated a safety grofilmparable to placebo. In the
ANCHOR trial, the patients dosed with AMR101 demoated a safety profile comparable to placebo. @hegre no treatment-related serious
adverse events in the MARINE study or in the ANCHSRdy.

In addition to the MARINE and ANCHOR trials, we cphated a 28-day pharmacokinetic study in healthymeers, a 26-week study to
evaluate the toxicity of AMR101 in transgenic maed multiple pharmacokinetic drug-drug interacttudies in healthy subjects in which we
evaluated the effect of AMR101 on certain commaaspription drugs. All findings from these studiesre/consistent with our expectations of
no AMR101-related inhibition or metabolism of theids studied.

New Lipid Compounds and other Preclinical Programs

We are also considering development of other neregation compounds based on our internal lipienea expertise, including potential
combination and derivative therapies. Currentlysalth development is in formulative or mi@ical stages. We believe that AMR101 and ¢
lipid-based compositions may have an impact onmlrar of biological factors in the body such as-arftammatory mechanisms, cell
membrane composition and plasticity, triglycerigedls and regulation of glucose metabolism.

Manufacturing and Supply for AMR101

We currently use third party manufacturers and Befgpto manufacture clinical quantities of ethyA& which constitutes the only active
pharmaceutical ingredient, or API, within AMR10&,encapsulate, bottle and package AMR101 and tataiaiinventory of AMR101. Our
existing supplier, Nisshin Pharma, or Nisshin, vehikbased in Japan, has produced all of the aptimemaceutical ingredient for AMR101
API for Amarin’s clinical trials and has filed a &l.Drug Master File, or DMF, which contains infottina defining the processes and facilities
used in API manufacture and storage. Key aspedtsio$pecification include pharmaceutical gradepound at a level of purity of at least
96% EPA and containing no DHA. The API material tt@anstitutes ethyl-EPA is a naturally occurringpstance which is sourced from
qualified producers of fish oil.

A limited number of other manufacturers have thiéitgbknow-how and suitable facilities to produethyl-EPA to a similar level of
purity. We have entered into agreements with aafutiti suppliers beyond Nisshin to potentially mantifee commercial supply of AMR101
API. However, Nisshin is currently our only suppla# ethyl-EPA. We intend to submit supplementalA)or sSNDAs, to the FDA, following
an NDA approval, requesting approval of such addél APl manufacturers to supplement Amarin’s comuiaé¢needs, subject to regulatory
requirements.

Our agreement with Nisshin for the supply of etBflA was entered into in November 2010. In connactidh this agreement, we paid
Nisshin a no-refundable upfront payment of $0.5 million uporeention of the agreement. In addition, the agre¢nmeiudes the following
financial obligations: a milestone payment of $®llion payable on the first marketing approvalAd¥R101 in the United States, and
minimum purchase obligations that vary based oANI& submission, six months after submission, anithiwisix months after first marketit
approval. Under the agreement, Nisshin is resptsib any capital costs required to meet the vawdamand of Amarin. The supply
agreement with Nisshin may be terminated by eitlaety by giving to the other party a notice in vt in the event of a material breach of the
agreement and (where such breach is
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capable of remedy) the breaching party fails toag@ynsuch breach within 60 days of receiving a emithotice from the terminating party
specifying the breach and requiring its remedy. agpeement may also be terminated by either pamyediately by giving a written notice to
the other, if a petition is filed by or against tht@er party for commencement of a bankruptcy pedisey, commencement of corporate
reorganization proceeding, commencement of citikglitation proceeding, or any other insolvencygaeding or the other party is unable to
pay its debts in the normal course of businessshitismay terminate this agreement by giving Am&frdays notice in writing if Amarin fails
to meet its minimum purchase requirements, uniegkin such 30 days, Amarin pays to Nisshin the ami@orresponding to the unfulfilled
purchases.

If Nisshin has expanded its manufacturing capdnigccordance with the agreement, Nisshin may temteithe agreement in the event
that Amarin does not receive marketing approvalAiR101 in the United States on or before Decen®ier2014 or in the event Amarin
abandons development of AMR101 for hypertriglycenida in the United States. If terminated, Amarineiguired to reimburse Nisshin for the
costs incurred to expand its facility less any jsgfaid to Nisshin for the purchase of ethyl-ERA4marin under the agreement, but in any
event, not to exceed $5.0 million. Unless termidagarlier, in accordance with the terms of the agrent, the agreement shall extend for a
period of 10 years from the commencement date atiésh it may be renewed upon mutual agreemengdocessive three-year periods.

We believe Nisshin is capable of producing suffitiguantities of AMR101 API to support the init@dmmercial launch of AMR101.
However, based on the positive results of our MARIBd ANCHOR clinical trials and the potential §geater than originally expected
product demand, we determined in 2011 to add afditisuppliers. Our goals in expanding our suppbirc were to provide greater capacity to
meet anticipated demand, enable supply diversifioand flexibility and introduce cost competitigkiter conducting an extensive global
search for manufactures capable of producing APAMR101 to our technical specifications, we entkirgo limited exclusivity, long-term
agreements with two additional API suppliers in 20Chemport Inc. and Equateq Limited. We are ctilyemorking to finalize terms and
conditions with a fourth supplier. Certain of ouPPsupply agreements contain provisions under wtiiettost of supply to us decreases as we
purchase increased product volume.

The agreements with each of our API suppliers coptate phased manufacturing capacity expansiorigriesto create sufficient
manufacturing capacity to meet anticipated deman@P| material for AMR101 following FDA approvahccordingly, Nisshin and our other
potential suppliers are currently working to expand qualify their production capabilities to mesgulatory requirements to manufacture the
API for AMR101. These API suppliers are self-furglthese expansion and qualification plans with bations from Amarin. There can be
no assurance that additional suppliers will fullyrd the capital costs of our engagement or thathik successfully qualify with the FDA.

Among the conditions for FDA approval of a pharmail product is the requirement that the manui@ets quality control and
manufacturing procedures conform to current Goodacturing Practice, or cGMP, which must be folkolat all times. The FDA typically
inspects manufacturing facilities before regulatapproval of a product candidate, such as AMR160d,an an ongoing basis. In complying
with cGMP regulations, pharmaceutical manufactuneust expend resources and time to ensure compliaitb product specifications as well
as production, record keeping, quality controlontipg, and other requirements. Our NDA filed wiitie FDA for AMR101 references one
supplier of our API, Nisshin, with which we havedhtae longest relationship and which we believgualified to support our initial commerc
launch of AMR101. We have defined with the FDA plan and specifications for qualifying the addiabAPI suppliers. We intend to submit
sNDAs for the use of these additional APl supplegdtsr the suppliers successfully complete theifipdgprocess and facility qualifications a
after the NDA for the MARINE indication is approved

For API encapsulation, we submitted two commereiedapsulators as part of our AMR101 NDA. We belignat both of these
companies, who currently encapsulate Lovaza , tleveapacity and sufficient expertise to supportpyaduct launch requirements.
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Our Marketing Plans

We currently have minimal marketing, sales andithistion capabilities. In order to commercializegucts that are approved for
commercial sale, we must either develop a salegeatiag and distribution infrastructure or collabta with third parties that have such
experience. Until such time that we enter into samgh collaborations, if ever, we plan to continmexecute on our plans to market, sell and
distribute AMR101 on our own. If we launch AMR10f our own, we expect to begin hiring the majorityhe required sales force after NDA
approval. In this scenario, we would seek to iftititarget the clinicians who are top prescribefrsther lipid regulating therapies. We believe
accomplishing this for the indication studied ie MARINE trial will require a sales force of appmmately 200 to 300 representatives in the
United States.

Historical Product Development Programs

In October 2009, we completed a private placemesilting in gross proceeds of $70.0 million. Theeceeds were used primarily to
fund the MARINE and ANCHOR studies for AMR101. larmection with this private placement, our boardioéctors and executive
management underwent significant change, and seareh and development activities, as well asioegteecutive functions, were
consolidated from multiple offices to our reseaacid development headquarters in the United Stetesnnection with these changes, we re-
focused our efforts on developing improved treattméor cardiovascular disease and ceased develdmhat product candidates outside of
our cardiovascular disease focus. In particulas,dicision resulted in our ceasing all direct dgwment of product candidates for Huntingt®on’
disease, Myasthenia gravis and Parkinson’s disease.

Huntington’s disease

In 2009, we voluntarily withdrew our previously anmced European marketing application for AMR10atieg to an Orphan Medicin
Product indication for a subset of Huntington'sedise patients. While the safety profile of AMR104Huntington’s disease was encouraging,
feedback from European regulatory authorities iatd that at least one additional study of AMR1@E wequired to establish the efficacy of
this product candidate in treating motor symptoffiduntington’s disease.

Myasthenia gravis

In 2007, we purchased Ester Neurosciences Ltd jiste Israeli pharmaceutical company, and its fgadiuct candidate, EN101, an
AChE-R mRNA inhibitor for the treatment of myastiegravis, or MG, a debilitating neuromuscular ds In connection with the
acquisition, we assumed a license to certain gaalll property assets related to EN101 from tlesifh Research Development Company of
The Hebrew University of Jerusalem.

During 2009, in keeping with our decision to redemur efforts on developing improved treatmentsérdiovascular disease and cease
development of all product candidates outside ofcandiovascular disease focus, we amended thestefiour acquisition agreement with the
original shareholders of Ester. Under the termthisfamendment, Amarin was released from all rebeand development diligence obligati
contained in the original agreement and authoraeskek a partner for EN101. The amendment agreesismprovided that any future
payment obligations payable by Amarin to the forstegaireholders of Ester would be made only out@dnime received from potential partners.

Under the terms of this amendment agreement, tinecioEster shareholders had the option of reacyuttie original share capital of
Ester if we are unable to successfully partner EN1® connection with this amendment agreemenAugust 2009 we issued 1,315,789
common shares to the former Ester shareholders.

Following our decision to cease development of ENMssum terminated its license agreement with Aman June 2011 Yissum
announced that it had entered into a license agreewith BiolineRX Ltd for the development of EN1Dia different indication, Inflammato
Bowel Disease.
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We have received correspondence on behalf of timecfioshareholders of Ester asserting that Amariim lseach of its amended
agreement due to the fact that the Yissum termihiédédicense and Amarin failed to return sharegster, and assets relating to EN101, to the
shareholders, as was required under certain citeumoas under the amended agreement. We do notdétiese circumstances constitute a
breach of the amended agreement, but there caa assarance as to the outcome of this dispute.

Parkinson’s disease

Previously we were engaged in the pre-clinical ttgwaent of AMR103, a novel delivery form of levodggor the treatment of patients
with Parkinson’s disease. The program was partioflevelopment of different types of chemical ligkao attach a range of bioactive lipids
either to other lipids or other drugs. This Targdtéid Transport Technology, or TLT, platform cegsult in novel chemical entities,
potentially offering substantial and clinically eghnt advantages over either compound alone. Hawievkkeeping with our decision to feeus
our efforts on developing improved treatments #md@vascular disease and cease developmentmfaliict candidates outside of our
cardiovascular disease focus, we discontinuedighér development of AMR103 and the TLT platform.

Competition

The biotechnology and pharmaceutical industriehaylely competitive. There are many pharmaceutioahpanies, biotechnology
companies, public and private universities andaredeorganizations actively engaged in the reseandrdevelopment of products that may be
similar to our products. It is probable that thentner of companies seeking to develop products laedpies similar to our products will
increase. Many of these and other existing or giatecompetitors have substantially greater finahdechnical and human resources than we
do and may be better equipped to develop, manufaand market products. These companies may dewelbntroduce products and
processes competitive with or superior to oursddition, other technologies or products may bestiged that have an entirely different
approach or means of accomplishing the intendeplgsas of our products, which might render our teldgy and products noncompetitive or
obsolete.

Our potential competitors both in the United Stated Europe include large, well-established phaeutical companies, specialty
pharmaceutical sales and marketing companies auladiged cardiovascular treatment companies. Thesganies include GlaxoSmithKline
plc, which currently markets Lovaza, a prescriptioy omega-3 fatty acid indicated for patientshaiery high triglycerides, and Abbott
Laboratories, which currently markets Tricor andifix for the treatment of very high triglyceridesid mixed dyslipidemia. In March 2011,
Pronova BioPharma Norge AS, which owns the patientsovaza, entered into an agreement with ApoterpCand Apotex Inc. to settle their
patent litigation in the United States related twéza. Pursuant to the terms of the settlementagget, Pronova granted Apotex a license to
enter the U.S. market with a generic version ofdzavin the first quarter of 2015, or earlier depiegan circumstances. We expect Apotex to
compete against us as well. Other companies avesatking to introduce generic versions of Lovaza.

In addition, we are aware of other pharmaceutioaiganies that are developing products that, if egat, would compete with
AMR101. These include a free fatty acid form of gae (comprised of 55% EPA and 20% DHA) which imgealeveloped by Omthera
Pharmaceuticals, which completed enroliment in @sBI8 clinical trial in November 2011 and has anged that it expects to disclose initial
top-line data by April 2012, and Trygg Pharma, whh@as completed a Phase 3 study of an omega-3 Hasgdandidate for
hypertriglyceridemia, but we believe Trygg has yettannounced results from that study. In addithegsti Pharma, a subsidiary of Neptune
Technologies & Bioresources Inc., announced in28itE1 the enroliment of its Phase 2 clinical tiiahssess the safety and efficacy of its
omega-3 prescription drug candidate for the treatroehypertriglceridemia. We believe Resolvyx Rhaceuticals and Catabasis
Pharmaceuticals are also developing potentialrtreats for hypertriglceridemia based on omega-§ fatids, but we believe that neither has
initiated a Phase 2 clinical trial of its product.

AMR101, if approved, will also face competition finadietary supplement companies marketing natucadturring omega- fatty acids a
nutritional supplements.
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Regulatory Matters
Government Regulation and Regulatory Matters

Any product development activities related to AMRX products that we may develop or acquire irftihére will be subject to
extensive regulation by various government autlesiiincluding the FDA and comparable regulatortharities in other countries, which
regulate the design, research, clinical and nameal development, testing, manufacturing, storagsribution, import, export, labeling,
advertising and marketing of pharmaceutical proslacid devices. Generally, before a new drug casolok considerable data demonstratin
quality, safety and efficacy must be obtained, nizred into a format specific to each regulatoryhatity, submitted for review and approved
by the regulatory authority. The data is generatedio distinct development stages: pre-clinicad atinical. Our drugs must be approved by
the FDA through the NDA process before they majebally marketed in the United States. For new dhehentities, the pre-clinical
development stage generally involves synthesiziegattive component, developing the formulation detgrmining the manufacturing
process, as well as carrying out non-human toxgglpharmacology and drug metabolism studies whigiport subsequent clinical testing.
There is no assurance that we will receive FDA apalrfor AMR101 or any other product.

The clinical stage of development can generalldibieled into Phase 1, Phase 2 and Phase 3 climiaksl. In Phase 1, generally, a small
number of healthy volunteers are initially expoted single dose and then multiple doses of thduyarbcandidate. The primary purpose of
these studies is to assess the metabolism, phalogacaction, side effect tolerability and safefytloe drug. Phase 2 trials typically involve
studies in disease-affected patients to deterrhi@eldse required to produce the desired benefitheAsame time, safety and further
pharmacokinetic and pharmacodynamic informatiarolected. Phase 3 trials generally involve largebers of patients at multiple sites, in
multiple countries and are designed to providepilietal data necessary to demonstrate the effews® of the product for its intended use, its
safety in use, and may include comparisons witbgila and/or other comparator treatments. The durafi treatment is often extended to
mimic the actual use of a product during marketing.

United States Drug Development

In the United States, the process of obtaining leggty approvals and the subsequent complianceagfitopriate federal, state, local, .
foreign statutes and regulations require the exihemredof substantial time and financial resouréeslure to comply with the applicable United
States requirements at any time during the prodercélopment process, approval process or afteoaphmay subject an applicant to
administrative or judicial sanctions. These sam&ioould include the FDA'’s refusal to approve pagdipplications, withdrawal of an
approval, a clinical hold, warning letters, prodreatalls, product seizures, total or partial suspmmnof production or distribution injunctions,
fines, refusals of government contracts, restitytdisgorgement, or civil or criminal penalties.ydagency or judicial enforcement action could
have a material adverse effect on us.

Prior to the start of human clinical studies foreav drug in the United States, preclinical labomatind animal tests are often performed
under the FDA’s Good Laboratory Practices regutetjor GLP, and an investigational new drug appiioa or IND, is filed with the FDA.
Similar filings are required in other countrieswaver, data requirements and other information egddr a complete submission may diffe|
other countries. The amount of data that must pelsd in the IND depends on the phase of the stBtgse 1 studies typically require less
data than larger Phase 3 studies. A clinical plastrbe submitted to the FDA prior to commenceméatdinical trial. If the FDA has
concerns about the clinical plan or the safetyhefgroposed studies, they may suspend or terntimatgtudy at any time. Studies must be
conducted in accordance with good clinical pracgind regular reporting of study progress and angms@ experiences is required. Studies are
also subject to review by independent instituticeaiew boards, or IRBs, responsible for oversesingdies at particular sites and protecting
human research study subjects. An independent IRBatso suspend or terminate a study once initiated
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NDA and FDA Review Process

Following trial completion, trial data is analyzeddetermine safety and efficacy. Data is themdfiléth the FDA in an NDA along with
proposed labeling for the product and informatibowt the manufacturing and testing processes anilitiés that will be used to ensure prod
quality. The NDA must contain proof of safety, pyripotency and efficacy, which entails extensive-glinical and clinical testing. FDA
approval of an NDA must be obtained before markeéidrug in the United States. In addition, in otdeseek approval for a potentially
expanded indication based on the ANCHOR study, leoe required to have substantially enrolled gabg in a medical “outcomes study” at
the time of our NDA submission, and the MARINE ication must be approved. Based upon feedback tenrDA and in accordance with
the SPA for the ANCHOR study, we do not believe tha results of the REDUCE-IT outcomes study arpiired for approval of the
indication studied in the ANCHOR trial.

The FDA will likely re-analyze the clinical trialada, which could result in extensive discussiorterben the FDA and us during the
review process. The review and evaluation of apfibois by the FDA is extensive and time consumimdmay take longer than originally
planned to complete. The FDA may conduct a pre@amrinspection of the manufacturing facilities fbe new product to determine whether
they comply with current good manufacturing praetiequirements and may also audit data from clirined pre-clinical trials.

There is no assurance that the FDA will ultimatghprove a drug product for marketing in the Unigdtes. Even if AMR101 or a future
product is approved, FDA'’s review will be lengthydawe may encounter significant difficulties or toduring the review process. After
approving any drug product, the FDA may requiretymarketing testing and surveillance to monitor éfffects of approved products or it may
place conditions on approvals including potengguirements or risk management plans that coutdeethe commercial promotion,
distribution, prescription or dispensing of produd®roduct approvals may be withdrawn for non-céemgke with regulatory standards or if
problems occur following initial marketing.

European Union Drug Development

In the European Union (E.U.), our future products/ralso be subject to extensive regulatory requerégm As in the United States, the
marketing of medicinal products has been subjetidéa@ranting of marketing authorizations by retpriaagencies. Particular emphasis is also
being placed on more sophisticated and faster guoes for reporting of adverse events to the coemtetuthorities.

Similar to the United States, the various phasgs@{clinical and clinical research in the E.U. subject to significant regulatory
controls. Although the regulatory controls on daliresearch are currently undergoing a harmowizagtiocess following the adoption of the
Clinical Trials Directive 2001/20/EC, there arerauntly significant variations in the member stagimes. However, all member states
currently require independent institutional revieeard approval of interventional clinical trialsitWthe exception of U.K. Phase 1 studies in
healthy volunteers, all clinical trials requirelait prior governmental notification or approval. $flcegulators also require the submission of
adverse event reports during a study and a coffyedinal study report.

European Union Drug Review and Approval

In the E.U., approval of new medicinal products barobtained through one of three processes: theainecognition procedure, the
centralized procedure and the decentralized proeedu

Mutual Recognition Procedure

An applicant submits an application in one E.U. rhemnstate, known as the reference member state tBeaeference member state has
granted the marketing authorization, the applicaay choose to submit applications in other conaemember states, requesting them to
mutually recognize the marketing authorizationsadly granted. Under this mutual recognition procasthorities in other concerned member
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states have 55 days to raise objections, which thestbe resolved by discussions among the conteneenber states, the reference member
state and the applicant within 90 days of the comsament of the mutual recognition procedure. If disagreement remains, all
considerations by authorities in the concerned negratates are suspended and the disagreemenpligac¢hrough an arbitration process. The
mutual recognition procedure results in separatiema marketing authorizations in the referencenber state and each concerned member
state.

Centralized Procedure

This procedure is currently mandatory for produetgeloped by means of a biotechnological procedsational for new active
substances and other “innovative medicinal prodwdts novel characteristics.” Under this procedune application is submitted to the
European Agency for the Evaluation of Medical PrdduTwo European Union member states are appoiatednduct an initial evaluation of
each application. These countries each preparssssment report that is then used as the basisaiéntific opinion of the Committee on
Proprietary Medical Products. If this opinion iszdaable, it is sent to the European Commissiongctvidirafts a decision. After consulting with
the member states, the European Commission adaetsision and grants a marketing authorizationctviig valid throughout the European
Union and confers the same rights and obligatioreaich of the member states as a marketing ausitiorizgranted by that member state.

Decentralized Procedure

The most recently introduced of the three procefsgesbtaining approval of new medicinal processebe E.U., the decentralized
procedure is similar to the mutual recognition ahere described above, but with differences irtithing that key documents are provided to
concerned member states by the reference membeythia overall timing of the procedure and thesjiunbity of “clock stops” during the
procedure, among others.

Post-Marketing Requirements

Following approval of a new product, a pharmacelitompany generally must engage in numerous specdnitoring and
recordkeeping activities and continue to submitqaic and other reports to the applicable regulatmencies, including any cases of adverse
events and appropriate quality control records. filcations or enhancements to the products or iabedr changes of site of manufacture are
often subject to the approval of the FDA and otiegiulators, which may or may not be received or mneaylt in a lengthy review process.

Prescription drug advertising is subject to fedestte and foreign regulations. In the United &¥tathe FDA regulates prescription drug
promotion, including direct-to-consumer advertisiRgescription drug promotional materials must lensitted to the FDA in conjunction with
their first use. Any distribution of prescriptiomugd) products and pharmaceutical samples must cowigiythe U.S. Prescription Drug
Marketing Act, or the PDMA, a part of the U.S. Fedd-00d, Drug, and Cosmetic Act.

In the United States, once a product is approveananufacture is subject to comprehensive andragng regulation by the FDA. The
FDA regulations require that products be manufactun specific approved facilities and in accordawith current good manufacturing
practices, or cGMPs, and NDA holders must listrthbedducts and register their manufacturing essblients with the FDA. These regulations
also impose certain organizational, proceduraldgomimentation requirements with respect to manufang and quality assurance activities.
NDA holders using contract manufacturers, laborasoor packagers are responsible for the seleatidnrmonitoring of qualified firms, and,
certain circumstances, qualified suppliers to tHeges. These firms and, where applicable, thepdiers are subject to inspections by the F
at any time, and the discovery of violative corafi, including failure to conform to cGMPs, couddult in enforcement actions that interrupt
the operation of any such facilities or the abitiydistribute products manufactured, processadsted by them.
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Other Regulatory Matters

Manufacturing, sales, promotion, and other ac#sifiollowing product approval are also subjecegutation by numerous regulatory
authorities in addition to the FDA, including, imet United States, the Centers for Medicare & Madi&rvices, other divisions of the
Department of Health and Human Services, the DnfgiEement Administration, the Consumer ProducefaCommission, the Federal Tre
Commission, the Occupational Safety & Health Adstiition, the Environmental Protection Agency, atade and local governments. Sales,
marketing and scientific/educational programs nalsd comply with the U.S. Medicare-Medicaid Antabd and Abuse Act and similar state
laws. Pricing and rebate programs must comply tiéhMedicaid rebate requirements of the U.S. OmBwdget Reconciliation Act of 1990.
If products are made available to authorized usktise Federal Supply Schedule of the General 8esvAdministration, additional laws and
requirements apply. The handling of any controfiatistances must comply with the U.S. Controlleds&uizes Act and Controlled Substances
Import and Export Act. Products must meet appliealild-resistant packaging requirements undebti®e Poison Prevention Packaging Act.
Manufacturing, sales, promotion and other actisiiee also potentially subject to federal and statssumer protection and unfair competition
laws.

The distribution of pharmaceutical products is sabjo additional requirements and regulationduttiog extensive record-keeping,
licensing, storage and security requirements irgdrid prevent the unauthorized sale of pharmacedyifoducts.

The failure to comply with regulatory requiremestsjects firms to possible legal or regulatory@etDepending on the circumstances,
failure to meet applicable regulatory requiremeyats result in criminal prosecution, fines or otpenalties, injunctions, recall or seizure of
products, total or partial suspension of produgtasmial or withdrawal of product approvals, ol to allow a firm to enter into supply
contracts, including government contracts. In addijteven if a firm complies with FDA and other végments, new information regarding the
safety or effectiveness of a product could leadRbé to modify or withdraw a product approval. Pitwtions or restrictions on sales or
withdrawal of future products marketed by us caulaterially affect our business in an adverse way.

Changes in regulations or statutes or the intempiogt of existing regulations could impact our Imesis in the future by requiring, for
example: (i) changes to our manufacturing arrangesnéii) additions or modifications to product &img; (iii) the recall or discontinuation of
our products; or (iv) additional record-keepinguigments. If any such changes were to be impdkeg,could adversely affect the operation
of our business.

Marketing Exclusivity

Market-exclusivity provisions under the Food, Dargl Cosmetic Act, or FDCA, also can delay the ssbion or the approval of certain
applications. The FDCA provides a five-year perdthon-patent marketing exclusivity within the UsdtStates to the first applicant to gain
approval of an NDA for a new chemical entity, or IQA\ drug is an NCE if the FDA has not previoughpeoved any other new drug
containing the same active moiety, which is theeuole or ion responsible for the action of the dsulgstance. During the exclusivity period,
the FDA may not accept for review an abbreviated deug application, or ANDA, or a 505(b)(2) NDA sulited by another company for
another version of such drug where the applicassdwt own or have a legal right of reference ltthal data required for approval. However,
an application may be submitted after four yeaisabntains a certification of patent invalidity won-infringement. The FDCA also provides
three years of marketing exclusivity for an NDASH8)(2) NDA or supplement to an existing NDA if nelinical investigations, other than
bioavailability studies, that were conducted orrsgaoed by the applicant are deemed by the FDA tsbential to the approval of the
application (for example, for new indications, dpss, or strengths of an existing drug). This thyear exclusivity covers only the conditions
associated with the new clinical investigations dnds not prohibit the FDA from approving ANDAs finugs containing the original active
agent. Five-year and thrgear exclusivity will not delay the submission entative approval of a full NDA; however, an apalit submitting
full NDA would be required to conduct or obtainight of reference to all of the preclinical studasl adequate and well-controlled clinical
trials necessary to demonstrate safety and effautiss.
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With respect to AMR101, we are seeking fivgar NCE marketing exclusivity under the FDCA. Wiidve that the active pharmaceut
ingredient in AMR101, at least 96% ethyl-EPA, ma&ydonsidered a new chemical entity, and could thexde eligible for five-year market
exclusivity under the FDCA if the NDA is approvéithe only other omega-3 based product approvedd¥ DA is Lovaza. We believe the
active moiety in Lovaza and the active moiety in RM1 are different. Lovaza was approved as a lipgliating agent by the FDA in 2004
and has been described in its FDA-approved prddbet as a combination of ethyl esters of omegatty faicids, principally ethyl-EPA and
ethyl-DHA. Our belief that AMR101 should be grantdé@E exclusivity is based in part on precedenhatRDA for granting NCE status to a
previously uncharacterized active moiety, in tldse; potentially ethyl-EPA that was part of a pvesly approved product. It is currently
unclear whether the FDA will view the ethyl-EPAAMR101 as a previously approved active moiety ivdza and deny our request that
AMR101 be granted NCE status and the associatéodpef regulatory exclusivity. We expect the FDAelenination on NCE exclusivity will
be made in connection with, or soon after, an Nppraval of the MARINE application, if approved, bué cannot assure you that we will be
granted NCE exclusivity even if the NDA is approvidve are not granted NCE exclusivity, we maygoanted thregrear exclusivity. We als
plan to seek regulatory exclusivity for AMR101 inrBpe. There can be no assurance that we will beessful in securing marketing approval
or regulatory exclusivity in the United States miEurope.

Pediatric exclusivity is another type of exclughiit the United States. Pediatric exclusivity, igted, provides an additional six months
to an existing exclusivity or a statutory delayapproval resulting from a patent certification. §kix-month exclusivity, which runs from the
end of other exclusivity protections or patent getaay be granted based on the voluntary completieanpediatric study in accordance with
FDA-issued “Written Request” for such a study. Hnket exclusivity, as described above, is successtuwill consider pursuing pediatric
exclusivity, although there can be no assurandentbawill be successful.

Patents, Proprietary Technology, Trade Secrets

Our success depends in part on our ability to aldad maintain intellectual property protectiondor drug candidates, technology and
know-how, and to operate without infringing the pmietary rights of others. We seek to protect dweraical compounds and technologies by,
among other methods, filing U.S. and foreign patgmlications related to our proprietary technoldgyentions and improvements that are
important to the development of our business. \W§e edly on trade secrets, know-how, continuingnetdgical innovation and in-licensing
opportunities to develop and maintain our propriefosition. We, or our licensors, file patent apgifions directed to our key drug candidates
in an effort to establish intellectual property pioss regarding new chemical entities relatingtw product candidates as well as uses of new
chemical entities in the treatment of diseases.@tenting strategy encompasses pursuing patentsrigpositions, formulations, indications/
uses and combinations with other drugs. Amarim@s@cuting multiple patent applications in an dfforprotect the intellectual property
developed during the AMR101 cardiovascular program.

We believe that patent protection of our techn@egprocesses and products is important to ourdperations. The success of our
products may depend, in part, upon our abilitylitam strong patent protection. There can, howexeno assurance that:

« any patents will be granted from our pending pasg@piications directed to AMR101 or any of our fetyproducts in any or all
appropriate jurisdictions

e any patents that we or our licensees may obtaimailbe successfully challenged in the futt
» our technologies, processes or products will noirige upon the patents of third parties;
» the scope of any patents will be sufficient to grvthird parties from developing similar produr

Our strategy is to file patent applications wherethink it is appropriate to protect and preseheegroprietary technology and inventions
considered significant to our business. We curydmve no patents that directly apply to the us&MR101 for hypertriglyceridemia,
hyperlipidemia or cardiovascular therapy in the
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United States or Europe. We have filed and aregaudsg numerous patent applications in the UnBdes and internationally that seek to
protect the proprietary position of AMR101. Fortear of these patent families, we have filed migtipatent applications. Collectively the
patent applications include numerous independaiiinsl and dependent claims. Several of our patgiicagions contain claims based upon
what we believe are unexpected findings from theRVE and ANCHOR trials. If granted, we believe thany of these resulting patents
would expire in 2030 or beyond. However, no asstearan be given that any of our patent applicatwitidoe granted or, if they are granted,
that they will prevent competitors from competinghwAMR101. Securing patent protection for a prade@ complex process involving many
legal and factual questions. The patent applicatiee have filed in the United States and intermatily are at varying stages of examination,
the timing of which is outside our control. The @ess to getting a patent granted can be lengthylairds initially submitted are often
modified in order to satisfy the requirements & gatent office. This process includes written public communication with the patent office.
The process can also include direct discussiortstivé patent examiner. There can be no assuraatththpatent office will accept our
arguments with respect to any patent applicationitr respect to any claim therein. The timing lué patent review process is independent of
and has no effect on the timing of the FBAé&view of our NDA. To our knowledge, the U.S.dpaitand Trademark Office or other internatic
patent offices have not yet commenced examininticeof these applications. While examination atai@ of these applications is anticipated
during 2012, we cannot predict the timing or resoftsuch examination. In addition, we may elecubmit, or the patent office may require,
additional evidence to support certain of the ctaime are pursuing. Providing such additional evigerould result in us incurring additional
costs. We cannot be certain what commercial vatyegaanted patent in our patent portfolio will pide to us.

We will also rely upon trade secrets and know-howetain our competitive position.

We may be dependent in some cases upon third jggehsors to pursue filing, prosecution and maiatere of patent rights or
applications owned or controlled by those partieis. possible that third parties will obtain pateor other proprietary rights that might be
necessary or useful to us. In cases where thitiepare first to invent a particular product artteology, or first to file in the United Statesis
possible that those parties will obtain patents wikh be sufficiently broad so as to prevent usnfr utilizing such technology. In addition, we
may use unpatented proprietary technology, in whae there would be no assurance that others wotlidevelop similar technology. See
Item 1A “Risk Factors—Risks Related to our Intefied Property and Regulatory Exclusivity—We areefggent on patents, proprietary rights
and confidentiality,” and “Risk Factors—Risks Rel&to our Business—Potential technological chaingesir field of business create
considerable uncertainty”.

Patent Term Restoration

Depending upon the timing, duration and specificB[@A approval of the use of AMR101, if the NDAapproved, we believe that some
of our U.S. patents may be eligible for a limiteatgnt term extension under the Drug Price Compat#ind Patent Term Restoration Act of
1984, referred to as the Hatch-Waxman Amendmeihis.Hatch-Waxman Amendments permit a patent regtortgrm of up to five years as
compensation for patent term lost during produsetispment and the FDA regulatory review processweler, patent term restoration cannot
extend the remaining term of a patent beyond & ¢étk4 years from the produstapproval date. The patent term restoration pésigénerally
one-half the time between the effective date of\ib and the submission date of an NDA, plus theetimetween the submission date of an
NDA and the approval of that application. Only qgagent applicable to an approved drug is eligibletlie extension and the extension mus
applied for prior to expiration of the patent. Theited States Patent and Trademark Office, in cettson with the FDA, reviews and appro\
the applications for any patent term extensiorestaration for an approved NDA. In the future, wend to apply for restorations of patent
term for some of our currently owned or licensetépts to add patent life beyond their current extjin date, depending on the expected
length of clinical trials and other factors involivim the filing of the relevant NDA.
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Employees

At December 31, 2011, we had 31 full-time employemployed in marketing, general and administragive research and development
functions. We believe our relations with our emgey are good.

Organizational Structure
At December 31, 2011, we had the following subsidg

Country of Proportion of
Incorporation Ownership Interest anc
Subsidiary Name or Registration Voting Power Held
Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limit Ireland 10C(%
Amarin Pharma Inc United State 10C%
Amarin Neuroscience Limite Scotlanc 10C%
Ester Neurosciences Limite Israel 10C%

Our registered office is located at One New Chahgadon EC4M 9AF, England. Our principal officeg docated at 2 Pembroke Hou
Upper Pembroke Street 28-32, Dublin 2 Ireland. @imary offices in the United States are locateti480 Route 206, Bedminster, NJ 07921,
USA. Our telephone number at that location is (908)-1315. Our website addressvisw.amarincorp.comNo information contained on, or
accessible through, our website is incorporatetefgrence into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

As of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10sKr principal operating activities were being cocted by Amarin Corporation plc,
together with Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limitsnd Amarin Pharma Inc., with little to no actviteing conducted by Amarin
Neuroscience Limited or Ester Neurosciences Lim

On January 9, 2012, Amarin, through its wholly-odisebsidiary Corsicanto Limited, a private limitmzimpany incorporated under the
laws of Ireland, completed a private placementi&d0 million in aggregate principal amount of3t50% exchangeable senior notes due
2032. The notes are the senior unsecured obligatib@orsicanto and are guaranteed by Amarin Catjmr plc. Corsicanto was formed in
November 2011 and was subsequently acquired by iirimedanuary 2012 for the sole purpose of fadiligthis financing transactio

Financial Information
The financial information required under this Itérs incorporated herein by reference to Item &hisf Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Where You Can Find More Information

You are advised to read this Annual Report on FboAK in conjunction with other reports and docunsethiat we file from time to time
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or.SE0 may obtain copies of these reports aftedétte of this annual report directly from
us or from the SEC at the SEC’s Public ReferenaeniRat 100 F Street, N.E. Washington, D.C. 2054%ddition, the SEC maintains
information for electronic filers (including Amadimat its website at www.sec.gov. The public mayagbinformation regarding the operation of
the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC ad@-8BEC-0330. We make our periodic and current tegrailable on our internet website,
free of charge, as soon as reasonably practicéielesaich material is electronically filed with, furnished to, the SEC.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardKimg information based on our current expectatiddscause our actual results may
differ materially from any forward-looking statemghat we make or that are made on our behal$, $kiction includes a discussion of
important factors that could affect our actual friguesults, including, but not limited to, our cegdiresources, the progress and timing of our
clinical programs, the safety and efficacy of otwquct candidates, regulatory filings and commelizition activities, the potential clinical
benefits and market potential of our product caatkd, commercial market estimates, future develapeféorts, patent protection, effects of
healthcare reform, reliance on third parties, antier risks set forth below.

Risks Related to our Financial Position and CapitaRequirements
We have a history of losses and anticipate thatwittincur continued losses for the foreseeable dué.

We have not been profitable in any of the last figseal years. For the fiscal years ended Decer@be2011, 2010, and 2009, we repol
losses of approximately $69.1 million, $249.6 roiflj and $30.6 million, respectively. Substantiallyof our operating losses resulted from
costs incurred in connection with our researchdeglopment programs, from general and adminiggatdsts associated with our operations,
and from non-cash losses on changes in the faievaf warrant derivative liabilities. We expectiteur additional and increasing operating
losses over the next several years. These lossmbirwed with expected future losses, have had alhdamtinue to have an adverse effect on
our cash resources, shareholders’ deficit and wgrkapital. We expect our research and developmgrenses to significantly increase in
connection with our proposed clinical outcomes gtiod AMR101 and any other studies for our prodtantdidates. In addition, if we obtain
regulatory approval for any of our product candédatve may incur significant sales, marketingjéedsing and outsourced manufacturing
expenses, as well as continued research and devehldgxpenses. As a result, we expect to contmuetir significant and increasing
operating losses for the foreseeable future. Becafifhe numerous risks and uncertainties assakciwith developing pharmaceutical products,
we are unable to predict the extent of any futassés or when we will become profitable, if at all.

We have not generated any revenue from our prodeemdidates and may never be profitable.

Our ability to become profitable depends upon dailitg to generate revenue. Unless and until mankeapproval is obtained from either
the FDA or European Medicines Agency, which werédeas the EMA, for any of our product candidatesye are otherwise able to acquire
rights to products or product candidates that liegeived regulatory approval or are at an advastagk of development and can be readily
commercialized, we may not be able to generatécgeiit revenue to attain profitability. In additioour ability to generate profits after any
FDA or EMA approval of our product candidates ibjsat to our ability to contract for the manufaetaf commercial quantities of our prodi
candidates at acceptable cost levels and estadalish and marketing capabilities or identify anéeimto one or more strategic collaborations
to effectively market and sell any approved produzgtdidate.

Even if one of our product candidates is approwecdmmercial sale, any approved product candichatg not gain market acceptance
achieve commercial success. In addition, we wountitipate incurring significant costs associatethwiommercializing any approved product.
We may not achieve profitability soon after geniegproduct sales, if ever. If we are unable toggate product revenues, we will not become
profitable and may be unable to continue operatwitisout continued funding.

Our ability to generate revenue depends on obtagiegulatory approvals for our products.

In order to successfully commercialize a produe,onwour potential partners are required to conthsts and successfully complete
clinical trials needed in order to meet regulat@guirements and to obtain applicable regulatopr@yels. The costs of developing and
obtaining regulatory approvals for pharmaceuticabipcts
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can be substantial. Our ability to commercializg ahour products in development is dependent upersuccess of development efforts in
clinical studies. If these clinical trials fail pgoduce satisfactory results, or if we are unableaintain the financial and operational capability
to complete these development efforts, we may lablerto generate revenues. Even if we obtain régylapprovals, the timing or scope of
any approvals may prohibit or reduce our abilitgtonmercialize products successfully. For exaniptege approval process takes too long,
may miss market opportunities and give other corngsatie ability to develop competing products daklssh market dominance. Additional
the terms of any approvals may not have the scopecadth needed for us to commercialize produstsessfully.

Our historical financial results do not form an aegate basis for assessing our current business.

As a consequence of our decision in 2009 to focugroduct development for cardiovascular indicatiand the discontinuation of
development work related to other product candglatar historical financial results do not formaturate basis upon which investors should
base their assessment of our business and prosjreatiition, we expect that our costs will ineaubstantially if we require additional
clinical trials to obtain regulatory approval of A&101, as a result of the initiation of the REDUOEeardiovascular outcomes study and as
prepare for the commercialization of AMR101. Acdagly, our historical financial results reflect abstantially different business from that
currently being conducted. In addition, we haveyettdemonstrated an ability to obtain regulatgrgraval for or commercialize a product
candidate. Consequently, any predictions aboufudure performance may not be as accurate as thag be if we had a history of
successfully developing and commercializing phaeunécal products.

We will require substantial additional resources tond our operations and to develop our product chidates. If we cannot find
additional capital resources, we will have diffidylin operating as a going concern and growing obusiness.

We currently operate with limited resources. At Breber 31, 2011, we had cash and cash equivaleagpodximately $116.6 million.
We believe that our current resources will be sigfit to fund our projected operations for the rieselve months, which projected operations
contemplate not only working capital and generapotate needs but also commercial preparation oRABL and the continuation of the
REDUCE-IT cardiovascular outcomes study. In ordezdmmercialize AMR101, we must either developlassanarketing and distribution
infrastructure or collaborate with third partieatihave such experience. We plan to consider anidion opportunities with larger
pharmaceutical companies for the launch, marketingysale of AMR101. Although from time to time we & discussions with
pharmaceutical companies regarding such collalmratihere can be no assurance that these discasgilbnesult in any such transaction.
Accordingly, we are also developing plans to laymohrket and sell AMR101 in the United States onawn.

If we do not enter into a strategic collaboratiorconnection with the launch, marketing and salaMR101, we will likely need to raise
additional capital to fully support these effoitge will also need additional capital to fully corat#d our REDUCE-IT cardiovascular outcomes
trial.
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Our future capital requirements will depend on méagtors, including:
» whether or not we enter into a strategic collaborain connection with the launch, marketing ank i AMR101,;
» the time and costs involved in obtaining regulatapprovals for AMR101

» the continued cost associated with the REDUCE-IEa@ues study to support the filing of an NDA foe ttlinical indication
evaluated in the ANCHOR tria

» the number of additional product candidates we mague;
» the costs involved in filing and prosecuting pat@mplications and enforcing or defending patentcdaand

» the costs associated with commercializing our pcodandidates if they receive regulatory approveluding the cost and timing
developing sales and marketing capabilities, orcthgt and timing of securing commercial supply MR101 and the timing of
entering into strategic collaboration with othegkating to the commercialization of our productdidates, if at all

If we do not enter into a collaboration agreemerdupport the commercialization of AMR101, or iegdate funds are not available to us
in amounts or on terms acceptable to us or on alyilvasis, or at all, we may be required to terneirea delay our development efforts in
support of our product candidates, or delay theaadement of the REDUCE-IT cardiovascular outcorriak br delay our establishment of
sales and marketing capabilities or other actigitrat may be necessary to commercialize AMR10thdrevent we obtain regulatory approval
for this product candidate.

Continued negative economic conditions would likédgve a negative impact on Amarin’s ability to obtdinancing on acceptable terms.

While we may seek additional funding through publigrivate financings, we may not be able to gbfaiancing on acceptable terms
at all. There can be no assurance that we willdbe ta access equity or credit markets in orddintance our current operations or expand
development programs for any of our product cartdiglaor that there will not be a further deterimmrain financial markets and confidence in
economies. We may also have to scale back or furéiséructure our operations. If we are unableltimio additional funding on a timely basis,
we may be required to curtail or terminate somalloof our research or development programs.

Raising additional capital may cause dilution to paxisting shareholders, restrict our operations m¥quire us to relinquish rights.

We may seek additional capital through a combimatibprivate and public equity offerings, debt ficéngs and collaboration, strategic
and licensing arrangements. To the extent thatamge mdditional capital through the sale of eqaitgonvertible debt securities, your
ownership interest will be diluted, and the termesyrinclude liquidation or other preferences thateagely affect your rights as a shareholder.

As of December 31, 2011, there were warrants audgtg for the purchase of up to 21,106,363 Ameridapository Shares, or ADSs,
each representing one of our ordinary shares, awtleighted average exercise price of $1.48 peeshée may issue additional warrants to
purchase ADSs or ordinary shares in connection arnthfuture financing we may conduct. In addition,January 9, 2012, we issued $150
million in aggregate principal amount of 3.50% excheable senior notes due 2032, or the notes. dties are exchangeable under certain
circumstances into cash, our ADS, or a combinatforash and ADS, at our election, with an initiatleange rate of 113.4752 ADS per $1,000
principal amount of notes, if we elected physiadtlsment, the notes would initially be exchangeabto 17,021,280 ADS.
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Debt financing, if available, may involve agreensethtat include covenants limiting or restricting ability to take specific actions such
as incurring additional debt, making capital exptmds or declaring dividends. If we raise addisibfunds through collaboration, strategic
alliance and licensing arrangements with thirdipartwe may have to relinquish valuable rightsuotechnologies or product candidates, or
grant licenses on terms that are not favorablesto u

We are dependent upon the success of AMR101.

If development efforts for AMR101, including regtdey approval, are not successful for the MARINEY@HOR or any other indicatio
or if adequate demand for AMR101 is not generated business will be materially and adversely aéfdcEven if we are able to develop
additional products from our research and developregorts, the development time cycle for produgfscally takes several years. This
restricts our ability to respond to adverse busireemditions for AMR101. If we are not successfulleveloping any future product or produ
or if there is not adequate demand AMR101 or thekatdor such product develops less rapidly tharewcipate, we may not have the ability
to effectively shift our resources to the developtref alternative products. As a result, the liditange of products we develop could cons
our ability to generate revenues and achieve piuifity.

Risks Related to the Development and Commercializatn of our Product Candidates

There can be no assurance that our NDA submittedhe FDA seeking approval to market AMR101 will bpproved and there can be |
assurance that the FDA will complete its reviewair NDA by the PDUFA date.

On September 26, 2011, we submitted an NDA to tha Beeking approval to market AMR101 in the Unittdtes for use in the
treatment of patients with very high triglycerids¢ls, or the MARINE indication, and the FDA hasigsed a Prescription Drug User Fee Act,
or PDUFA, date of July 26, 2012 for the completidrits review. The PDUFA date is the goal datetfer FDA to complete its review of the
NDA. However, there can be no assurance that th Wil complete its review of the NDA by this daféhe FDA may deny approval of tl
application and require additional testing or ditahe event the FDA takes any such action, satibres would have a material adverse effect
on our operations and financial condition.

Our SPA agreements with the FDA are not guarante#d$-DA approval of AMR101 for the subject indicatis.

An SPA agreement is an evaluation by the FDA ofcdqeol with the goal of reaching an agreement thatPhase 3 trial protocol design,
clinical endpoints, and statistical analyses aoeptable to support regulatory approval of the gmayluct candidate with respect to
effectiveness for the indication studied. The MARINial and ANCHOR trial were each conducted urate6SPA with the FDA. The
REDUCE-IT trial is also being conducted under ar\Sfth the FDA. The FDA agreed that, based on ttiermation we submitted to the
agency, the design and planned analysis of the MiERAnd ANCHOR trials are adequate to support usbeoftudies as the primary basis for
approval with respect to effectiveness. An SPAeisagally binding upon the FDA except in limitedctimstances, such as if the FDA identifies
a substantial scientific issue essential to deteimgisafety or efficacy is identified after thedyibegins, or if the study sponsor fails to follow
the protocol that was agreed upon with the FDA.ré&he no assurance that the FDA will not identifycéentific issue and deem either or both
of our SPAs no longer binding. Moreover, any chatoga study protocol after agreement with the FBAeiached can invalidate an SPA. W
we amended the protocol for the ANCHOR trial after initial SPA evaluation was completed, we otgdithe FDA'’s evaluation of, and
agreement to, the amendment. If, for example, th& Boes not consider the applicable SPA to be bigdiuring its review of our regulatory
approval applications, or if the FDA determined thia did not follow the SPAs appropriately, the mgecould assert that additional studies or
data are required to support approval of the aafitio.
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Even if we obtain marketing approval for AMR101 the United States, there can be no assurance af¢dfinal indication or indications
approved by the FDA, and the commercial value toaisany approved indication may be smaller than amticipate.

There can be no assurance as to the final indicapproved by the FDA, in the event that markeéipgroval is obtained. Even if
marketing approval is obtained, the number of dgiatients with the condition included in such apfed indication may be smaller than we
anticipate. For example, the FDA could approveM#eRINE indication and not the ANCHOR indication. &vif we obtain marketing
approval, the FDA may impose restrictions on thedpct’s conditions for use, distribution or marketing amgome cases may impose ongc
requirements for post-market surveillance, pggtroval studies or clinical trials. If any suclpegved indication is narrower than we anticip
the market potential for our product candidate wauffer.

Even if we obtain marketing approval for AMR101 the United States, it may fail to achieve the degjd market acceptance by
physicians, patients, healthcare payors and othershe medical community necessary for commerciatsess.

If AMR101 receives marketing approval, it may ndredess fail to gain sufficient market acceptancelysicians, patients, healthcare
payors and others in the medical community. Gainiagket acceptance for our product may be partilyudiifficult. If AMR101 does not
achieve an adequate level of acceptance, we mayemetrate significant product revenues and we mapecome profitable. The degree of
market acceptance of our product candidates, ifcy@g for commercial sale, will depend on a nundfdactors, including:

» efficacy and potential advantages compared toretere treatments

» the ability to offer AMR101 for sale at competitipeices;

» convenience and ease of administration comparattdmative treatment

» the willingness of the target patient populatiortrjonew therapies and of physicians to presctilesé therapie:
» the strength of marketing and distribution supg

» sufficient thirc-party coverage or reimbursement; :

» the prevalence and severity of any side effe

Even if our products are approved, we may not béeaio compete effectively against our competitgpearmaceutical products.

The pharmaceutical industry is highly competitifeve are successful in completing the developneériny of our products, we may
face competition to the extent other pharmaceutioaipanies have on the market or are able to deyetducts for the treatment of similar
indications. Potential competitors in this marketflide companies with greater resources and narogméion than we have. Furthermore, to
the extent we are able to acquire or develop auditimarketable products in the future, such prtsdwill compete with a variety of other
products within the United States or elsewheresipbsincluding established drugs and major braaches. Competitive factors, including
generic competition, could force us to lower prioesould result in reduced sales. In addition, peaducts developed by others could emerge
as competitors to our future products. Productedbas new technologies or new drugs could rendepmducts obsolete or uneconomical.

The success of our future products will also defaridrge part on the willingness of physiciangtescribe these products to their
patients. Our future products may compete aganustyets that have achieved broad recognition andmance among medical professionals.
In order to achieve an acceptable level of presiorip for our future products, we must be able &ethihe needs of both the medical
community and end users with respect to cost,a&ffiand other factors.
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Our potential competitors both in the United Stated Europe include large, well-established phaeutical companies, specialty
pharmaceutical sales and marketing companies auladiged cardiovascular treatment companies. Thesganies include GlaxoSmithKline
plc, which currently markets Lovaza, a prescriptioy omega-3 fatty acid indicated for patientshwiery high triglycerides, and Abbott
Laboratories, which currently markets Tricor andifix for the treatment of very high triglyceridesid mixed dyslipidemia. In March 2011,
Pronova BioPharma Norge AS, which owns the patientsovaza, entered into an agreement with ApoterpCand Apotex Inc. to settle their
patent litigation in the United States related twéza. Pursuant to the terms of the settlementawst, Pronova granted Apotex a license to
enter the United States market with a generic garsf Lovaza in the first quarter of 2015, or earliepending on circumstances. We expect
Apotex to compete against us as well. Other congsamie also seeking to introduce generic versibhevaza. These competitors have gre.
resources than we do, including financial, prodietelopment, marketing, personnel and other ressurc

In addition, we are aware of other pharmaceutioalganies that are developing products that, if @pgd, would compete with
AMR101. These include a free fatty acid form of g&e (comprised of 55% EPA and 20% DHA) which is\geleveloped by Omthera
Pharmaceuticals, which completed enroliment in @sBI8 clinical trial in November 2011 and has anged that it expects to disclose initial
top-line data by April 2012, and Trygg Pharma, vihinas completed a Phase 3 study of an omega-3 tasgdandidate for
hypertriglyceridemia, but we believe Trygg has yettannounced results from that study. In addithecgsti Pharma, a subsidiary of Neptune
Technologies & Bioresources Inc., announced in28tEl the enroliment of its Phase 2 clinical tttahssess the safety and efficacy of its
omega-3 prescription drug candidate for the treatroEhypertriglceridemia. We believe Resolvyx Rhaceuticals and Catabasis
Pharmaceuticals are also developing potentialrtreats for hypertriglceridemia based on om8datty acids, but neither has initiated a Phe
clinical trial of its product.

AMR101, if approved, will also face competition finadietary supplement companies marketing natucalburring omegé-fatty acids a
nutritional supplements.

Our current lead product candidate is a prescriptimnly omega-3 fatty acid. Omega-3 fatty acids atso marketed by other companies
as non-prescription dietary supplements. As a résalr lead product candidate, if approved, would bubject to non-prescription
competition and consumer substitution.

Our current lead product candidate, AMR101, isespription-only omega-3 fatty acid. Mixtures of ayae3 fatty acids are naturally
occurring substances in various foods, includirty fissh. Omega-3 fatty acids are also marketedtbers as non-prescription dietary
supplements. We believe the pharmaceutical gradtymi AMR101, if approved, will have a superidrerapeutic profile to naturally occurri
omega-3 fatty acids and dietary supplements. Howe&we cannot be sure physicians will view AMR1Glgpproved, as superior. To the extent
the price of AMR101, if approved, is significantiigher than the prices of commercially availableegan3 fatty acids marketed by other
companies as dietary supplements, physicians ntaym@end these commercial alternatives instead itihgprescriptions for AMR101 or
patients may elect on their own to take commercilailable omeg&-fatty acids. Either of these outcomes may adWeisgact our results
operations by limiting how we price our product dingiting the revenue we receive from the sale M{R101.

To maximize the commercial potential of AMR101 approved, we may need to find collaborative parsés help market and sell the
product.

To commercialize AMR101, we must either developlas marketing and distribution infrastructureoliaborate with third parties that
have such experience. We plan to consider collgioorapportunities with larger pharmaceutical comipa for the launch, marketing and sale
of AMR101. If we do complete such a collaboratigmezement, we will be reliant on one or more of ¢hetsategic partners to generate revenue
on our behalf.
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We may not be successful in finding a collaborafigetiner to help market and sell our products, ay tve delayed in doing so, in which
case we would not receive revenue or royaltiedertitneframe and to the extent that we currentticgrate. We face significant competition
in seeking appropriate collaborators and thesalsotations are complex and time-consuming to nagotind document. We may not be able
to negotiate collaborations on acceptable termat afl. If that were to occur, we may have to ailithe development of a particular product
candidate, reduce or delay its development prognaome or more of our other development prograregydits potential commercialization or
reduce the scope of our sales or marketing a@syitir increase our expenditures and undertakdageuent or commercialization activities at
our own expense. If we elect to increase our exipaned to fund development or commercializationvétes on our own, we will need to
obtain additional capital, which may not be avd#atio us on acceptable terms, or at all. If we camaise sufficient funds, we will not be able
to bring our product candidates to market effedyieand generate as much product revenue as we codler a collaboration.

If we are unable to establish sales and marketirgpabilities or enter into agreements with third pgags to sell and market AMR101, we
may not be successful in commercializing AMR101 amr own, if and when AMR101 is approved.

To achieve commercial success for any approvedugtpd/e must either develop a sales and marketiggnization or outsource these
functions to third parties. Until such time as veenplete a strategic transaction with a third psotynarket and sell AMR101, if ever, we are
continuing to develop plans to launch, market atiAAMR101 on our own. This includes making prep@rss for securing a sufficient
commercial supply of AMR101 and expanding salesraadketing capabilities and would require that wédcba substantial commercialization
infrastructure in order to compete with larger camips with established marketing and sales cafiebil\We do not have a sales or marketing
infrastructure and have no experience in the sadeketing or distribution of pharmaceutical produdthere are risks involved with both
establishing our own sales and marketing capaslaind entering into arrangements with third patteperform these services. For example,
recruiting and training a sales force is expenaive time consuming and could delay any productdauli the commercial launch of a product
candidate for which we recruit a sales force andbdish marketing capabilities is delayed or doasatcur for any reason, we would have
prematurely or unnecessarily incurred these comialezation expenses. This may be costly, and ouestment would be lost if we cannot
retain or reposition our sales and marketing parsbn

Factors that may inhibit our efforts to commeraalour products on our own include:
» our inability to recruit and retain adequate nurshireffective sales and marketing person
» the inability of sales personnel to obtain access persuade adequate numbers of physicians sonive any future product

» the lack of complementary products to be offereddigs personnel, which may put us at a competiis@dvantage relative to
companies with more extensive product lines;

» unforseen costs and expenses associated withngeatiindependent sales and marketing organiz:

If we enter into arrangements with third partiepésform sales, marketing and distribution servioes product revenues or the
profitability of these product revenues to us #@tely to be lower than if we were to market and aaly products that we develop ourselves. In
addition, we may not be successful in entering artangements with third parties to sell and maoketproduct candidates or doing so on
terms that are favorable to us. We likely will hditiee control over such third parties, and anytttdm may fail to devote the necessary
resources and attention to sell and market ourymtsceffectively. If we do not establish sales aratketing capabilities successfully, either on
our own or in collaboration with third parties, wél not be successful in commercializing our protloandidates.
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If approved, our products will be subject to extéres post-approval government regulation.

Once a product candidate receives FDA marketingosah numerous post-approval requirements appigoAg other things, the holder
of an approved NDA is subject to periodic and othenitoring and reporting obligations enforced bg EDA and other regulatory bodies,
including obligations to monitor and report adveesents and instances of the failure of a produat¢et the specifications in the approved
application. Application holders must also subnditertising and other promotional material to retpa authorities and report on ongoing
clinical trials.

With respect to sales and marketing activities biygartners, advertising and promotional materalst comply with FDA rules in
addition to other applicable federal and local lanvthe United States and in other countries. émUinited States, the distribution of product
samples to physicians must comply with the requénets of the U.S. Prescription Drug Marketing Acamifacturing facilities remain subject
to FDA inspection and must continue to adhere éoRBA’s current good manufacturing practice requiremekpgplication holders must obta
FDA approval for product and manufacturing chandepending on the nature of the change. We maybasubject, directly or indirectly
through our customers and partners, to variousifemd abuse laws, including, without limitatione t4.S. Anti-Kickback Statute, U.S. False
Claims Act, and similar state laws, which impachoag other things, our proposed sales, marketimg) saientific/educational grant programs.
If we participate in the U.S. Medicaid Drug RebRtegram, the Federal Supply Schedule of the U.paBment of Veterans Affairs, or other
government drug programs, we will be subject to plemlaws and regulations regarding reporting asghpent obligations. All of these
activities are also potentially subject to U.S efied and state consumer protection and unfair ctitiggelaws. Similar requirements exist in
many of these areas in other countries.

Depending on the circumstances, failure to meetetipost-approval requirements can result in crihgiregsecution, fines or other
penalties, injunctions, recall or seizure of pradutotal or partial suspension of production, dear withdrawal of pre-marketing product
approvals, or refusal to allow us to enter intogygontracts, including government contracts.ddition, even if we or our potential partners
comply with FDA and other requirements, new infotiora regarding the safety or effectiveness of alpod could lead the FDA to modify or
withdraw a product approval. Adverse regulatoryaactwhether pre- or post-approval, can potentildad to product liability claims and
increase our product liability exposure. We or potential partners must also compete against gttoetucts in qualifying for coverage and
reimbursement under applicable third party payra@atinsurance programs.

The FDA and other regulatory agencies strictly relgte the promotional claims that may be made abpuscription products. If we are
found to have improperly promoted off-label uses may become subject to significant fines and othability.

The FDA and other regulatory agencies strictly taguthe promotional claims that may be made apmegcription products. In
particular, a product may not be promoted for ukasare not approved by the FDA or such otherleggry agencies as reflected in the
product’s approved labeling. If we receive markgtapproval for AMR101, physicians may neverthefgescribe AMR101 to their patients in
a manner that is inconsistent with the approvedlldbwe are found to have promoted such off-lals#s, we may become subject to
significant government fines and other relatediliigh For example, the Federal government hasdévarge civil and criminal fines against
companies for alleged improper promotion and hgsired several companies from engaging in off-lgfgemotion. The FDA has also
requested that companies enter into consent degrgessmanent injunctions under which specifiedpotonal conduct is changed or curtai

Our cardiovascular outcomes study, REDUCE-IT, maké longer than we anticipate to be determined bg EDA to be substantially
underway, which could delay FDA review and approwvdithe ANCHOR indication and cost more than we @gb. The FDA may not
approve our request to consider the indication siediin the ANCHOR trial in conjunction with the FDAs review of the indication
studied in the MARINE trial.

Based on our communications with the FDA, in ottdeobtain FDA marketing approval of a separatedation for the use of AMR101
the treatment of patients with high triglyceridedés who are also on statin
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therapy for elevated LDL-cholesterol levels (whw refer to as mixed dyslipidemia), or the ANCHORication, we believe that we must
first obtain approval in the MARINE indication ahdve a cardiovascular outcomes study substantiatgrway at the time of the NDA
submission. In August 2011, we reached a agreewitimthe FDA on an SPA for the design of the REDUICEardiovascular outcomes stt
of AMR101, and we began dosing patients in Decer2béf.. In the event we do not receive approvahefMIARINE indication or experience
delays in initiating or achieving substantial efr@nt for REDUCE-IT or the FDA requires that we @hmore patients, our filing of an SNDA
seeking approval of the ANCHOR indication will belayed. We currently intend to file an sSNDA seekapproval of the indication studied in
the ANCHOR trial after we receive FDA marketing epgl for the MARINE indication and after we beleethe REDUCE-IT study will be
determined to be substantially underway by the FDA.

The REDUCE-IT cardiovascular trial may fail to ackeie its clinical endpoints, and the long-term cliail results of AMR101 may not be
consistent with the clinical results we observedouar Phase 3 pivotal trials.

In accordance with the SPA for our MARINE and ANCR®@ials, efficacy was evaluated in these trialspared to placebo at twelve
weeks. No placebo-controlled studies have beenumded regarding the long-term effect of AMR101 ipidls and no outcomes study has been
conducted evaluating AMR101. Outcomes studies d&ireother lipid modifying therapies have failedachieve the endpoints of such studies.
There can be no assurance that the endpoints &ERBJCE-IT cardiovascular outcomes study will bbiaged or that the lipid modifying
effects of AMR101 in REDUCE-IT or any other studyAdMR101 will not be subject to variation beyondetwe weeks. If the REDUCE-IT
trial fails to achieve its clinical endpoints ottlife results of these long-term studies are nogistent with the 12-week clinical results it could
prevent us from expanding the label of any apprgureduct or even call into question the efficacyany approved product.

We may not be successful in developing or marketintyre products if we cannot meet the extensivguatory requirements of the FDA
and other regulatory agencies for quality, safetpdhefficacy.

The success of our research and development ei§aitependent in part upon our ability, and thditstmf our partners or potential
partners, to meet regulatory requirements in thisgictions where we or our partners or potentatmers ultimately intend to sell such
products once approved. The development, manutaanad marketing of pharmaceutical products aresstibp extensive regulation by
governmental authorities in the United States Bpean Union, Japan and elsewhere. In the UBitats, the FDA generally requires pre-
clinical testing and clinical trials of each drugestablish its safety and efficacy and extensharmaceutical development to ensure its quality
before its introduction into the market. Regulatatthorities in other jurisdictions impose simitaguirements. The process of obtaining
regulatory approvals is lengthy and expensive heddsuance of such approvals is uncertain. Ther@mmement and rate of completion of
clinical trials and the timing of obtaining markegiapproval from regulatory authorities may be getbby many factors, including:

» the lack of efficacy during clinical trial

« the inability to manufacture sufficient quantitiefsqualified materials under current good manufantupractices for use in clinical
trials;

» slower than expected rates of patient recruitnr
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« the inability to observe patients adequately &ftestment
» changes in regulatory requirements for clinicab@clinical studies
» the emergence of unforeseen safety issues in aliaigpreclinical studies

» delay, suspension, or termination of a trial byitigitutional review board responsible for oversgehe study at a particular study
site;

* unanticipated changes to the requirements impogeeddulatory authorities on the extent, naturdraimy of studies to b
conducted on quality, safety and efficacy;

» government or regulatory delays*“clinical hold¢” requiring suspension or termination of a tr

Even if we obtain positive results from early stage-clinical or clinical trials, we may not achéethe same success in future trials.
Similarly, positive results from studies in Japdma@roduct containing the same active ingrediefMR101 may not be predictive of success
for AMR101 in trials outside of Japan. Clinicakls that we or potential partners conduct may notigde sufficient safety and efficacy data to
obtain the requisite regulatory approvals for pridiandidates. The failure of clinical trials tonttenstrate safety and efficacy for our desired
indications could harm the development of that pmdandidate as well as other product candidatesour business and results of operations
would suffer. For example, the efficacy result®of AMR101 Phase 3 clinical trials for the treattnehHuntington’s disease were negative.
As a result, we stopped development of that prodastiidate, we revised our clinical strategy arifteshour focus to develop AMR101 for v
in the treatment of cardiovascular disease.

Any approvals that are obtained may be limitedciope, may require additional post-approval studiamay require the addition of
labeling statements focusing on product safetydhatd affect the commercial potential for our proticandidates. Any of these or similar
circumstances could adversely affect our abilitgaon revenues from the sale of such products. Eveincumstances where products are
approved by a regulatory body for sale, the regujadr legal requirements may change over timaeov safety or efficacy information may
identified concerning a product, which may leadht® withdrawal of a product from the market or $&muse restrictions. The discovery of
previously unknown problems with a product or imgection with the manufacturer of products may ltéauestrictions on that product or
manufacturer, including withdrawal of the producirfi the market, which would have a negative impacbur potential revenue stream.

Legislative or regulatory reform of the health casystem in the United States and foreign jurisdiets may affect our ability to profitably
sell our products, if approved.

Our ability to commercialize our future productesessfully, alone or with collaborators, will dedén part on the extent to which
coverage and reimbursement for the products wili\mlable from government and health administratiathorities, private health insurers
other third-party payors. The continuing effortglod U.S. and foreign governments, insurance coiepamanaged care organizations and
other payors of health care services to contaieduce health care costs may adversely affecthilityao set prices for our products which
believe are fair, and our ability to generate rexenand achieve and maintain profitability.

Specifically, in both the United States and sonreifm jurisdictions, there have been a numbergilative and regulatory proposals to
change the health care system in ways that cotddtajur ability to sell our products profitablyofexample, the Patient Protection and
Affordable Care Act, as amended by the Health @arkEducation Reconciliation Act, or collectivehetPPACA, enacted in March 2010,
substantially changes the way healthcare is findubgeboth governmental and private insurers. Amathgr cost-containment measures,
PPACA establishes:

* An annual, nondeductible fee on any entity that mfiactures or imports certain branded prescriptiugs and biologic agent
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* A new Medicare Part D coverage gap discount progmanvhich pharmaceutical manufacturers who wishawae their drug
covered under Part D must offer discounts to diglieneficiaries during their coverage gap peradi

* A new formula that increases the rebates a manufctnust pay under the Medicaid Drug Rebate Prog

We expect further federal and state proposals aattthcare reforms to continue to be proposed gigletors, which could limit the
prices that can be charged for the products weldp\ad may limit our commercial opportunity.

The continuing efforts of government and otherdtparty payors to contain or reduce the costs aftheare through various means may
limit our commercial opportunity. It will be timeoosuming and expensive for us to go through theqe® of seeking coverage and
reimbursement from Medicare and private payors. @aducts may not be considered cost effective ,gaveérnment and third-party private
health insurance coverage and reimbursement mayenavailable to patients for any of our futuredurcts or sufficient to allow us to sell our
products on a competitive and profitable basis. @sults of operations could be adversely affebieBPACA and by other health care refo
that may be enacted or adopted in the future. ditiad, increasing emphasis on managed care ibttieed States will continue to put pressure
on the pricing of pharmaceutical products. Costrbinitiatives could decrease the price that wamy potential collaborators could receive
for any of our future products and could adverséfgct our profitability.

In some foreign countries, including major markatthe European Union and Japan, the pricing ad@iption pharmaceuticals is subj
to governmental control. In these countries, pgaiegotiations with governmental authorities cde ta to 12 months or longer after the rec
of regulatory marketing approval for a product.digain reimbursement or pricing approval in somentdes, we may be required to condu
pharmacoeconomic study that compares the costtieff@ess of our product candidates to other avigltierapies. Such pharmacoeconomic
studies can be costly and the results uncertainbOsiness could be harmed if reimbursement opooducts is unavailable or limited in scope
or amount or if pricing is set at unsatisfactoryelis.

As we evolve from a company primarily involved iesearch and development to a company also potdgtialzolved in
commercialization, we may encounter difficulties managing our growth and expanding our operationgceessfully.

Although certain of our employees have commeradilin experience, as a company we currently havsales, marketing or distributic
capabilities. Accordingly, as we advance AMR10btlgh the development stage towards commercializatie will need to expand our
organization, including marketing and sales caj#slor contract with third parties to provide skecapabilities for us, which will be expens
and time consuming. Any failure or delay in the elepment of our internal sales, marketing and ithistion capabilities would adversely
impact the commercialization of AMR101 in the eviémeceives regulatory approval. If we are notcassful in commercializing AMR101 or
our other product candidates in the event theyiveaegulatory approval, our future product revemilesuffer and we may incur significant
additional losses.

As our operations expand, we expect that we wild#® manage additional relationships with varicoifaborative partners, suppliers i
other third parties. Future growth will impose sfgrant added responsibilities on members of mansge. Our future financial performance
and our ability to commercialize AMR101 and to catgpeffectively will depend, in part, on our alyilio manage any future growth
effectively. To that end, we must be able to maragadevelopment efforts effectively, and hirejrtrand integrate additional management,
administrative and sales and marketing personnelméy not be able to accomplish these tasks, anfhiture to accomplish any of them
could prevent us from successfully growing our camp
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Risks Related to our Reliance on Third Parties

Our supply of product for commercial supply and wmical trials is dependent upon relationships withitd party manufacturers and key
suppliers.

We have no in-house manufacturing capacity andaelgontract manufacturers for our clinical and owercial product supply. We
cannot assure you that we will successfully martufacany product we may develop, either indepegentunder manufacturing
arrangements, if any, with our third party manuiaets. Moreover, if any manufacturer should ceaseglbusiness with us or experience
delays, shortages of supply or excessive demantiseimcapacity, we may not be able to obtain adtgjguantities of product in a timely
manner, or at all.

Any manufacturing problem, natural disaster affegtnanufacturing facilities, or the loss of a cantmanufacturer could be disruptive
to our operations and result in lost sales. Addélty, we will be reliant on third parties to supphe raw materials needed to manufacture our
potential products. Any reliance on suppliers nragolve several risks, including a potential inakitio obtain critical materials and reduced
control over production costs, delivery schedulekability and quality. Any unanticipated disrugti to future contract manufacture caused by
problems at suppliers could delay shipment of petglincrease our cost of goods sold and resudisinsales. If our suppliers were unable to
supply us with adequate supply of ethyl-EPA it wblnhve a material adverse affect on our abilitgdmmercialize AMR101.

We currently purchase all of our supply of the betknpound (ethyEPA), which constitutes the only active pharmaaalingredient, o
API, of AMR101, from a single supplier with a sieghanufacturing facility, Nisshin Pharma, or Nisshdcated in Japan. Nisshin currently
obtains its supply of the key raw material to mactiire AP from another third party single sourtsupply. While we have contractual
freedom to source the API for AMR101 elsewhere lagnk entered into supply agreements with additisappliers who rely on other third
party suppliers of the key raw material to manufexthe API for AMR101, Nisshin is the only suppkeibmitted for approval with our
pending NDA to the FDA. Further, our agreementwitr suppliers typically include minimum purchaddigations. Moreover, there is no
guarantee that additional other suppliers with Whie have contracted to supply API will be quatifie manufacture the product to our
specifications or that these and any future suppligll have the manufacturing capacity to meetin¢jcipated demand for AMR101. We
cannot assure you that we can contract with anydunanufacturer on acceptable terms or that acly aliernative supplier will not require
capital investment from us in order for them to tm@e requirements.

The manufacture and packaging of pharmaceutical phacts such as AMR101 are subject to FDA requiremeahd those of similar
foreign regulatory bodies. If we or our third partsynanufacturers fail to satisfy these requirementsyr product development and
commercialization efforts may be materially harmed.

The manufacture and packaging of pharmaceuticalymts, such as AMR101, are regulated by the FDAsamdar foreign regulatory
bodies and must be conducted in accordance witRE#€s current good manufacturing practices and garable requirements of foreign
regulatory bodies. There are a limited number ofiuf@cturers that operate under these current gaotufacturing practices regulations who
are both capable of manufacturing AMR101 and wdllio do so. Failure by us or our third party maotdeers to comply with applicable
regulations, requirements, or guidelines couldltésisanctions being imposed on us, includingdinajunctions, civil penalties, failure of
regulatory authorities to grant marketing appraxfabur products, delays, suspension or withdrawalpprovals, license revocation, seizures or
recalls of product, operating restrictions and anethprosecutions, any of which could significardlyd adversely affect our business. For
example, our NDA filed with the FDA has only ongplier of API for AMR101, Nisshin, and Nisshin halans to expand it capacity to supply
API to us by building a new facility. If Nisshindéities used for the manufacturing and testind\bfR101 API are delayed in passing FDA
pre-approval inspection to ensure substantial campé with current good manufacturing practices ethér FDA standards, or if we are not
able to manufacture
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AMR101 to required specifications through Nissluiaor FDA marketing approval of AMR101 may be delaywd may be delayed in launchi
the product and our anticipated future revenuesfiaadcial results may be materially adversely etifel. The same requirements and risks are
applicable to the suppliers of the key raw matargdd to manufacture the API for AMR101.

Changes in the manufacturing process or proceéthaieiding a change in the location where the proimanufactured or a change of a
third party manufacturer, may require prior FDAiesv and approval of the manufacturing process andegaures in accordance with the
FDA's current good manufacturing practices. Any rfauility is subject to a pre-approval inspectigntbe FDA and would again require us to
demonstrate product comparability to the FDA. Thamecomparable foreign requirements. This reviey tre costly and time consuming and
could delay or prevent the launch of a product.&@mple, after FDA approval of AMR101, we plarite a supplemental NDA to add new
manufacturing facilities from other third party @liprs to manufacture API for AMR101. If these thjparties cannot establish, to the
satisfaction of the FDA, that they are in substrmdmpliance with current good manufacturing pcast, and that the products manufacture
the new site meet FDA requirements, we may notite ta manufacture API from that site, our supdyBI for AMR101 may be delayed,
and our anticipated future revenues and finanesillts may be materially adversely affected.

Furthermore, in order to obtain approval of ourduets, including AMR101, by the FDA and foreign ukgory agencies, we will be
required to consistently produce the active phaeutical ingredient and the finished product in coencial quantities and of specified quality
on a repeated basis and document our ability teodd his requirement is referred to as processlatdin. We have completed a validation
process for the API for AMR101 at Nisshin, but hat yet done so at any other contract suppliechEx our potential API suppliers use a
different method to manufacture API, which haspgbeential to increase the risk to us that our maciwirers will meet applicable regulatory
requirements. We also need to complete processatalin on the finished product in the packaginganapose for commercial sales. This
includes testing of stability, measurement of inifies and testing of other product specificatiops/alidated test methods. If the FDA does
consider the result of the process validation quired testing to be satisfactory, we may not eb&proval to launch the product or approval,
launch or commercial supply after launch may bekd.

The FDA and similar foreign regulatory bodies méspamplement new standards, or change their irdkéafion and enforcement of
existing standards and requirements, for manufacpackaging or testing of products at any timedfare unable to comply, we may be
subject to regulatory, civil actions or penaltigsietr could significantly and adversely affect ousimess.

During 2012, we intend to increase our purchasesfand finished capsules of AMR101 in preparatibsommercial launch. We plan
to make certain of these purchases prior to NDA@ with the aim to further expand purchase Isw#lsupply after NDA approval. We m
elect to make API purchases from certain of oupeps after we are satisfied that the materiay theduce and their facilities are qualified.
However, in the event that we make such purchagesyill not be able to use such material for consigsale until the sSNDA for the
applicable supplier is approved by the FDA. Sinijlaif we are not compliant with other regulationgh regard to this intended purchase of
supply, our launch may be delayed.

We rely on third parties to conduct our clinicalitls, and those third parties may not perform sé#gistorily, including failing to meet
established deadlines for the completion of sucimidlal trials.

Our reliance on third parties for clinical develogmhactivities reduces our control over these @i, However, if we sponsor clinical
trials, we are responsible for ensuring that edauoclinical trials is conducted in accordancéwithe general investigational plan and
protocols for the trial. Moreover, the FDA requiresto comply with standards, commonly referredg@ood clinical practices, for conducti
recording, and reporting the results of clinicalt to assure that data and reported resultsradébte and accurate and that the rights, integrity
and confidentiality of trial participants are protied. Our reliance on third parties does not relies of these responsibilities and requirements.
Furthermore, these third parties may also havéioekhips with other entities, some of which mayolbe competitors. If these third parties do
not successfully carry out their
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contractual duties or meet expected deadlines, syelba delayed in obtaining regulatory approvalsofar product candidates and may be
delayed in our efforts to successfully commercebzr product candidates for targeted diseases.

Risks Related to our Intellectual Property and Reglatory Exclusivity
We are dependent on patents, proprietary rights anchfidentiality.

Because of the significant time and expense inwbiredeveloping new products and obtaining regmasmprovals, it is very important
to obtain patent and trade secret protection far tl@ehnologies, products and processes. Our abilispccessfully implement our business
will depend in large part on our ability to:

* acquire patented or patentable products and techias!;

» obtain and maintain patent protection or marketwesteity for our current and acquired produc
» preserve any trade secrets relating to our cuemeditfuture products; ar

» operate without infringing the proprietary rightistioird parties.

We currently have no issued patents that diregtphato the use of AMR101 for hypertriglyceridemiyperlipidemia or cardiovascular
therapy in the United States or Europe. Althoughawecurrently prosecuting a number of patent apfiins in this area, we will also rely uj
trade secrets and know-how to retain our competpiesition. When deemed appropriate, we intendgoreusly enforce our patent protection
and intellectual property rights. We file patenplgations either on a country-by-country basi®yusing the European or international patent
cooperation treaty systems.

We may be dependent in some cases upon third jpgehsors to pursue filing, prosecution and maiatere of patent rights or
applications owned or controlled by those partieis. possible that third parties will obtain patenr other proprietary rights that might be
necessary or useful to us. In cases where thittiepare first to invent a particular product arteology, or first to file after various provisions
of the America Invents Act of 2011 go into effeatMarch 16, 2013, it is possible that those pastidisobtain patents that will be sufficiently
broad so as to prevent us from utilizing such tetdgy.

Although we intend to make reasonable efforts tiigmt our current and future intellectual propeitits and to ensure that any
proprietary technology we acquire or develop damsnfringe the rights of other parties, we may betable to ascertain the existence of all
potentially conflicting claims. Therefore, theregisisk that third parties may make claims of imlgment against our current or future products
or technologies. In addition, third parties mayabée to obtain patents that prevent the sale otortrent or future products or require us to
obtain a license and pay significant fees or régsiin order to continue selling such products.

We may in the future discover the existence of potgithat infringe upon patents that we own or blizate been licensed to us. Although
we intend to protect our trade secrets and prasieknow-how through confidentiality agreementswatir manufacturers, employees and
consultants, we may not be able to prevent pastibgect to such confidentiality agreements fronabhéng these agreements or third parties
from independently developing or learning of oade secrets.

We anticipate that competitors may from time toetioppose our efforts to obtain patent protectioméw technologies or to submit
patented technologies for regulatory approvals. @atitors may seek to oppose patent applicatiodetay the approval process or to challe
granted patents, even if the opposition or chakemas little or no merit. Patent oppositions proaggs and challenges are generally highly
technical, time consuming and expensive to pufdiere we to be subject to one or more patent ogposibr challenges, that effort could
consume substantial time and resources, with norasses of success, even when holding an issuedtpat
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There can be no assurance that any of our pendireggnt applications relating to AMR101 or its usellgsue as patents.

We have filed and are prosecuting numerous familiggatent applications in the United States amerirationally with claims designed
protect the proprietary position of AMR101. Fortear of these patent families, we have filed migtipatent applications. Collectively the
patent applications include numerous independaiinsl and dependent claims. Several of our patgiicagions contain claims that are based
upon what we believe are unexpected and positidirfgs from the MARINE and ANCHOR trials. If gradtemany of the resulting granted
patents would expire in 2030 or beyond. Howeverasgurance can be given that any of our patenicagiphs will be granted or, if they grant,
that they will prevent competitors from competinghp/AMR101. Securing additional patent protection & product is a complex process
involving many legal and factual questions. Thespaipplications we have filed in the United Stated internationally are at varying stage
examination, the timing of which is outside our toh The process to getting a patent granted ealefigthy and claims initially submitted are
often modified in order to satisfy the requiremenitshe patent office. This process includes wmitd@d public communication with the patent
office. The process can also include direct didonsswith the patent examiner. There can be norassa that the patent office will accept our
arguments with respect to any patent applicationitr respect to any claim therein. The timing loé patent review process is independent of
and has no effect on the timing of the FBA&view of our NDA. To our knowledge, the U.S.dPdtand Trademark Office or other internatic
patent offices have not yet commenced examininticeof these applications. While examination atai@ of these applications is anticipated
during 2012, we cannot predict the timing or resoftsuch examination. In addition, we may elecubmit, or the patent office may require,
additional evidence to support certain of the ckaime are pursuing. Providing such additional ewigerould result in us incurring additional
costs. We cannot be certain what commercial vahyegaanted patent in our patent estate will provaes.

If AMR101 is not granted new chemical entity excluiy protection from the FDA our business may beaterially harmed.

Under sections 505(c)(3)(E)(ii) and 505(j)(5)(F)6f the Food Drug and Cosmetic Act, or FDCA, aaded by the Drug Price
Competition and Patent Term Restoration Act of 1@&4amended, or the Hatch-Waxman Amendments, a&hemical entity that is granted
regulatory approval may be eligible for five yeafsnarketing exclusivity in the United States foliog regulatory approval. A drug can be
classified as a new chemical entity if the FDA haspreviously approved any other drug containigdame active moiety.

We believe that the active pharmaceutical ingreadieAMR101, at least 96% ethyl-EPA, may be consdea new chemical entity under
the Hatch-Waxman Amendments and would thereforeligéle for five-year market exclusivity under tRBCA. The only other omega-3
based product approved by the FDA is Lovaza. Wiebelthe active moiety in Lovaza and the activeatyoin AMR101 are different. Lovaza
was approved as a lipid-regulating agent by the lD2004 and has been described in its FDA-apprgveduct label as a combination of
ethyl esters of omega-3 fatty acids, principally&EPA and ethyl-DHA. Our belief that AMR101 shdle granted NCE exclusivity is based
in part on precedent at FDA for granting NCE statua previously uncharacterized active moietythia case, potentially ethyl-EPA, that was
part of a previously approved product. It is cutiennclear whether the FDA will view the ethyl-ERMAMR101 as a previously approved
active moiety in Lovaza and deny our request tHdRAO1 be granted new chemical entity status anésiseciate period of regulatory
exclusivity. We expect the FDA determination on N&lusivity will be made in connection with, orospafter, an NDA approval of the
MARINE application, and cannot assure you that vikhg granted NCE exclusivity.

This marketing exclusivity, if granted, would predé approval during the exclusivity period of certa05(b)(2) applications or certain
abbreviated new drug applications submitted bylsratompany for another version of the drug. Ifase not able to gain or exploit the period
of marketing exclusivity, we may face significamngpetitive threats to our commercialization of tnesmpounds from other manufacturers,
including
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the manufacturers of generic alternatives. Furtinegn if AMR101 is considered to be a nhew chengadity and we are able to gain five-year
marketing exclusivity, another company could alamguch marketing exclusivity under the provisiohthe FDCA, as amended by the
Hatch-Waxman Amendments, if such company can, ucelgain circumstances, complete a human clini@lgrocess and obtain regulatory
approval of its product.

Despite the use of confidentiality agreements anddooprietary rights agreements, which themselveayrbe of limited effectiveness, it
may be difficult for us to protect our trade secset

We rely on trade secrets to protect technologyaes when we believe patent protection is not gpiate or obtainable. However, trade
secrets are difficult to protect. While we requiegtain of our academic collaborators, contracame consultants to enter into confidentiality
agreements, we may not be able to adequately pratetrade secrets or other proprietary infornratio

Risks Related to our Business
Potential technological changes in our field of bingss create considerable uncertainty.

We are engaged in the biopharmaceutical field, whicharacterized by extensive research effoidsrapid technological progress. New
developments in research are expected to contiraieagid pace in both industry and academia. Wieaaassure you that research and
discoveries by others will not render some or &bbur programs or product candidates uncompetiivebsolete. Our business strategy is b
in part upon new and unproven technologies to tweldpment of biopharmaceutical products for thattnent of cardiovascular diseases. We
cannot assure you that unforeseen problems wiltleeelop with these technologies or applicationthat any commercially feasible products
will ultimately be developed by us.

We are subject to potential product liability.

Prior to 2005, we had commercial revenue and remdject to the potential risk of product liabiltlaims relating to the manufacturing
and marketing of our former products during theéqekprior to their divestiture. Any person whoigured as a result of using one of our for
products during our period of ownership may hapeaauct liability claim against us without havirgrove that we were at fault.

In addition, we could be subject to product lighiklaims by persons who took part in clinical fsiavolving our current or former
development stage products. A successful claimdirbagainst us could have a material adverse &ffecur business. We can not guarantee
that a product liability claim will not be assertaglainst us in the future.

We may become subiject to liability in connectiorttwihe wind-down of our EN101 program.

In 2007, we purchased Ester Neurosciences Liméedsraeli pharmaceutical company, and its leadybcandidate, EN101, an AChE-
R mRNA inhibitor for the treatment of myastheniags, or MG, a debilitating neuromuscular dise&se&onnection with the acquisition, we
assumed a license to certain intellectual propesgets related to EN101 from the Yissum ReseargklBement Company of The Hebrew
University of Jerusalem.

In June 2009, in keeping with our decision to red®our efforts on developing improved treatmeotsardiovascular disease and cease
development of all product candidates outside ofcandiovascular disease focus, we amended thestefiour acquisition agreement with the
original shareholders of Ester. Under the termthisfamendment, Amarin was released from all reseand development diligence obligatir
contained in the original agreement and was autbedrio seek a partner for EN101. The amendmeneagmet also provided that any future
payment obligations payable by us to the formeredi@ders of Ester would be
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made only out of income received from potentiakpers. In connection with this amendment agreeniem®tugust 2009 we issued 1,315,789
ordinary shares to the former Ester shareholdardetthe terms of this amendment agreement, timeeioEster shareholders have the optic
reacquiring the original share capital of Estexwéf are unable to successfully partner EN101.

Following our decision to cease development of ENMissum terminated its license agreement witdudune 2011, Yissum
announced that it had entered into a license agreewith BiolineRX Ltd for the development of EN1Dila different indication, inflammato
bowel disease.

We have received correspondence on behalf of timecioshareholders of Ester asserting that we abeciach of its amended agreement
due to the fact that the Yissum terminated itslgmeand we failed to return shares of Ester, asetaselating to EN101, to the shareholders, as
was required under certain circumstances undeartiended agreement. We do not believe these ciranges constitute a breach of the
amended agreement, but there can be no assuratecéhasoutcome of this dispute.

We will incur significant, increased costs as a udisof provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2Q@hd our management will be
required to devote substantial time to new comptianinitiatives.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 requires, amongrdltiegs, that we maintain effective internal cotdrfor financial reporting and
disclosure. In particular, we perform system armtpss evaluation and testing of our internal césmweer financial reporting and our
independent registered public accounting firm regpon the effectiveness of our internal controlerdinancial reporting, as required by
Section 404 of The Sarban@sdey Act of 2002. Based on this evaluation antirigs our management identified a material weakmnessterna
control over financial reporting as of December 3109 which persisted on December 31, 2010 andhaliacs remediated as of December 31,
2011. Our testing, or the subsequent testing byrmependent registered public accounting firm, meseal deficiencies in our internal
controls over financial reporting that are deenwetdd new material weaknesses. We expect to ingaoifisiant expense and devote substantial
management effort toward ensuring compliance wittisn 404. We currently do not have an internditafunction, and we will need to hire
additional accounting and financial staff with ammiate public company experience and technicab@aating knowledge. Moreover, the
identification by us or our independent registepatilic accounting firm of deficiencies in our irmef controls that are deemed to be additional
material weaknesses could cause the market priteedfDSs to decline, and we could be subject tetians or investigations by The
NASDAQ Stock Market, the SEC or other regulatorthauties, which would entail expenditure of adaiital financial and manageme
resources.

We have previously identified a material weaknes®ur internal control over financial reporting irthe past and cannot assure you that
material weaknesses will not occur in the future.

As part of the annual financial statement reviewamnternational Financial Reporting Standardslfierperiod ended December 31,
2009, management concluded that as of Decemb@0B9, there was a deficiency in the company’s irgdkecontrol over financial reporting
relating to the technical expertise and review dkieraccounting for complex, non-routine transangithat could result in a material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statesmtrat would not be prevented or detected on alyitmasis. Accordingly, management
determined that this control deficiency constituéehaterial weakness. During 2010, we did not eagagny new non-routine transactions.
Nevertheless, based on manager's evaluation of our internal control over finardieporting as of December 31, 2010, management
determined that this material weakness in our iralecontrol over financial reporting remained. Sfyeally, our management concluded there
was a deficiency in the company’s internal contnggr financial reporting relating to the technieapertise and review over the accounting for
complex, non-routine transactions that could reisudt material misstatement of the consolidatedraial statements that would not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis.
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In response to this material weakness, our managemvih the input, oversight, and support of thedk Committee, identified and took
the following steps to remediate the control deficly: non-ordinary course transactions are nowidered and evaluated by senior finance
management; we continue to prepare accountingipogitipers for all complex transactions; and, wiagngropriate, management seeks the
advice of outside consultants on accounting matidased to the application of U.S. GAAP to complean-ordinary course transactions anc
other instances as warranted. Any future deficiesicbuld materially and adversely affect our aptlit provide timely and accurate financial
information, and the current and future deficieaaigay impact investors’ confidence in our intercmitrols and our company, which could
cause our stock price to decline.

A change in our tax residence could have a nega&@fect on our future profitability.

Under current U.K. legislation, a company incorpedain England and Wales, or which is centrally agged and controlled in the U.K.
regarded as resident in the U.K. for taxation psgsoUnder current Irish legislation, a compamgigmrded as resident for tax purposes in
Ireland if it is centrally managed and controlledreland, or, in certain circumstances, if itnsorporated in Ireland. Where a company is
treated as tax resident under the domestic lavesthf the U.K. and Ireland then the provisions ¢tk 4(3) of the Double Tax Convention
between the U.K. and Ireland provides that suchrenise shall be treated as resident only in thisdiction in which its place of effective
management is situated. We have sought to conductftairs in such a way so as to be resident onlyeland for tax purposes by virtue of
having our place of effective management situateldeland. Trading income of an Irish company isgyally taxable at the Irish corporation
tax rate of 12.5%. Non-trading income of an Irisimpany (e.g., interest income, rental income oeigassive income), is taxable at a rate of
25%.

However, we cannot assure you that we are or wiitioue to be resident only in Ireland for tax pses. It is possible that in the future,
whether as a result of a change in law or the waadf any relevant tax authority or as a resultmf change in the conduct of our affairs, we
could become, or be regarded as having becomeergsita jurisdiction other than Ireland. Should sease to be an Irish tax resident, we may
be subject to a charge to Irish capital gains tamar assets. Similarly, if the tax residency of ahour subsidiaries were to change from their
current jurisdiction for any of the reasons listdmbve, we may be subject to a charge to local @legtins tax charge on the assets.

The loss of key personnel could have an adverseafbn our business

We are highly dependent upon the efforts of ouissananagement. The loss of the services of omaaye members of senior
management could have a material adverse effeas 0As a small company with a streamlined managestarcture, the departure of any key
person could have a significant impact and woulgdtentially disruptive to our business until stiche as a suitable replacement is hired.
Furthermore, because of the specialized naturambasiness, as our business plan progresses Weewilghly dependent upon our ability to
attract and retain qualified scientific, techniaall key management personnel. There is intenseeatdip for qualified personnel in the areas
of our activities. In this environment, we may betable to attract and retain the personnel negefsahe development of our business,
particularly if we do not achieve profitability. €Hailure to recruit key scientific, technical améinagement personnel would be detrimental to
our ability to implement our business plan.
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Risks Related to Ownership of our ADSs and Commonlares
The price of our ADSs and common shares may be titda

The stock market has from time to time experiersigdificant price and volume fluctuations that nieeyunrelated to the operating
performance of particular companies. In additibe, tarket prices of the securities of many pharmmézad and medical technology companies
have been especially volatile in the past, andtteisd is expected to continue in the future.

As of January 31, 2012 we had 135,929,996 commarestoutstanding. As of January 31, 2012 there 0W@5¢612,162 shares held as
ADSs and 317,834 held as common shares (whichareetd in the form of ADSs). In our October 200%ate placement we issued
66.4 million ADSs and warrants to purchase an &ttt 33.2 million ADSs. There is a risk that themay not be sufficient liquidity in the
market to accommodate significant increases imggetictivity or the sale of a large block of oucsgeties. Our ADSs have historically had
limited trading volume, which may also result inatdity. If any of our large investors, such ag tharticipants in our October 2009 private
placement, seek to sell substantial amounts oA@Bs, particularly if these sales are in a rapidieorderly manner, or other investors
perceive that these sales could occur, the markag pf our ADSs could decrease significantly.

The market price of our ADSs and common sharesatsybe affected by factors such as:
» the status of our patent prosecution effc
» developments or disputes concerning any futurenpateproprietary rights
e innovation by us or our competitol
» regulatory developments in the United States, t®fean Union or other countrie
» actual or potential medical results relating to products or our competit¢ products;
» interim failures or setbacks in product developm
» currency exchange rate fluctuations; i
e perioc-to-period variations in our results of operatic

Actual or potential sales of our common shares hyr @mployees, including members of our senior maeatent team, pursuant to pre-
arranged stock trading plans could cause our stquice to fall or prevent it from increasing for nuerous reasons, and actual or
potential sales by such persons could be viewedatiegly by other investors.

In accordance with the guidelines specified unddeRO0b51 of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 arrdoolicies regarding stot
transactions, a number of our directors and empieyiecluding members of our senior management,thawe adopted and may continue to
adopt pre-arranged stock trading plans to sellrigmoof our common stock. Generally, sales undehglans by members of our senior
management team and directors require public Blidgctual or potential sales of our ADSs by suctspes could cause the price of our ADSs
to fall or prevent it from increasing for numeraeasons. For example, a substantial amount of @8sfbecoming available (or being
perceived to become available) for sale in theipubhrket could cause the market price of our ARS®Il or prevent it from increasing. Also,
actual or potential sales by such persons coulddweed negatively by other investors.

Our existing indebtedness could adversely affect foancial condition.

Our existing indebtedness, which we entered inttaimuary 2012, consists of $150.0 million in aggtegrincipal amount of
3.50% exchangeable senior notes due 2032, withigioms for the notes to be called on or after Jan8, 2017. Our indebtedness and the
related annual debt service requirements may aelyeirapact our business, operations and finan@atlion in the future. For example, they
could:

» increase our vulnerability to general adverse enmoo@nd industry condition:
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« limit our ability to raise additional funds by bowing or engaging in equity sales in order to féutdre working capital, capit:
expenditures, research and development and otherajecorporate requiremen

e require us to dedicate a substantial portion ofoash to service payments on our deb

» limit our flexibility to react to changes in our &iness and the industry in which we operate outsye certain strateg
opportunities that may present themsel

The accounting method for convertible debt secwestithat may be settled in cash, such as our nates)d have a material effect on our
reported financial results.

Under the FASB Accounting Standards CodificatianABC, we may be required to separately accountitiability and equity
components of the convertible debt instrumentshsscthe notes) that may be settled entirely digblgrin cash upon conversion in a manner
that reflects the issuereconomic interest cost. The effect of ASC onattmounting for our outstanding convertible notey & that the equit
component is required to be included in the add#igaid-in capital section of stockholders’ equityour consolidated balance sheets and the
value of the equity component would be treatedragnal issue discount for purposes of accountimgtiie debt component of the notes. As a
result, we may be required to record non-casheéstexpense as a result of the amortization oflismunted carrying value of the notes to
their face amount over the term of the notes. We bearequired to report higher interest expensaiinfinancial results because ASC may
require interest to include both the current pési@mortization of the debt discount and the inseat’s coupon interest, which could adver:
affect our reported or future financial results émel trading price of our ADSs.

Servicing our debt may require a significant amafrdash, and we may not have sufficient cash fitmm our business to provide the
funds sufficient to pay our substantial debt.

Our ability to make scheduled payments of the [jpadoof, to pay interest on or to refinance ourahtbdness, including the notes,
depends on our future performance, which is sultigeetonomic, financial, competitive and other dastbeyond our control. Our business may
not continue to generate cash flow from operatinrike future sufficient to service our debt anckmaecessary capital expenditures. If we are
unable to generate such cash flow, we may be redjtiradopt one or more alternatives, such angealbsets, restructuring debt or obtaining
additional equity capital on terms that may be onsror highly dilutive. Our ability to refinance rondebtedness will depend on the capital
markets and our financial condition at such time WM&y not be able to engage in any of these degvir engage in these activities on
desirable terms, which could result in a defaulbandebt obligations, including the notes, andehawnaterial adverse effect on the trading
price of our ADSs.

We may be able to incur substantial additional delthe future, subject to the restrictions corgdiin our future debt instruments, if any,
which would intensify the risks discussed above.

We may be a passive foreign investment companyrBIC, which would result in adverse U.S. tax consences to U.S. investors.

Amarin Corporation plc and certain of our subsi@isimay be classified as “passive foreign investroempanies,” or PFICs, for U.S.
federal income tax purposes. The tests for detengiRFIC status for a taxable year depend uponefla¢ive values of certain categories of
assets and the relative amounts of certain kindscoime. The application of these factors depempad® wur financial results, which are beyond
our ability to predict or control, and which may suigbject to legal and factual uncertainties.
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While we cannot provide any assurance that weaaeenot, or will or will not be, a PFIC now or imet future, we believe it prudent to
assume that the we were classified as a PFIC ifh 204 that we could be classified as such in 2012 future years.

If we are a PFIC, U.S. holders of notes, ordindigres or ADSs would be subject to adverse U.Sré¢decome tax consequences, such
as ineligibility for any preferred tax rates on itabgains or on actual or deemed dividends, irstecharges on certain taxes treated as deferred
and additional reporting requirements under U.8effal income tax laws and regulations. WhetherodihS. holders of our ADSs make a
timely “QEF election” or “mark-to-market electiomiay affect the U.S. federal income tax consequettcelsS. holders with respect to the
acquisition, ownership and disposition of Amarin ®®and any distributions such U.S. Holders mayivec& QEF election and other
elections that may mitigate the effect of our beifagsified as a PFIC are unavailable with resfmettie notes. Investors should consult their
own tax advisors regarding all aspects of the aptiin of the PFIC rules to the notes, ordinaryatiand ADSs.

The conditional exchange feature of the notes,nfjgered, may adversely affect our financial conidit and operating results.

In the event the conditional exchange feature efribtes is triggered, holders of notes will betkttito exchange the notes at any time
during specified periods at their option. If onenoore holders elect to exchange their notes, umesslect to satisfy its exchange obligation by
delivering solely the ADSs (other than cash in iéany fractional ADS), we would be required tdtleea portion or all of its exchange
obligation through the payment of cash, which caddersely affect our liquidity. In addition, eviémolders do not elect to exchange their
notes, we could be required under applicable adoayrules to reclassify all or a portion of thetstanding principal of the notes as a current
rather than long-term liability, which would resirita material reduction of our net working capital

The fundamental change repurchase feature of thete®may delay or prevent an otherwise benefici&leaver attempt of us.

The indenture governing the notes will requireaisepurchase the notes for cash upon the occurdrecéundamental change of Amarin
and, in certain circumstances, to increase theangdhrate for a holder that exchanges its notesrinection with a make-whole fundamental
change. A takeover of us may trigger the requirdrtteat we purchase the notes and/or increase ttteaage rate, which could make it more
costly for a potential acquirer to engage in a coory transaction with us. Such additional costy have the effect of delaying or
preventing a takeover of us that would otherwisédreficial to investors.

We do not intend to pay cash dividends on the oatinshares in the foreseeable future.

We have never paid dividends on ordinary sharegdantbt anticipate paying any cash dividends orotdénary shares in the foreseeable
future. Under English law, any payment of dividemdsild be subject to relevant legislation and ouicles of Association, which requires tl
all dividends must be approved by our Board of &iwes and, in some cases, our shareholders, andnhape paid from our distributable
profits available for the purpose, determined omiaconsolidated basis.

The rights of our shareholders may differ from théghts typically offered to shareholders of a U.&rporation.

We are incorporated under English law. The riglitsodders of ordinary shares and, therefore, cetéithe rights of holders of ADSs,
governed by English law, including the provisiofishee Companies Act 2006, and by our Articles ofédation. These rights differ in certain
respects from the rights of shareholders in typit&. corporations. The principal differences induhe following:

* Under English law and our Articles of Associatieach shareholder present at a meeting has onlyaieainless demand is ma
for a vote on a poll, in which case each holdes gee vote per sha
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owned. Under U.S. law, each shareholder typicallgnititled to one vote per share at all meetingsldd English law, it is only on
poll that the number of shares determines the nuwieotes a holder may cast. You should be awseever, that the voting
rights of ADSs are also governed by the provisiofa deposit agreement with our depositary b,

* Under English law, subject to certain exceptiond disapplications, each shareholder generally hesnpptive rights to subscribe
on a proportionate basis to any issuance of ordiglaares or rights to subscribe for, or to consedurities into, ordinary shares for
cash. Under U.S. law, shareholders generally ddnaeé preemptive rights unless specifically graietthe certificate of
incorporation or otherwist

* Under English law and our Articles of Associatiogrtain matters require the approval of 75% ofsreholders who vote (in
person or by proxy) on the relevant resolutionluding amendments to the Articles of AssociatiohisTmay make it more difficult
for us to complete corporate transactions deemeidaule by our board of directors. Under U.S. Igenerally only majority
shareholder approval is required to amend thefioate: of incorporation or to approve other sigrafit transaction:

» In the United Kingdom, takeovers may be structaediakeover offers or as schemes of arrangemederlEnglish law, a bidder
seeking to acquire us by means of a takeover wffed need to make an offer for all of our outstagdrdinary shares/ADSs. If
acceptances are not received for 90% or more dfitti@ary shares/ADSs under the offer, under Ehdésv, the bidder cannot
complete a “squeeze out” to obtain 100% contralfAccordingly, acceptances of 90% of our outstamdrdinary shares/ADSs
will likely be a condition in any takeover offer &@quire us, not 50% as is more common in tendersofor corporations organized
under Delaware law. By contrast, a scheme of amaregt, the successful completion of which wouldiltéa a bidder obtaining
100% control of us, requires the approval of a migj@f shareholders representing 75% of the ongirshares

* Under English law and our Articles of Associatishareholders and other persons whom we know or treas®nable cause to
believe are, or have been, interested in our stmagsbe required to disclose information regardirar interests in our shares upon
our request, and the failure to provide the reglindéormation could result in the loss or restoetiof rights attaching to the shares,
including prohibitions on certain transfers of 8f@res, withholding of dividends and loss of votiigits. Comparable provisions
generally do not exist under U.S. le

» The quorum requirement for a sharehol’ meeting is a minimum of two shareholders entitleddte at the meeting and presen
person or by proxy or, in the case of a sharehaldéch is a corporation, represented by a duly enigbd officer. Under U.S. law,
majority of the shares eligible to vote must getieitze present (in person or by proxy) at a shaledrs’ meeting in order to
constitute a quorum. The minimum number of shaegsired for a quorum can be reduced pursuant to\agion in a company’s
certificate of incorporation or bylaws, but typigahot below on-third of the shares entitled to vote at the mee:

U.S. shareholders may not be able to enforce digibilities against us.

We are incorporated under the laws of England aate®y and our subsidiaries are incorporated irouarjurisdictions, including foreign
jurisdictions. A number of the officers and dirastof each of our subsidiaries are -residents of the United States, and all or a suist
portion of the assets of such persons are locattside the United States. As a result, it may mopbssible for investors to effect service of
process within the United States upon such pergotsenforce against them judgments obtained $ dourts predicated upon the civil
liability provisions of the federal securities laafthe United States. We have been advised b¥nglish solicitors that there is doubt as to the
enforceability in England in original actions, aractions for enforcement of judgments of U.S. txywf civil liabilities to the extent predicat
upon the federal securities laws of the UnitedeStat
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Our directors, management and affiliated investmednhds exercise significant control over our compgnwhich will limit your ability to
influence corporate matters.

As of February 15, 2012 our executive officersediors and affiliated investment funds collectivebntrolled approximately 15.11% of
our outstanding ordinary shares, excluding anyeshaubject to ADSs that such persons may haveghieto acquire upon exercise of
outstanding options or warrants. As a result, tiséseeholders, if they act together, will be ablenfluence our management and affairs and all
matters requiring shareholder approval, includhmegelection of directors and approval of signiftcemrporate transactions.

In addition, we entered into an agreement withauggiparticipants in the October 2009 private plaa@mnder which investment funds
affiliated with Orbimed Advisors LLC, Sofinnova Viemes and Abingworth LLP have the ability to designpersons for Amarin to nominate
to its Board of Directors and the other particigamhve given these investments funds a proxy ® th&tir securities in favor of these nomine
We have a continuing obligation to nominate oned@signee of investment funds affiliated with Soéma Ventures to its Board of Directors
for so long as such funds beneficially own at Ididtst percent (50%) of the ADSs they purchasedthia October 2009 private placement.

Dr. James |. Healy was designated by investmerddaffiliated with Sofinnova Ventures pursuanthis arrangement. In addition, we have
agreed to nominate one (1) designee of investnuetsf affiliated with Abingworth LLP to its Board Biirectors for so long as such funds
beneficially own at least five percent (5%) of mutstanding voting securities. Dr. Joseph Andekgas designated by investment funds
affiliated with Abingworth LLP under this arrangente

This concentration of ownership and the abdeseribed arrangement may have the effect of dedayi preventing a change in contro
our company that other shareholders may desireraglat negatively affect the market price of the ADS

U.S. holders of the ADSs or ordinary shares maysubject to U.S. income taxation at ordinary incortex rates on undistributed
earnings and profits.

There is a risk that we will be classified as atogted foreign corporation, or CFC, for U.S. fedeincome tax purposes. If we are
classified as a CFC, any ADS holder or sharehdltaris a U.S. person that owns directly, indineotl by attribution, 10% or more of the
voting power of our outstanding shares may be stbgeU.S. income taxation at ordinary income tabes on all or a portion of our
undistributed earnings and profits attributabléstabpart F income.” Such 10% holder may also baltéxat ordinary income tax rates on any
gain realized on a sale of ordinary shares or AD$e extent of our current and accumulated egsémd profits attributable to such shares.
The CFC rules are complex and U.S. Holders of tdary shares or ADSs are urged to consult their tax advisors regarding the possible
application of the CFC rules to them in their partr circumstances.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen
None.
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ltem 2. Properties
The following table lists the location, use and evahip interest of our principal properties as eEBmber 31, 2011:

Location Use Ownership Size (sq. ft.]
Dublin, Ireland Offices Leasec 32C
Bedminster, New Jersey, U< Offices Leasec 11,88¢
Groton, Connecticut, US, Offices Leasec 4,327
Ely, Cambridgeshire, UK (Gemini Hous!
Ground Flool Offices Leased and subl 7,13t
First Floor Offices Assigned 2,97¢

Effective July 1, 2011, we leased 9,747 squaredeetfice space in Bedminster, NJ. The lease nasraled, terminates on June 30, 2014,
and may also be terminated with six months prigiceo On December 6, 2011 we leased an additiodd2square feet of space in the same
location.

Effective November 1, 2011, we leased 320 squaredioffice space in Dublin, Ireland. The leaseni@eates on October 31, 2012 and
may be renewed annually.

Commencing on November 28, 2011, we leased 4,323rsdeet of office space in Groton, CT. The |dasminates in December 2013
and may be extended for one three year term.

Our lease for office space in Ely, Cambridgeshigires in November 2014. The ground floor spacelgss sublet through the end of
the lease term. On August 27, 2002 the lease &ofiltst floor space was assigned to a third paktgarin however, remains ultimately
responsible for the lease through the end of thgeldéerm.

In January 2007, we leased 3,251 square feet iceadpace in Dublin, Ireland. In accordance with ldase provisions, we terminated this
lease effective January 2012 and in December Z8Hid,a sum equivalent to six months’ rent, ratessise fees and insurance premiums and
customary dilapidation charges.

On November 28, 2008, we leased 2,725 square fedfice space at 12 Roosevelt Avenue, Mystic, Ganicut, USA and on March 4,
2010 we leased an additional 1,350 square febeatame location. Both leases expired on Octobe2(Rlll.

We believe our existing facilities are adequatedfar current needs and that additional space wikhmilable in the future on
commercially reasonable terms as needed.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

In the ordinary course of business, we are frone timtime involved in lawsuits, claims, investigai$, proceedings, and threats of
litigation relating to intellectual property, comro&l arrangements and other matters. While theame of these proceedings and claims
cannot be predicted with certainty, as of Deceniei2011, we are not a party to any legal or ati@n proceedings that may have, or have
had in the recent past, significant effects onfmancial position or profitability. No governmehfaoceedings are pending or, to our
knowledge, contemplated against us. We are nottg fmaany material proceedings in which any dieecimember of senior management or
affiliate of ours is either a party adverse to usur subsidiaries or has a material interest a#vey us or our subsidiaries.

ltem 4. Mine Safety Disclosure
Not applicable.
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PART Il
ltem 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters andusr Purchases of Equity Securiti¢

Market Information

The following table sets forth the high and lowcps for our ADSs in each of the quarters over #s fwo fiscal years, as quoted on the
NASDAQ Global Market

Common Stock Price

Fiscal 2011 Fiscal 201C
High Low High Low
First Quarter $ 9.6¢ $6.92 $1.6C $0.9:
Second Quarte $19.8 $7.21 $2.9¢ $1.4¢
Third Quartel $15.0:2 $8.62 $3.28 $2.02
Fourth Quarte $10.2( $5.9¢ $8.64 $2.45

Shareholders

As of February 1, 2012, there were approximately A8lders of record of our ordinary shares. Becan@ey ordinary shares are held by
brokers nominees, we are unable to estimate taertamber of shareholders represented by thesedréotders. Our depositary, Citibank,
N.A., constitutes a single record holder of ourimady shares

Dividends

We have never paid dividends on common shares amdtdanticipate paying any cash dividends on tirernon shares in the foresee:
future. Under English law, any payment of dividemdsild be subject to relevant legislation and ouicles of Association, which requires tl
all dividends must be approved by our Board of &wes and, in some cases, our stockholders, ancomigiybe paid from our distributable
profits available for the purpose, determined omaconsolidated basis.
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Performance Graph—2 Year

The following performance graph and related infotima shall not be deemed “soliciting material” oo be “filed” with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, nor shall such informatieimcorporated by reference into any future §lumder the Securities Act of 1933 or
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amendedpeto the extent that we specifically incorperiatby reference into such filing.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the ireidelow are the most appropriate indices agaihgtwthe total shareholder return of
Amarin should be measured. The NASDAQ Bio Indexlbesn selected because it is an index of U.S. duntgechnology and pharmaceuti
companies.

i COMPARISON OF 2 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
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$500 == -
e
£400 o
$300 1 et
P_____.-d'
$200 -
.-ff i
$~.j|:|.:']J/— e e e e e e P ] 1 e e e e et ¥ |
H04
2009 2010 2011
ASSUMES 5100 INVESTED ON JAN 1, 3010
Company/Market/Peer Compa 12/31/200! 12/31/2011 12/31/201:
Amarin Corporation PL( $  100.0( $ 573.4 $ 523.7¢
NASDAQ Composite Inde $  100.0( $ 118.1f $ 117.2%
NASDAQ Biotechnology Inde: $ 100.0( $ 115.2: $ 129.1°

Source: NASDAQ-Whole Market index and Bio index. The NASDAQ Markedex has been used to compare the shareholden fer
all companies listed on the NASDAQ Stock Markete TWASDAQ Bio index has been used to give a comparid the shareholder returns
from biotechnology and pharmaceutical companié¢sdisn the NASDAQ Stock Market.

As depicted above, over the last two years Amaamdut-performed relative to the NASDAQ and NASDB indices to give a
cumulative shareholder return of 524%, while theNDAQ index gave a return of 17% and the NASDAQ Bitex a return of 29%.
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Performance Graph—5 Year

The following performance graph and related infotima shall not be deemed “soliciting material” oo be “filed” with the Securities
and Exchange Commission, nor shall such informatieimcorporated by reference into any future §lumder the Securities Act of 1933 or
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amendedpeto the extent that we specifically incorperiatby reference into such filing.

The following graph compares the cumulative 5-yeturn provided to stockholders of Amarin’s ADSktie to the cumulative total
returns of the NASDAQ Composite Index and the NASDBIiotechnology Index. An investment of $100 (wiginvestment of all dividends)
is assumed to have been made in our ADSs and imadhe indexes on December 31, 2006 and itsivelgerformance is tracked through
December 31, 2011.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
e B e 1
e A
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
ASSUMES 3100 INVESTED ON JAN 1, 2007
Company/Market/Peer Compa 12/31/2001 12/31/200° 12/31/200 12/31/200! 12/31/2011 12/31/201:
Amarin Corporation PL( $  100.0( $ 11.4C $ 3.11 $ 6.27 $ 35.9¢ $ 32.8¢
NASDAQ Composite Inde $  100.0( $ 110.6¢ $ 66.41 $ 96.5¢ $  114.0¢ $  113.1¢
NASDAQ Biotechnology Inde: $  100.0( $ 104.6¢ $ 91.77 $ 106.4: $ 122.6: $ 1374

Information about Our Equity Compensation Plans

Information regarding our equity compensation pliarniacorporated by reference in Item 12 of Pdrbfithis annual report on Form 10-
K.

UNITED KINGDOM TAXATION
Capital Gains

If you are not resident or ordinarily residentlie tUnited Kingdom (“UK”) for UK tax purposes, youlhnot be liable for UK tax on
capital gains realized or accrued on the saletwratisposition of common shares or ADSs unlessdi@mon shares or ADSs are held in
connection with your trade carried on in the UKothgh a branch or agency and the common shares 8sAle or have been used, held or
acquired for the purposes of such trade or suahchrar agency.

An individual holder of common shares or ADSs wikages to be resident or ordinarily resident initKefor UK tax purposes for a
period of less than 5 years and who disposes oframmshares or ADSs during that period may alsadixel on returning to the UK for UK
capital gains tax despite the fact that the indigidnay not be resident or ordinarily residentia UK at the time of the disposal.
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Inheritance Tax

If you are an individual domiciled in the Unitedats and are not a national of the UK for the psepmf the Inheritance and Gift Tax
Treaty 1978 between the United States and the bkcammon shares or ADSs beneficially owned by wdunot generally be subject to UK
inheritance tax on your death or on a gift madgdy during your lifetime, provided that any appbta United States federal gift or estate tax
liability is paid, except where the common sharébS is part of the business property of your UKmanent establishment.

Where the common shares or ADSs have been pladadsirby a settlor who, at the time of the setdatnwas domiciled in the United
States and not a national of the UK, the commoneshar ADSs will not generally be subject to UKenitance tax.

Stamp Duty and Stamp Duty Reserve Tax
Transfer of ADSs

No UK stamp duty will be payable on an instrumeansferring an ADS or on a written agreement todfer an ADS provided that the
instrument of transfer or the agreement to trarisfexecuted and remains at all times outside tieWhere these conditions are not met, the
transfer of, or agreement to transfer, an ADS cadéghending on the circumstances, attract a chiargd valorem stamp duty at the rate of
0.5% of the value of the consideration.

No stamp duty reserve tax will be payable in respéan agreement to transfer an ADS, whether nrade outside the UK.

Issue and Transfer of Common She

Except in relation to persons whose business iisotuides the issue of depositary receipts or tlipion of clearance services or their
nominees (whose particular circumstances are nwidered further in this report), the issue of cammhares by Amarin will not give rise ti
charge to UK stamp duty or stamp duty reserve tax.

Transfers of common shares, as opposed to ADSsatividct ad valorem stamp duty at the rate of 0dB%he amount or value of the
consideration. A charge to stamp duty reservedtthe rate of 0.5% of the amount or value of thesteration, will arise on an agreement to
transfer common shares. The stamp duty reservis fzayable on the seventh day of the month follgvifre month in which the charge arises.
Where an instrument of transfer is executed ang staimped before the expiry of a period of six gdsginning with the date of that
agreement, any stamp duty reserve tax that hasemot paid ceases to be payable.

Taxation of Dividends
Under UK law, there is no withholding tax on divias.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The selected financial data set forth below asdffar the years ending December 31, 2011, 20109 20:d 2008 have been derived fi
the audited consolidated financial statements obAm included elsewhere in this Annual Report omfr 10-K. The selected financial data set
forth below as of and for the year ending Decen®31er2007 is unaudited. This data should be reagmjunction with our audited consolidated
financial statements and related notes which adeded elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 1@d “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gggems” included in Item 7 below. Historical resutre not necessarily indicative of
operating results to be expected in the future.

On January 18, 2008, our common shares were cdasadi on a 1-for-10 basis whereby ten common sldi£8.05 each became one
common share of £0.5. Unless otherwise specifiédhares and share related information have bdprsted to give effect to this 1-for-10
common share consolidation.

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Consolidated Statements of Operations Date

Revenue: $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
OPERATING EXPENSES
Research and developmt 21,60: 28,01« 20,89: 7,89¢ 10,34¢
General and administrative ( 22,55¢ 17,087 13,152 19,62: 18,09:
Purchased -process research & developm — — — — 19,91¢
Total operating expens 44,16! 45,10: 34,04« 27,52: 48,35¢
Operating los! (44,16)) (45,109 (34,049 (27,52) (48,35
(Loss) gain on change in fair value of derivatiability
(22,669 (205,15 5,137 9,28¢ 397
Interest expens D (19 (2,837) (83€) (180)
Interest incom 231 53 19¢ 431 1,252
Other income (expense), r (10) 13C 33 (900) 20&
Loss from continuing operations before ta (66,610 (250,09() (31,509 (19,53) (46,689
(Provision for) benefit from income tax (2,516) 501 901 1,04¢ 837
Net loss applicable to common stockholc $(69,12¢) $(249,589  $(30,60¢  $(18,489) $(45,84")
Loss per basic and diluted she $ (0.5% $ (249 $ (0.7 $ (0.89 $ (4.69
Weighted average share
Basic and dilute: 130,24 100,23¢ 42,42¢ 22,08¢ 9,78¢

As of December 31,
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
(In thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Dat¢

Cash, cash equivaler $116,60: $ 31,44 $52,25¢ $14,23¢ $18,30:
Total asset 126,37¢ 35,361 55,44 17,13t 22,50
Long-term obligation: 123,88¢ 230,15 42,09( 1,591 7,714
Stockholder’ (deficit) equity (5,962 (202,367 6,591 8,41¢ 4,56:

(1) Includes warrar-related compensation expense reflecting the chemthe fair value of the warrant derivative liabjlassociated wit
warrants issued in October 2009 to former offiadrdmarin. See further discussion in Notes 2 amd the Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statement

(2) Includes no-cash charges resulting from changes in the fairevaf warrant derivative liabilities. See furthésalission in Notes 2 and

of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statém
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ltem 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition drkResults of Operation

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forwardkimg statements concerning future events and paeince of the Company. When
used in this report, the words “may,” “would,” “shdd,” “could,” “expects,” “aims,” “plans,” “anticip ates,” “believes,” “estimates,”
“predicts,” “projects,” “potential,” or “continue” or the negative of these terms or other comparsminology are included to identify
forward-looking statements. These statements include kutalrlimited to statements regarding the poteritigl and timing of, approval of tl
AMR101 New Drug Application by the United Statesd-and Drug Administration and the next steps wg take thereto; the safety a
efficacy of our product candidates; the goals of development activities; the scope of our intallat property protection; estimates of the
potential markets for our product candidates; esti@es of the capacity of manufacturing and otheilitées to support our products, ot
operating and growth strategies, our industry, puojected cash needs, liquidity and capital res@srand our expected future revenues,
operations and expenditures. These forward-looktatements are based on our current expectatiodsagaumptions and many factors could
cause our actual results to differ materially frohose indicated in these forward-looking statemeYital should review carefully the factors
identified in this report in Item 1A, “Risk Factdr&Ve disclaim any intent to update or announceisiens to any forwardeoking statements
reflect actual events or developments, except@simed by law. Except as otherwise indicated heralhdates referred to in this report
represent periods or dates fixed with referenceunfiscal year ended December 31.

Overview

We are a latestage biopharmaceutical company with expertisgid Ecience focused on the treatment of cardiavlasaisease. Our lei
product candidate is AMR101, an ultra-pure omedatty acid, comprising not less than 96% ultra poosapent ethyl, or ethyl-EPA. We are
developing AMR101 for the treatment of patientshwiery high triglyceride levels and high triglyadeilevels, or hypertriglyceridemia.
Triglycerides are fats in the blood.

In September 2011, we filed a New Drug ApplicationNDA, with the U.S. Food and Drug Administratjam FDA, seeking marketing
approval for the use of AMR101 in the treatmenpafients with very high triglyceride level& 00 mg/dL), or what we refer to as the
MARINE indication. The FDA has assigned a PresmipDrug User Fee Act, or PDUFA, date of July 2812 for the completion of its revie
of this NDA. The NDA for the MARINE indication isupported by a Special Protocol Assessment, or 8BAeement with the FDA.

We plan to separately seek approval for AMR101ttiertreatment of patients with high triglyceridedés (= 200 and <500mg/dL) who
are also on statin therapy for elevated low-derigityprotein cholesterol, or LDL-C, levels (whictewefer to as mixed dyslipidemia), or what
we refer to as the ANCHOR indication. The ANCHORiigation is also supported by a SPA agreement théh=DA.

The potential efficacy and safety of AMR101 wagl#d in two Phase 3 clinical trials, the MARINEalrand the ANCHOR trial. These
trials showed favorable clinical results in theispective patient populations in reducing trigljdetevels without a statistically significant
increase in LDL-C levels, and in the 4 gram AMRKNCHOR results, with a statistically significantalease in LDL-C levels. These trials
also showed favorable results, particularly with fhgram dose of AMR101, in other important lipidianflammation biomarkers, including
Apo B (apolipoprotein B), non-high-density lipopgot cholesterol, or HDL-C, Total-Cholesterol, véoy-density lipoprotein cholesterol, or
VLDL-C, Lp-PLA2 (lipoprotein-associated phospholggd, and hs-CRP (high sensitivity C-reactive prjtdin each of these trials, AMR101
exhibited a safety profile comparable to placebo.

In November 2010, we announced the favorable estithe Phase 3 MARINE trial, and in April 2011 amnounced the favorable
results of the Phase 3 ANCHOR trial. The resultbaih of these studies were submitted to the FDpaasof the NDA for the MARINE
indication. To obtain FDA approval of AMR101 foret ANCHOR indication, based on communications whth EDA, we believe that we must
first obtain approval
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of AMR101 in the MARINE indication and be substaliti underway with a cardiovascular outcomes statdhe time of the submission of an
NDA to the FDA for the ANCHOR indication. Based upfeedback from the FDA and consistent with theeetive SPAs for the MARINI
trial and ANCHOR trial, we do not believe the fimabults of an outcomes study are required for REpproval of AMR 101 for either
indication.

In December 2011, we announced commencement @mnpakdsing in our cardiovascular outcomes studdMR 101, titted REDUCEFT
(Reduction of Cardiovascular Events with EPA —iwéation Trial), that is designed to evaluate tfic@cy of AMR101 in reducing major
cardiovascular events in an at-risk patient popiadn statin therapy. The REDUCE-IT study is als® subject of an SPA agreement with the
FDA. If successful, we believe the results of #tisdy could lead to a broadening of the marketm@kfor AMR101 beyond the MARINE ar
ANCHOR indications.

Hypertriglyceridemia refers to a condition in whigatients have high levels of triglycerides in th@odstream and has been recognized
as an independent risk factor for cardiac diseAseestimate that over 40 million adults in the Lh&ve elevated triglyceride levelz (
200mg/dL) and approximately 4.0 million peoplehie tJnited States have very high triglyceride le¥&d$00 mg/dL). Triglycerides provide
important information as a marker associated withrisk for heart disease and stroke, especiallyrvan individual also has low high-density
lipoprotein, or HDL-C (often referred to as “goottiolesterol), and elevated levels of LDL-C (ofteferred to as “bad” cholesterol).

Manufacturing and Supply

We entered 2011 with one active pharmaceuticakitignt, or API, supplier, Nisshin Pharma. We baithis supplier is capable of
producing API to support the initial commercialtah of AMR101. However, based on the positive tssafl our MARINE and ANCHOR
clinical trials and the potential for greater thaiginally expected product demand, we determime2011 to add additional suppliers. Our g
in expanding our supply chain were to provide greaapacity to meet anticipated demand, enablelsdpyersification and flexibility and
introduce cost competition. After conducting aneasive global search for manufactures capablearfyming AMR101 API to our technical
specifications, we entered into limited exclusiyigngterm agreements with two additional API supplier2@11. We are currently working
finalize terms and conditions with a fourth suppli@ertain of our API supply agreements contairvigions under which the cost of supply to
us decreases as we purchase increased producte/olum

The agreements with each of our API suppliers coptate phased capacity expansion aimed at crestiffigient capacity to meet
anticipated demand for API material for AMR101 éolling FDA approval. Accordingly, Nisshin and ouhet potential suppliers are currently
working to expand and qualify their production daifiies to meet regulatory requirements to manufeethe APl for AMR101. These API
suppliers are self-funding these expansion andfeausion plans with contributions from Amarin. Tieecan be no assurance that additional
suppliers will fully-fund the capital costs of oengagement or that they will successfully qualifthvthe FDA.

Our NDA for AMR101 references supply from Nisshiitwwhich we have had the longest relationship iartkest qualified to support
our launch of AMR101. We have defined with the FBUr plan and specifications for qualifying the amidial API suppliers. We intend to
submit sNDAs for the use of these additional ARi@iers after the suppliers successfully compleéedualification process and the NDA is
approved. For API encapsulation, we submitted tarmmercial encapsulators as part of our NDA. Weebelithat both of these companies
have the capacity to support our product launchirements.

During 2012, we intend to increase our purchasesfand finished capsules of AMR101 in preparatibsommercial launch. We plan
to make certain of these purchases prior to NDA@g with the aim to further expand purchase IsewéIsupply after NDA approval. We m
elect to make API purchases from certain of oupeps after we are satisfied that the materiay theduce and their facilities are qualified.
However, in the event that we make such purchagesyill not be able to use such material for consizsale until the sSNDA for the
applicable supplier is approved by the FDA. Sinlylaif we are not compliant with other regulationgh regard to this intended purchase of
supply, our launch may be delayed.
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Commercialization Strategy

We are currently considering three potential p&thshe marketing and sale of AMR101: strategidadmbration, acquisition and self-
commercialization, that latter of which could ind&ua third-party collaboration. From time to time tave held discussions with larger
pharmaceutical companies on potential collaborateamd other strategic opportunities with largerrptaceutical companies and we may have
discussions regarding such opportunities in theréutThese strategic opportunities may includenBagg or similar transactions, joint ventures,
partnerships, strategic alliances, business asgnw@aor a sale of the company. However, we caastinate the timing of such potential
collaborations. No assurance can be given that Memter into any such strategic transaction. Usiich time when we enter into such a
strategic transaction, if ever, we plan to contituexecute on our plans to launch, market andd@R101 on our own.

The U.S. market is currently our primary focustfue initial commercial launch of AMR101. Opportued to market and sell AMR101
outside of the United States are also under evatuat

January 2012 Financing and Financial Position

On January 9, 2012, Amarin, through its wholly-odrsebsidiary Corsicanto Limited, a private limitmempany incorporated under the
laws of Ireland, completed a private placementld&d0 million in aggregate principal amount 0f3t50% exchangeable senior notes due
2032. The notes are the senior unsecured obligatib@orsicanto and are guaranteed by Amarin Catjwor plc. The notes bear interest at a
rate of 3.50% per annum, payable semitually in arrears on January 15 and July 15 df gaar, beginning on July 15, 2012. The notes ra
on January 15, 2032, unless earlier repurchasddeneed or exchanged. On or after January 19, 204 Hay elect to redeem for cash all or a
portion of the notes for the principal amount of tiotes plus accrued and unpaid interest. On daidnaary 19, 2017, January 19, 2022 and
January 19, 2027, the holders of the notes mayineethat we repurchase in cash the principal amofitite notes plus accrued and unpaid
interest. At any time prior to January 15, 203ymupertain circumstances, which circumstances dechur issuing a notice of redemption to
the note holders, the price of Amarin shares tigdinove 130% of the exchange price, or certainr@bents defined in the note agreement, the
holders of the notes may elect to convert the ndies exchange rate for conversion is 113.4752 ApE$s51,000 principal amount of the nc
(equivalent to an initial exchange price of appnaaiely $8.8125 per ADS), subject to adjustmentirain circumstances, including adjustr
if we pay cash dividends. Upon exchange, the notesbe settled, at Amarin’s election, subject tdage conditions, in cash, ADSs or a
combination of cash and ADSs.

The proceeds received by Amarin from the Janualy 2iebt offering were approximately $144.3 millioet of estimated fees and
transaction costs. Together with our cash balah@d16.6 million at December 31, 2011, we beliehat tve have sufficient financial resources
to fund our projected operations at least for et twelve months, including advancement of the RER-IT cardiovascular outcomes study
and preparations for and commercial launch of AMR@&A each of the three potential paths we are derisgg for commercialization, subject
to regulatory approval. Unless we enter into atagia collaboration in support of a commercial lelunwe may need to raise additional capital
to support these efforts on our own.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgmats and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial cdodiind results of operations is based on our dfaded financial statements and no
which have been prepared in accordance with acomuptinciples generally accepted in the UnitedéxaThe preparation of these financial
statements requires us to make estimates and judgiat affect the reported amounts of assetsitias, revenue and expenses. On an
ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and judtgniacluding those related to derivative finahtigbilities. We base our estimates on
historical experience and on various other assumgtihat we believe to be reasonable under therostances, the results of which form the
basis for making judgments about the carrying \@hfeassets and
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liabilities that are not readily apparent from agteeurces. Actual results may differ from thesénesties under different assumptions or
conditions. A summary of our significant accountpaicies is contained in Note 2 to our consoliddieancial statements included elsewhere
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We believe tbidowing critical accounting policies affect ourame significant judgments and estimates
used in the preparation of our consolidated finalrstiatements.

Derivative Financial Liabilities—Derivative financial liabilities on initial recogfion are recorded at fair value. They are subsetiye
held at fair value, with gains and losses arisorgchanges in fair value recognized in the statérokaperations. The fair value of derivative
financial liabilities is determined using valuatitethniques, typically we use the Black-Scholesooppricing model, or a Monte Carlo
simulation depending on the nature of the instrumaéfe use our judgment to select a variety of masrend make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each balaheet date. Fluctuations in the assumptions ustteivaluation model would result in
adjustments to the fair value of the warrants otéélé on our balance sheet and, therefore, oumst¢guieof operations. If we issue shares to
discharge the liability, the derivative financieHility is derecognized and common stock and &aluiil paid-in capital are recognized on the
issuance of those shares. For options and wartraatted as derivative financial liabilities, atteghent date the carrying value of the options
and warrants are transferred to equity. The casbegds received from shareholders for additioraleshare recorded in common stock and
additional paid-in capital.

Inventory Capitalization—Until AMR101 is approved for commercial marketiagd sale, it is considered a product candidaterunde
development. As such, until an NDA for AMR101 igpeqved, all supply of AMR101 purchased will notdapitalized and will be included as
a component of research and development expense NPA approval, we plan to capitalize subsequedRA01 purchases as inventory.
Purchases of AMR101 received and expensed before &iproval will not be subsequently capitalized.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

From time to time, new accounting pronouncemeressaued by FASB and are adopted by us as of #uifigul effective date. Unless
otherwise discussed, we believe that the impamtadntly issued accounting pronouncements willae a material impact on consolidated
financial position, results of operations, and ciieivs, or do not apply to our operations.

Effects of Inflation
We believe the impact of inflation on operations baen minimal during the past three years.

Results of Operations
Comparison of Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 20é&dsus December 31, 2010
RevenueWe recorded no revenue in 2011 or 2010.
Research and Development Expefesearch and development expense for the year &wtminber 31, 2011 was $21.6 million, versus

$28.0 million in the prior year period, a decrea86.4 million, or 22.9%. Research and developneepenses for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 are summarized in ki halow:

2011 2010

Research and development expenses (1) $20,13¢ $26,48(

Non-cash stock based compensation expens 1,46¢ 1,53¢
$21,60: $28,01¢

(1) Research and development expense, excludingasincharges, for the year ended December 31,284 $20.1 million, versus $26.5
million in the prior year period, a decrease o#$@illion, or 24.2%. The decrease in research awldpment expense was primarily
to decreased costs in 2011 for
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AMR101 cardiovascular program, primarily costs assted with the MARINE and ANCHOR trials, our twbidse 3 clinical trials, th
top-line results of which were reported in Decem®@t0 and April 2011, respectively. The decreasmsts for these trials in 2011
versus 2010 were partially offset by increasedadincosts for the REDUCE-IT cardiovascular outceratudy, which was initiated in the
second half of 2011, and costs associated with gtibgnour NDA in September 2011 for AMR1C

(2) Stock based compensation expense includednwiéisiearch and development was $1.5 million foydas ended December 31, 2011
and 2010, respectivel

Although clinical costs for the MARINE and ANCHORals have decreased as a result of their compl@i®011, we expect these cost
reductions to be offset in 2012 by costs for thdOREE-IT cardiovascular outcomes study as part atwlosing of initial patients
commenced in December 2011. We currently estinmaiecumulative costs incurred through a CRO for REE-IT will approximate $25
million in 2012 and $125 million through the estiex six year term of the study. We also anticipatecases in research and development
costs during 2012 related to the purchase of supiphMR101, which supply we intend to include ascanponent of research and developn
expense for accounting purposes prior to NDA apgitdvhe amount of expense we incur for AMR101 sypliring 2012 depends upon the
timing of receipt of API from our suppliers and traing of an NDA approval.

General and Administrative Expenszeneral and administrative expense for the yeag@iecember 31, 2011 was $22.6 million, ve
$17.1 million in the prior year, an increase of8pillion, or 32.2%. General and administrative exges for the years ended December 31,
2011 and 2010 are summarized in the table below:

2011 2010
General and administrative expenses $14,82¢ $ 7,23
Non-cash warrant related compensation (income) exp@): (96) 5,71
Non-cash stock based compensation expens 7,83( 3,67¢
Restructuring, severance and lease exit cos! — 464

$22,55¢ $17,08"

(1) General and administrative expense, excludastructuring, severance and non-cash compensdtarges for stock compensation and
warrants, for the year ended December 31, 2011$&48 million, versus $7.2 million in the prior yean increase of $7.6 million, or
105.6%. The increase was primarily due to highefifiag levels in 2011, increased overhead costéfmmeased office space and higher
costs in 2011 for marketing studies and othe-commercial activities

(2) Warrant related compensation (income) expenséhboyéar ended December 31, 2011 was $0.1 millioncoime, versus $5.7 million
expense in the prior year, a change of $5.8 milliarrant related compensation income for the plezitxded December 31, 2011 reflects
non-cash income for the change in fair value ofvtlaerant derivative liability associated with wartsiissued in October 2009 to three
former officers of Amarin, net of warrants exercis&€he income in 2011 was due primarily to the dase in the fair value of these
warrants, the decrease in the fair value of theams is due primarily to a decrease in our stoatephbetween December 31, 2010 and
December 31, 201

(3) Stock based compensation expense for the year éelszinber 31, 2011 was $7.8 million, versus $3lliamiin the prior year period, ¢
increase of $4.1 million due primarily to an incgean option awards granted in late 2010 and duhiag/ear ended December 31, 201
attract and retain qualified employe

(4) Restructuring, severance and lease exit costhiéoye¢ar ended December 31, 2010 represented costsvierance, office consolidati
and the relocation of certain operations to our. dffices.

We expect general and administrative costs in 2012crease as we prepare for the commercializatickMR 101, including costs for market
research, sales force preparation and developniemaimagement information systems. The extent df sucreases will depend in large part on
the timing of NDA approval for AMR101 and whethee \aunch AMR101 on our own or with a strategic @odirator. If we launch AMR101

on our own, we anticipate that this launch will @Gcesubject to NDA approval, in early 2013 and tlvatwould not hire the majority of the
anticipated number of sales representatives undifaurth quarter of 2012.
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(Loss) Gain on Change in Fair Value of Derivativialility. (Loss) gain on change in fair value of derivatiiadbility for the year ended
December 31, 2011 was expense of $22.7 millionuge$205.2 million in the prior year period. (Logsjn on change in fair value of derivat
liability is primarily related to the change inifaialue of warrants issued in conjunction with @etober 2009 private placement. In October
2009 we issued 36.1 million warrants at an exengigee of $1.50 and recorded a $48.3 million watrderivative liability, representing the fair
value of the warrants issued. As these warrants baen classified as a derivative liability, theg sevalued at each reporting period, with
changes in fair value recognized in the statemeaperations. The fair value of the warrant deiiatiability at December 31, 2010 was
$230.1 million and we recognized a $205.2 millioed on change in fair value of derivative liabifity the period ended December 31, 2010
for these warrants. The fair value of the warrarhvdtive liability at December 31, 2011 was $123illion and we recognized a $22.7 million
loss on change in fair value of derivative lialyilior the period ended December 31, 2011. The dsergn the warrant derivative liability value
was due primarily to the decrease in the priceunfammmon shares. See further discussion of theawaderivative liability in Note 2 and Na
7 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statgs

Interest Income (Expense), nietterest income includes interest earned on casimbas. Interest expense for the year ended
December 31, 2011 was $1,000 versus $19,000 ipribeyear.

Other (Expense) Income, n€ther (expense) income primarily includes gainslasdes on foreign exchange transactions. Other
(expense) income for the year ended December 31, ®@s a net expense of $10,000 versus income3ff,$Q0 in the prior year.

(Provision for) benefit from Income Tax&sovision for the year ending December 31, 2011 a@2.5 million provision versus a $0.5
million benefit in the prior year. The increaselie 2011 provision for income taxes primarily refato the exercise of stock options of which
the excess benefits related to the option exereisesecorded to additional-paid-in capital.

Comparison of Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 20&fsus December 31, 2009
RevenueWe recorded no revenue in 2010 or 2009.
Research and Development Expefi&esearch and development expense for the year &wtsinber 31, 2010 was $28.0 million, versus

$20.9 million in the prior year period, an increa$&7.1 million, or 34.0%. Research and developnegpenses for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009 are summarized in tie below:

2010 2009

Research and development expenses (1) $26,48( $18,50¢
Non-cash stock based compensation expens 1,53¢ 1,481
Non-cash change in fair value of Ester share baseiityat3) — 902
$28,01¢ $20,89:

(1) Research and development expense, excludingasincharges, for the year ended December 31,284 $26.5 million, versus $18.5
million in the prior year period, an increase of@Ghillion, or 43.2%. The increase in research @eklopment expense was primarily
due to increased costs in 2010 for our AMR101 caakicular program, primarily costs associated withtwo Phase Il clinical trials
incurred through Medpace, the CRO we engaged én2@09 to help us set up and manage the two tiisdsbegan enrolling patients in
these trials in early 2010 and announced the cdioplef enrollment in both trials during the secdradf of 2010. These clinical trial cost
increases were partially offset by lower costsnfon-cardiovascular development programs which wiéeontinued during the fourth
quarter of 2009

(2) Stock based compensation expense included witk#areh and development was $1.5 million for thesieaded December 31, 20
and 2009, respectivel

(3) Non-cash change in fair value of Ester share baseilityafor the year ended December 31, 2009 refléloeschange in the fair value frc
December 31, 2008 to the May 2009 settlement dateediability associated with Milestone la of tBster share purchase agreement
further discussion in Note 8 of the Notes to thesiidated Financial Statement
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General and Administrative Expensgeneral and administrative expense for the yeag@ikcember 31, 2010 was $17.1 million, versus2
million in the prior year, an increase of $3.9 ioifl, or 29.5%. General and administrative expefsethe years ended December 31, 2010 and
2009 are summarized in the table below:

2010 2009
General and administrative expenses (1) $ 7,231 $ 8,59¢
Non-cash warrant related compensation expens 5,71 1,04(
Non-cash stock based compensation expens 3,67: 1,37¢
Restructuring, severance and lease exit cos! 464 2,141

$17,08: $13,15:

(1) General and administrative expense, excludastructuring, severance and non-cash compensdtarges for stock compensation and
warrants, for the year ended December 31, 2010®asmillion, versus $8.6 million in the prior yeardecrease of $1.4 million, or
16.3%. The decrease was primarily due to lowefisgaind overhead expenses in 2010, due to a rieduct office locations in 2009 as a
result of a restructuring in late 2009 in conjuactvith the October 2009 private placement, whisle ncluded the termination of non-
cardiovascular development progral

(2) Warrant related compensation expense for the yaedeDecember 31, 2010 was $5.7 million, versu8 illlion in the prior year, a
increase of $4.7 million. Warrant related compepsatxpense for the period ended December 31, g&flts a non-cash expense for
the change in fair value of the warrant derivatiability associated with warrants issued in Octob@09 to three former officers of
Amarin, net of warrants exercised. The increagbeérfair value of the warrants is due primarilyatoincrease in our stock price between
December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2

(3) Stock based compensation expense for the year éeleszinber 31, 2010 was $3.7 million, versus $1amiin the prior year period, ¢
increase of $2.3 million due primarily to an incgean option awards for the year ended Decembe2@) to attract and retain qualified
employees

(4) Restructuring, severance and lease exit costs $eBemillion for the year ended December 31, 2048ws $2.1 million in the prior yet
Restructuring, severance and lease exit costsdaslprimarily costs for severance, office consaeiiseand the relocation of certain
operations to the Compé's U.S. offices

(Loss) Gain on Change in Fair Value of Derivativialility. (Loss) gain on change in fair value of derivatisadility for the year ended
December 31, 2010 was expense of $205.2 millioaugeincome of $5.1 million in the prior year peri¢ldoss) gain on change in fair value of
derivative liability is primarily related to the ahge in fair value of warrants issued in conjunctioth the October 2009 private placement. In
October 2009 we issued 36.1 million warrants atxercise price of $1.50 and recorded a $48.3 millvarrant derivative liability, representi
the fair value of the warrants issued. As theseamis have been classified as a derivative ligbilitey are revalued at each reporting period,
with changes in fair value recognized in the staeinof operations. The fair value of the warrarivddive liability at December 31, 2009 was
$41.5 million and we recognized a $6.6 million gamchange in fair value of derivative liabilityrfthe period ended December 31, 2009 for
these warrants. The fair value of the warrant deive liability at December 31, 2010 was $230.llioriland we recognized a $205.2 million
loss on change in fair value of derivative lialyilior the period ended December 31, 2010. The &serén the warrant derivative liability value
was due primarily to the increase in the pricewf@mmon shares. See further discussion of theawaderivative liability in Note 2 and Note
7 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial States

Interest Income (Expense), ninterest income includes interest earned on calsinbas. Interest expense for the year ended Deae3b201(
was $19,000 versus $2.8 million in the prior y8dre decrease was due primarily to the amortizadfdhe difference between the fair value of
the June and July 2009 bridge loans at their datesoe and their face value at the time of repayrireOctober 2009. The bridge notes were
repaid in conjunction with our October 2009 privptacement.
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Other Income (Expense), n€ther income primarily includes gains and lossefoogign exchange transactions. Other income ferytar
ended December 31, 2009 also included $0.7 miftiom the sale of intellectual property.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our sources of liquidity as of December 31, 20Xkdude cash and cash equivalents of $116.6 millimaddition, in January 2012 we
completed a convertible debt offering from which reeeived approximately $144.3 million in net preds. Our projected uses of cash include
the continued funding of the REDUCE-IT study, comaie preparation and launch of AMR101, working italjpand other general corporate
activities. Our cash flows from operating, invegtand financing activities, as reflected in thesmiated statements of cash flows, are
summarized in the following table (in millions):

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010 2009
Cash (used in) provided by continuing operatic
Operating activitie: $(39.9 $(33.9 $(28.4)
Investing activities (2.0 — 0.6
Financing activitie: 126.¢ 13.1 65.€
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivz $ 85.2 $(20.¢) $ 38.C

We had no debt obligations at December 31, 2011.

On January 9, 2012, Amarin, through its wholly-odisebsidiary Corsicanto Limited, a private limitmzimpany incorporated under the
laws of Ireland, completed a private placementi&d0 in aggregate principal amount of its 3.50%hexgeable senior notes due 2032. The
proceeds received by Amarin from the January 2@ dffering were approximately $144.3 million, néfees and transaction costs. These
notes were issued pursuant to an indenture datefiJasuary 9, 2012, by and among Corsicanto, Am@adrporation plc as guarantor, and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustde notes are the senior unsecured obligatio@ooficanto and are guaranteed by Amarin
Corporation plc. The notes bear interest at aoch850% per annum, payable semi-annually in asrearJanuary 15 and July 15 of each year,
beginning on July 15, 2012. The notes mature onalgnl5, 2032, unless earlier repurchased, redeemexthanged. On or after January 19,
2017, we may elect to redeem for cash all or agouf the notes for the principal amount of theesoplus accrued and unpaid interest. On
each of January 19, 2017, January 19, 2022 anadat@, 2027, the holders of the notes may reghaewe repurchase in cash the principal
amount of the notes plus accrued and unpaid irtekegany time prior to January 15, 2032, uponaertircumstances, which circumstances
include our issuing a notice of redemption to tberholders, the price of Amarin shares tradingvatiB0% of the exchange price, or certain
other events defined in the note agreement, thdeh®lbof the notes may elect to convert the notes.ekchange rate for conversion is 113.4752
ADSs per $1,000 principal amount of the notes (eajent to an initial exchange price of approximate8.8125 per ADS), subject to
adjustment in certain circumstances, including stjient if we pay cash dividends. Upon exchangentites may be settled, at Amarin’s
election, subject to certain conditions, in casBS& or a combination of cash and ADSs.

In January 2011, we sold 13.8 million shares ofemmmon shares, par valu@.E0 per share, at a price of $7.60 per shareltirggin nei
proceeds of approximately $98.7 million after dethgcunderwriting commissions and expenses payaples associated with this transaction.

We believe that our cash, including the net prosdeain the January 2012 financing, will be suffitiéo fund our projected operations
for at least the next twelve months, including aseament of the REDUCE-IT cardiovascular outcomedystcommercial preparations and
projected launch of AMR101, working capital andestheneral corporate activities. This is basedwrcarrent operational plans and activities
at normal levels and does not assume any cashisfiom partnerships, warrant exercises or othetide or non-dilutive financings in the
longer-term.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our contractual gditions at December 31, 2011 and the effects sblifiations are expected to have on
our liquidity and cash flows in future periods (millions):

Payments Due by Period

2013 2015
Total 2012 to 201¢ to 201¢ After 2016
Contractual Obligations
Purchase obligations ( $13.¢ $13.5 $— $— $ —
Operating lease obligations ( 1.3 0.6 0.7 — —
Total contractual cash obligatio $14.€ $13.€ $ 0.7 $— $ —

(1) Represents minimum purchase obligations witssNin, our supplier of AMR 101 active pharmaceliicgredient, ethyl-EPA. We
purchased $2.1 million of materials during the yeraded December 31, 2011 and have additional pseobisligations of $13.3 million in
2012. Not included in this obligation is a non-redable milestone payment of $0.5 million payablerufhe first marketing approval of
AMR101 in the United States. Additional future rmmim purchases will be required, subject to an NPpraval, and in preparation for
commercialization of AMR101 we may purchase moentthe minimum amoun

In addition, provided the supplier has expanded@sufacturing capacity in accordance with the exguent, the supplier may terminate
the agreement in the event that (i) Amarin doegeogive marketing approval for AMR101 in the Uditgtates on or before
December 31, 2014 or (ii) in the event that Amatiandons development of AMR101 for hypertriglycenida in the United States. In
either case, Amarin will be required to reimbutse supplier for certain costs incurred by the sigpph connection with its
manufacturing expansion, less the amount of prefieived as a result of purchases of ethyl-EPA maAn, not to exceed $5.0 million.

We anticipate incurring certain costs associatdt thie qualification of product produced by Nissiiman effort to further expand
production capacity at this supplier or through dlelition of supplemental suppliers, we may makgtabcommitments to support their
expansion, particularly if such commitments furthetuce the cost to us of the manufactured product.

(2) Represents operating lease costs, primarily cangisf leases for facilities in Dublin, Ireland, @ainster, NJ and Groton, C
We do not enter into financial instruments for trador speculative purposes.

The above table also does not reflect potentiabnetpurchases under active pharmaceutical ingredor API, supply agreements signed
during 2011 with two additional API suppliers. We &urrently working to finalize terms and conditsowith a fourth supplier. These
agreements provide access to additional AP sugalyis incremental to supply from Nisshin, ourstixig API supplier. Each of these three
API agreements contemplates a phased capacity sixpapian aimed at creating sufficient capacityneet anticipated demand for API
material for AMR101 following FDA approval. Thesd®Asuppliers are self-funding these expansion phatiscontributions from Amarin.
These agreements include requirements for the iuppb qualify their materials and facilities. \&eticipate incurring certain costs associated
with the qualification of product produced by thasgpliers. Following FDA approval of AMR101, thesmgreements include annual purchase
levels enabling Amarin to maintain supply exclusiwith each respective supplier, and to prevemempiial termination of the agreements.
Because we have not yet obtained FDA approval /dRAO1, these amounts are excluded from the abdle. t&he 2011 supply agreements
also include (i) development fees up to a maxim@$0o5 million, (i) material commitments of up $5.0 million for initial raw materials,
which will be credited against future API purchase®d is refundable to Amarin if a supplier doessuzcessfully develop and qualify the API
by a certain date and (iii) a raw material purchamamitment of $1.1 million.
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Concurrent with one of these supply agreementsagreement with Chemport located in South Koreaagreed to make a minority share
equity investment in Chemport of up to $3.3 milliém July 2011, we paid to Chemport $1.7 milliordenthis agreement, which has been
included in other long term assets at Decembe?@11]. Subject to Chemport meeting certain milegpwne anticipate making the remaining
$1.6 million investment during 2012.

Under our 2004 share repurchase agreement withadl@xdmited, in connection with commercializatiohAMR101 for cardiovascular
indications, prior to the end of 2012 we are reggiito pay potential royalties to a former emplogkkaxdale of 1% on net sales up to
£100 million (approximately $155 million at Deceml3d, 2011); 0.5% for net sales between £100 mil{Epproximately $155 million at
December 31, 2011) and £500 million (approxima$y3 million at December 31, 2011); and 0.25% &es in excess of £500 million
(approximately $773 million at December 31, 20Kifjer 2012, we have no royalty obligations.

Under this same agreement with Laxdale Limited nupeeipt of marketing approval in the U.S. andorope for the first indication for
AMR101 (or first indication of any product contaigi Amarin Neuroscience intellectual property acedifrom Laxdale Limited in 2004), we
must make an aggregate stock or cash paymente(abth option of each of the sellers) of £7.5 wmill{(approximately $11.6 million at
December 31, 2011) for each of the two potentiaketing approvals (i.e., £15 million maximum, opapximately $23.2 million at

December 31, 2011). In addition, upon receipt ofaaketing approval in the U.S. or Europe for atfartindication of AMR101 (or further
indication of any other product using Amarin Newiesce intellectual property), we must make an egate stock or cash payment (at the sole
option of each of the sellers) of £5 million (apgroately $7.7 million at December 31, 2011) forleac the two potential market approvals

(i.e. £10 million maximum, or approximately $15.5lion at December 31, 2011).

In addition to the obligations in the table abowe,have approximately $0.7 million of liability foncertain tax positions that have been
recorded in long-term liabilities at December 3012. We are not able to reasonably estimate inlwhiture periods these amounts will
ultimately be settled.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any special purpose entities or aifidbalance sheet arrangements.

Shelf Registration Statement

On March 29, 2011, we filed with the SEC a univesself registration statement on Form S-3 (Regi&in No. 333-173132), which provides
for the offer, from time to time, of an indetermi@@nd unlimited amount of: ordinary shares, wiey be represented by American
Depositary Shares; preference shares, which magdresented by American Depositary Shares; senisulmrdinated debt securities;
warrants to purchase any of these securities; ap@@mbination of these securities, individuallyagrunits. In addition, if we identify any
security holder(s) in a prospectus supplement, thay also offer identified securities under thigis&ration statement although we will not
receive any of the proceeds from the sale of skesithy any of these selling security holders. Tiversal shelf registration statement was
automatically effective upon its filing. The additi of any newly issued equity securities into therket may be dilutive to existing stockholc
and new issuances by us or sales by our sellingisgbolders could have an adverse effect on tieewf our securities.

Iltem 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MarkRisk

We are exposed to market risks, which include charg interest rates, changes in credit worthiaeskliquidity of our marketable securities.
We do not use derivative financial instrumentsun iovestment portfolio and have no foreign excleogntracts. At December 31, 2011, we
record as a liability the fair value of warrantptarchase 18.7 million shares of our common steskéd to investors. The fair value of this
warrant liability is determined using the Black-8t#s option valuation model and is therefore samsto changes in the market price and
volatility of our common stock among other factdrsthe event of a hypothetical 10% increase in the
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market price of our common shares ($8.24 baset®f87.49 market price of our stock at Decembef811) on which the December 31, 2(
valuation was based, the value of the derivataility would have increased by $13.6 million. Surctrease would have been reflected as
additional loss on change in fair value of the watrderivative liability in our statement of opéoat.

Foreign Currency Exchange RigBur results of operations and cash flows are stibjeftuctuations due to changes in the Euro and
Sterling. The majority of our vendor relationshgse denominated in U.S. dollar. We therefore belignat the risk of a significant impact on
our operating income from foreign currency fluctaas is not substantial.

Interest Rate RiskVe believe that we are not exposed to significatarest rate risk through market value fluctuatiohbalance sheet
items (i.e., price risk) or through changes inres¢ income or expenses (i.e., re-financing onx@stment risk). Interest rate risk mainly arises
through interest bearing liabilities and assets.iliVest funds not needed for near-term operatimpgeses in diversified showrm investment:
consisting primarily of investment grade securitiés of December 31, 2011, the fair value of owshcand cash equivalents maturing in one
year or less was $116.6 million and represente@dl60our cash, cash equivalents and investmentgbiortA hypothetical 50 basis poi
increase in interest rates would not result in éend decrease or increase in the fair value ofsegurities due to the general short-term nature
of our investment portfolio. At December 31, 202010 and 2009 there was no outstanding debt.

ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary De
Our consolidated financial statements are annexéuid report beginning on page F-1.

ltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéanting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Iltem 9A.  Controls and Procedure

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresatetlesigned to ensure that information requindattdisclosed in the reports that we
file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act@34, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), is (1) riéed, processed, summarized, and
reported within the time periods specified in theC3s rules and forms and (2) accumulated and conpated to our management, including
our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Ficél Officer, to allow timely decisions regardingguired disclosure. As of December 31,
2011 (the “Evaluation Date”), our management, \lith participation of our Principal Executive Officand Principal Financial Officer,
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure otsyeind procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15@)1&d15(e) under the Exchange Act). (
management recognizes that any controls and proegduwo matter how well designed and operatedpoaride only reasonable assurance of
achieving their objectives, and management nedgsaaplies its judgment in evaluating the cost-bf@relationship of possible controls and
procedures. Our Principal Executive Officer andh&ipal Financial Officer have concluded based upenevaluation described above that, as
of the Evaluation Date, our disclosure controls pratedures were effective at the reasonable assaitavel.
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Management's Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnagidtaining adequate internal control over finah@gorting for our company.
Internal control over financial reporting is definim Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(d}(f) promulgated under the Exchange Act as a podesigne
by, or under the supervision of, our Principal BExee Officer and Principal Financial Officer anffeeted by our board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reakoaaturance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles and ohetuthose policies and procedures that:

* pertain to the maintenance of records that in neasie detail accurately and fairly reflect the sactions and disposition of o
assets

» provide reasonable assurance that transactione@seded as necessary to permit preparation ofi¢inhstatements in accordar
with generally accepted accounting princip

» provide reasonable assurance that our receiptexgehditures are being made only in accordanceauithorization of our
management and directors; ¢

» provide reasonable assurance regarding preventitmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usedisposition of our assets
that could have a material effect on the finansfatements

Because of inherent limitations, internal contmlgr financial reporting may not prevent or detaidstatements. Projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agjext to the risks that controls may become inadegbecause of changes in conditions ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdates may deteriorate.

Our management, including our Principal Executif8d®r and Principal Financial Officer, has condzdtein evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahceporting as of December 31, 2011. In conductinig evaluation, we used the criteria set
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohthe Treadway Commission (COSO),limernal Control-Integrated Framework

Based upon this evaluation and those criteria, gemant believes that, as of December 31, 201lintennal controls over financial
reporting were effective.

Deloitte and Touche LLP, our independent registgngalic accounting firm, has audited our consobddinancial statements and the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahceporting as of December 31, 2011. This repopeaps below.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There were no changes in our internal control dwancial reporting during the fourth quarter oflatthat have materially affected, or
reasonably likely to materially affect, our intekeantrol over financial reporting, other than désed below.

Remediation of Material Weakne

As previously described in Item 9A “Controls an@&gdures” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed fhe year ended December 31,
2010, our management identified a material weakimeggernal control over financial reporting asécember 31, 2009, which persisted as of
December 31, 2010. Specifically, our managementladed there was a deficiency in the company’sivgtkecontrol over financial reporting
relating to the technical expertise and review dkieraccounting for complex, non-routine transaithat could result in a material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statem#rat would not be prevented or detected on alyitnasis.
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During the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2@&lcompleted remediation efforts to address thern@tveakness identified above.
Specifically, our management, with the input, oigits and support of the Audit Committee, identifi@nd took the following steps beginning
during the second half of 2010, all of which effocbntinued into the fourth quarter of 2011: nodhuary course transactions are considered
and evaluated by senior finance management; wéncento prepare accounting position papers foca@tplex transactions; and, where
appropriate, management seeks the advice of outsitultants on accounting matters related to pipication of U.S. GAAP to complex,
non-ordinary course transactions and in other im&ta as warranted. Management tested the desigopanating effectiveness of these

redesigned controls during our year-end closinggse for 2011, and we believe that we have renestithe material weakness as described
above, as of December 31, 2011.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Amarin Corporation plc
Dublin, Ireland

We have audited the internal control over finanggplorting of Amarin Corporation plc and subsidiar{the “Company”) as of December
31, 2011, based on criteria establishethternal Control — Integrated Framewoisued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe
Treadway Commission. The Company’s managemensporesible for maintaining effective internal cohwaer financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting, included in the Managet®Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to exggen opinion on the Company’s internal controlrdwencial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedgdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightq&@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetigfenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®tsr audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifeg®@feness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancesdlieve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supemnvidi the company’s principal
executive and principal financial officers, or pars performing similar functions, and effected iy tompany’s board of directors,
management, and other personnel to provide reakassurance regarding the reliability of financegdorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles. A comgfsaimternal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and proceduras(th) pertain to the maintenance of records thagasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of theetssof the company; (2) provide reasonable asserduat transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statetin accordance with generally accepted acaogiptinciples, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made ordgdordance with authorizations of management ardtirs of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, usedisposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the finansiatements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcolhover financial reporting, including the possti of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatemdue to error or fraud may not be preventatbtected on a timely basis. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the effectivenesthe internal control over financial reportingftdure periods are subject to the risk that the
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance withpolicies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as of December 31,
2011, based on the criteria establishethternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifribe
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated financial statements as of and foydse ended December 31, 2011 of the Company ancepart dated February 29, 2012
expressed an unqualified opinion on those finarstetements.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 29, 2012
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Iltem 9B.  Other Information

Entry into Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plans

Our policy governing transactions in our securitigour directors, officers and employees permitsafficers, directors and certain ot
persons to enter into trading plans complying iAthe 10b5-1 under the Securities Exchange Act 8418s amended. We have been advised
that a number of our directors and employees, dhofumembers of our senior management team, ardiment funds associated with such
persons, have entered into trading plans in acooslwith Rule 10b5-1 and our policy governing teat®ns in our securities. We undertake
no obligation to update or revise the informatioovided herein, including for revision or termiraatiof an established trading plan.
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PART IlI
Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Goverre

The information required by this item will be coimiad in our definitive proxy statement, which viak filed with the SEC in connection
with our 2012 Annual General Meeting of Sharehald8uch information is incorporated herein by refiee.

Code of Ethics

Our Board of Directors has adopted a code of bgsiotenduct and ethics that applies to our directffisers and employees. There have
been no material modifications to, or waivers frahe provisions of such code. This code is avadlainl the corporate governance section of
our website (which is a subsection of the investtations section of our website) at the followamgress: www.amarincorp.com\ny waivers
from or amendments to the code will be filed wile SEC on Form 8-K. You may also request a printgry of the code, without charge, by
writing to us at Amarin Pharma Inc., 1430 Route, Z&minster, NJ 07921, Attn: Investor Relations.

ltem 11.  Executive Compensatio

The information required by this item will be cointed in our Proxy Statement, which will be filedtlvthe SEC in connection with our
2012 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. Snofdrination is incorporated herein by reference.

ltem 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ainagement and Related Stockholder Matt:

The information required by this item will be coimiad in our Proxy Statement, which will be filedtivthe SEC in connection with our
2012 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. Sofdriation is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, aDatector Independenci

The information required by this item will be cointed in our Proxy Statement, which will be filedtivthe SEC in connection with our
2012 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. Snofdrination is incorporated herein by reference.

Iltem 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

The information required by this item will be coimiad in our Proxy Statement, which will be filedtivthe SEC in connection with our
2012 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. Snofdriation is incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 15.

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul

(a) Financial Statements and Schedules

See index to the financial statements on page F-1.

(b) Exhibits

PART IV

The following exhibits are incorporated by refererne filed as part of this report.

Exhibit
Number

3.1

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5
10.6

Description
Articles of Association of the Company

Form of Amended and Restated Dep
Agreement, dated as of November 4, 2011,
among the Company, Citibank, N.A., as
Depositary, and all holders from time to time of
American Depositary Receipts issued thereu

Indenture, dated as of January 9, 2012, by
among Corsicanto Limited, the Company and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
trustee

Form of Ordinary Share certifica

Form of American Depositary Receipt
evidencing ADS:

The Company 2002 Stock Option P

The Company 2011 Stock Option Plan

Form of Incentive Stock Option Awa
Agreemen

Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Awar
Agreemen

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreem

Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated Marc
2003, between F. Hoffmann-La Roche Limited,
Hoffmanr-La Roche Inc., and the Compa

Incorporated by Reference Herein

Form

Registration Statement on Form F-3,

File No. 170505, as Exhibit 3
Filed herewitr

Current Report on Fornm-K dated
January 9, 2012 as Exhibit 4.1

Annual Report on Form :-F for the
year ended December 21, 2002
Exhibit 2.4

Filed herewith

Annual Report on Form :-F for the
year ended December 31, 2006
Exhibit 4.17

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the period ended June 30, 2011 as
Exhibit 10.4

Filed herewitr
Filed herewitr

Filed herewittr

Annual Report on Form :-F for the
year ended December 21, 2002
Exhibit 4.22
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November 10, 201

January 10, 201

April 24, 2003

March 5, 2007

August 8, 2011

April 24, 2003
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Exhibit

Number

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

Incorporated by Reference Herein

Description Form

Share Purchase Agreement, dated October 8,  Registration Statement on Forr-3,
between the Company, Vida Capital Partners File No. 333-121431, as Exhibit 4.24
Limited and the Vendors named ther

Agreement, dated January 18, 2007, between  Annual Report on Form 20-F for the

Neurostat Pharmaceuticals Inc., Ame year ended December 31, 2007
Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limited, the Company anBxhibit 4.62
Mr. Tim Lynch

Lease Agreement, dated January 22, 2007, betwetnnual Report on Form 20-F for the
the Company, Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland  year ended December 31, 2006

Limited and Mr. David Colgan, Mr. Philip Exhibit 4.71
Monaghan, Mr. Finian McDonnell and Mr. Patrick
Ryan

Development and License Agreement dated M Annual Report on Form :-F for the
6, 2007 between Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland year ended December 31, 2007
Limited and Elan Pharma International Limite: Exhibit 4.67

Form of Purchase Agreement, dated June 1, 2007Annual Report on Form 20-F for the
between the Company and the Purchasers hamedear ended December 31, 2007
therein Exhibit 4.69

Form of Equity Securities Purchase Agreemen  Report of Foreign Private Issuer fil
U.S. Purchasers, dated December 4, 2007, between Form 6-K, as Exhibit 99.5
the Company and the Purchasers named th

Form of Equity Securities Purchase Agreement foReport of Foreign Private Issuer filed
Non-U.S. Purchasers, dated December 4, 2007, on Form 6-K, as Exhibit 99.6
between the Company and the Purchasers named

therein

Form of Debt Securities Purchase Agreement, « Report of Foreign Private Issuer filed
December 4, 2007, between the Company and then Form 6-K, as Exhibit 99.7
Purchasers named ther

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated Decemb Report of Foreign Private Issuer fil
2007, between the Company, the selling on Form 6-K, as Exhibit 99.1
shareholders of Ester Neurosciences Limited, Ester

Neurosciences Limited and Medica Il Managen

L.P. T
Letter Agreement, dated December 6, 2007, Report of Foreign Private Issuer filed
between the Company and the Sellers’ on Form 6-K, as Exhibit 99.1

Representative of the selling shareholders of Ester
Neurosciences Limite
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May 19, 2008

March 5, 2007

May 19, 200¢

May 19, 2008

December 17, 200

December 17, 2007

December 17, 2007

January 28, 200

February 1, 2008
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Exhibit

Number

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

Incorporated by Reference Herein

Description Form

Amendment No. 1 to Stock Purchase Agreerr Annual Report on Form :-F for the
dated April 7, 2008, between the Company and year ended December 31, 2007, as Exhibit
Medica Il Management L.F

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated May 12, Annual Report on Form 20-F for the
2008, among the Company and the Purchasers year ended December 31, 2008, as Exhibit
named thereil

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, d Annual Report on Form :-F for the
May 13, 2008, between the Company and the  year ended December 31, 2007, as Exhibit
Purchasers named therei

Amendment and Waiver Agreement, dated May Annual Report on Form :-F/A for
2009, between Ester Neurosciences Limited, the year ended December 31, 2008, as
Medica Il Management L.P. and the Compa Exhibit 4.88

Termination and Assignment Agreement, dated Annual Report on Form 20-F for the
July 21, 2009 between Elan Pharma International year ended December 31, 2008
Limited and Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Exhibit 4.90

Limited 1

Bridge Loan Agreement, dated July 31, 2009 Annual Report on Form 20-F for the
between the Company and the Lenders identified year ended December 31, 2008
therein Exhibit 4.93

Master Services Agreement, dated Septembe Annual Report on Form :-F for the
2009, between Medpace Inc. and Amarin Pharmayear ended December 31, 2008
Inc. and Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limi Exhibit 4.92

Letter Agreement dated August 1, 2008 with Pe¢  Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

Somi year ended December 31, 2010
Exhibit 10.20

Amendment No. 1 to Bridge Loan Agreeme Annual Report on Form K for the

dated September 30, 2009, between the Companyear ended December 31, 2010

and the Lenders identified there Exhibit 10.21

Form of Securities Purchase Agreement dated  Annual Report on Form 20-F for the
October 12, 2009 between the Company and the year ended December 31, 2008

Purchasers named ther: Exhibit 4.94
Letter Agreement dated October 12, 2009 with  Registration Statement on Forr-1,
Declan Doogan File No. 333-163704, as

Exhibit 4.101
Letter Agreement dated October 12, 2009 with  Registration Statement on Form F-1,
Joseph S. Zakrzewski File No. 333-163704, as

Exhibit 4.102

68

Date

May 19, 200¢

October 22, 2009

May 19, 200¢

December 4, 200

October 22, 2009

October 22, 2009

October 22, 200

March 16, 2011

March 16, 201

October 22, 2009

December 14, 200

December 14, 2009
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Exhibit

Number

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

Incorporated by Reference Herein

Description Form

Amendment Agreement dated October 12, 200 Annual Report on Form :-F for the
the Form of Equity Securities Purchase Agreementear ended December 31, 2008
dated May 13, 2008 between the Company and thexhibit 4.97

Purchasers named ther:

Compromise Agreement, dated October 16, 2  Annual Report on Form :-F for the
between the Company and Alan Cooke year ended December 31, 2008
Exhibit 4.95

Warrant Agreement, dated October 16, 2009, Annual Report on Form 20-F for the
between the Company and Thomas G. Lynch year ended December 31, 2008

Exhibit 4.96
Letter Agreement dated October 16, 2009 \ Registration Statement on Forr-1,
Thomas G. Lynch File No. 333-163704, as

Exhibit 4.103

Management Rights Deed of Agreement dated Annual Report on Form 20-F for the
October 16, 2009 by and among the Company anglear ended December 31, 2009

Purchasers named ther: Exhibit 4.100
Employment Agreement dated November 5, 2009Registration Statement on Form F-1,
with John F. Thero File No. 333-163704, as
Exhibit 4.104
Amendment No. 1, dated December 2, 200! Registration Statement on Forr-1,

Securities Purchase Agreement dated October 12File No. 333-163704, as
2009 between the Company and the Purchasers Exhibit 4.105
named therei

Letter Agreement, dated December 2, 2009, an Annual Report on Form -K for the
the Company, Sunninghill Limited, Michael Walshyear ended December 31, 2010
and Simon Kuke Exhibit 10.35

Letter Agreement dated December 9, 2009 with Registration Statement on Form F-1,
Thomas G. Lynch, Alan Cooke and Tom Maher File No. 333-163704, as

Exhibit 4.106
Compromise Agreement dated December 10, : Report of Foreign Private Issuer fil
with Tom Mahet on Form K, as Exhibit 99.1

Transitional Employment Agreement, dated Au¢ Annual Report on Form -K for the
10, 2010, between the Company and Declan year ended December 31, 2010

Doogan Exhibit 10.38

Letter Agreement, dated August 16, 2010, betweefinnual Report on Form 10-K for the

the Company and Colin Stewart year ended December 31, 2010
Exhibit 10.39

Supply Agreement, dated November 1, 2010, Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

between Nisshin Pharma Inc. and Amarin year ended December 31, 2010

Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limitec Exhibit 10.40
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Date

October 22, 200

October 22, 200

October 22, 2009

December 14, 200

June 25, 2010

December 14, 2009

December 14, 200

March 16, 201

December 14, 2009

December 14, 200

March 16, 201:

March 16, 2011

March 16, 2011
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Exhibit

Number

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

10.47

10.48

10.49

10.50

10.51

10.52

10.53

Incorporated by Reference Herein

Description Form

Resignation and Release Agreement, d Annual Report on Form K for the

November 9, 2010, between the Company year ended December 31, 2010

Colin Stewar! Exhibit 10.41

Letter Agreement, dated November 15, 2010, Annual Report on Form 10-K for the

between the Company and John F. Thero year ended December 31, 2010
Exhibit 10.42

Employment Agreement, effective December Annual Report on Form K for the

2010, between the Company and Joseph S. year ended December 31, 2010

Zakrzewski Exhibit 10.43

Amarin Corporation plc Management Incent Annual Report on Form K for the

Compensation Plan year ended December 31, 2010
Exhibit 10.44

Consulting Agreement, dated November 10, 2010Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
between the Company and Joseph S. Zakrzewskiyear ended December 31, 2010

Exhibit 10.45
Letter Agreement dated March 1, 2010 v Annual Report on Form K for the
Frederick W. Ahlholm year ended December 31, 2010
Exhibit 10.46
Letter Agreement dated January 28, 2011 with  Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
Huff the period ended March 31, 2011 as
Exhibit 10.1

API Commercial Supply Agreement, dated May Quarterly Report on Form -Q for
2011, between Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland the period ended June 30, 2011 as
Ltd. and Chemport Inc. Exhibit 10.2

API Commercial Supply Agreement, dated May Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
2011, between Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland the period ended June 30, 2011 as
Ltd. and Equateq Limited Exhibit 10.1

Amendment to API Commercial Supg Filed herewitr
Agreement, dated October 19, 2011, between

Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Ltd. and Equateq

Limitedt

Irrevocable License Agreement dated as of A Quarterly Report on Form -Q for
11, 2011, as amended by the First Amendment tothe period ended June 30, 2011 as
Irrevocable License Agreement dated as of May 9Exhibit 10.3

2011, each by Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland

and Bedminster 2 Funding, LL

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement Current Report on Form 8-K dated
with Joe Zakrzewski, dated October 20, 2! October 20, 2011 as Exhibit 1C
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Date

March 16, 201

March 16, 2011

March 16, 201

March 16, 201

March 16, 2011

March 16, 201

May 10, 2011

August 8, 201:

August 8, 2011

August 8, 201:

October 20, 2011
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Exhibit

Number

10.54

10.55

10.56

10.57

10.58

10.59

10.60

10.61

10.62

14.1

211
23.1

311

31.2

Incorporated by Reference Herein

Description Form

Stuart Sedlack offer letter, dated August 1, 2( Quarterly Report on Form -Q for
the period ended September 30, 2011
as Exhibit 10.]

Online Office Agreement dated as of Septembe Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
2011 by Amarin Corporation plc and Regus CME the period ended September 30, 2011

Ireland Ltd. as Exhibit 10.2

Letter Agreement with Joseph Kennedy, d: Current Report on Fornm-K dated
December 13, 201 December 23, 2011 as Exhibit 1!
Letter Agreement with Stuart Sedlack, dated Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 23, 201 December 23, 2011 as Exhibit 1!
Letter Agreement with John Thero, dated Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 23, 201 December 23, 2011 as Exhibit 1!
Letter Agreement with Paul Huff, dat Current Report on Forr-K dated
December 23, 201 December 23, 2011 as Exhibit 1!
Letter Agreement with Paresh Soni, da Current Report on Forr-K dated
December 23, 201 December 23, 2011 as Exhibit 1!

Lease Agreement dated November 28, 2011, by tkéded herewith
Company, 534 East Middle Turnpike, LLC, Peter

Jay Alter, as Trustee of the Leon C. Lech

Irrevocable Trust under Declaration of Trust dated

October 14, 1980 and Ferndale Realty, L

Letter Agreement with Steve Ketchum, dated Current Report on Form 8-K dated

February 8, 201 February 16, 2012 as Exhibit 1(

Code of Ethic: Registration Statement on Forr-3,
as Exhibit 99.1

List of Subsidiarie: Filed herewitr

Consent of Independent Registered Pu Filed herewitr

Accounting Firm

Certification of Chief Executive Officer (Princip  Filed herewitr
Executive Officer) pursuant to Section 302 of
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of President (Principal Financial Filed herewith
Officer) pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbafkedey
Act of 2002
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November 8, 201
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December 23, 201
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Exhibit Incorporated by Reference Herein
Number Description Form Date
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Office Filed herewitr

(Principal Executive Officer) and President
(Principal Financial Officer) pursuant to Section
906 of Sarban«-Oxley Act of 200z

101 INS XBRL Instance Documel

101 SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schel
Document

101 CAL XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbas
Document

101 DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
Linkbase Documer

101 LAB XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase
Document

101 PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase
Document

t Confidential treatment has been granted withaetsip portions of this exhibit pursuant to an &glon requesting confidential treatment
under Rule 24b-2 of the Securities Exchange Adt9¥4. A complete copy of this exhibit, includingtredacted terms, has been separately
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyidthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, therednlp authorized.
A MARIN C ORPORATIONP LC
By:
/s/ John F. Thero
John F. Ther
President

Date: February 29, 2012
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf

Date

of the Registrant and in the capacities and oré#te indicated.
Title

Signature
Presiden February 29, 201

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/ John F. Thero
John F. Ther

_ Chief Executive Officer an February 29, 201
/s| Joseph Zakrzewski Director (Principal Executive Officer)
Joseph Zakrzews!

February 29, 2012

Director
/s| Joseph Anderson, Ph.D.
Joseph Anderson, Ph.
Director February 29, 2012
/s/ Lars Ekman
Lars Ekmar
Director February 29, 2012
/s/ Carl Gordon, Ph.D, CFA
Carl Gordon, Ph.D, CF,
Director February 29, 201
/s James Healy, M.D., Ph.D.
James Healy, M.D., Ph.l
Director February 29, 201
/s/  Kristine Peterson
Kristine Petersol
Director February 29, 201
/s/ _Patrick O’Sullivan
Patrick C' Sullivan
Director February 29, 2012

/s/ Jan van Heek
Jan van Hee
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A MARIN C ORPORATION PLC
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEimm F-1
Financial Statement

Consolidated Balance She: F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsélehoss F-3
Consolidated Statements of Stockhol’ (Deficit) Equity F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fle F-5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme F-6

Financial Statement Schedul:

Financial statement schedules have been omittettiéoreason that the required information is preseim the consolidated financial statem:
or notes thereto, the amounts involved are notfsignt or the schedules are not applicable.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Amarin Corporation plc
Dublin, Ireland

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Amarin Corporation plc and subsidaftiee “Company”) as of December
31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidatéenstants of operations and comprehensive loss, lsbbdérs’ (deficit) equity, and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period endeceber 31, 2011. These financial statements areetiponsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion the financial statements based on our sudit

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the finestatements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetagresent fairly, in all material respects, tinarcial position of Amarin Corporation plc
and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and 201tDthe results of their operations and their ¢asts for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2011, in conformity \@itbhounting principles generally accepted in thetééhBtates of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2011, based on the criteria establighbddrnal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission and our report datdauzey 29, 2012 expressed an
unqualified opinion on the Company’s internal cohbver financial reporting.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 29, 2012
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A MARIN C ORPORATION PLC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2011 2010
(in thousands, except
share and per share

amounts)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalel $ 116,60: $ 31,44
Deferred tax asst 53¢ 60¢€
Other current asse 1,83 1,06:
Total current asse 118,97: 33,11
Property, plant and equipment, | 432 88
Deferred tax asst 4,73¢ 2,16¢
Other long term asse 2,241 —
TOTAL ASSETS $ 126,37! $ 35,365
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS °’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payabl $ 4,41¢ $ 4,44¢
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 4,03: 3,12¢
Total current liabilities 8,45 7,57
Long-Term Liabilities:
Warrant derivative liability 123,12! 230,06
Lease obligations and other Ic-term liabilities 764 88
Total liabilities 132,34: 237,73
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholder’ Deficit:
Common stock, £0.50 par value, unlimited authoriz&b,832,542 issued, 135,812,463 outstanding
at December 31, 2011; 106,856,731 issued, 106,B3@&6tstanding at December 31, 2( 113,32: 90,46¢
Additional paic-in capital 449,39: 206,71¢
Treasury stock; 20,079 shares at December 31, 20d 201( (217) (217)
Accumulated defici (568,459 (499,33)
Total stockholder deficit (5,962) (202,36
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' DEFICIT $ 126,37! $ 35,360

See the notes to the consolidated financial statesne
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A MARIN C ORPORATION PLC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE LOSS

Revenue:
Operating Expense

Research and developm:

General and administratiy

Total operating expens:

Operating los:
(Loss) gain on change in fair value of derivatiability
Interest expens
Interest incomt
Other (expense) income, r
Loss from operations before tax
(Provision for) benefit from income tax
Net and comprehensive la

Loss per basic and diluted she

Weighted average shar¢
Basic and dilutes

See the notes to the consolidated financial stat&sne

F-3

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
(In thousands, except share and per
share amounts)

$ — $ — $ —
21,60: 28,01« 20,89:
22,55¢ 17,08: 13,15:
44,16 45,10: 34,04
(44,16 (45,100 (34,049
(22,669  (205,15) 5,137
1) (19) (2,83
231 53 19¢
(10) 13C 33
(66,610  (250,09) (31,507
(2,516) 501 901

$(69,120  $(249,58)  $(30,600)
$ (059 $ (249 $ (0.79

130,24 100,23¢ 42,424
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ (DEFICIT) EQUITY

A MARIN C ORPORATION PLC

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010 and 2@
(in thousands, except share data)

At January 1, 2009

Shares issued under Ester amendr

Shares issued under Proseed agree

Shares issued in October private placen

Fair value of October 2009 warrant derivative
liability

Shares issued in repayment of bridge Ic

Transfer of fair value of bridge loan and Decem
2007 warrants from liabilities to equi

Stoclk-based compensatic

Loss and comprehensive Ic

At December 31, 200!

Exercise of warrant

Exercise of stock optior

Tax benefits realized from stock-based
compensatiol

Fair value of October 2009 warrants reclassed -
derivative liability to equity

Share issuances for servic

Stock-based compensatic

Loss and comprehensive Ic

At December 31, 201(

Exercise of warrant

Exercise of stock optior

Stock issued in January financi

Tax benefits realized from stock-based
compensatiol

Fair value of October 2009 warrants reclassed
derivative liability to equity

Share issuances for servic

Stoclk-based compensatic

Loss and comprehensive Ic

At December 31, 201:

See the notes to the consolidated financial statesne

Total
Shareholders’

Additional Treasury Accumulated

Common Common Paid-in (Deficit)

Shares Stock Capital Stock Deficit Equity
27,046,72 $ 25,66 $202,10° $ (217) $(219,13)) $ 8,41¢
1,315,78! 1,04¢ 75% — — 1,801
39,47: 31 20 — — 51
66,400,00 54,21: 8,041 — — 62,25
— — (47,10% — — (47,10%
3,999,991 3,26¢€ 334 — — 3,60(
— — 5,32¢ — — 5,32¢
— — 2,85¢ — — 2,85¢
- - = = (30,606) (30,606
98,801,98 84,21¢ 172,33¢ (217 (249,74, 6,591
6,344,13 4,90¢ 3,99¢ — — 8,90/
1,706,011 1,33¢ 2,30¢€ — — 3,64z
— — 54z — — 543
— — 22,31, — — 22,317
4,597 4 8 — — 12
— — 5,207 — — 5,207
— — — — (249,589 (249,589
106,856,73 90,46" 206,71¢ (217) (499,33) (202,36
12,888,36' 10,28¢ 8,41: — — 18,70z
2,273,22. 1,83: 3,261 — — 5,09¢
13,800,00! 10,72 87,93 — — 98,654
_ — 4,19¢ — — 4,19¢
— — 129,51° — — 129,517
14,22 11 60 — — 71
— — 9,29/ — — 9,29/
— — — — (69,126) (69,126)
135,832,564  $113,32.  $449,39. $ (217) $(568,45) $ (5,96
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile loss to net cash usegerating activities
Depreciation and amortizatic
Gain on sale of intellectual propel
Stocl-based compensatic
Stocl-based compensati—Ester
Stocl-based compensati—warrants
Excess tax benefit from stc-based award
Non-cash interes
Loss (gain) on changes in fair value of derivatiability
Deferred income taxe
Change in lease liabilit
Shares issued for servic
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Other current asse
Other noi-current assel
Accounts payable and other current liabilit
Net cash used in operating activit

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of equipme
Purchase of long term investme¢
Sale of lorazepar

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activi
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, net o$&etion cost
Proceeds from exercise of stock options, net ofstation cost
Proceeds from exercise of warrants, net of trarmacbsts
Proceeds on issuance of convertible ¢
Repayment of convertible de
Excess tax benefit from stc-based award
Repayment of finance leas

Net cash provided by financing activiti
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOI
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOI

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow informati
Cash paid during the year f
Interest

Income taxe:

Supplemental disclosure of r-cash items
Reclass of warrant liability to additional p-in capital

Reclass of additional pz-in capital to warrant liability
Conversion of bridge loar

Issuance of Ester Shar

Issuance of Proseed Sha

See notes to the consolidated financial statements.

A MARIN C ORPORATION PLC
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Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(in thousands)

$(69,12¢)  $(249,589)  $(30,60¢)
7€ 63 582

— — (700)
9,29¢ 5,207 2,85¢
— — 90z
(96) 5,71: 1,04(
(4,199 (549) —
— — 2,80¢
22,66¢ 205,15; (5,137)
(2,497 (1,697 (68¢)
(21) (589) (290

71 12 —
(774) 912 (68)
(592) — —
5,751 1,47¢ 897
(39,439 (33,87() (28,40¢)
(39¢) (23 (11€)
(1,650) — —
— — 70C
(2,04¢) (23 584
98,65¢ — 62,25!
5,09/ 3,64z —
18,70: 8,904 —
— — 5,60(
— — (2,000
4,19¢ 545 —
&) (12 (12
126,64 13,077 65,84:
85,16( (20,81¢) 38,01¢
31,44: 52,25¢ 14,23¢
$116,60: $ 31,44: $ 52,25¢
SN — $ 2 $ 12t
$ 761 $ 23C $ —
$129,51° $ 22,311 $ 5,32¢
$ — $ = $ 47,10¢
$  — $ — $ 3,60(
$ — $ = $ 1,84:
$  — $ — $ 51
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A MARIN C ORPORATION PLC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Nature of Business and Basis of Presentation
Nature of Business

Amarin Corporation plc, “Amarin” or the “Companyi§ a public limited company with its primary stotlarket listing in the United States on
the NASDAQ Global Market. Amarin was originally imporated in England as a private limited compamyiarch 1, 1989 under the
Companies Act 1985, and re-registered in Englara@blic limited company on March 19, 1993.

Amarin is a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical compfrcused on developing improved treatments fodicaascular disease by capitalizing on
its expertise in the field of lipid science and Kmown therapeutic benefits of essential fatty adidcardiovascular disease. The Company is
currently focusing its efforts on AMR101 (icosapetttyl), a prescription-only omega-3 fatty acidmgrising not less than 96% ultra pure
icosapent ethyl (ethyl-EPA).

The Company has evaluated subsequent events froeniber 31, 2011 through the date of the issuantieesé consolidated financial
statements and has determined that no materia¢gubst events have occurred, except as disclosed (gee footnote 16—Subsequent
Event) that would affect the information preseritethese consolidated financial statements ordaire additional disclosure.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemefntise Company and subsidiaries have been prepearadbasis which assumes that the
Company will continue as a going concern, whichtemplates the realization of assets and the setiisfaof liabilities and commitments in t
normal course of business. Prior to 2004, the Cawypaas in the business of selling a previous bioplaaeutical compound, which has since
been discontinued. The Company'’s current focus ithe development and commercialization of AMRhich is still under development
and not available for sale. However, the Compampoisconsidered a development stage businesse asl#ase and sale of the previous pro
represented the exit of the Company from the devetnt stage.

At December 31, 2011, the Company had cash andezpstalents of $116.6 million. The Company’s cditeded balance sheet also includes
a significant derivative liability (see footnote ®Afarrants and Derivative Liability) reflecting thaiif value of outstanding warrants to purchase
shares of the Company’s common stock. This lighid@n only be settled in shares of the Compangsksand, as such, would only result in
cash inflows upon the exercise of the warrants—antash outflow. Accordingly, this warrant derivatiNability presents neither a short nor
long-term claim on the liquid assets of the Company

On January 9, 2012, Amarin, through its whallned subsidiary Corsicanto Limited, a private tedicompany incorporated under the law
Ireland, completed a private placement of $150l0aniin aggregate principal amount of its 3.50%ea&ngeable senior notes due 2032
resulting in net proceeds to the Company of $144lBon. The notes are the senior unsecured ohbgatof Corsicanto and are guaranteed by
Amarin.

The Company believes its cash, including the netgeds from the January 2012 financing, will béiceht to fund its projected operations
at least the next twelve months which contempletesmercial preparation of AMR101, working capitatiaother general corporate activities.
This is based on managemeanturrent operational plans and activities at nbtenveels and does not assume any cash inflows frartnerships
warrant exercises or other dilutive or non-dilutfirancings in the long-term.
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(2) Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of the Company and its wholly-owned sulbsids. All intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated firerstatements in conformity with accounting pijohes generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make a&stiand assumptions that affect the reported aimofiassets and liabilities, disclosure

of contingent assets and liabilities at the datéheffinancial statements, and the reported amafmsvenues and expenses during the repc
period. Accounting estimates are based on histagiqaerience and other factors that are considexasbnable under the circumstances. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, defeditsat call with banks and short term highly ldjinstruments with remaining maturities at
the date of purchase of 90 days or less.

Property & Equipment

The Company provides for depreciation and amoitinaising the straight-line method by charges terafions in amounts that depreciate the
cost of the fixed asset over their estimated udefes. The estimated useful lives, by asset diassion, are as follows:

Asset Classification Useful Lives

Computer equipment and softws 3-5years

Furniture and fixture 5 years

Leasehold Improvemen Lesser of useful life or lease te

Upon retirement or sale of assets, the cost oadisets disposed and the related accumulated dejpvacre removed from the balance sheet
and any resulting gain or loss is credited or egpdrto operations. Repairs and maintenance cesexpensed as incurred. The Company
reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whesreavents or changes in circumstances indicatehibatarrying amount of such assets may
not be recoverable. Recoverability of these asseatstermined by comparing the forecasted undigealunet cash flows of the operation to
which the assets relate to their carrying amodimpairment is indicated, the assets are writtewrlto fair value. Fair value is determined
based on undiscounted forecasted cash flows oneepr values, depending on the nature of the assets

Research and Development Costs

The Company charges research and developmenttoagterations as incurred. Research and developexeenses are comprised of costs
incurred by the Company in performing researchdaklopment activities, including salary and besgfitock-based compensation expense;
laboratory supplies and other direct expensesraciual services, including clinical trial and pimaiceutical development costs; commercial
supply investment in its drug candidates; and siftecture costs, including facilities costs andrdetion expense.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognfeethe future tax consequences of differences betwthe carrying amounts and tax bases of
assets and liabilities and operating loss carryéods and other attributes using enacted rates tegexbe in effect when those differences
reverse. Valuation allowances are provided agaef&rred tax assets that are not more likely tleriabe realized.
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The Company provides reserves for potential paysefitax to various tax authorities or does nobgeize tax benefits related to uncertain
positions and other issues. Tax benefits for uagetax positions are based on a determinationhafther a tax benefit taken by the Company
in its tax filings or positions is more likely thawot to be realized, assuming that the matter &stjon will be decided based on its technical
merits. The Company’s policy is to record intesd penalties in the provision for income taxes.

Derivative Instruments

Derivative financial liabilities are recorded airfaalue, with gains and losses arising for charigdair value recognized in the statement of
operations at each period end while such instrusnam outstanding. If the Company issues shardis¢barge the liability, the derivative
financial liability is derecognized and common $&taend additional paid-in capital are recognizedtaissuance of those shares. The warrants
are valued using a Black-Scholes option pricing ei@d a Monte Carlo simulation depending on theireabf instrument.

If the terms of warrants that initially require thvarrant to be classified as a derivative finanligddilities lapse, the derivative financial liaib
is reclassified out of financial liabilities int@eity at its fair value on that date. At settlemdate, if the instruments are settled in shares the
carrying value of the warrants are derecognisedtiamsferred to equity at their fair value at thate. The cash proceeds received from
exercises of warrants are recorded in common sindkadditional paid-in capital.

Loss per Share

Basic net loss per share is determined by dividieigoss by the weighted average shares of comiock sutstanding during the period.
Diluted net loss per share is determined by digdiet loss by diluted weighted average sharesandstg. Diluted weighted average shares
reflects the dilutive effect, if any, of potentiatlilutive common shares, such as common stocloongtnd warrants calculated using the
treasury stock method and convertible notes usiadif-converted” method. In periods with reporteet operating losses, all common stock
options and warrants are deemed anti dilutive sii@hbasic net loss per share and diluted netdesshare are equal.

StockBased Compensation

Stock-based compensation cost is measured ataheé date, based on the fair value of the awardjsiretognized as compensation cost over
the requisite service period.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@mpany to credit risk consist primarily of cashl @ash equivalents. The Company maintains
substantially all of its cash and cash equivalenfmancial institutions believed to be of highedit quality.

Foreign Currency

All subsidiaries use the United States dollar asftimctional currency. Monetary assets and liabdlidlenominated in a foreign currency are
remeasured into United States dollars at year-gokdamge rates. Non-monetary assets and liabitaesed in a foreign currency are
remeasured into United States dollars using rdtegahange prevailing when such assets or liabdlitvere obtained or incurred, and expenses
are generally remeasured using rates of exchamgmifing when such expenses are incurred. Gainsossds from the remeasurement are
included in other (expense) income, net in the obitated financial statements of operations. Fangactions settled during the period, gains
and losses are included in other (expense) incaetan the consolidated statements of operatiomiei§n exchange gains and losses have not
been significant in the periods presented.
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Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs are initially capitalized deferred cost and amortized to interest expensgyule effective interest method over the
expected term of the related debt. Unamortized dsbince costs related to extinguishment of debéxpensed at the time the debt is
extinguished and recorded in other income (expéneesin the consolidated statements of operationamortized debt issuance costs are
recorded in other assets in the consolidated balsheets.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company provides disclosure of financial asaetkfinancial liabilities that are carried at feaue based on the price that would be
received upon sale of an asset or paid to traasliability in an orderly transaction between manbarticipants at the measurement date. Fair
value measurements may be classified based omtbherd of subjectivity associated with the inputéatio valuation of these assets and
liabilities using the following three levels:

Level 1—Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices irvaatiarkets for identical assets or liabilities tthet Company has the ability to access at the
measurement date.

Level 2—Inputs include quoted prices for similasets and liabilities in active markets, quotedgwsifor identical or similar assets or liabilities
in markets that are not active, inputs other thamted prices that are observable for the assédlaility (i.e., interest rates, yield curves, etc.)
and inputs that are derived principally from orrobiorated by observable market data by correlatiosther means (market corroborated
inputs).

Level 3—Unobservable inputs that reflect the Conyimastimates of the assumptions that market ppatits would use in pricing the asset or
liability. The Company develops these inputs basethe best information available, including itsrodata.

The following table presents information about @empany’s liability as of December 31, 2011 and®@tat is measured at fair value on a
recurring basis and indicates the fair value h@raiof the valuation techniques the Company utillitedetermine such fair value:

December 31, 2011

In thousands Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Asset:

Cash equivalent $ 39 $ 39 $— $ —

Liability:

Warrant derivative liability $123,12! $— $— $123,12!
December 31, 2010

In thousands Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Liability:

Warrant derivative liability $230,06! $— $— $230,06¢

The carrying amounts of cash, cash equivalentsuaits payable and accrued liabilities approximaievialue because of their short-term
nature.

The Company’s warrant derivative liability is cadiat fair value and is classified as Level 3 mfdir value hierarchy due to the use of
significant unobservable inputs. The initial failwe of the warrant derivative liability at the éaff issuance in October 2009 was determin:
be $48.3 million using the Black-Scholes optionuagion model applying the following assumptionyrigk-free rate of 2.37%, (ii) remaining
term of 5 years, (iii) no dividend yield, (iv) vaility of 119%, and (v) the stock price or the dafeneasurement.
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As of December 31, 2010, the fair value of the wmatrderivative liability was determined to be $23million using the Black-Scholes option
valuation applying the following assumptions: (gk-free rate of 1.52%, (ii) remaining term of 3.8 y&4jiii) no dividend yield (iv) volatility o
117%, and (v) the stock price or the date of meamant. The $210.9 million increase in the fair eatdi the warrants was recognized as a
$205.2 million loss on change in fair value of gative liability and $5.7 million compensation exige for change in fair value of warrants
issued to former employees, both amounts are iedinl the consolidated statement of operationth®year ended December 31, 2010. At
December 31, 2011, the fair value of the warranivdéve liability was determined to be $123.1 moill using the Black-Scholes option
valuation model applying the following assumptiofisrisk-free rate of 0.36%, (ii) remaining terrhz8 years, (iii) no dividend yield

(iv) volatility of 118%, and (v) the stock price ¢ime date of measurement. The $22.6 million in@éashe fair value of the warrants, net of
exercises, was recognized as a $22.7 million lasshange in fair value of derivative liability afi¢D.1) million compensation income for
change in fair value of warrants issued to fornmapleyees, both amounts are included in the cors@iistatement of operations for the year
ended December 31, 2011. The change in the faieval the warrant derivative liabilities is as @lls (in thousands):

June and
May 2008 Decembe
October July 200¢ Participation
2009 2007
Warrants Warrants Rights Warrants Totals

Balance at December 31, 20C $ — $ — $ 504 $ 53¢ $ 1,03i
Initial measurement, June and July 2009 warr — 2,80: — — 2,80
Initial measurement, October 2009 financing was: 47,10¢ — — — 47,10t
Initial measurement, October 2009 warrants issaed t

employee: 1,21¢( — — — 1,21(
(Gain) loss on change in fair value of derivatiiadbility (6,625) 1,51z (504) 47¢ (5,137%)
Compensation income for change in fair value of

warrants issued to former employze (170 (170
Transfers to equit — 4,31¢ — (1,019 (5,32§)
Balance at December 31, 20C $ 41,52( $ — $ — $ — $ 41,52(
Loss on change in fair value of derivative liakil 205,15: — — — 205,15:
Compensation expense for change in fair valt

warrants issued to former employt¢ 5,71 5,71
Transfers to equit (22,31) — — — (22,31))
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 230,06 $ — $ — $ — $ 230,06¢
Loss on change in fair value of derivative liail 22,66¢ — — — 22,66¢
Compensation income for change in fair value of

warrants issued to former employt¢ (96) (96)
Transfers to equit (129,51) — — — (129,51)
Balance at December 31, 201 $123,12! $ — $ — $ — $123,12¢

The fair value of the June and July 2009 warranivedgve liability, using a Monte Carlo valuationatiel, was determined to be $2.8 million at
initial measurement and $4.3 million at terminafiapplying the following assumptions: (i) risk-frestes of 2.35% and 2.55%, (ii) remaining
terms of 5.0 and 4.8 years, (iii) no dividend yjdig) volatility of 112%, and (v) the stock prios the date of measurement. The fair value of
the warrant derivative liability of $4.3 million waeclassified from liabilities during 2009 andlimed as a component of equity at
December 31, 2009.

The fair value of the December 2007 warrant deirrediability, using a Monte Carlo valuation modelas determined to be $2.5 million at
initial measurement and $1.0 million at terminafiapplying the following
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assumptions: (i) risk-free rates of 3.32% and 1.3@%remaining terms of 5.0 and 3.0 years, {iiQ) dividend yield, (iv) volatility of 113% and
131%, and (v) the stock price on the date of messant. The fair value of the warrant derivativilisy of $1.0 million was reclassified from
liabilities during 2009 and included as a compora#requity at December 31, 2009.

The fair value of the December 2008 derivativeiligh using a Monte Carlo valuation model, waseateatined to be $8.2 million at initial
measurement and $0.5 million at termination, apgythe following assumptions: (i) rigkee rates of 2.24 to 0.04%, (ii) remaining termg.6
and 0.2 years, (iii) no dividend yield, (iv) vol#ti of 90% and 131% and (v) the stock price ondiage of measurement. The fair value of the
warrant derivative liability of $0.5 million wasaegnized in the statement of operations as a gafaiovalue of change in derivative liabilities
at December 31, 2009.

Segment and Geographical Information

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 arfy] #89Company has reported its business as a&giegbrting segment. The Company’s
chief decision maker, who is the Chief Executivéi€af, regularly evaluates the Company on a codatdid basis.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

From time to time, new accounting pronouncemergdsaued by FASB and are adopted by the Compaaf/tas specified effective date. The
Company believes that the impact of other recaafiyed but not yet adopted accounting pronouncenvetitnot have a material impact on
consolidated financial position, results of openasi, and cash flows, or do not apply to the Com|samyerations.

(3) Other Current Assets
Other current assets consist of the following atdheber 31:

2011 2010
(in thousands)

Research and development credits receivabl $ — $ 351

Prepaid expenses and otl 1,837 712

$1,83 $1,06°

(1) Represents refunds receivable in the U.K. for neteand development expenditures incurred in 2@@9aarin Neuroscience Ltd (ANL

(4) Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, plant and equipment consist of the follmnat December 31:

2011 2010
(in thousands)

Leasehold improvemen $ 42 $ 14

Computer equipmet 201 163

Furniture and fixture 77 26

32C 202

Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (17€) (115)
Construction in Progres 28¢€ —

$ 432 $ 88

Depreciation expense for the years ended Decenih@031, December 31, 2010, and December 31, 268%@.1 million, $0.1 million, $0.6
million, respectively.
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(5) Ester Asset Purchase

In December 2007, the Company purchased 100% adfutstanding share capital of Ester NeuroscientggHster). In conjunction with the
purchase of Ester, Amarin primarily received tights to Estes intellectual property related to EN101. The Estansaction was accounted

as an asset purchase with the purchase price tingsi$ an upfront payment of $5.2 million, $10.@lmn in common stock (with a fair value

of $9.0 million) and a variable contingent paymeratyable in common stock, of up to $5.0 millionséé on the achievement of a performance
milestone called Milestone la. The achievement déd&fone la was considered probable and, as at rédselCompany recorded a stock based
liability with a fair value of $4.8 million. The stk based liability was remeasured at each regpdaie with changes in the fair value recorded
as compensation expense (income) as a componeggedrch and development expense. The fair valtiésliability was determined to be
approximately $3.4 million at December 31, 2007 #relCompany recognized a reduction of compensatipense of $1.4 million for the
period ended December 31, 2007. The fair valudisfliability was determined to be approximately@®aillion at December 31, 2008 and the
company recognized a reduction of compensationresgef $2.5 million for the period ended Decemligr2D08.

In June 2009, the Company amended the terms afdsisition agreement with the original sharehadgrEster. Under the terms of this
amendment, Amarin was released from all researdidamnelopment diligence obligations contained andhiginal agreement and authorized to
seek a partner to continue the research and develapfor EN101. The amendment also provided thatfature payment obligations payable
by Amarin to the former shareholders of Ester wcagdnade only out of income received from poteq#atners. Under the terms of this
amendment agreement, the former Ester sharehdideesthe option of reacquiring the original shapitl of Ester if Amarin is unable to
successfully partner EN101. In August 2009, in eation with this amendment agreement, the Compatiled the liability and issued
1,315,789 common shares to the former Ester shigeisowith a fair value on the settlement dataggroximately $1.8 million. The $0.9
million difference between the $1.8 million fairlua of the common shares issued at settlementren$it.9 million fair value of the stock
based liability at the settlement date was recaghas compensation expense within research andogevent for the period ended

December 31, 2009.

(6) Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities
Accrued expenses consist of the following at Decamd4d, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
(in thousands)
Payroll and payrc-related expense $1,12( $1,631
Research and development exper 1,132 34C
Income taxes payab — 58E
All other 1,781 572

$4,03¢ $3,12¢

(7) Warrants and Derivative Liability

The Company had 21,106,363 warrants to purchasenoconshares outstanding at December 31, 2011 aighted-average exercise price of
$1.48, as summarized in the following table:

Issue Datt¢ Amount Exercise Price Expiration Date
4/27/07 17,50( 17.9C 1/17/1¢
6/1/07 55,731 7.2C 5/31/1:
12/5/07 516,30( 1.17 12/3/1z
7/31/0¢ 138,888- 1.0C 7/30/1¢
7/31/0¢ 1,666,00! 1.0C 7/30/1¢
10/16/0¢ 18,064,88 1.5C 10/15/1«
10/16/0¢ 647,05( 1.5C 10/15/1«
21,106,36 $ 1.4¢
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October 2009 Warrants

On October 16, 2009, The Company completed a #dlion private placement with both existing andinievestors resulting in $62.3 millic

in net proceeds and an additional $3.6 million fiordge notes converted in conjunction with theate placement (see footnote 8—Debt). In
consideration for the $62.3 million in net cashqa®ds Amarin issued 66.4 million units, each uaitsisting of (i) one ADS (representing one
ordinary share) at purchase price of $1.00 and f)arrant with a five year term to purchase 0.&r0ADS at an exercise price of $1.50 per
ADS. In consideration for the conversion of $3.8lion of convertible bridge notes, Amarin issue@ #illion units, each unit consisting of

(i) one ADS (representing one ordinary share) @mtrahase price of $0.90 and (ii) a warrant witliva f{year term to purchase 0.5 of an ADS an
exercise price of $1.50 per ADS. The total numbevarrants issued in conjunction with the financimgs 35.2 million.

The warrants issued in connection with the Oct@®d89 financing contained a pricing variability fees which provided for an increase to the
exercise price if the exchange rate between theddlfar and British pound adjusts such that theraveis could be exercised at a price less
the £0.5 par value of the common stock — thaf ibiel exchange rate exceeded U.S. $3.00 per frlihgt Due to the potential variable nature
of the exercise price, the warrants are not cons@lt be indexed to the Company’s common stockoAdingly, the warrants do not qualify
for the exception to classify the warrants withijuity and are classified as a derivative liabilifyhe initial fair value of these warrants was
determined to be approximately $47.1 million uding Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Compaagporded the warrant issuances as a
reduction to additional paid-in capital.

In conjunction with the October 2009 financing, empany issued an additional 0.9 million warraatthree former officers. The initial fair
value of the warrant derivative liability assochtgith these warrants was determined to be $1.Romilising the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. The Company recorded a warrant derivatafgillty of $1.2 million for these warrants and aresponding charge to compensation
expense of $1.2 million for the period ended Decendi, 2009.

The fair value of this warrant derivative liability remeasured at each reporting period, with chairgfair value recognized in the statemer
operations. The fair value of the warrants at Ddzem31, 2009 was determined to be approximatelySbdilllion using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model and the Company recognizedia gf approximately $6.6 million for a change &irfvalue of warrant derivative liability
and a reduction to compensation expense of $0l®mfbr the period ended December 31, 2009.

Although the warrants contain a pricing variabil@ature, the number of warrants issuable remaxesl f Therefore, the maximum number of
common shares issuable as a result of the Octd@¥r @rivate placement is 36.1 million. During theay ended December 31, 2010,
approximately 5.3 million of these October 2009 naats were exercised, resulting in gross proceetiset Company of approximately $8.0
million. Upon exercise, the fair value of the wanrtsaexercised is remeasured and reclassified framant liability to additional paid-in capital.
The $22.3 million fair value of the exercised watsawas transferred from warrant liability to adutial paid in capital with the change in the
fair value on the exercise date recognized in theesient of operations. The fair value of the watrliability at December 31, 2010 for the
remaining warrants was determined to be approxim&@30.1 million. The Company recognized a lossbange in fair value of derivative
liability of $205.2 million and compensation experts $5.7 million for the period ended DecemberZ110.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, approgigna®.1 million of these October 2009 warrantsevexercised, resulting in gross
proceeds to the Company of approximately $18.lionillUpon exercise, the fair value of the warraxsrcised is remeasured and reclassified
from warrant liability to additional paid-in capitd he $129.5 million fair value of the exercisedmants was transferred from warrant liability
to additional paid in capital with the change ie fhir value on the exercise date recognized irsthizment of operations. The fair value of the
warrant liability at December 31, 2011 for the rémmeg warrants was determined to be approximat&B3%L million. The Company recogni:

a loss on change in fair value of derivative ligpibf $22.7 million and compensation income of$illion for the period ended December
2011.
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June and July 2009 Warrants

In conjunction with the $2.6 million private placent of 8% convertible bridge loans due August 2ie03une 2009 the Company issued
1,444,442 warrants with an exercise price of $1i@0uly 2009, the Company completed a second fripacement of $3.0 million of 8%
convertible bridge loans due September 30, 2008omjunction with the July loan (i) $0.1 million tfe June 2009 bridge notes were repaid,
(i) the maturity date of the June 2009 bridge ratas extended to September 30, 2009, (iii) the g2om cancelled and reissued 1,388,887 of
the June 2009 warrants with an exercise price df@sand (iv) the Company issued an additional 1@ warrants with an exercise price of
$1.00.

The initial fair value of the warrants issued impgmction with the June 2009 and July 2009 bridgnt was approximately $1.3 million and
$1.5 million, respectively. Due to the lack of &efil conversion feature, the warrants were clasksigea derivative and the fair value of these
warrants of $2.8 million was recorded in warrantviive liability at the date of the transactiavith the remaining fair value of the proceeds
received of $2.8 million recorded as loan payable difference between the loan payable of $2.8anibnd the face value of the bridge notes
of $5.6 million was recognized over the remainiagt of the loan as interest expense of $2.8 milléond is included in the statement of
operations for the period ended December 31, 2009.

In conjunction with the $70.0 million October 20pAvate placement, $3.6 million of the $5.5 milliontstanding bridge loan notes were
converted into 3,999,996 common shares and nevamarwere issued to purchase 1,999,996 commonsshbam exercise price of $1.50. On
October 16, 2009, the date of the conversion,direvilue of the June and July 2009 warrant dexigdiability was $4.3 million. The resulting
increase in the fair value of the bridge loan watsaf $1.5 million was recognized as a loss omgkan fair value of derivative liabilities
during the period ended December 31, 2009. At Gutdb09, the number and value of the underlyingeshbecame fixed and determinable,
therefore, the warrants were no longer classifeedexivative liability and were remeasured to failue and reclassified from derivative liabi
to additional paid-in capital with the change ie fair value on the exercise date recognized irstatement of operations.

December 2007 Warrants

In conjunction with a registered direct offeringrecember 2007, the Company issued approximatélynillion warrants to purchase common
stock at an initial exercise price of $4.80 pershwhich was later adjusted to $1.17 based orica protection provision in the warrant. Duge
the pricing variability feature, the warrants welassified as derivative liabilities. The initiaif value of these warrants at December 31, 2007
was calculated to be approximately $2.1 millioneTarrant liability was re-measured at each repgrtiate with subsequent changes in fair
value recognized in the statement of operations.

At December 31, 2008, the fair value of these wasravas $0.5 million and the Company recognizedia gn change in fair value of
derivative liability of approximately $1.6 milliofor the period ended December 31, 2008, due tdélsecase in the fair value of these warrants
from December 31, 2007.

At December 6, 2009, in accordance with the Decerdd@7 purchase agreement, the pricing varialfiture of these warrants expired and
the number and value of the underlying shares bedeamd. As such, the warrants were no longer a@rsid a derivative liability and the fair
value of the warrants at December 6, 2009 was méted to be $1.0 million. The resulting increaséhia fair value of the warrants of $0.5
million was recognized as a loss on change inviaiie of derivative liability for the period endB@&cember 31, 2009, and the $1.0 million fair
value of the warrants was reclassified from deiealiability to additional paid-in capital.

Pre-December 2007 Warrants

The Company issued several warrants in January, 2088 2007, June 2007 and November 2007. These baen classified as equity
instruments and have been included in the Compamyisolidated balance sheet within equity at Deeerth, 2011 and 2010.
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(8) Debt
As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company hdsbrrowings.

June and July 2009 Bridge Notes

In June 2009 Amarin completed a $2.6 million prevptacement of 8% convertible bridge loans due Au@009. In conjunction with the June
2009 bridge loan, the Company issued 1,444,442antgwith an exercise price of $1.00. In July 2088,Company completed a second
private placement of $3.0 million of 8% convertilbiédge loans due September 30, 2009. In conjumetith the July 2009 bridge loan (i) $0.1
million of the June 2009 bridge notes were rep@idthe maturity date of the June 2009 bridge sotas extended to September 30, 2009,
(iii) the Company cancelled and reissued 1,388 8fe June 2009 warrants with an exercise prickldd0 and (iv) issued an additional
1,666,663 warrants with an exercise price of $1s@@ Note 7 — Warrants). The warrants were claskis a derivative and the fair value of
these warrants of $2.8 million was recorded asm@améderivative liability, with the remaining famlue of the proceeds received of $2.8
million recorded as loan payable. The differencevieen the loan payable of $2.8 million and the femleie of the bridge notes of $5.6 million
was recognized over the remaining term of the kmimterest expense of $2.8 million, and is inctlishethe statement of operations for the
period ended December 31, 2009.

In conjunction with the $70.0 million October 20pAvate placement, $3.6 million of the $5.5 milliontstanding bridge loan notes were
converted into 3,999,996 common stock and new witsn&ere issued to purchase 1,999,996 common shbassexercise price of $1.50. The
holders of the remaining bridge loans elected teehheir principal of $1.9 million and accrued irgst of $0.1 million which was repaid in ci
in 2009.

(99 Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation
The Company is, from time to time, subject to ditsglarising in the normal course of business. Wiitienate results of any such disputes

cannot be predicted with certainty, at Decembe2811, there were no asserted claims against thgy&ay which in the opinion of
management, would have a material effect on theaaated financial statements.

Operating Leases

The Company leases office space and office equiporeder operating and capital leases. Future minminaase payments under these leas
of December 31, 2011 are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31, Operating Capital
2012 $ 55€ $ 7
2013 46t 7
2014 267 7
Total $ 1,28¢ 21
Less: interes 2
Total principal obligation: 19
Less: current portio __ 6
Long-term capital leas $ 13

On November 28, 2011, the Company entered intaselagreement for 4,327 net useable square fefficaf space in Groton, Connecticut.
The Lease commenced on November 28, 2011, with eaobligations to begin on the later of January?lA 2 or the date that certain
improvements are completed (the “Commencement
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Date”). The Lease shall terminate on the last daii@month in which the third anniversary of thendnencement Date occurs, but may be
extended by Amarin for a period of three years. &fritle Lease, Amarin will pay monthly rent of appnoately $8,500 for the first three years
and, if Amarin chooses to extend the lease, mom#nywould increase 3% in each of years four, find six, respectively.

On September 30, 2011, the Company entered indgaement for 320 square feet of office spaceRar@broke House, Upper Pembroke
Street 28-32 in Dublin, Ireland. The agreement hedgavember 1, 2011 and terminates on October 312 B0t can be extended automatically
for successive one year periods. Monthly rent [raximately €2,700 (approximately $3,500). The agrent can be terminated by either party
with three months prior written notice.

In May 2011, the Company entered into an agreefoe®, 747 square feet of office space in Bedminstadr Monthly rent is approximately
$21,931. The agreement began July 1, 2011 andrtetes on June 30, 2014. The agreement can be &ediby either party with six months
prior written notice. In December 2011, the Compbkeaged an additional 2,142 square feet in the $aca¢ion under the same terms as the
previous lease.

As previously disclosed in Amarin’s Annual Repontfeorm 10-K filed on March 16, 2011 for the yeadeth December 31, 2010, Amarin
Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limited, a subsidiary ofakim, previously gave notice of its intent to tematie the lease agreement for the Commany’
offices at Block 3, The Oval, Shelbourne Road, Dub| effective as of January 2012. This lease teaninated in December 2011.

On November 1, 2008 the Company entered into & tyear operating lease for office space in Mys€lit, This lease expired on October 31,
2011.

Total rent expense during the years ended 2011 a0d 2009 was approximately $0.5 million, $0.3ioml and $0.3 million, respectively.

Lease Liability

In December 2005 the Company ceased using theecffiace in Ely, Cambridgeshire. Amarin is obligategay rent, service charges and rates
to the end of the lease, which expires in Noven2i®d#. The premises have been sublet through Nove?itid. Liabilities for exited lease
facilities at December 31, 2011 and 2010 were $fllion and $0.1 million respectively, and are indéd on the consolidated balance sheet
under accrued expenses and other long-term liigisilit

Royalty and Milestone Obligations
The Company is party to certain milestone and tgyabligations under several product developmentagents, as follows:

* The 2010 supply agreement with the Company’s exjsiapan-based supplier: (i) a one-time non-refoledaayment of $0.5
million is due to the supplier upon the first markg approval of AMR101 in the United States (figtCompany is subject to
minimum supply purchase commitments; and (iiih& Company is not successful in obtaining NDA apatéor AMR101, a
penalty equal to the facility expansion costs inediby the supplier to meet the supply demandstonexceed $5.0 million, less a
profits paid to the supplier for purchased matenaider the existing agreeme

» The Company signed two agreements in 2011 forupplg of APl materials for AMR101. These agreemgmts/ide access 1
additional API supply that is incremental to supfslym its existing Japan-based API supplier. Tregreements include
requirements for the suppliers to qualify their enils and facilities. The Company anticipates iriag certain costs associated
with the qualification of product produced by thesgpliers. Following FDA approvals of AMR101, teesgreements include
annual purchase levels to enable Amarin to mairgaatusivity with eact
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respective supplier, and to prevent potential teatidon of the agreements. Because the Companydtgenobtained FDA approv
for AMR101, no liability has been recorded. The 28Lpply agreements also includes (i) developnesg tip to a maximum of
$0.5 million (ii) material commitments of up to $5million for initial raw materials, which will beredited against future API
purchases, and is refundable to Amarin if the dapplloes not successfully develop and qualify tid By a certain date and (iii) a
raw material purchase commitment of $1.1 milli

» Concurrent with the agreement with a supplier nateolve for commercial supply, Amarin agreed to makencontrolling minorit
share equity investment in the supplier of up tB%$8illion. In July 2011, the Company invested $hiflion under this agreement,
which has been included in other long term assetsaacounted for under the cost method at DeceBhe2011.

» The 2009 Lorazepam sale agreement with Elan, whdeglElan did not assume any obligations undeladed Neuroste
development agreement and, as a result, Amarimeeta potential obligation to make two milestomagmpents to Neurostat,
contingent upon future events: (i) a $0.2 milliayment if the drug is administered to human subjbgtElan and (ii) a $0.2 millic
payment if the drug is tested by Elan in an effjcsiudy. During 2011 the Company was notified thatfirst milestone was
completed and $0.2 million was paid in cash in Get®2011

* Under the 2004 share repurchase agreement withalekdmited, in connection with commercializatiohAMR101 for
cardiovascular indications, prior to the end of 2@ie Company is required to pay potential royslteea former employee of
Laxdale of 1% on net sales up to £100 million (agpnately $155 million at December 31, 2011); 0.fsf%net sales between
£100 million (approximately $155 million at Deceml3d, 2011) and £500 million (approximately $773liom at December 31,
2011); and 0.25% for sales in exces£500 million (approximately $773 million at Decemisdr, 2011)

» In addition, under this same agreement with Laxtatdted, upon receipt of marketing approval in thés. and/or Europe for the
first indication for AMR101 (or first indication afny product containing Amarin Neuroscience intglial property acquired from
Laxdale Limited in 2004), the Company must makeggregate stock or cash payment to the former sblglers of Laxdale
Limited (at the sole option of each of the sell@isE7.5 million (approximately $11.6 million at Bember 31, 2011) for each of the
two potential marketing approvals (i.e. £15 millioaximum, or approximately $23.2 million at Decem®&, 2011). In addition,
upon receipt of a marketing approval in the U.SEorope for a further indication of AMR101 (or foetr indication of any other
product using Amarin Neuroscience intellectual emty), the Company must make an aggregate stocisir payment (at the sole
option of each of the sellers) of £5 million (apgroately $7.7 million at December 31, 2011) for leat the two potential market
approvals (i.e£10 million maximum, or approximately $15.5 millia December 31, 2011

The Company has no provision for any of the obiayes above since the amounts are either not prelmt#stimable at December 31, 2011.
The royalty obligation noted above terminates ondbeber 31, 2012.

(10) Equity

Common stock
In January 2011, Amarin sold 13.8 million commoarsls to both existing and new investors at a @ik .60 per share, resulting in gross
proceeds of $104.9 million and net proceeds of B&dllion.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coyniganed 2,273,221 shares as a result of the egen€istock options, resulting in gross
proceeds of $5.2 million and net proceeds of $5ltlom. In addition the Company issued 12,888,368rss as a result of the exercise of
warrants, resulting in gross proceeds of $19.0oniland net proceeds of $18.7 million.

On October 16, 2009, the Company completed a $70li@n private placement with both existing andanievestors resulting in $62.3 million
in net proceeds and an additional $3.6 million frloridge notes converted in
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conjunction with the private placement. In consadien for the $62.3 million in net proceeds Amassued 66.4 million units, each unit
consisting of (i) one ADS (representing one ordjrglrare) at purchase price of $1.00 and (ii) aavarwith a five year term to purchase 0.5 of
an ADS at an exercise price of $1.50 per ADS.

In conjunction with the $70.0 million October 20p8vate placement, $3.6 million of the $5.5 milliontstanding bridge loan notes were
converted into 3,999,996 shares of common stocknamdwarrants were issued to purchase 1,999,996noonshares at an exercise price of
$1.50.

In October 2009, the Company issued 39,473 comrhares pursuant to an agreement with Proseed Chfaitdings, for a success fee related
to the settlement of the Ester milestone la amemiime

In June 2009, the Company amended the terms adfgisition agreement with the original sharehddadrEster. Under the terms of this
amendment, Amarin was released from all researdtdanelopment diligence obligations contained edhiginal agreement and authorized to
seek a partner for EN101. In connection with tmeadment agreement, in August 2009 the Compangds$1815,789 common shares to the
former Ester shareholders, with a fair value onstsilement date of approximately $1.8 million.

(11) Income Taxes

As of December 31, 2011, interest and penaltiegedlto any uncertain tax positions have beeniifgignt. The Company recognizes interest
and penalties related to uncertain tax positiorthénprovision for income taxes. The total amodniroecognized tax benefits that would aff
the Company’s effective tax rate if recognizedis0$million as of December 31, 2011, compared t& $fillion as of December 31, 2010.

The following is a reconciliation of the total anmdsi of unrecognized tax benefits for the years dmdlecember 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)
Beginning uncertain tax benef $55¢ $304 $ 4¢
Current yee—increase: 43¢ 254 25€
Current yee—decrease — — —
Ending uncertain tax benefi $997 $55¢ $30<4

The Company files income tax returns in the U.®lahd and United Kingdom. The Company remainsesihp tax examinations in the
following jurisdictions at December 31, 2011:

Jurisdiction Tax Years

United State: 200¢€-2011
Ireland 200¢-2011
United Kingdom 201(¢-2011

The Company expects gross liabilities of $48,008xoire in 2012.

The components of loss from operations before taxere as follows at December 31:

2011 2010 2009

(In thousands)
United State: $ 1,01¢ $ 1,98i $ 16z
Ireland and United Kingdot (67,629 (252,07) (31,669
$(66,61( $(250,09( $(31,507)
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The expense (benefit) from income taxes showneratttcompanying consolidated statements of opegtionsists of the following for fiscal

2011, 2010 and 2009:

Current:
Federe-U.S.
State-U.S.
United Kingdom
Total Current
Deferred:
Federe-U.S.
State-U.S.
Ireland and United Kingdot
Change in valuation allowan
Total Deferrec

2011 2010
(In thousands)

$ 3,90¢ $ 1,06¢
1,101 122
$ 5,00¢ $1,19(
(1,936 (1,609
(557) (87)
(5,56€) (6,035)
5,56¢ 6,03¢
$(2,497) $(1,691)
$ 2,51¢ $ (501)

2009

The expense (benefit) from income taxes differsifthe amount computed by applying the statutorgrme tax rate to income before taxes

to the following for fiscal 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Benefits from taxes at statutory ri
Rate differentia

Research credit

Change in valuation reserv
Permanent & othe

Warrant derivative liabilitie:

Other

2011 2010

(In thousands)

$(16,657) $(62,529)
3,952 3,871

= (1,019
7,12(C 6,03t
2,20¢ 17
5,64: 52,761
244 352

$ 251¢ $ (501

2009

$(7,877)
1,94¢

(897)
3,54(
3,43:

(1,406)
361

$ (901)

The tax residency of Amarin Corporation plc migdateom the United Kingdom (UK) to Ireland in Ap&008. As a result of the migration,
unutilized UK trading losses at the date of mignatare no longer available for offset against téxabofits. The Company is subject to
corporate tax rate in Ireland of 25% for ntbading activities and 12.5% for trading activiti€®r the years ended December 31, 2011, 201
2009, the Company applied the statutory corpoeatedte of 25% for Amarin Corporation plc, reflectithe non-trading tax rate in Ireland.
However, for Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limjtadvholly-owned subsidiary of Amarin Corporatide,ghe Company applied the 12.5%

Irish trading tax rate.

The income tax effect of each type of temporarfedénce comprising the net deferred tax asset e¢mber 31 is as follows:

Deferred tax asset
Net operating losse
Stock based compensati
Depreciatior
Tax credits
Other reserves and accrued liabilit
Net deferred tax ass
Less: valuation allowanc
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2011

2010

(In thousands)

$ 32,84:
5,70¢

40

6

53
38,64¢

(33,379
$ 5,267

$ 27,17:

2,991
132
30
422

30,75:

(27,979
$ 2,77
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The Company assesses whether it is more-likely-ttwrthat the Company will realize its deferred é@sets. The Company determined that it
was more-likely-than-not that the Irish, UK, ancalsi net operating losses and the related defeavedssets would not be realized in future
periods and a full valuation allowance has beewigeal for all periods.

The Company has combined Irish, UK, and Israeliopetrating loss carryforwards of $175.7 million,ighbegin to expire in 2011. In additi
the Company has available U.S. Federal tax cregiyforwards of $1.2 million and state tax creditrgforwards of $1.4 million. These
carryforwards which will expire between 2028 an@@@nay be used to offset future taxable incomanyf. The Company believes that net
operating losses attributable to Ester of $12.0ianilare not likely to be realized in the future.

(12) Stock Incentive Plans and Stock Based Conmsation

On April 29, 2011 the Board, upon the recommendadiothe Remuneration Committee, adopted the 2@ddkSncentive Plan (“2011 Plan”),
which was approved by the Company’s shareholdedunl12, 2011. The 2011 Plan replaced the Compa?f02 Stock Option Plan (“2002
Plan”), which expired on January 1, 2012. The maximmumber of the Company’s Ordinary Shares of £8dh or any ADS, as to be issu
under the 2011 Plan shall not exceed the sum 8tFinillion newly authorized Shares availabledarard and (ii) the number of Shares that
remained available for grants under the Compan§@22Plan and (iii) the number of Shares underlyiven outstanding awards under the 2002
Plan that could be subsequently forfeited, candefi&pire or are otherwise terminated. The awastadk options (both incentive and non-
qualified options) and restricted stock units, amérds of unrestricted Shares to Directors are tecn The 2011 Plan is administered by the
Remuneration Committee of our Board of Directord arpires on July 12, 2021.

In addition to the grants under the 2011 Plan, endbnber 16, 2011, the Company granted nonquasfisek options to an employee to
purchase 600,000 shares of the Company'’s ordiremes with a 10-year term and an exercise pricaleéqu6.35 per share, the closing price
of the Company’s American Depositary Receipts engiant date. Twenty-five percent of the optionstwm the first anniversary of the grant
date with the remaining seventy-five percent ta vatably over the subsequent 36-month period,estihp continued employment with the
Company. These grants were made pursuant to arogmeht agreement on terms consistent with the Z04A.

Under the terms of the 2011 Plan, options are ésaste at various periods and expire as set fartheé grant document. In the case where an
incentive stock option is granted, the maximum eatfn date is not later than 10 years from the ddgrant. The following table summarizes
all stock option activity for the year ended Decem®l, 2011:

Weighted Weighted
Average Aggregate
Number of Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Term Value
(in thousands, except for per share amounts)
Outstanding January 1, 20 10,02¢ $ 2.6¢
Granted 4,44¢ 10.5:
Cancelled/Expire! (329) 16.4:
Exercisec (2,279 2.21
Outstanding, December 31, 2C 11,87 $ 5.3¢ 8.68 year $40,47¢
Exercisable, December 31, 20 3,49¢ $ 2.6¢ 8.09 year $17,97:
Vested and Expected to Vest, December 31, : 11,78 $ 5.32 8.68 year $40,25(

Available for future grant at December 31, 2( 2,231
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The weighted average fair value of the stock optigranted during the year ended December 31, 201D and 2009 was $8.61, $2.21, and
$1.12, respectively.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Coynreareived cash of $5.2 million from the exercisemtions. The intrinsic value of
options exercised during fiscal 2011 was $11.9iemiland $10.3 million during fiscal 2010. As of @aeber 31, 2011 and 2010, there was
$36.9 million and $9.6 million of unrecognized dtdzased compensation expense related to unvestekd gption share-based compensation
arrangements granted under the Company'’s stockdgmans. This expense is expected to be recogoizeda weighted-average period of
approximately 2.5 years. There was an impact d $dllion, on the presentation in the consolidagtatement of cash flows relating to excess
tax benefits on the federal level that have beahzed as a reduction in taxes payable for the gaded December 31, 2010. The Company
recognizes compensation expense for the fair valtifsse awards which have graded vesting oreégstrline basis. There were no option
exercises during fiscal year 2009. The followinil¢gpresents the stock-based compensation expelased to option awards for the period
ended December 31:

2011 2010 2009
(in thousands)
Research and developm $1,464 $1,53¢ $1,481
General and administrati\ 7,83( 3,67: 1,37¢
Stock-based compensation expel $9,29/ $5,20i $2,85¢

The fair value of options on the date of grant estsmated using the Black-Scholes option pricingleloUse of a valuation model requires
management to make certain assumptions with regpsetected model inputs. Expected stock pricatility was calculated based on the
historical volatility of the Company’s common stomker the expected life of the option. The expetifedvas determined based on the
expected holding period of an industry peer groug i@ lack of history of employee exercises. Thk-fiee interest rate is based on zero-
coupon U.S. Treasury securities with a maturityntapproximating the expected life of the optiothat date of grant. No dividend yield has
been assumed as the Company does not currentlgiiegnds on its common stock.

Employee stock options granted prior to June 3092fenerally vested over a three-year service geEmployee stock options granted after
June 30, 2009 generally vest over a four-year semperiod and all stock options are settled byigbeance of new shares. Compensation
expense recognized for all option grants is netstiimated forfeitures and is recognized over thardw respective requisite service periods.

For 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company used theaisipassumptions to estimate the fair value of stiesed payment awards:

2011 2010 2009
Risk free interest rate 2.03%- 2.56% 1.5%- 3.1% 2.5%- 3.0%
Expected dividend yiel 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected option life (year: 6.25 5.75- 6.25 5.75- 6.25
Expected volatility 105%- 112% 105%- 110% 105%- 110%

(13) Defined Contribution Plans

The Company sponsored a defined contribution placértain of its employees and makes availablelld plan for its U.S. employees to
which it made contributions in prior years. Contitibns made by the Company for the years endedeee31, 2011, 2010 and 2009
amounted to $-0-, $21,000, and $306,000, respégtive
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(14) Related Party Transactions
October 2009 Private Placement

Several of Amarin’s current and former directord &mds connected with them purchased approxim&g&§ million of its ADSs (in the form
of common stock) in the October 2009 private plagetmincluding: (i) 17 million ADSs purchased byfls managed by Abingworth LLP,
where Dr. Joseph Anderson, a Director of Amarim partner; (i) 7 million ADSs purchased by Orbdn®dvisors LLC, where Dr. Carl L.
Gordon, a Director of Amarin, is a General Partfi@);7 million ADSs purchased by Sofinnova VerguPartners VII, L.P., where Dr. James |.
Healy, a Director of Amarin, is a Managing Gendtattner; and (iv) 5 million ADSs purchased by FaimHealthcare Partners Fund 1,

L.P. Fountain Healthcare Partners Ltd. is the &daeral Partner of Fountain Healthcare Partnerd Euh.P. Dr Manus Rogan is a Managing
Partner of Fountain Healthcare Partners Ltd. anid Dacember 2011 was a non-executive director wiahin. In addition, for every ADS
purchased, the investor received warrants to psecBeb of an ADS. Of the $123.1 million warrantidative liability at December 31, 2011,
the fair value of the warrants held by the curaamd former directors of the Company and their eelanvestment funds amounted to $102.0
million.

June 2009 Convertible Bridge Notes

Sunninghill Ltd, a company controlled by Dr. Johlin@x, a non-executive director of Amarin until ©ber 2009, purchased $2.0 million of
the Company’s June 2009 convertible bridge loamns$in0 million of the Company’s July 2009 convegibridge loans. In addition,

Mr. Thomas Lynch, then an executive director of Aimgpurchased $0.3 million of the Company’s Ju82bridge loans. These loans were
retired in October 2009 in conjunction with thevatte placement.

Elan

In February 2007 Amarin signed a development atehbe agreement with Elan Pharma Internationald_giibsidiary of Elan Corporation, |
(Elan), licensing the rights to develop and magkaeasal formulation of lorazepam (NanoCrystal ). $ttane Cooke, chief financial officer of
Elan is related to Mr. Alan Cooke, former presidenfimarin. In 2009 we sold all rights in lorazepéiack to Elan for $0.7 million, which has
been included in other income at December 31, 2009.

Transactions with Directors and Executive officers

Mr. Thomas Lynch

In March 2007 Amarin’s Remuneration Committee apptban agreement between the Company and Dalriadf@t consultancy services
relating to financing and other corporate mattersder the agreement, the Company paid DalriadeE2#D,000 per annum through June 30,
2010, at which time the agreement terminated. Atitahal amount of £195,000 was approved by theurggnation committee of which
£75,000 ($121,500) was paid during the year endezké@ber 31, 2007 for consultancy services, witlréh@ainder being paid during the year
ended December 31, 2008. In January 2009, the hoonsultancy fee was revised to €300,000 ($400,p@0annum and an additional
performance related payment of $100,000 was paitfiddla Ltd is owned by a family trust, the beniefies of which include Mr. Thomas
Lynch, former Amarin Chairman and Chief Executivificr.

On October 16, 2009, Mr. Lynch was issued 500,0aframts to purchase common shares of Amarin uppodhpletion of the $70.0 million
financing. The fair value of these warrants ondhge of grant was $669,000, which was includeddnkscompensation expense for the year
ended December 31, 2009. In conjunction with Mmdlys participation in the June and July 2009 bridga$y he received 277,777 shares
277,776 warrants. The warrants are exercisablBveryears from issuance, 138,888 warrants havexarcise price of $1.00 and 138,888
warrants have an exercise price of $1.50.
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Mr. Alan Cooke

On October 16, 2009, Mr. Cooke, Amarin’s formerdidtent, entered a compromise agreement with thep@oyn Pursuant to the compromise
agreement, Mr. Cooke received a termination payrmg€875,000 ($607,500) and his options to purclshsees in the Company became fully
vested. These options were exercised during 20i@. @n October 16, 2009, Mr. Cooke was issued B@/y@arrants to purchase shares in
Amarin. The fair value of these warrants on theeddtgrant was $331,000, which was included inlstmmpensation expense for the year
ended December 31, 2009. The warrant exercise igrik&.50 and they are exercisable for five yeamfthe issuance date.

(15) Quarterly Summarized Financial Information (Unaudited)

Fiscal year ended December 31, 2011

1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Revenue $ — $ — $ — $ —
Net income (loss)(1 18,29 (202,109 96,34¢ 18,33¢
Net income (loss) per shal
Basic $ 0.1¢f $ (159 $ 0.7z $ 0.14
Diluted $ 0.1z $ (159 $ 0.6z $ 0.1z
Fiscal year ended December 31, 20:
1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(In thousands, except per share amount:
Revenue $ — $ — $ — $ —
Net loss(2) (9,219 (41,35)) (11,209 (187,81))
Net loss per basic and diluted she $ (0.09 $ (0.49 $ (0.1)) $ (1.89

(1) The netincome generated in the first, third ourth quarters of 2011 were due to the changdbkdrfair value of the warrant derivative
liability at each respective quarterly reportingipé in 2011. As a result of a decrease in the Caomgfs stock price at each respective
quarter end versus the previous quarter end, thie vd the derivative liability decreased, resigtin non-cash income for change in the
fair value of the warrant derivative. The losshe second quarter of 2011 was also due primaritigahange in the fair value of the
warrant derivative liability, which was due to tBempan'’s stock price increasing in value at June 30, 2@ésus March 31, 201

(2) The increase in net loss in the fourth quasfe2010 is primarily due to the change in the failue of the warrant derivative liability as a
result of the change in the Comp’s stock price at December 31, 20

(16) Subsequent Event

In January 2012, the Company completed the s&#@%8.0 million in aggregate principal amount of%8.&onvertible Senior Notes due 2032.
The notes were issued by Corsicanto Limited, a liimited company acquired by Amarin in Januar§2Q@orsicanto Limited is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Amarin Corporation plc. The grah, unsecured, senior obligations are guarariigele parent. Net proceeds to us, after
payment of underwriting fees and estimated expenga® approximately $144.3 million. The notes bessh interest at a rate of 3.5% per
year, payable semiannually in arrears on JanuagniiSJuly 15 of each year, beginning on July 13228hd mature on January 15, 2032.
notes are subject to repurchase by us at the optitire holders on each of January 19, 2017, Jgri8yr2022, and January 19, 2027, at a price
equal to 100% of the principal amount of the natelse repurchased, plus accrued and unpaid intierdstit excluding, the fundamental cha
repurchase date.
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Holders may convert their notes at their optioarat time prior to the close of business on thermss day immediately preceding October 15,
2031 only under the following circumstances: (1)igg any calendar quarter commencing after March2812 (and only during such calendar
quarter), if the last reported sale price of thenpany’s common stock for at least 20 trading dayrsether or not consecutive) during a period
of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the tasling day of the immediately preceding calendartgu is greater than or equal to 130% of
the conversion price on each applicable trading @8yduring the five the consecutive business piaryod immediately following any five
consecutive trading day period, or the measuremenbd, in which the trading price per $1,000 pipat amount of notes for each trading day
of the measurement period was less than 98% qgdrthaiuct of the last reported sale price of the Camyfs common stock and the conversion
rate on each such trading day; (3) if the Compaallg @any or all of the notes for redemption, at eme prior to the close of business on the
scheduled trading day immediately preceding themgxtion date; or (4) upon the occurrence of spetifiorporate events. On or after
October 15, 2031 until the close of business orsétand scheduled trading day immediately precetli@gnaturity date, holders may convert
their notes at any time, regardless of the foregonditions have been satisfied. Upon converslemCompany will pay or deliver, as the ¢
may be, cash, shares of its common stock (andind&u of any fractional share) or a combinatidrcash and shares of its common stock, at
the Companys election. The conversion rate will initially b&314572 shares of common stock per $1,000 prineipedunt of notes (equivale

to an initial conversion price of approximately &B25 per share of common stock). The conversi@wdt be subject to adjustment in some
events but will not be adjusted for any accrued @amghid interest. In addition, following certairnrporate events that occur prior to the matt
date, the Company will increase the conversionfata holder who elects to convert its notes inregction with such a corporate event in
certain circumstances and will pay to such holdgraccrued and unpaid interest on the notes texualtding the conversion date.

The Company may not redeem the notes prior to Jariea 2017, other than in connection with certgianges in the tax law of a relevant
taxing jurisdiction that results in additional anmésibecoming due with respect to payments andloredies on the note. On or after

January 19, 2017 and prior to the maturity date Gbmpany may redeem for cash all or part of thesat a redemption price equal to 100¢
the principal amount of the notes to be redeemled, gccrued and unpaid interest to, but excludimg redemption date. No sinking fund is
provided for the notes. If the Company undergosidamental change, holders may require the Comfmrgpurchase for cash all or part of
their notes at a repurchase price equal to 1008&teoprincipal amount of the notes to be repurchgsied accrued and unpaid interest to, but
excluding, the fundamental change repurchase @iatenotes are the Company’s senior unsecured tibligaand rank senior in right of
payment to the Company'’s future indebtedness shaxpressly subordinated in right of payment tonthites and equal in right of payment to
the Company’s future unsecured indebtedness tmattiso subordinated. The notes are effectivelygimt of payment to future secured
indebtedness to the extent of the value of thetesseuring such indebtedness.
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AMENDED AND RESTATED DEPOSIT AGREEMENT

by and among
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AND
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Dated as of November 4, 20
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AMENDED AND RESTATED DEPOSIT AGREEMENT

AMENDED AND RESTATED DEPOSIT AGREEMENT , dated as of November 4, 2011, by and among (ix#mCorporation plc,
company organized under the laws of England ande8yalind its successors (the “Company”), (i) CITNBA N.A., a national banking
association organized under the laws of the Uriitiedles of America acting in its capacity as depogitand any successor depositary heret
(the “Depositary”), and (iii) all Holders and Ber@él Owners of American Depositary Shares issugminder (all such capitalized terms as
hereinafter defined).

WITNESSETH THAT:

WHEREAS, the Company and the Depositary previously entergrld Deposit Agreementated as of March 29, 1993, as amended by
Amendment No. 1 to Deposit Agreement, dated asobdlizr 8, 1998, and by Amendment No. 2 to DepogieAment, dated as of
September 25, 2002, as supplemented by Letter Agret dated as of October 16, 2007 (the “Originap@sit Agreement”); and

WHEREAS , the Company desires to amend and restate th&é@lrigeposit Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Company and the Depositary previously entarexrld Letter Agreementated as of October 16, 2007 relating to the
establishment of the Direct Registration SystemADSs (the “DRS Letter Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Company desires to implement the terms andgioms of the DRS Letter Agreement in the Depogjteement;

WHEREAS , the Depositary is willing to act as the Depositir such ADR facility upon the terms set forthtive Deposit Agreement
(as hereinafter defined); and

WHEREAS , any American Depositary Receipts issued pursigatfite terms of the Deposit Agreement are to bstaaltially in the form
of Exhibit A attached hereto, with appropriate insertions, nicatibns and omissions, as hereinafter providatiénDeposit Agreement; and

NOW, THEREFORE , for good and valuable consideration, the recamgt sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledgbd,fdarties
hereto agree as follows:
ARTICLE |
DEFINITIONS
All capitalized terms used, but not otherwise dedinherein shall have the meanings set forth baelmess otherwise clearly indicated:

Section 1.1 “ ADS Record Daté shall have the meaning given to such term in Seeti6.
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Section 1.2 “ Affiliate " shall have the meaning assigned to such term bgdmemission (as hereinafter defined) under Reguiatl
promulgated under the Securities Act (as hereindi#éined), or under any successor regulation there

Section 1.3' American Depositary Receipt(s), “ ADR(s) ” and “ Receipt(s)” shall mean the certificate(s) issued by the Dé&posto
evidence the American Depositary Shares issuedruhdeerms of the Deposit Agreement as such ADBRg be amended from time to time in
accordance with the provisions of the Deposit Agreet in the form of Certificated ADS(s) (as heréi@adefined), as such ADRs may be
amended from time to time in accordance with thavisions of the Deposit Agreement. An ADR may ewicke any number of ADSs and may,
in the case of ADSs held through a central depsgach as DTC, be in the form of a “Balance Cigdte.” Notwithstanding anything else
contained herein or therein, the American depositaceipts issued and outstanding under the tefrtieedOriginal Deposit Agreement shall,
from and after the date hereof, be treated as ABfed hereunder and shall, from and after thetateof, be subject to the terms hereof it
respects.

Section 1.4* American Depositary Share(s) and “ ADS(s)” shall mean the rights and interests in the Depdssecurities (as
hereinafter defined) granted to the Holders andefieial Owners pursuant to the terms and conditmfithe Deposit Agreement and, if issued
as Certificated ADS(s), (as hereinafter define@) ADR(s) issued to evidence such ADSs. ADS(s) neaissued under the terms of the Dep
Agreement in the form of (a) Certificated ADS(s3 feereinafter defined), in which case the ADS(s)efidenced by ADR(s), or
(b) Uncertificated ADS(s) (as hereinafter definedwhich case the ADS(s) are not evidenced by A)R(it are reflected on the direct
registration system maintained by the Depositanséwh purposes under the terms of Section 2.1&sdmtherwise specified in the Deposit
Agreement or in any ADR, or unless the context wtige requires, any reference to ADS(s) shall idelCertificated ADS(s) and
Uncertificated ADS(s), individually or collectivelas the context may require. Each ADS shall reethe right to receive, subject to the
terms and conditions of the Deposit Agreement aedapplicable ADR, if issued as a Certificated ADSe (1) Share until there shall occur a
distribution upon Deposited Securities referretht8ection 4.2 or a change in Deposited Securnigfessred to in Section 4.11 with respect to
which additional ADSs are not issued, and thereafteh ADS shall represent the right to receivbjeut to the terms and conditions of the
Deposit Agreement and the applicable ADR if issag@ Certificated ADS, the Deposited Securitiesrdg@inhed in accordance with the term:
such Sections. American depositary shares outstgnatider the Original Deposit Agreement as of e thereof shall, from and after the date
hereof, for all purposes be treated as AmericaroBiggry Shares issued and outstanding hereundestaatid from and after the date hereof, be
subject to the terms and conditions of the Deplgieement in all respects, except that any amentiofahe Original Deposit Agreement
effected under the terms of the Deposit Agreemdmnthvshall impose or increase any fees or chaigiégi( than the fees of the Depositary for
the execution and delivery or the cancellation BDfs and taxes or other governmental charges), aiwghall otherwise prejudice any
substantial existing right of Holders (as definedhie Original Deposit Agreement), shall not becafiective as to Holders of American
depositary shares until the expiration of three themfter notice of the amendments effected byDifygosit Agreement shall have been give
the Holders of American depositary shares outstendnder the Original Deposit Agreement as of thte thereof.
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Section 1.5 Applicant ” shall have the meaning given to such term in i8ac.10.

Section 1.6" Beneficial Owner” shall mean, as to any ADS, any person or entityrtgga beneficial interest deriving from the ownéj:
of such ADS. A Beneficial Owner of ADSs may or nrayt be the Holder of such ADSs. A Beneficial Owskeall be able to exercise any right
or receive any benefit hereunder solely throughptrson who is the Holder of the ADSs owned by dBeheficial Owner. Unless otherwise
identified to the Depositary, a Holder shall berded to be the Beneficial Owner of all the ADSs stgyied in his/her/its name. Persons who
own beneficial interests in the American depositdrgres issued under the terms of the Original Biepgreement and outstanding as of the
date hereof shall, from and after the date heleofreated as Beneficial Owners of ADS(s) undetéhms hereof.

Section 1.7* Certificated ADS(s)” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.13.

Section 1.8° Commission” shall mean the Securities and Exchange Commigsfitine United States or any successor governmental
agency thereto in the United States.

Section 1.9 Company” shall mean Amarin Corporation plc a company ipovated and existing under the laws of England\&ates,
and its successors.

Section 1.10° CREST ” shall mean the system for the paperless settlenfdrades in securities and the holding of urifieated
securities operated by Euroclear UK & Ireland Lidiin accordance with the Uncertificated Securiegulations 2001 (SI 2001 No. 3755)
amended from time to time, or any successor thereto

Section 1.11' Custodian” shall mean (i) as of the date hereof, CitibankAN_.ondon Branch, having its principal office ati@roup
Centre, Canada Square, Canary Wharf, London E14 EhBland, as the custodian for the purposes ob#posit Agreement, (ii) Citibank,
N.A., acting as custodian of Deposited Securiti@sypant to the Deposit Agreement, and (iii) anyeotimtity that may be appointed by"
Depositary pursuant to the terms of Section 5.8uasessor, substitute or additional custodian mglenu The term “Custodian” shall mean any
Custodian individually or all Custodians collectiyeas the context requires.

Section 1.12' Deliver ” and “ Delivery " shall mean (x)when used in respect of Shares and other DepoSiedrities either (i) the
physical delivery of the certificate(s) represegtiuch securities, or (ii) the book-entry transfied recordation of such securities on the register
of members of the Company and/or in the book-esgtilement of CREST, and (yyhen used in respect of ADSsither (i) the physical
delivery of ADR(s) evidencing the ADSs, or (ii) theok-entry transfer and recordation of ADSs onlibeks of the Depositary or any book-
entry settlement system in which the ADSs areesattht-eligible.

Section 1.13' Deposit Agreement’ shall mean this Amended and Restated Depositégent and all exhibits hereto, as the same may
from time to time be amended and supplemented fimi to time in accordance with the terms of the@sit Agreement.
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Section 1.14' Depositary” shall mean Citibank, N.A., a national bankingasation organized under the laws of the UnitedeStan its
capacity as depositary under the terms of the Depgseement, and any successor depositary hereunde

Section 1.15' Deposited Securities shall mean Shares at any time deposited undddépesit Agreement and any and all other
securities, property and cash held by the Depgsitathe Custodian in respect thereof, subjedféncase of cash, to the provisions of
Section 4.8. Notwithstanding anything else contdinerein, the securities, property and cash deivéw the Custodian in respect of American
depositary shares outstanding as of the date hanelgfr the Original Deposit Agreement and definetDeposited Securitieshereunder sha
for all purposes from and after the date hereof,dresidered to be, and treated as, Deposited $Siesurereunder in all respects. The collateral
delivered in connection with Pre-Release Transastescribed in Section 5.10 shall not constitigpd3ited Securities.

Section 1.16' Dollars ” and “$ " shall refer to the lawful currency of the Unit&tates.

Section 1.17° DTC " shall mean The Depository Trust Company, a natiatearinghouse and the central book-entry settféraystem
for securities traded in the United States anduas, the custodian for the securities of DTC Bigidints (as hereinafter defined) maintained in
DTC, and any successor thereto.

Section 1.18 DTC Participant " shall mean any financial institution (or any nomé of such institution) having one or more pgvtiai
accounts with DTC for receiving, holding and deting the securities and cash held in DTC. A DTCtieigant may or may not be a Benefic
Owner. If a DTC Patrticipant is not the Beneficiak@er of the ADSs credited to its account at DTCgfothe ADSs in respect of which the
DTC Participant is otherwise acting, such DTC Rgéint shall be deemed, for all purposes hereunddave all requisite authority to act on
behalf of the Beneficial Owner(s) of the ADSs ctedito its account at DTC or in respect of whioh BT C Participant is so acting.

Section 1.19' Exchange Act” shall mean the United States Securities Excha@wef 1934, as amended from time to time.

Section 1.20' Foreign Currency ” shall mean any currency other than Dollars.

Section 1.21" Full Entitlement ADR(s) " , “ Full Entitlement ADS(s) " and “ Full Entitlement Share(s)” shall have the respective
meanings set forth in Section 2.12.

Section 1.22' Holder(s) ” shall mean the person(s) in whose name the AD&segistered on the books of the Depositary (er th
Registrar, if any) maintained for such purpose. @der may or may not be a Beneficial Owner. If dddo is not the Beneficial Owner of the
ADS(s) registered in its name, such person shadldsned, for all purposes hereunder, to have@liisge authority to act on behalf of the
Beneficial Owners of the ADSs registered in its paithe Holders (as defined in the Original DepAsgiteement) of American depositary
shares issued under the terms of the Original Depgseement and outstanding as of the date heslealf from and after the date hereof,
become Holders under the terms of the Deposit Agezw.



Section 1.23 “ Original Deposit Agreement shall mean the deposit agreement, dated as of Refgpeement, dated as of March 29,
1993, as amended by Amendment No. 1 to Depositekgeat, dated as of October 8, 1998, and by Amentiher? to Deposit Agreement,
dated as of September 25, 2002, as supplementeettey Agreement, dated as of October 16, 200arHayamong the Company, Citibank,
N.A., as Depositary, and the Holders (as definedeiin) of American depositary shares evidenced tmgican depositary receipts isst
thereunder.

Section 1.23' Pound(s) Sterling”, “ Pound(s)” and “ £ " shall refer to the lawful currency of England.

Section 1.24' Partial Entitlement ADR(s) ”, “ Partial Entitlement ADS(s) ” and “ Partial Entitlement Share(s)” shall have the
respective meanings set forth in Section 2.12.

Section 1.25' Pre-Release Transactior! shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.10.

Section 1.26' Principal Office " shall mean, when used with respect to the Depnsithe principal office of the Depositary at whiat
any particular time its depositary receipts busirgsll be administered, which, at the date oftbposit Agreement, is located at 388
Greenwich Street, New York, New York 10013, U.S.A.

Section 1.27° Registrar ” shall mean the Depositary or any bank or trushpany having an office in the Borough of ManhatfBime
City of New York, which shall be appointed by thegdsitary to register issuances, transfers andetlations of ADSs as herein provided, and
shall include any co-registrar appointed by the @#pry for such purposes. Registrars (other tharDepositary) may be removed and
substitutes appointed by the Depositary. Each Regi®ther than the Depositary) appointed purst@ttie Deposit Agreement shall be
required to give notice in writing to the Deposjtacccepting such appointment and agreeing to badby the applicable terms of the Deposit
Agreement.

Section 1.28' Restricted Securities’ shall mean Shares, Deposited Securities or ADSshw(ili have been acquired directly or indire
from the Company or any of its Affiliates in a teattion or chain of transactions not involving aoplic offering and are subject to resale
limitations under the Securities Act or the rulesuied thereunder, or (ii) are held by an officediogctor (or persons performing similar
functions) or other Affiliate of the Company, oii)(are subject to other restrictions on sale gratgt under the laws of the United States,
England and Wales, or under a shareholder agreeanéim Articles of Association of the Company adar the regulations of an applicable
securities exchange unless, in each case, suchsSizposited Securities or ADSs are being trarefear sold to persons other than an
Affiliate of the Company in a transaction (a) caeiby an effective resale registration statemer(tyoexempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act (as hereinafédined), and the Shares, Deposited Securitiedd®sfare not, when held by such person(s),
Restricted Securities.

Section 1.29' Restricted ADR(s)”, “ Restricted ADS(s)” and “ Restricted Shares’ shall have the respective meanings set forth in
Section 2.14.




Section 1.30' Securities Act” shall mean the United States Securities Act &3l%s amended from time to time.

Section 1.31" Share Registrar” shall mean Equiniti Limited or any other institut organized under the laws of England and Wales
appointed by the Company to carry out the dutie®ggistrar for the Shares, and any successor theret

Section 1.32' Shares” shall mean Ordinary Shares d3.50 each in the capital of the Company, validuéd and outstanding, fully pz
and may, if the Depositary so agrees after cornsuttavith the Company, include evidence of the righreceive Shares; providéthtin no
event shall Shares include evidence of the rightteive Shares with respect to which the full pase price has not been paid or Shares as to
which preemptive rights have theretofore not beadidly waived or exercised; providddrther, however, that, if there shall occur any change
in par or nominal value, split-up, consolidatioeclassification, exchange, conversion or any ativent described in Section 4.11 in respect of
the Shares of the Company, the term “Shares” iraleafter, to the maximum extent permitted by leepresent the successor securities
resulting from such event.

Section 1.33' United States” and “ U.S.” shall have the meaning assigned to it in Regoifa8 as promulgated by the Commission
under the Securities Act.

ARTICLE Il

APPOINTMENT OF DEPOSITARY; FORM OF RECEIPTS;
DEPOSIT OF SHARES; EXECUTION AND
DELIVERY, TRANSFER AND SURRENDER OF RECEIPTS

Section 2.1 Appointment of Depositary The Company hereby appoints the Depositary as dapofor the Deposited Securities and
hereby authorizes and directs the Depositary tinamtcordance with the terms and conditions s#h o the Deposit Agreement and the
applicable ADRs. Each Holder and each Beneficiah®yupon acceptance of any ADSs (or any intehesetn) issued in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the Deposit Agreement ocdmtinuing to hold, from and after the date hemanf American depositary shares issued
and outstanding under the Original Deposit Agreetirarall be deemed for all purposes to (a) be gy paand bound by the terms of the
Deposit Agreement and the applicable ADR(s), andfipoint the Depositary its attorney-in-fact, witl power to delegate, to act on its
behalf and to take any and all actions contemplist¢ide Deposit Agreement and the applicable ADR¢sadopt any and all procedures
necessary to comply with applicable law and to tskeh action as the Depositary in its sole disanethay deem necessary or appropriate to
carry out the purposes of the Deposit Agreementl@@pplicable ADR(s), the taking of such actitimbe the conclusive determinant of the
necessity and appropriateness thereof.

Section 2.2 Form and Transferability of ADSs

(a) Form . Certificated ADSs shall be evidenced by definitM@Rs which shall be engraved, printed, lithograpbegroduced in such
other manner as may be agreed upon by the



Company and the Depositary. ADRs may be issuedrithdeDeposit Agreement in denominations of any l@mumber of ADSs. The ADRs
shall be substantially in the form set forth in BihA to the Deposit Agreement, with any appropriaterises, modifications and omissions,
in each case as otherwise contemplated in the Miefgreement or required by law. ADRs shall bed@ted, (ii) signed by the manual or
facsimile signature of a duly authorized signatofrithe Depositary, (iii) countersigned by the mdrardacsimile signature of a duly authoriz
signatory of the Registrar, and (iv) registerethia books maintained by the Registrar for the tegfion of issuances and transfers of ADSs
ADR and no Certificated ADS evidenced thereby sbalentitled to any benefits under the Deposit Agrent or be valid or enforceable for
any purpose against the Depositary or the Companigss such ADR shall have been so dated, sigoediersigned and registered (other than
an American depositary receipt issued and outstara of the date hereof under the terms of thgii@i Deposit Agreement which from and
after the date hereof becomes subject to the tefitiee Deposit Agreement in all respects). ADRsringgthe facsimile signature of a duly-
authorized signatory of the Depositary or the Regiswho at the time of signature was a duly-ari#ieal signatory of the Depositary or the
Registrar, as the case may be, shall bind the Dteappsnotwithstanding the fact that such signatioag ceased to be so authorized prior to the
delivery of such ADR by the Depositary. The ADRalshear a CUSIP number that is different from &ySIP number that was, is or may be
assigned to any depositary receipts previoushubsasquently issued pursuant to any other arrangemetrneen the Depositary (or any other
depositary) and the Company and which are not ABWRstanding hereunder.

(b) Legends. The ADRs may be endorsed with, or have incorporatele text thereof, such legends or recitalsimatnsistent with the
provisions of the Deposit Agreement as (i) may eeassary to enable the Depositary and the Compgpgrform their respective obligations
hereunder, (ii) may be required to comply with applicable laws or regulations, or with the rulad aegulations of any securities exchang
market upon which ADSs may be traded, listed ottegioor to conform with any usage with respectdter(iii) may be necessary to indicate
any special limitations or restrictions to whiclygrarticular ADRs or ADSs are subject by reasothefdate of issuance of the Deposited
Securities or otherwise, or (iv) may be requiredahy book-entry system in which the ADSs are hidlalders and Beneficial Owners shall be
deemed, for all purposes, to have notice of, arlmetbound by, the terms and conditions of the ldgeset forth, in the case of Holders, on the
ADR registered in the name of the applicable Had®r in the case of Beneficial Owners, on the AlBpresenting the ADSs owned by such
Beneficial Owners.

(c) Title . Subject to the limitations contained herein anthenADR, title to an ADR (and to each Certifica®dS evidenced thereby)
shall be transferable upon the same terms asificzetd security under the laws of the State ofvNéork, provided that, in the case of
Certificated ADSs, such ADR has been properly eselbior is accompanied by proper instruments okfeainNotwithstanding any notice to
the contrary, the Depositary and the Company mayndand treat the Holder of an ADS (that is, thespeiin whose name an ADS is registe
on the books of the Depositary) as the absolutecowirereof for all purposes. Neither the Depositarythe Company shall have any obliga
nor be subject to any liability under the Depogifrdement or any ADR to any holder or any Benefi€ialner unless, in the case of a holder of
ADSs, such holder is the Holder registered on thekb of the Depositary or, in the case of a Bera@fldwner, such Beneficial Owner, or the
Beneficial Owner’s representative, is the Holdgjistered on the books of the Depositary.
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(d) Book-Entry Systems. The Depositary shall make arrangements for thepganee of the ADSs into DTC. All ADSs held through
DTC will be registered in the name of the nomineedTC (currently “Cede & Co.”). As such, the noménfor DTC will be the only “Holder”
of all ADSs held through DTC. Unless issued byEepositary as Uncertificated ADSs, the ADSs regixten the name of Cede & Co. will be
evidenced by one or more ADR(s) in the form of aldhce Certificate,” which will provide that it negsents the aggregate number of ADSs
from time to time indicated in the records of thepsitary as being issued hereunder and that tiregate number of ADSs represented
thereby may from time to time be increased or desgd by making adjustments on such records of ém&itary and of DTC or its nominee
hereinafter provided. Citibank, N.A. (or such otketity as is appointed by DTC or its nominee) rhald the “Balance Certificate” as
custodian for DTC. Each Beneficial Owner of ADS¢dharough DTC must rely upon the procedures of Dand the DTC Participants to
exercise or be entitled to any rights attributablsuch ADSs. The DTC Participants shall for alijjmses be deemed to have all requisite powelr
and authority to act on behalf of the Beneficialigns of the ADSs held in the DTC Participants’ extjye accounts in DTC and the
Depositary shall for all purposes be authorizeretp upon any instructions and information givernttoy DTC Participants. So long as ADSs
are held through DTC or unless otherwise requisethly, ownership of beneficial interests in the AD@gistered in the name of the nominee
for DTC will be shown on, and transfers of such evahip will be effected only through, records maiméd by (i) DTC or its nominee (with
respect to the interests of DTC Participants)jipD(TC Participants or their nominees (with respiecthe interests of clients of DTC
Participants).

Section 2.3 Deposit of SharesSubject to the terms and conditions of the Depbgieement and applicable law, Shares or evidence of
rights to receive Shares (other than Restrictedii@exs) may be deposited by any person (includirgDepositary in its individual capacity t
subject, however, in the case of the Company orAdfijate of the Company, to Section 5.7) at aime, whether or not the transfer books of
the Company or the Share Registrar, if any, argetlpby Delivery of the Shares to the CustodiamerEdeposit of Shares shall be accompa
by the following: (A) (i) in the case of Shares represented by certificatmseid in registered forprappropriate instruments of transfer or
endorsement, in a form satisfactory to the Custodig in the case of Shares represented by certificatdsarer form the requisite coupons
and talons pertaining thereto, and (iii) the case of Shares delivered by book-entry fearend recordation confirmation of such book-entry
transfer and recordation in the register of membéthe Company and/or CREST, as applicable, tcCingtodian or that irrevocable
instructions have been given to cause such Shates $o transferred and recorded, (B) such cetifins and payments (including, without
limitation, the Depositary’s fees and related clea)gnd evidence of such payments (including, witlimitation, stamping or otherwise
marking such Shares by way of receipt) as may tpeired by the Depositary or the Custodian in acancg with the provisions of the Deposit
Agreement and applicable law, (C) if the Deposisoyrequires, a written order directing the Depogito issue and deliver to, or upon the
written order of, the person(s) stated in such iotlde number of ADSs representing the Shares sositeg, (D) evidence satisfactory to the
Depositary (which may be an opinion of



counsel) that all necessary approvals have beeregrdy, or there has been compliance with thesraihel regulations of, any applicable
governmental agency in England, and (E) if the Bépoy so requires, (i) an agreement, assignmeimstrument satisfactory to the Depositary
or the Custodian which provides for the promptdfanby any person in whose name the Shares draverbeen recorded to the Custodian of
any distribution, or right to subscribe for additéd Shares or to receive other property in respkeahy such deposited Shares or, in lieu the
such indemnity or other agreement as shall befaetisy to the Depositary or the Custodian andif(ifje Shares are registered in the name of
the person on whose behalf they are presentedefunsit, a proxy or proxies entitling the Custodiarxercise voting rights in respect of the
Shares for any and all purposes until the Shareegosited are registered in the name of the Depgsthe Custodian or any nominee.

Without limiting any other provision of the Deposigreement, the Depositary shall instruct the Cdisto not to, and the Depositary shall
not knowingly, accept for deposit (a) any Restdc&ecurities (except as contemplated by Sectiof) 2dr (b) any fractional Shares or
fractional Deposited Securities nor (c) a numbeBlodres or Deposited Securities which upon appicatf the ADS to Shares ratio would g
rise to fractional ADSs. No Shares shall be acakfiedeposit unless accompanied by evidence yifimnequired by the Depositary, that is
reasonably satisfactory to the Depositary or thst@iian that all conditions to such deposit havenlsatisfied by the person depositing such
Shares under the laws and regulations of Engladd\aes and any necessary approval has been gitayntedy applicable governmental body
in England, if any. The Depositary may issue AD&aimst evidence of rights to receive Shares froenGbmpany, any agent of the Company
or any custodian, registrar, transfer agent, abgagigency or other entity involved in ownershigransaction records in respect of the Shares.
Such evidence of rights shall consist of writteariidet or specific guarantees of ownership of Shiamesshed by the Company or any such
custodian, registrar, transfer agent, clearing egen other entity involved in ownership or transae records in respect of the Shares.

Without limitation of the foregoing, the Depositasiyall not knowingly accept for deposit under trepbsit Agreement (A) any Shares or
other securities required to be registered undeptbvisions of the Securities Act, unless (i) gisation statement is in effect as to such
Shares or other securities or (ii) the depositaslenupon terms contemplated in Section 2.14, oa(®)Shares or other securities the deposit of
which would violate any provisions of the ArticleBAssociation of the Company. For purposes offtiiegoing sentence, the Depositary shall
be entitled to rely upon representations and wégsmade or deemed made pursuant to the DeposgeAtent and shall not be required to
make any further investigation. The Depositary wimply with written instructions of the Compangdeived by the Depositary reasonably in
advance) not to accept for deposit hereunder aayeShdentified in such instructions at such timed under such circumstances as may
reasonably be specified in such instructions ireotd facilitate the Company’s compliance with seeurities laws of the United States.
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Section 2.4 Registration and Safekeeping of Depasit Securities. The Depositary shall instruct the Custodian uparhd2elivery of
certificates representing registered Shares bedpgsited hereunder with the Custodian (or otheroBigégd Securities pursuant to Article 1V
hereof), together with the other documents aboeeifipd, to present such certificate(s), togethith whe appropriate instrument(s) of transfer
or endorsement, duly stamped, to the Share Registrransfer and registration of the Shares (@nsas transfer and registration can be
accomplished and at the expense of the persontfomithe deposit is made) in the name of the Degugsithe Custodian or a nominee of
either. Deposited Securities shall be held by tbpd3itary or by a Custodian for the account artiecorder of the Depositary or a nhominee in
each case on behalf of the Holders and Beneficialéds, at such place or places as the DepositahedCustodian shall determine.

Section 2.5 Issuance of ADS3he Depositary has made arrangements with the @iastdor the Custodian to confirm to the Depositary
upon receipt of a deposit of Shares (i) that a digd Shares has been made pursuant to Sectip(iiptBat such Deposited Securities have
been recorded in the name of the Depositary, ttetadian or a nominee of either on the shareholdegsster maintained by or on behalf of
Company by the Share Registrar or in CREST, (&)} tall required documents have been received(imnthe person(s) to whom or upon
whose order ADSs are deliverable in respect thexadfthe number of ADSs to be so delivered. Sutification may be made by letter, cable,
telex, SWIFT message or, at the risk and expentigegberson making the deposit, by facsimile oeotheans of electronic transmission. U
receiving such notice from the Custodian, the Digpans subject to the terms and conditions of tlep@sit Agreement and applicable law, s
issue the ADSs representing the Shares so depasitedupon the order of the person(s) named imtiee delivered to the Depositary and, if
applicable, shall execute and deliver at its PpacOffice Receipt(s) registered in the name(syested by such person(s) and evidencing the
aggregate number of ADSs to which such personésgntitied, but, in each case, only upon paymetitedepositary of the charges of the
Depositary for accepting a deposit, issuing ADSssgt forth in Section 5.9 and ExhibithBreto) and all taxes and governmental charges and
fees payable in connection with such deposit aadriinsfer of the Shares and the issuance of tH&(#)DThe Depositary shall only issue
ADSs in whole numbers and deliver, if applicabl®Fs) evidencing whole numbers of ADSs. Nothingelreshall prohibit any Pre-Release
Transaction upon the terms set forth in the Depbgieement.
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Section 2.6 Transfer, Combination and Spliup of ADRs.

(a) Transfer . The Registrar shall register the transfer of AD&d(of the ADSs represented thereby) on the boalistained for such
purpose and the Depositary shall (x) cancel sucR&Bnd execute new ADRs evidencing the same aggragmber of ADSs as those
evidenced by the ADRs canceled by the Depositglycduse the Registrar to countersign such new AfiiRis(z) Deliver such new ADRs to
upon the order of the person entitled theretoadheof the following conditions has been satisfi@dthe ADRs have been duly Delivered by
Holder (or by a duly authorized attorney of the do) to the Depositary at its Principal Office fbe purpose of effecting a transfer thereof,
(ii) the surrendered ADRs have been properly eretbos are accompanied by proper instruments o$tearfincluding signature guarantees in
accordance with standard securities industry prayt{iii) the surrendered ADRs have been duly pen(if required by the laws of the State
New York or of the United States), and (iv) all hpgble fees and charges of, and expenses incbyretthe Depositary and all applicable ta
and governmental charges (as are set forth in@ebtP and Exhibit Biereto) have been paisljbject, however, in each casethe terms and
conditions of the applicable ADRs, of the Deposiréement and of applicable law, in each case afeuot at the time thereof.

(b) Combination & Split Up . The Registrar shall register the split-up or corabion of ADRs (and of the ADSs represented therely)
the books maintained for such purpose and the D@ppshall (x) cancel such ADRs and execute newrRADor the number of ADSs
requested, but in the aggregate not exceedinguimdar of ADSs evidenced by the ADRs cancelled byDbpositary, (y) cause the Registrar
to countersign such new ADRs and (z) Deliver sumlv ADRs to or upon the order of the Holder theréafach of the following conditions
has been satisfied: (i) the ADRs have been duljvBedd by the Holder (or by a duly authorized at&yr of the Holder) to the Depositary at its
Principal Office for the purpose of effecting aispp or combination thereof, and (ii) all appli¢alfees and charges of, and expenses incurred
by, the Depositary and all applicable taxes andegawental charges (as are set forth in Sectioma®d¥Exhibit Bhereto) have been paid,
subject, however, in each cas® the terms and conditions of the applicable AD&t the Deposit Agreement and of applicable iaveach
case as in effect at the time thereof.

(c) Co-Transfer Agents. The Depositary may appoint one or more co-trarefents for the purpose of effecting transfers, doatlons
and split-ups of ADRs at designated transfer offica behalf of the Depositary. In carrying ouffitsctions, a co-transfer agent may require
evidence of authority and compliance with appliedbivs and other requirements by Holders or persntied to such ADRs and will be
entitled to protection and indemnity to the samieeixas the Depositary. Such co-transfer agentsheagmoved and substitutes appointed by
the Depositary. Each co-transfer agent appointel@iuthis Section 2.6 (other than the Depositarg)l give notice in writing to the Depositary
accepting such appointment and agreeing to be bbyitige applicable terms of the Deposit Agreement.
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Section 2.7 Surrender of ADSs and Withdrawal of Depsited Securities The Holder of ADSs shall be entitled to Delivery tfze
Custodian’s designated office) of the DepositeduBites at the time represented by the ADSs uptisfaation of each of the following
conditions: (i) the Holder (or a duly-authorizetbaney of the Holder) has duly Delivered ADSs te tepositary at its Principal Office (and if
applicable, the ADRs evidencing such ADSs) forghepose of withdrawal of the Deposited Securiteggresented thereby, (ii) if applicable
and so required by the Depositary, the ADRs Dediddo the Depositary for such purpose have begreplsoendorsed in blank or are
accompanied by proper instruments of transferambkincluding signature guarantees in accordarttestandard securities industry practic
(iii) if so required by the Depositary, the Holddrthe ADSs has executed and delivered to the Digpgs written order directing the
Depositary to cause the Deposited Securities beittgirawn to be Delivered to or upon the writtederof the person(s) designated in such
order, and (iv) all applicable fees and chargesuwod, expenses incurred by, the Depositary angplicable taxes and governmental charge
are set forth in Section 5.9 and Exhibi) Bave been paidubject, however, in each cas® the terms and conditions of the ADRs evidegcin
the surrendered ADSs, of the Deposit Agreemerthe@fCompany’s Articles of Association and of anplagable laws and the rules of CREST,
and to any provisions of or governing the Deposfiedurities, in each case as in effect at the tiraeeof.

Upon satisfaction of each of the conditions spedifibove, the Depositary (i) shall cancel the ADS8bvered to it (and, if applicable, the
ADRs evidencing the ADSs so Delivered), (ii) stiitect the Registrar to record the cancellatiothefADSs so Delivered on the books
maintained for such purpose, and (iii) shall dithet Custodian to Deliver, or cause the DeliveryimEach case, without unreasonable delay,
the Deposited Securities represented by the AD$ssceled together with any certificate or otherudonent of title for the Deposited
Securities, or evidence of the electronic tranfereof (if available), as the case may be, topomuthe written order of the person(s) design
in the order delivered to the Depositary for suatppse subject however, in each casethe terms and conditions of the Deposit Agreemen
of the ADRs evidencing the ADSs so cancelled, efAltticles of Association of the Company, of anplégable laws and of the rules of
CREST, and to the terms and conditions of or gangrthe Deposited Securities, in each case adactedt the time thereof.

The Depositary shall not accept for surrender ABsesenting less than one (1) Share. In the dabe @elivery to it of ADSs
representing a number other than a whole numb8hafes, the Depositary shall cause ownership aipthbeopriate whole number of Shares to
be Delivered in accordance with the terms heraul,shall, at the discretion of the Depositary, ezitfi) return to the person surrendering such
ADSs the number of ADSs representing any remaifrmgtional Share, or (ii) sell or cause to be gbklifractional Share represented by the
ADSs so surrendered and remit the proceeds of salehnet of (a) applicable fees and charges dfeapenses incurred by, the Depositary
(b) taxes withheld) to the person surrenderingAb&s.

Notwithstanding anything else contained in any A@rRhe Deposit Agreement, the Depositary may matieety at the Principal Office
of the Depositary of (i) any cash dividends or cdisitributions, or (ii) any proceeds from the safl@ny distributions of shares or rights, which
are at the time held by the Depositary in respétiie@Deposited Securities represented by
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the ADSs surrendered for cancellation and withdtadiathe request, risk and expense of any Holdesigrendering ADSs, and for the accc
of such Holder, the Depositary shall direct thet@disn to forward (to the extent permitted by lamy cash or other property (other than
securities) held by the Custodian in respect ofdbposited Securities represented by such ADSset@epositary for delivery at the Principal
Office of the Depositary. Such direction shall laeeg by letter or, at the request, risk and expafiseich Holder, by cable, telex or facsimile
transmission.

Section 2.8 Limitations on Execution and DeliveryTransfer, etc. of ADSs; Suspension of Delivery, Trasfer, etc.

(a) Additional Requirements. As a condition precedent to the execution and dgfivregistration of issuance, transfer, split-up,
combination or surrender, of any ADS, the delivefany distribution thereon, or the withdrawal ofydDeposited Securities, the Depositary or
the Custodian may require (i) payment from the dépoof Shares or presenter of ADSs or of an ADR sum sufficient to reimburse it for
any tax or other governmental charge and any dtacdisfer or registration fee with respect thera@tolgding any such tax or charge and fee
with respect to Shares being deposited or withdjamd payment of any applicable fees and chargdsedDepositary as provided in
Section 5.9 and Exhibit B(ii) the production of proof satisfactory to & to the identity and genuineness of any signaiussy other matter
contemplated by Section 3.1, and (iii) compliandth {A) any laws or governmental regulations relgtto the execution and delivery of ADRs
or ADSs or to the withdrawal of Deposited Secusitied (B) such reasonable regulations as the Dappsind the Company may establish
consistent with the provisions of the represen¢éaiDR, if applicable, the Deposit Agreement andligpple law.

(b) Additional Limitations . The issuance of ADSs against deposits of Sharesrainor against deposits of particular Shares by
suspended, or the deposit of particular Shareslbreagfused, or the registration of transfer of A@garticular instances may be refused, or
the registration of transfers of ADSs generally rbaysuspended, during any period when the trabsfgks of the Company, the Depositary, a
Registrar or the Share Registrar are closed anjifsaich action is deemed necessary or advisaktleebpepositary or the Company, in good
faith, at any time or from time to time becausewy requirement of law or regulation, any governnwergovernmental body or commission or
any securities exchange on which the ADSs or Srtarebsted, or under any provision of the DepAsjiteement or the representative ADR(S),
if applicable, or under any provision of, or govier) the Deposited Securities, or because of aintgeef shareholders of the Company or for
any other reason, subject, in all cases, to Se€ti®n

(c) Regulatory Restrictions. Notwithstanding any provision of the Deposit Agrearnor any ADR(s) to the contrary, Holders are
entitled to surrender outstanding ADSs to withdthes Deposited Securities associated herewith atiargysubject only to (i) temporary delays
caused by closing the transfer books of the Depasir the Company or the deposit of Shares in ection with voting at a shareholders’
meeting or the payment of dividends, (ii) the paptre fees, taxes and similar charges, (iii) coraptie with any U.S. or foreign laws or
governmental regulations relating to the ADSs ahwwithdrawal of the Deposited Securities, anl gther circumstances specifically
contemplated by Instruction I.A.(I) of the Gendradtructions to Form F-6 (as such General Instomstimay be amended from time to time).
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Section 2.9 Lost ADRs, etcIn case any ADR shall be mutilated, destroyed, lmsstolen, the Depositary shall execute and delivnew
ADR of like tenor at the expense of the Holder if@athe case of a mutilated ADR,exchange of and substitution for such mutilad&R upon
cancellation thereof, or (bin the case of a destroyed, lost or stolen ADRigu of and in substitution for such destroykedt, or stolen ADR,
after the Holder thereof (i) has submitted to thepBsitary a written request for such exchange abdtigution before the Depositary has notice
that the ADR has been acquired by a bona fide mset (ii) has provided such security or indem(iitgluding an indemnity bond) as may be
required by the Depositary to save it and anyo&gents harmless, and (i) has satisfied anyro#esonable requirements imposed by the
Depositary, including, without limitation, evidensatisfactory to the Depositary of such destructioss or theft of such ADR, the authenticity
thereof and the Holder’s ownership thereof.

Section 2.10 Cancellation and Destruction of Surratered ADRs; Maintenance of Records All ADRs surrendered to the Depositary
shall be canceled by the Depositary. Canceled AEIRH not be entitled to any benefits under thedd@pAgreement or be valid or enforcea
against the Depositary for any purpose. The Deaisis authorized to destroy ADRs so canceled,igeml/the Depositary maintains a record
of all destroyed ADRs. Any ADSs held in book-erfioym (i.e., through accounts at DTC) shall be deemed canedheth the Depositary
causes the number of ADSs evidenced by the Bal@dedificate to be reduced by the number of ADSseswdered (without the need to
physically destroy the Balance Certificate).

Section 2.11 Escheatmentln the event any unclaimed property relating toAfESs, for any reason, is in the possession of Biégy
and has not been claimed by the Holder thereo&onat be delivered to the Holder thereof throughalishannels, the Depositary shall, upon
expiration of any applicable statutory period rielgtto abandoned property laws, escheat such unethproperty to the relevant authorities in
accordance with the laws of each of the relevaaiteStof the United States.
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Section 2.12 Partial Entitlement ADSs In the event any Shares are deposited which (iflethe holders thereof to receive a per-share
distribution or other entitlement in an amount eliféfnt from the Shares then on deposit or (ii) atefully fungible (including, without
limitation, as to settlement or trading) with thieaBes then on deposit (the Shares then on demdigittively, “ Full Entitlement Sharésand
the Shares with different entittement, “ Partiatifement Share¥), the Depositary shall (i) cause the Custodiahdtd Partial Entitlement
Shares separate and distinct from Full EntitlenSrares, and (ii) subject to the terms of the Depggieement, issue ADSs representing
Partial Entitlement Shares which are separate tithct from the ADSs representing Full Entitlem&inares, by means of separate CUSIP
numbering and legending (if necessary) and, ifiapple, by issuing ADRs evidencing such ADSs witpblecable notations thereon (* Partial
Entitlement ADSs/ADRS and “ Full Entitlement ADSs/ADRS, respectively). If and when Partial Entitlememta®es become Full Entitlement
Shares, the Depositary shall (a) give notice thaeblolders of Partial Entittement ADSs and giveldters of Partial Entittement ADRs the
opportunity to exchange such Partial EntitlementRsOor Full Entittement ADRs, (b) cause the Cusdodio transfer the Partial Entitlement
Shares into the account of the Full Entittementr&aand (c) take such actions as are necesseggntave the distinctions between (i) the
Partial Entittement ADRs and ADSs, on the one hand, (i) the Full Entittement ADRs and ADSs on titer. Holders and Beneficial
Owners of Partial Entitlement ADSs shall only béitked to the entitlements of Partial Entitlememta®es. Holders and Beneficial Owners of
Full Entittement ADSs shall be entitled only to #titlements of Full Entittement Shares. All psions and conditions of the Deposit
Agreement shall apply to Partial Entitlement ADRsl &ADSs to the same extent as Full Entitlement ABR$ ADSs, except as contemplated
by this Section 2.12. The Depositary is authorizethke any and all other actions as may be negeésaluding, without limitation, making
the necessary notations on ADRS) to give effethéaterms of this Section 2.12. The Company agegs/e timely written notice to the
Depositary if any Shares issued or to be issueéPargal Entitlement Shares and shall assist theoBigary with the establishment of proced:
enabling the identification of Partial EntitlemeStiares upon Delivery to the Custodian.
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Section 2.13 Certificated/Uncertificated ADSs Notwithstanding any other provision of the Depdgireement, the Depositary may, at
any time and from time to time, issue ADSs thatrareevidenced by ADRs (such ADSs, the “ Unceddifiid ADS(s) and the ADS(s)
evidenced by ADR(s), the “ Certificated ADS{})When issuing and maintaining Uncertificated ABBunder the Deposit Agreement, the
Depositary shall at all times be subject to (i) stendards applicable to registrars and transfentagnaintaining direct registration systems for
equity securities in New York and issuing uncectifed securities under New York law, and (i) therts of New York law applicable to
uncertificated equity securities. Uncertificated @®shall not be represented by any instrumentshalk be evidenced by registration in the
books of the Depositary maintained for such purpbledders of Uncertificated ADSs, that are not ggbjo any registered pledges, liens,
restrictions or adverse claims of which the Depogihas notice at such time, shall at all timesehtae right to exchange the Uncertificated
ADS(s) for Certificated ADS(s) of the same type afaks, subject in each case to applicable lawsiapdules and regulations the Depositary
may have established in respect of the Uncertdt#®DSs. Holders of Certificated ADSs shall, if hepositary maintains a direct registration
system for the ADSs, have the right to exchangeCmtificated ADSs for Uncertificated ADSs upontfig due surrender of the Certificated
ADS(s) to the Depositary for such purpose andff@) presentation of a written request to that ¢fi@the Depositary, subject in each case to
(a) all liens and restrictions noted on the ADRdevicing the Certificated ADS(s) and all adversedeof which the Depositary then has
notice, (b) the terms of the Deposit Agreementtiiedrules and regulations that the Depositary nséghdish for such purposes hereunder,

(c) applicable law, and (d) payment of the Depogitaes and expenses applicable to such exchan@ertficated ADS(s) for Uncertificated
ADS(s). Uncertificated ADSs shall in all respectsitbentical to Certificated ADS(s) of the same tgpe class, except that (i) no ADR(s) shall
be, or shall need to be, issued to evidence Uficated ADS(s), (ii) Uncertificated ADS(s) shalylgect to the terms of the Deposit Agreen
be transferable upon the same terms and condii®nscertificated securities under New York laii), {the ownership of Uncertificated ADS
(s) shall be recorded on the books of the Depgsitaintained for such purpose and evidence of sugtership shall be reflected in periodic
statements provided by the Depositary to the H¢&lén accordance with applicable New York law) five Depositary may from time to time,
upon notice to the Holders of Uncertificated AD#eaed thereby, establish rules and regulationd,amend or supplement existing rules and
regulations, as may be deemed reasonably necdssagintain Uncertificated ADS(s) on behalf of Hetd, provided that (a) such rules and
regulations do not conflict with the terms of thefdsit Agreement and applicable law, and (b) thedef such rules and regulations are
readily available to Holders upon request, (v)tmeertificated ADS(s) shall not be entitled to d&gnefits under the Deposit Agreement or be
valid or enforceable for any purpose against thed3gary or the Company unless such Uncertific&tB&(s) is/are registered on the books of
the Depositary maintained for such purpose, (\@)Drepositary may, in connection with any deposiBléres resulting in the issuance of
Uncertificated ADSs and with any transfer, pledgégase and cancellation of Uncertificated ADSguire the prior receipt of such
documentation as the Depositary may deem reasoagblyppriate, and (vii) upon termination of the Dgip Agreement, the Depositary shall
not require Holders of Uncertificated ADSs to affatively instruct the Depositary before remittimgpgeeds from the sale of the Deposited
Securities represented by such Holders’ UncertditadDSs under the terms of Section 6.2 of the Bepgreement. When issuing ADSs
under the terms of the Deposit Agreement, inclugivithout
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limitation, issuances pursuant to Sections 2.5,412 4.4, 4.5 and 4.11, the Depositary may idigsretion determine to issue Uncertificated
ADSs rather than Certificated ADSs, unless othexwsisecifically instructed by the applicable Holtteissue Certificated ADSs. All provisions
and conditions of the Deposit Agreement shall applincertificated ADSs to the same extent as wif@ated ADSs, except as contemplated
by this Section 2.13. The Depositary is authoriaed directed to take any and all actions and astabhy and all procedures deemed
reasonably necessary to give effect to the terntBi®fSection 2.13. Any references in the Depogite®ment or any ADR(s) to the terms
“American Depositary Share(s)” or “ADS(s)” shalhlass the context otherwise requires, include Geated ADS(s) and Uncertificated ADS
(s). Except as set forth in this Section 2.13 arapt as required by applicable law, the Uncestfid ADSs shall be treated as ADSs issued
and outstanding under the terms of the Deposit &gent. In the event that, in determining the rigind obligations of parties hereto with
respect to any Uncertificated ADSs, any conflicgées between (a) the terms of the Deposit Agreeifotnér than this Section 2.13) and (b) the
terms of this Section 2.13, the terms and conditeet forth in this Section 2.13 shall be contngiland shall govern the rights and obligations
of the parties to the Deposit Agreement pertaitinthe Uncertificated ADSs.
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Section 2.14 Restricted ADSsThe Depositary shall, at the request and expengedfompany, establish procedures enabling the
deposit hereunder of Shares that are Restricteariies in order to enable the holder of such Sh#wehold its ownership interests in such
Restricted Shares in the form of ADSs issued utiteterms hereof (such Shares, “ Restricted Stiarepon receipt of a written request from
the Company to accept Restricted Shares for depestunder, the Depositary agrees to establisteduwes permitting the deposit of such
Restricted Shares and the issuance of ADSs refiilegehne right to receive, subject to the termshef Deposit Agreement and the applicable
ADR (if issued as a Certificated ADS), such depbRestricted Shares (such ADSs, the “ Restricle84\" and the ADRs evidencing such
Restricted ADSs, the * Restricted ADRs Notwithstanding anything contained in this Sect2.14, the Depositary and the Company may, to
the extent not prohibited by law, agree to isseeRkstricted ADSs in uncertificated form (* Uncictited Restricted ADSY upon such terms
and conditions as the Company and the Depositagydeam necessary and appropriate. The Companyastsidt the Depositary in the
establishment of such procedures and agrees tizdlittake all steps necessary and satisfactatyet®epositary to insure that the
establishment of such procedures does not vidi@@rtovisions of the Securities Act or any othesligpble laws. The depositors of such
Restricted Shares and the Holders of the Restrigz8ls may be required prior to the deposit of sReltricted Shares, the transfer of the
Restricted ADRs and Restricted ADSs or the withdian? the Restricted Shares represented by Redr&DSs to provide such written
certifications or agreements as the Depositarh@Gompany may require. The Company shall prowidbé Depositary in writing the legend
(s) to be affixed to the Restricted ADRs (if thesRieted ADSs are to be issued as Certificated AD3® to be included in the statements
issued from time to time to Holders of UncertifedtADSs (if issued as Uncertificated Restricted ARp®hich legends shall (i) be in a form
reasonably satisfactory to the Depositary andc¢intain the specific circumstances under whichRestricted ADSs, and, if applicable, the
Restricted ADRs evidencing the Restricted ADSs, mayransferred or the Restricted Shares withdrdla.Restricted ADSs issued upon the
deposit of Restricted Shares shall be separatehtified on the books of the Depositary and thetiResd Shares so deposited shall, to the
extent required by law, be held separate and disfiom the other Deposited Securities held hereunthe Restricted Shares and the
Restricted ADSs shall not be eligible for Pre-Rs¢e@ransactions. The Restricted ADSs shall notigible for inclusion in any book-entry
settlement system, including, without limitationT©, and shall not in any way be fungible with thB2s issued under the terms hereof tha
not Restricted ADSs. The Restricted ADSs, andpjfiaable, the Restricted ADRs evidencing the Retsidl ADSs, shall be transferable only
by the Holder thereof upon delivery to the Depagita (i) all documentation otherwise contemplabsdthe Deposit Agreement and (i) an
opinion of counsel satisfactory to the Depositattisg forth,inter alia, the conditions upon which the Restricted ADSsen¢ed, and, if
applicable, the Restricted ADRs evidencing the iRg#stl ADSs, are transferable by the Holder thetsmfer applicable securities laws and the
transfer restrictions contained in the legend aaplie to the Restricted ADSs presented for tranEferept as set forth in this Section 2.14 and
except as required by applicable law, the Resttiét®Ss and the Restricted ADRs evidencing Restié®Ss shall be treated as ADSs and
ADRs issued and outstanding under the terms ob#osit Agreement. In the event that, in deterngriire rights and obligations of parties
hereto with respect to any Restricted ADSs, anylicbiarises between (a) the terms of the Deposgite&ment (other than this Section 2.14)
(b) the terms of (i) this Section 2.14 or (ii) thgplicable Restricted ADR, the terms and conditietsforth in
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this Section 2.14 and of the Restricted ADR shaltbntrolling and shall govern the rights and ddtiigns of the parties to the Deposit
Agreement pertaining to the deposited Restricteaté&) the Restricted ADSs and Restricted ADRs.

If the Restricted ADRs, the Restricted ADSs andRkstricted Shares cease to be Restricted Sesuthie Depositary, upon receipt of (x) an
opinion of counsel satisfactory to the Depositattisg forth,inter alia, that the Restricted ADRs, the Restricted ADSsthedRestricted
Shares are not as of such time Restricted Seayrétie (y) instructions from the Company to remitnerestrictions applicable to the Restric
ADRs, the Restricted ADSs and the Restricted Shaktesdl (i) eliminate the distinctions and sepanatithat may have been established bet
the applicable Restricted Shares held on depodiruthis Section 2.14 and the other Shares hettepnosit under the terms of the Deposit
Agreement that are not Restricted Shares, (iif trteanewly unrestricted ADRs and ADSs on the stamas as, and fully fungible with, the
other ADRs and ADSs issued and outstanding unéetetims of the Deposit Agreement that are not Réstik ADRs or Restricted ADSs,

(iii) take all actions necessary to remove anyimisions, limitations and restrictions previouskisting under this Section 2.14 between the
applicable Restricted ADRs and Restricted ADSg@etvely, on the one hand, and the other ADRsAIDS8s that are not Restricted ADRs or
Restricted ADSs, respectively, on the other hamzluding, without limitation, by making the newlywestricted ADSs eligible for Pre-Release
Transactions and for inclusion in the applicableksentry settlement systems.

ARTICLE 1l

CERTAIN OBLIGATIONS OF HOLDERS
AND BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF ADSs

Section 3.1 Proofs, Certificates and Other Inform&bn . Any person presenting Shares for deposit, any Haldd any Beneficial
Owner may be required, and every Holder and Beiaéf@wner agrees, from time to time to providehe Depositary and the Custodian such
proof of citizenship or residence, taxpayer stagpagment of all applicable taxes or other goverriaerharges, exchange control approval,
legal or beneficial ownership of ADSs and DeposBedurities, compliance with applicable laws, #renis of the Deposit Agreement or the
ADR(s) evidencing the ADSs and the provisions ofgaverning, the Deposited Securities, to executd ertifications and to make such
representations and warranties, and to provide stigr information and documentation (or, in theecaf Shares in registered form presented
for deposit, such information relating to the régison on the books of the Company or of the SiRegistrar) as the Depositary or the
Custodian may deem necessary or proper or as thp&uw may reasonably require by written requettédepositary consistent with its
obligations under the Deposit Agreement and thdicgige ADR(s). The Depositary and the Registrarapplicable, may withhold the
execution or delivery or registration of transféaay ADR or ADS or the distribution or sale of adiyidend or distribution of rights or of the
proceeds thereof or, to the extent not limitedhe/terms of Section 7.8, the delivery of any DetgolsSecurities until such proof or other
information is filed or such certifications are exted, or such representations and warranties ade por such other documentation or
information provided, in each case to the Depogathe Registrar's and the Company’s satisfactidre Depositary shall provide the
Company, in a timely manner, with copies or
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originals if necessary and appropriate of (i) amghsproofs of citizenship or residence, taxpayatust or exchange control approval or copies
of written representations and warranties whialedeives from Holders and Beneficial Owners, andfiy other information or documents
which the Company may reasonably request and whiepositary shall request and receive from aolgét or Beneficial Owner or any
person presenting Shares for deposit or ADSs focalation, transfer or withdrawal. Nothing hershrall obligate the Depositary to (i) obtain
any information for the Company if not providedthg Holders or Beneficial Owners, or (i) verifyaouch for the accuracy of the informati
so provided by the Holders or Beneficial Owners.

Section 3.2 Liability for Taxes and Other Charges Any tax or other governmental charge payable byGhstodian or by the
Depositary with respect to any Deposited Securid3Ss or ADRs shall be payable by the Holders Bedeficial Owners to the Depositary.
The Company, the Custodian and/or the Depositagywitnhold or deduct from any distributions madeéspect of Deposited Securities, and
may sell for the account of a Holder and/or Benafi©owner any or all of the Deposited Securitied apply such distributions and sale
proceeds in payment of, any taxes (including apple interest and penalties) or charges that aneagrbe payable by Holders or Beneficial
Owners in respect of the ADSs, Deposited SecuriesADRS, the Holder and the Beneficial Owner riging liable for any deficiency. The
Custodian may refuse the deposit of Shares anDé¢pesitary may refuse to issue ADSs, to deliver ADiegister the transfer of ADSs,
register the split-up or combination of ADRs andbfect to Section 7.8) the withdrawal of Deposigsturities until payment in full of such
tax, charge, penalty or interest is received. Evoider and Beneficial Owner agrees to indemniy Brepositary, the Company, the Custod
and any of their agents, officers, employees arfiligés for, and to hold each of them harmlessfrany claims with respect to taxes
(including applicable interest and penalties thefewising from any tax benefit obtained for suabidér and/or Beneficial Owner.

Section 3.3 Representations and Warranties on Degbsf Shares. Each person depositing Shares under the Deposétetgznt shall
be deemed thereby to represent and warrant theuch) Shares and the certificates therefor arealutlyorized, validly issued, fully paid, non-
assessable and legally obtained by such perspall(greemptive (and similar) rights, if any, witkspect to such Shares have been validly
waived or exercised, (iii) the person making suepasit is duly authorized so to do, (iv) the Shamesented for deposit are free and clear of
any lien, encumbrance, security interest, chargetgage or adverse claim, and (v) the Shares pie$éor deposit are not, and the ADSs
issuable upon such deposit will not be, Restri@edurities (except as contemplated in Section 2&i%) (vi) the Shares presented for deposit
have not been stripped of any rights or entitlemedtich representations and warranties shall suthisr deposit and withdrawal of Shares, the
issuance and cancellation of ADSs in respect tiened the transfer of such ADSs. If any such regm&gtions or warranties are false in any
way, the Company and the Depositary shall be aizdwbrat the cost and expense of the person demgpShares, to take any and all actions
necessary to correct the consequences thereof.

Section 3.4 Compliance with Information ReqguestsNotwithstanding any other provision of the Depdsireement or any ADR(s),
each Holder and Beneficial Owner agrees to
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comply with requests from the Company pursuanpfieable law and any stock exchange on which teré&s or ADSs are, or will be,
registered, traded or listed or the Articles of @dation of the Company, which are made to prowudermation,inter alia, as to the capacity
which such Holder or Beneficial Owner owns ADSsd&hares as the case may be) and regarding thiydefrany other person(s) interested
in such ADSs and the nature of such interest andwsother matters, whether or not they are Halded/or Beneficial Owners at the time of
such request. The Depositary agrees to use iterebke efforts to forward, upon the request of@oeepany and at the Company’s expense,
any such request from the Company to the Holdedg@forward to the Company any such responsesdio kequests received by the
Depositary.

Section 3.5 Ownership Restrictions Notwithstanding any other provision in the Depdgjreement or any ADR, the Company may
restrict transfers of the Shares where such transfght result in ownership of Shares exceedingtéiimposed by applicable law or the
Articles of Association of the Company. The Compargy also restrict, in such manner as it deemsogpjate, transfers of the ADSs where
such transfer may result in the total number ofr&haepresented by the ADSs owned by a single HoldBeneficial Owner to exceed any
such limits. The Company may, in its sole discretoit subject to applicable law, instruct the Défaog to take action with respect to the
ownership interest of any Holder or Beneficial Owimeexcess of the limits set forth in the precgdéentence, including, but not limited to, the
imposition of restrictions on the transfer of AD8% removal or limitation of voting rights or maxtdry sale or disposition on behalf of a
Holder or Beneficial Owner of the Shares represthtethe ADSs held by such Holder or Beneficial @wim excess of such limitations, if a
to the extent such disposition is permitted by maple law and the Articles of Association of then@pany. Nothing herein shall be interpreted
as obligating the Depositary or the Company to ensampliance with the ownership restrictions diésct in this Section 3.5.

Section 3.6Reporting Obligations and Regulatory Approvafspplicable laws and regulations may require hiddnd beneficial owners
of Shares, including the Holders and Beneficial @xgrof ADSs, to satisfy reporting requirements abthin regulatory approvals in certain
circumstances. Holders and Beneficial Owners of AB& solely responsible for determining and coimpglyith such reporting requirements
and obtaining such approvals. Each Holder and Badieficial Owner hereby agrees to make such detation, file such reports, and obtain
such approvals to the extent and in the form reglay applicable laws and regulations as in effech time to time. Neither the Depositary,
the Custodian, the Company or any of their respe&gents or affiliates shall be required to take actions whatsoever on behalf of Holders
or Beneficial Owners to determine or satisfy sughorting requirements or obtain such regulatory@gds under applicable laws and
regulations.

ARTICLE IV
THE DEPOSITED SECURITIES

Section 4.1 Cash Distributions Whenever the Company intends to make a distribudfancash dividend or other cash distribution, the
Company shall give notice thereof to the Depositdrgast twenty (20) days prior to the proposetritiution. specifyinginter
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alia , the record date applicable for determining thieléws of Deposited Securities entitled to receivehsdistribution. Upon the timely receipt
of such notice, the Depositary shall establish &8ARecord Date upon the terms described in Sedt@nJpon receipt of confirmation from
the Custodian of the receipt of any cash dividendtleer cash distribution on any Deposited Seasi;jtor upon receipt of proceeds from the
sale of any Deposited Securities or any otherlent#énts held in respect of Deposited Securitiegutite terms hereof, the Depositary will

(i) if at the time of receipt thereof any amourgseaived in a Foreign Currency can, in the judgnoétite Depositary (pursuant to Section 4.8),
be converted on a practicable basis into Dollamsdferable to the United States, promptly convecaose to be converted such cash dividend,
distribution or proceeds into Dollars (on the tewhescribed in Section 4.8), (ii) if applicable amdess previously established, establish the
ADS Record Date upon the terms described in Sedti®nand (iii) distribute promptly the amount threseived (net of (a) the applicable fees
and charges of, and expenses incurred by, the Rapoand (b) taxes withheld) to the Holders eatitthereto as of the ADS Record Date in
proportion to the number of ADSs held as of the AR®ord Date. The Depositary shall distribute augh amount, however, as can be
distributed without attributing to any Holder adt@n of one cent, and any balance not so disgithghall be held by the Depositary (without
liability for interest thereon) and shall be adde@nd become part of the next sum received byp#positary for distribution to Holders of
ADSs outstanding at the time of the next distribotilf the Company, the Custodian or the Deposigrgquiredo withhold and does withho
from any cash dividend or other cash distributioneispect of any Deposited Securities an amouatoaunt of taxes, duties or other
governmental charges, the amount distributed talétslon the ADSs representing such Deposited Siesushall be reduced accordingly. S
withheld amounts shall be forwarded by the Compé#rg Custodian or the Depositary to the relevanegumental authority. Evidence of
payment thereof by the Company shall be forwardethe Company to the Depositary upon request. TéygoBitary will hold any cash
amounts it is unable to distribute in a non-intebesaring account for the benefit of the applicdtddders and Beneficial Owners of ADSs until
the distribution can be effected or the funds thatDepositary holds must be escheated as unclginogerty in accordance with the laws of
the relevant states of the United States.

Section 4.2 Distribution in Shares Whenever the Company intends to make a distributiahconsists of a dividend in, or free
distribution of, Shares, the Company shall giveagothereof to the Depositary at least twenty (@&)s prior to the proposed distribution,
specifying,inter alia , the record date applicable to holders of Depds®ecurities entitled to receive such distributidpon the timely receipt
of such notice from the Company, the Depositaryl gssablish the ADS Record Date upon the termsritlesd in Section 4.9. Upon receipt of
confirmation from the Custodian of the receiptttd Shares so distributed by the Company, the Depgsihall either (i) subject to Section £
distribute to the Holders as of the ADS Record Datgroportion to the number of ADSs held as of #izS Record Date, additional ADSs,
which represent in the aggregate the number ofeShaceived as such dividend, or free distributsibject to the other terms of the Deposit
Agreement (including, without limitation, (a) thpmicable fees and charges of, and expenses intbyrethe Depositary and (b) taxes), or
(i) if additional ADSs are not so distributed, ¢&alill actions necessary so that each ADS issueduatsthnding after the ADS Record Date
shall, to the extent permissible by law, thencéfatso represent rights and interests in the additiintegral
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number of Shares distributed upon the Depositedr8s represented thereby (net of (a) the applecéees and charges of, and expenses
incurred by, the Depositary and (b) taxes). In bédelivering fractional ADSs, the Depositary disalll the number of Shares or ADSs, as the
case may be, represented by the aggregate of maatlohs and distribute the net proceeds uponetiiest described in Section 4.1. In the event
that the Depositary determines that any distributioproperty (including Shares) is subject to tayor other governmental charges which the
Depositary is obligated to withhold, or, if the Cpamy in the fulfillment of its obligation under Sien 5.7, has furnished an opinion of U.S.
counsel determining that Shares must be registerddr the Securities Act or other laws in ordépealistributed to Holders (and no such
registration statement has been declared effective)Depositary may dispose of all or a portioswéh property (including Shares and rights
to subscribe therefor) in such amounts and in saghner, including by public or private sale, asBepositary deems necessary and
practicable, and the Depositary shall distribugeribt proceeds of any such sale (after deducti¢a)déixes and (b) fees and charges of, and
expenses incurred by, the Depositary) to Holdetitleoh thereto upon the terms described in Sectidn The Depositary shall hold and/or
distribute any unsold balance of such propertyctoadance with the provisions of the Deposit Agrertn

Section 4.3 Elective Distributions in Cash or Share. Whenever the Company intends to make a distribygayrable at the election of
the holders of Shares in cash or in additional &ahe Company shall give timely notice theredh®Depositary at least sixty (60) days prior
to the proposed distribution specifyingter alia , the record date applicable to holders of Depds#tecurities entitled to receive such elective
distribution and whether or not it wishes such #@lecdistribution to be made available to Holdef&\BSs. Upon the timely receipt of a notice
indicating that the Company wishes such electiggrihution to be made available to Holders of ADis, Depositary shall consult with the
Company to determine, and the Company shall ab&idDepositary in its determination, whether taiwful and reasonably practicable to mi
such elective distribution available to the Holdef#\DSs. The Depositary shall make such electig&idution available to Holders only if
(i) the Company shall have timely requested thatdlective distribution be made available to Haddéir) the Depositary shall have determined
that such distribution is reasonably practicable @ii) the Depositary shall have received satigfac documentation within the terms of
Section 5.7. If the above conditions are not satisfthe Depositary shall establish an ADS Recaate®n the terms described in Section 4.9
and, to the extent permitted by law, distributéh® Holders, on the basis of the same determinasds made in respect of the Shares for w
no election is made, either (X) cash upon the tatessribed in Section 4.1 or (Y) additional ADSgresenting such additional Shares upor
terms described in Section 4.2. If the above canitare satisfied, the Depositary shall estaldisiA\DS Record Date on the terms describe
Section 4.9 and establish procedures to enablegrotd elect the receipt of the proposed distrdvutin cash or in additional ADSs. The
Company shall assist the Depositary in establishirah procedures to the extent necessary. If agdfiel@cts to receive the proposed
distribution (X) in cash, the distribution shall beade upon the terms described in Section 4.1Yoin(ADSs, the distribution shall be made
upon the terms described in Section 4.2. Nothirgiheshall obligate the Depositary to make avadablHolders a method to receive the
elective distribution in Shares (rather than ADS%)ere can be no assurance that Holders genevalyny Holder in particular, will be given
the opportunity to receive elective distributiomstbe same terms and conditions as the holderbaresS.
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Section 4.4 Distribution of Rights to Purchase Addional ADSs.

(a) Distribution to ADS Holders . Whenever the Company intends to distribute to tilddrs of the Deposited Securities rights to
subscribe for additional Shares, the Company gjixad notice thereof to the Depositary at leastys{80) days prior to the proposed distribut
specifying,inter alia , the record date applicable to holders of Depds®ecurities entitled to receive such distributama whether or not it
wishes such rights to be made available to HoldeADSs. Upon the timely receipt of a notice indiog that the Company wishes such rights
to be made available to Holders of ADSs, the Daposihall consult with the Company to determimeg the Company shall assist the
Depositary in its determination, whether it is laldnd reasonably practicable to make such rigiddable to the Holders. The Depositary
shall make such rights available to Holders only)ithe Company shall have timely requested thahgights be made available to Holders,
(i) the Depositary shall have received satisfacwcumentation within the terms of Section 5.4 &ii) the Depositary shall have determined
that such distribution of rights is reasonably ficable. In the event any of the conditions settf@bove are not satisfied or if the Company
requests that the rights not be made availableotdetis of ADSs, the Depositary shall proceed whith sale of the rights as contemplated in
Section 4.4(b) below. In the event all conditioasferth above are satisfied, the Depositary sksthblish an ADS Record Date (upon the te
described in Section 4.9) and establish procedorég distribute rights to purchase additional AD®y means of warrants or otherwise), (
enable the Holders to exercise such rights (upgmpat of the subscription price and of the appliedh) fees and charges of, and expenses
incurred by, the Depositary and (b) taxes), andq»eliver ADSs upon the valid exercise of sugnt$. The Company shall assist the
Depositary to the extent necessary in establishirodp procedures. Nothing herein shall obligatdtepositary to make available to the Hold
a method to exercise rights to subscribe for Shiaatiser than ADSSs).

(b) Sale of Rights. If (i) the Company does not timely request the B#faoy to make the rights available to Holderseguests that the
rights not be made available to Holders, (ii) thepDsitary fails to receive satisfactory documeatatiithin the terms of Section 5.7 or
determines it is not reasonably practicable to niakeights available to Holders, or (iii) any righmade available are not exercised and appea
to be about to lapse, the Depositary shall detexminether it is lawful and reasonably practicableell such rights, in a riskless principal
capacity, at such place and upon such terms (imdualiblic or private sale) as it may deem pratlieaThe Company shall assist the
Depositary to the extent necessary to determink gality and practicability. The Depositary shafpon such sale, convert and distribute
proceeds of such sale (net of applicable (a) fadscharges of, and expenses incurred by, the Dieppsind (b) taxes) upon the terms set forth
in Section 4.1.

(c) Lapse of Rights. If the Depositary is unable to make any rights ke to Holders upon the terms described in Seectid(a) or to
arrange for the sale of the rights upon the teressidbed in Section 4.4(b), the Depositary sh&dvabkuch rights to lapse.
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The Depositary shall not be responsible for (i) &ailure to determine that it may be lawful or greable to make such rights available to
Holders in general or any Holders in particuldy,gny foreign exchange exposure or loss incumecbnnection with such sale, or exercise, or
(iiif) the content of any materials forwarded to thelders on behalf of the Company in connectiorhlite rights distribution.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in thisten 4.4, if registration (under the Securities Acany other applicable law) of the
rights or the securities to which any rights relaigy be required in order for the Company to offech rights or such securities to Holders and
to sell the securities represented by such righésPepositary will not distribute such rights lbe tHolders (i) unless and until a registration
statement under the Securities Act (or other applelaw) covering such offering is in effect @y (inless the Company furnishes the
Depositary opinion(s) of counsel for the Companthie United States and counsel to the Companyyirotirer applicable country in which
rights would be distributed, in each case satisfgdb the Depositary, to the effect that the offgrand sale of such securities to Holders and
Beneficial Owners are exempt from, or do not regjuégistration under, the provisions of the Se@gifct or any other applicable laws.

In the event that the Company, the Depositary @Ghstodian shall be required to withhold and dagshold from any distribution of
property (including rights) an amount on accountases or other governmental charges, the amostithdited to the Holders of ADSs
representing such Deposited Securities shall becestlaccordingly. In the event that the Deposititgrmines that any distribution in property
(including Shares and rights to subscribe theregoslibject to any tax or other governmental chargeich the Depositary is obligated to
withhold, the Depositary may dispose of all or atijpm of such property (including Shares and rightsubscribe therefor) in such amounts and
in such manner, including by public or private sakethe Depositary deems necessary and practicapsy any such taxes or charges.

There can be no assurance that Holders generaiynyoHolder in particular, will be given the ophaonity to receive or exercise rights on
the same terms and conditions as the holders gESloa be able to exercise such rights. Nothingiheshall obligate the Company to file any
registration statement in respect of any rightStoatres or other securities to be acquired upomxbecise of such rights.

Section 4.5 Distributions Other Than Cash, Sharesrdrights to Purchase Shares

(a) Whenever the Company intends to distribute to thlddrs of Deposited Securities property other thash, Shares or rights to
purchase additional Shares, the Company shalltgnedy notice thereof to the Depositary and shadi¢ate whether or not it wishes such
distribution to be made to Holders of ADSs. Upoceipt of a notice indicating that the Company wgshkech distribution be made to Holders
of ADSs, the Depositary shall consult with the Camp, and the Company shall assist the Depositagetermine whether such distribution to
Holders is lawful and reasonably practicable. Tlpdsitary shall not make such distribution unl@sthé Company shall have requested the
Depositary to make such distribution to Holder§,tie Depositary shall have received satisfacttmgumentation within the terms of
Section 5.7, and (iii) the Depositary shall haveedained that such distribution is reasonably pcable.
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(b) Upon receipt of satisfactory documentation andrégeiest of the Company to distribute property téddis of ADSs and after makil
the requisite determinations set forth in (a) abtlve Depositary shall distribute the propertyeceived to the Holders of record, as of the /
Record Date, in proportion to the number of ADSlsl iy them respectively and in such manner as #@oBitary may deem practicable for
accomplishing such distribution (i) upon receippalyment or net of the applicable fees and chasfjeend expenses incurred by, the
Depositary, and (ii) net of any taxes withheld. Depositary may dispose of all or a portion of pineperty so distributed and deposited, in
such amounts and in such manner (including publrivate sale) as the Depositary may deem prdaléoar necessary to satisfy any taxes
(including applicable interest and penalties) dreotgovernmental charges applicable to the digicghu

(c) If (i) the Company does not request the Deposttamake such distribution to Holders or requestamonake such distribution to
Holders, (ii) the Depositary does not receive $ati®ry documentation within the terms of Sectioh, r (iii) the Depositary determines that
all or a portion of such distribution is not reaably practicable, the Depositary shall sell or easisch property to be sold in a public or private
sale, at such place or places and upon such terihsnay deem practicable and shall (i) cause thegeds of such sale, if any, to be converted
into Dollars and (ii) distribute the proceeds oflsewonversion received by the Depositary (net pliagble (a) fees and charges of, and
expenses incurred by, the Depositary and (b) taxethle Holders as of the ADS Record Date upondhas of Section 4.1. If the Depositary is
unable to sell such property, the Depositary mapake of such property for the account of the Hsldeany way it deems reasonably
practicable under the circumstances.

Section 4.6 Distributions with Respect to Deposite8ecurities in Bearer Form. Subject to the terms of this Article 1V, distriboris in
respect of Deposited Securities that are held eyDipositary in bearer form shall be made to theoBiary for the account of the respective
Holders of ADS(s) with respect to which any sucstribution is made upon due presentation by theoBigry or the Custodian to the
Company of any relevant coupons, talons, or cedifis. The Company shall promptly notify the Defaogiof such distributions. The
Depositary or the Custodian shall promptly preseich coupons, talons or certificates, as the cageb®, in connection with any such
distribution.

Section 4.7 Redemption If the Company intends to exercise any right ofragtion in respect of any of the Deposited Seas;tihe
Company shall give timely notice thereof to the Bsfary at least sixty (60) days prior to the imted date of redemption which notice shall
forth the particulars of the proposed redemptiopottimely receipt of (i) such notice and (ii) s&ictory documentation given by the
Company to the Depositary within the terms of Ssth.7, and only if the Depositary shall have deteed that such proposed redemption is
practicable, the Depositary shall provide to eackdelr a notice setting forth the intended exerbiséhe Company of the redemption rights
any other particulars set forth in the Company’saeoto the Depositary. The Depositary shall instthe Custodian to present to the Company
the Deposited Securities in respect of which red&mpights are being exercised
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against payment of the applicable redemption ptigen receipt of confirmation from the Custodiaattthe redemption has taken place and
that funds representing the redemption price haemneceived, the Depositary shall convert, tranafed distribute the proceeds (net of
applicable (a) fees and charges of, and the expenesearred by, the Depositary, and (b) taxes)reedDSs and cancel ADRs, if applicable,
upon delivery of such ADSs by Holders thereof drelterms set forth in Sections 4.1 and 6.2. If thas all outstanding Deposited Securities
are redeemed, the ADSs to be retired will be setEby lot or on a pro rata basis, as may be detexiridy the Depositary. The redemption f.
per ADS shall be the dollar equivalent of the geare amount received by the Depositary (adjustedftect the ADS(s)-tdShare(s) ratio) upc
the redemption of the Deposited Securities reptesdny ADSs (subject to the terms of Section 4@the applicable fees and charges of, and
expenses incurred by, the Depositary, and taxeHjpied by the number of Deposited Securities esgnted by each ADS redeemed.

Section 4.8 Conversion of Foreign Currency Whenever the Depositary or the Custodian shallivedeoreign Currency, by way of
dividends or other distributions or the net prosefedm the sale of securities, property or rightsich in the judgment of the Depositary can at
such time be converted on a practicable basisaleya in any other manner that it may determinadcordance with applicable law, into
Dollars transferable to the United States andidistable to the Holders entitled thereto, the Dé&pog shall convert or cause to be converted,
by sale or in any other manner that it may deteensunich Foreign Currency into Dollars, and shalritiute such Dollars (net of any applicable
fees, any reasonable and customary expenses idéarseich conversion and any expenses incurrecgebalbof the Holders in complying with
currency exchange control or other governmentalirements) in accordance with the terms of theiagple sections of the Deposit
Agreement. If the Depositary shall have distributetrants or other instruments that entitle theléd thereof to such Dollars, the Depositary
shall distribute such Dollars to the holders offsu@rrants and/or instruments upon surrender tifiéosecancellation, in either case without
liability for interest thereon. Such distributioragnbe made upon an averaged or other practicabls Without regard to any distinctions am
Holders on account of any application of excharggtrictions or otherwise.

If such conversion or distribution generally orlwitgard to a particular Holder can be effected anth the approval or license of any
government or agency thereof, the Depositary $taale authority to file such application for appros@license, if any, as it may deem
desirable. In no event, however, shall the Depnsha obligated to make such a filing.

If at any time the Depositary shall determine thdts judgment the conversion of any Foreign Cuoeseand the transfer and distribution
of proceeds of such conversion received by the Biggny is not practicable or lawful, or if any appal or license of any governmental
authority or agency thereof that is required farhsaonversion, transfer and distribution is derdgdn the opinion of the Depositary, not
obtainable at a reasonable cost or within a reddeneeriod, the Depositary may, in its discretiGhmake such conversion and distribution in
Dollars to the Holders for whom such conversioansfer and distribution is lawful and practicalfig,distribute the Foreign Currency (or an
appropriate document evidencing the right to rexzsivch Foreign Currency) to Holders for whom thikivful and practicable or (iii) hold (or
cause the Custodian to hold) such Foreign Currénitiiout liability for interest thereon) for thesggective accounts of the Holders entitled to
receive the same.
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Section 4.9 Fixing of ADS Record DateWhenever the Depositary shall receive notice ofitlieg of a record date by the Company for
the determination of holders of Deposited Secwrigintitied to receive any distribution (whethec@sh, Shares, rights, or other distribution), or
whenever for any reason the Depositary causesragehia the number of Shares that are representeddly ADS, or whenever the Depositary
shall receive notice of any meeting of, or solitita of consents or proxies of, holders of Sharestioer Deposited Securities, or whenever the
Depositary shall find it necessary or conveniertannection with the giving of any notice, solitibe of any consent or any other matter, the
Depositary shall fix a record date (the “ ADS Retbrate”) for the determination of the Holders of ADS(shavshall be entitled to receive
such distribution, to give instructions for the mige of voting rights at any such meeting, to givevithhold such consent, to receive such
notice or solicitation or to otherwise take actionto exercise the rights of Holders with resgectuch changed number of Shares represented
by each ADS. The Depositary shall make reasondfig®to establish the ADS Record Date as clogslypossible to the applicable record
for the Deposited Securities (if any) set by thenpany under English law and the Companktticles of Association. Subject to applicable
and the provisions of Section 4.1 through 4.8 anithé other terms and conditions of the Deposite&grent, only the Holders of ADSs at the
close of business in New York on such ADS RecorteBaall be entitled to receive such distributimngive such voting instructions, to
receive such notice or solicitation, or otherwisket action.

Section 4.10 Voting of Deposited SecuritiesAs soon as practicable after receipt of noticemyf meeting at which the holders of
Deposited Securities are entitled to vote, or d¢it&ation of consents or proxies from holders @gosited Securities, the Depositary shall fix
the ADS Record Date in respect of such meetinglicisation of consent or proxy in accordance wtbction 4.9. The Depositary shall, if
requested by the Company in writing in a timely mam(the Depositary having no obligation to takg famther action if the request shall not
have been received by the Depositary at leasytt8a) days prior to the date of such vote or rmegtiat the Company’s expense and provided
no U.S. legal prohibitions exist, distribute to Hefs as of the ADS Record Date: (a) such notigaedting or solicitation of consent or proxy,
(b) a statement that the Holders at the close siness on the ADS Record Date will be entitledjettito any applicable law, the provisions of
the Deposit Agreement, the Articles of Associatidéithe Company and the provisions of or governmgDeposited Securities (which
provisions, if any, shall be summarized in pertirgart by the Company), to instruct the Deposi&syto the exercise of the voting rights, if
any, pertaining to the Deposited Securities represkeby such Holder’'s ADSs, and (c) a brief stat@nas to the manner in which such voting
instructions may be given.

Notwithstanding anything contained in the Depogitdement or any ADR, with the Company’s prior canisthe Depositary may, to the
extent not prohibited by law or regulations, ortbg requirements of the stock exchange on whictADSs are listed, in lieu of distribution of
the materials provided to the Depositary in conipectvith any meeting of, or solicitation of conseot proxies from, holders of Deposited
Securities, distribute to the Holders a notice giravides Holders with, or otherwise publicize toléters, instructions on how to retrieve such
materials or receive such materials upon requiest,(by reference to a website containing the matefa@l retrieval or a contact for requesting
copies of the materials).
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Voting instructions may be given only in respectiofumber of ADSs representing an integral numb&eposited Securities. Upon the
timely receipt from a Holder of ADSs as of the AB8cord Date of voting instructions in the mannexc#iied by the Depositary, the
Depositary shall endeavor, insofar as practicabte@ermitted under applicable law, the provisiohthe Deposit Agreement, Articles of
Association of the Company and the provisions eflfeposited Securities, to vote, or cause the @isstdo vote, the Deposited Securities (in
person or by proxy) represented by such Holder'SAIh accordance with such voting instructions.

Neither the Depositary nor the Custodian shall uiaae circumstances exercise any discretion astioy and neither the Depositary nor
the Custodian shall vote, attempt to exerciseititd to vote, or in any way make use of the DegaksBecurities represented by ADSs, except
pursuant to and in accordance with the voting irtsions timely received from Holders or as otheendgsntemplated herein. If the Depositary
timely receives voting instructions from a Holddmieh fail to specify the manner in which the Depasi is to vote the Deposited Securities
represented by such Holder’'s ADSs, the Depositaitydaem such Holder (unless otherwise specifiethanotice distributed to Holders) to
have instructed the Depositary to vote in favothef items set forth in such voting instructionspbBgited Securities represented by ADSs for
which no timely voting instructions are receivedtbg Depositary from the Holder shall not be votédtwithstanding anything else contained
herein, the Depositary shall, if so requested iting by the Company, represent all Deposited Sgear(whether or not voting instructions
have been received in respect of such Depositedriies from Holders as of the ADS Record Date)tfa sole purpose of establishing quo
at a meeting of shareholders.

Notwithstanding anything else contained in the D#phgreement or any ADR, the Depositary shall lmte any obligation to take any
action with respect to any meeting, or solicitatdfrconsents or proxies, of holders of Depositecu8iges if the taking of such action would
violate U.S. laws. The Company agrees to take adya#l actions reasonably necessary to enable IHolted Beneficial Owners to exercise
voting rights accruing to the Deposited Securiéird to deliver to the Depositary an opinion of le&unsel addressing any actions request
be taken if so requested by the Depositary.

There can be no assurance that Holders generadigyoHolder in particular will receive the noticesdribed above with sufficient time to
enable the Holder to return voting instructionsh® Depositary in a timely manner.

Section 4.11 Changes Affecting Deposited Securitiepon any change in nominal or par value, splitagmcellation, consolidation or
any other reclassification of Deposited Securiti@g)jpon any recapitalization, reorganization, mergonsolidation or sale of assets affecting
the Company or to which it is a party, any secesitivhich shall be received by the Depositary oiGhstodian in exchange for, or in
conversion of or replacement of or otherwise ipees of, such Deposited Securities shall, to therexpermitted by law, be treated as new
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Deposited Securities under the Deposit Agreemett tlae ADRs shall, subject to the provisions of Bleposit Agreement and applicable law,
evidence ADSs representing the right to receivé sudtditional or replacement securities. In givifffge to such change, split-up, cancellation,
consolidation or other reclassification of Depasifecurities, recapitalization, reorganization, geer consolidation or sale of assets, the
Depositary may, with the Company’s approval, arallsi the Company shall so request, subject eotdrms of the Deposit Agreement and
receipt of an opinion of counsel to the Companisattory to the Depositary that such actions ateimviolation of any applicable laws or
regulations, (i) issue and deliver additional ARSsn the case of a stock dividend on the Shaiganfend the Deposit Agreement and the
applicable ADRs, (iii) amend the applicable Registm Statement(s) on Form F-6 as filed with then@ussion in respect of the ADSs,

(iv) call for the surrender of outstanding ADRsmexchanged for new ADRs, and (v) take such atbions as are appropriate to reflect the
transaction with respect to the ADSs. The Compaymges to, jointly with the Depositary, amend thgiReation Statement on Form F-6 as
filed with the Commission to permit the issuancswéh new form of ADRs. Notwithstanding the foregpiin the event that any security so
received may not be lawfully distributed to somelbHolders, the Depositary may, with the Compampproval, and shall, if the Company
requests, subject to receipt of an opinion of Camfsacounsel satisfactory to the Depositary thahsaction is not in violation of any
applicable laws or regulations, sell such securiéiepublic or private sale, at such place or [@acel upon such terms as it may deem proper
and may allocate the net proceeds of such salésf((&) fees and charges of, and expenses incbyretihe Depositary and (b) taxes) for the
account of the Holders otherwise entitled to siextusties upon an averaged or other practicablis béathout regard to any distinctions among
such Holders and distribute the net proceeds soatkd to the extent practicable as in the casedigtribution received in cash pursuant to
Section 4.1. The Depositary shall not be respoadin (i) any failure to determine that it may b&vful or practicable to make such securities
available to Holders in general or to any Holdepanticular, (ii) any foreign exchange exposuréogs incurred in connection with such sale
(i) any liability to the purchaser of such seci@s.

Section 4.12 Available Information.

The Company is subject to the periodic reportingineements of the Exchange Act and, accordinglyedgiired to file or submit certain
reports with the Commission. These reports caretseeved from the Commission’s website (www.sec)gowd can be inspected and copied at
the public reference facilities maintained by th@r@nission located (as of the date of the DeposieAgent) at 100 F Street, N.E., Washiny
D.C. 20549.

Section 4.13 Reports The Depositary shall make available for inspecbgrHolders at its Principal Office any reports and
communications, including any proxy soliciting nrédés, received from the Company which are bothréapived by the Depositary, the
Custodian, or the nominee of either of them astiider of the Deposited Securities and (b) madegdly available to the holders of such
Deposited Securities by the Company. The Depos#hajl also provide or make available to Holdengies of such reports when furnished by
the Company pursuant to Section 5.6.
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Section 4.14 List of Holders Promptly upon written request by the Company, teeditary shall furnish to it a list, as of a retcdate,
of the names, addresses and holdings of ADSs éfadlers.

Section 4.15 Taxation The Depositary will, and will instruct the Custand to, forward to the Company or its agents saébrination
from its records as the Company may reasonablyestda enable the Company or its agents to filewdwessary tax reports with governmental
authorities or agencies. The Depositary, the Cietodr the Company and its agents may file sucbrte@s are necessary to reduce or
eliminate applicable taxes on dividends and onradiributions in respect of Deposited Securitiager applicable tax treaties or laws for the
Holders and Beneficial Owners. In accordance wiitructions from the Company and to the extenttimalule, the Depositary or the Custoc
will take reasonable administrative actions to obtax refunds, reduced withholding of tax at seuoo dividends and other benefits under
applicable tax treaties or laws with respect tad#inds and other distributions on the Depositedifes. As a condition to receiving such
benefits, Holders and Beneficial Owners of ADSs ayequired from time to time, and in a timely man to file such proof of taxpayer
status, residence and beneficial ownership (ascatbt), to execute such certificates and to maké sepresentations and warranties, or to
provide any other information or documents, asibpositary or the Custodian may deem necessarsopepto fulfill the Depositary’s or the
Custodian’s obligations under applicable law. Ttadddrs and Beneficial Owners shall indemnify theoBstary, the Company, the Custodian
and any of their respective directors, employegents and Affiliates against, and hold each of themmless from, any claims by any
governmental authority with respect to taxes, aoldit to tax, penalties or interest arising outrof eefund of taxes, reduced rate of withholding
at source or other tax benefit obtained.

If the Company (or any of its agents) withholdstirany distribution any amount on account of taxegawvernmental charges, or pays
any other tax in respect of such distributiare(, stamp duty tax, capital gains or other similaj tthe Company shall (and shall cause such
agent to) remit promptly to the Depositary inforfraatabout such taxes or governmental charges widhdrepaid, and, if so requested, the tax
receipt (or other proof of payment to the applieaipbvernmental authority) therefor, in each case, form satisfactory to the Depositary. The
Depositary shall, to the extent required by U.8, leeport to Holders any taxes withheld by it o& tbustodian, and, if such information is
provided to it by the Company, any taxes withheldh®e Company. The Depositary and the Custodiath sbiabe required to provide the
Holders with any evidence of the remittance byGloenpany (or its agents) of any taxes withheld,fdhe payment of taxes by the Company,
except to the extent the evidence is provided byGbmpany to the Depositary or the Custodian, picatle. Neither the Depositary nor the
Custodian shall be liable for the failure by anyldés or Beneficial Owner to obtain the benefiterdits on the basis of non-U.S. tax paid
against such Holder’s or Beneficial Owner’s incatee liability.

The Depositary is under no obligation to provide Holders and Beneficial Owners with any informatadbout the tax status of the
Company. The Depositary shall not incur any liggpior any tax consequences that may be incurrelddiglers and Beneficial Owners on
account of their ownership of the ADSs, includinighaut limitation, tax consequences resulting
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from the Company (or any of its subsidiaries) benegted as a “Passive Foreign Investment Comp@myach case as defined in the U.S.
Internal Revenue Code and the regulations isswey@tinder) or otherwise.

ARTICLE V
THE DEPOSITARY, THE CUSTODIAN AND THE COMPANY

Section 5.1 Maintenance of Office and Transfer Boakby the Registrar. Until termination of the Deposit Agreement in aatamce
with its terms, the Registrar shall maintain in Bezough of Manhattan, the City of New York, aniodfand facilities for the issuance and
delivery of ADSs, the acceptance for surrender BS£s) for the purpose of withdrawal of DepositediB#ies, the registration of issuances,
cancellations, transfers, combinations and splg-@fpADS(s) and, if applicable, to countersign AD&R&dencing the ADSs so issued,
transferred, combined or split-up, in each casecoordance with the provisions of the Deposit Agrest.

The Registrar shall keep books for the registrabbADSs which at all reasonable times shall bendjee inspection by the Company and
by the Holders of such ADSs, provided that suchéction shall not be, to the Registrar’'s knowledgethe purpose of communicating with
Holders of such ADSs in the interest of a busimesshject other than the business of the Comparmgtar than a matter related to the Deposit
Agreement or the ADSs.

The Registrar may close the transfer books witheetsto the ADSs, at any time or from time to tinvben deemed necessary or
advisable by it in good faith in connection witte therformance of its duties hereunder, or at theaeable written request of the Company
subject, in all cases, to Section 7.8.

If any ADSs are listed on one or more stock exckanyg automated quotation systems in the UniteStthe Depositary shall act as
Registrar or appoint a Registrar or one or moreeggstrars for registration of issuances, candeltat transfers, combinations and split-ups of
ADSs and, if applicable, to countersign ADRs eviteg the ADSs so issued, transferred, combineglitrigp , in accordance with any
requirements of such exchanges or systems. SudstRe®r co-registrars may be removed and a dubstor substitutes appointed by the
Depositary.

Section 5.2 Exoneration Neither the Depositary nor the Company shall bégabéd to do or perform any act which is inconsisteith
the provisions of the Deposit Agreement or incuy kability (i) if the Depositary or the Companyahbe prevented or forbidden from, or
delayed in, doing or performing any act or thinguieed by the terms of the Deposit Agreement, lagoa of any provision of any present or
future law or regulation of the United States, Emgl or any other country, or of any other governalesuthority or regulatory authority or
stock exchange, or on account of the possible nahar civil penalties or restraint, or by reasdmy provision, present or future, of the
Articles of Association of the Company or any psieh of or governing any Deposited Securities,yordason of any act of God or war or
other circumstances beyond its control (includimighout limitation, nationalization,
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expropriation, currency restrictions, work stoppaggkes, civil unrest, acts of terrorism, revadas, rebellions, explosions and computer
failure), (ii) by reason of any exercise of, oldiae to exercise, any discretion provided for ia eposit Agreement or in the Articles of
Association of the Company or provisions of or goieg Deposited Securities, (iii) for any actionimaction in reliance upon the advice of or
information from legal counsel, accountants, amgpe presenting Shares for deposit, any Holder Bemeficial Owner or authorized
representative thereof, or any other person bedidyeit in good faith to be competent to give sadkice or information, (iv) for the inability
by a Holder or Beneficial Owner to benefit from aigtribution, offering, right or other benefit vehi is made available to holders of Depos
Securities but is not, under the terms of the Dieageement, made available to Holders of ADSgwWifor any consequential or punitive
damages for any breach of the terms of the Depagement.

The Depositary, its controlling persons, its ageaty Custodian and the Company, its controlling@es and its agents may rely and
shall be protected in acting upon any written regtirequest or other document believed by it todraighe and to have been signed or presentec
by the proper party or parties.

No disclaimer of liability under the Securities Astintended by any provision of the Deposit Agreein

Section 5.3 Standard of Care The Company and the Depositary assume no obligatidrshall not be subject to any liability unde¥ th
Deposit Agreement or any ADRs to any Holder(s) en&ficial Owner(s), except that the Company andgositary agree to perform their
respective obligations specifically set forth ie theposit Agreement or the applicable ADRs withwegligence or bad faith.

Without limitation of the foregoing, neither the @sitary, nor the Company, nor any of their resgeatontrolling persons, or agents,
shall be under any obligation to appear in, progeoudefend any action, suit or other proceedingspect of any Deposited Securities or in
respect of the ADSs, which in its opinion may inelt in expense or liability, unless indemnityistctory to it against all expense (including
fees and disbursements of counsel) and liabilitfubeished as often as may be required (and noo@izst shall be under any obligation
whatsoever with respect to such proceedings, toresibility of the Custodian being solely to thepdsitary).

The Depositary and its agents shall not be liafeahy failure to carry out any instructions toevany of the Deposited Securities, or for
the manner in which any vote is cast or the efféeny vote, provided that any such action or oioisss in good faith and in accordance with
the terms of the Deposit Agreement. The Deposiaafl not incur any liability for any failure to tmine that any distribution or action may
be lawful or reasonably practicable, for the conhtdrany information submitted to it by the Compdaydistribution to the Holders or for any
inaccuracy of any translation thereof, for any stugent risk associated with acquiring an intemneshé Deposited Securities, for the validity or
worth of the Deposited Securities or for any tarsaerjuences that may result from the ownership dd#§y[Zhares or Deposited Securities, for
the credit-worthiness of any third party, for aliog any rights to lapse
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upon the terms of the Deposit Agreement, for tlleraor timeliness of any notice from the Compamryfor any action of or failure to act by,
or any information provided or not provided by, D6Cany DTC Participant.

The Depositary shall not be liable for any actsmissions made by a successor depositary whetlanimection with a previous
act or omission of the Depositary or in connectiotihh any matter arising wholly after the removalkesignation of the Depositary, provided
that in connection with the issue out of which spotential liability arises the Depositary perfomrits obligations without negligence or bad
faith while it acted as Depositary.

Section 5.4 Resignation and Removal of the Deposiya Appointment of Successor Depositary The Depositary may at any time
resign as Depositary hereunder by written noticeesignation delivered to the Company, such resignao be effective on the earlier of (i) 1
90th day after delivery thereof to the Company (ieheon the Depositary shall be entitled to takesitte®ons contemplated in Section 6.2), or
(i) the appointment by the Company of a succedspositary and its acceptance of such appointnseh¢eeinafter provided.

The Depositary may at any time be removed by th@amy by written notice of such removal, which reaishall be effective on the
later of (i) the 90th day after delivery thereothe Depositary (whereupon the Depositary sha#ttdled to take the actions contemplated in
Section 6.2), or (ii) upon the appointment by therPany of a successor depositary and its acceptdrsteeh appointment as hereinafter
provided.

In case at any time the Depositary acting hereuslalt resign or be removed, the Company shalitadeest efforts to appoint a
successor depositary, which shall be a bank ot tarapany having an office in the Borough of Mamdwatthe City of New York. Every
successor depositary shall be required by the Coynfuaexecute and deliver to its predecessor atidet@ompany an instrument in writing
accepting its appointment hereunder, and thereapon successor depositary, without any furtheoadeed (except as required by applicable
law), shall become fully vested with all the righgewers, duties and obligations of its predece§sber than as contemplated in Sections 5.8
and 5.9). The predecessor depositary, upon payoi@titsums due it and on the written request ef@mpany shall, (i) execute and delive
instrument transferring to such successor all sigimd powers of such predecessor hereunder (bidrelas contemplated in Sections 5.8 and
5.9), (ii) duly assign, transfer and deliver afjh, title and interest to the Deposited Securitiesuch successor, and (iii) deliver to such
successor a list of the Holders of all outstandiss and such other information relating to ADSd Biolders thereof as the successor may
reasonably request. Any such successor deposhatlpsomptly provide notice of its appointmentstach Holders.

Any corporation into or with which the Depositarnaynbe merged or consolidated shall be the succe$sioe Depositary without the
execution or filing of any document or any furtlaet.
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Section 5.5 The Custodian The Depositary has initially appointed CitibankANLondon Branch, as Custodian for the purposdef t
Deposit Agreement. The Custodian or its succesaasting hereunder shall be subject at all timebia all respects to the direction of the
Depositary for the Deposited Securities for which €Custodian acts as custodian and shall be ragpmsslely to it. If any Custodian resigns
or is discharged from its duties hereunder witpeesto any Deposited Securities and no other digstchas previously been appointed
hereunder, the Depositary shall promptly appoistilastitute custodian. The Depositary shall regstireh resigning or discharged Custodian to
Deliver, or cause the Delivery of, the DepositeduBities held by it, together with all such recondaintained by it as Custodian with respec
such Deposited Securities as the Depositary mayestto the Custodian designated by the Deposkdhenever the Depositary determines,
in its discretion, that it is appropriate to do ganay appoint an additional custodian with resge@ny Deposited Securities, or discharge the
Custodian with respect to any Deposited Securiiessappoint a substitute custodian, which shafkthiter be Custodian hereunder with
respect to the Deposited Securities. Immediategnuamy such change, the Depositary shall give aakiereof in writing to all Holders of
ADSs, each other Custodian and the Company.

Citibank, N.A. may at any time act as CustodiathefDeposited Securities pursuant to the Deposieé&ment, in which case any
reference to Custodian shall mean Citibank, N.Aelgon its capacity as Custodian pursuant to tle@dsit Agreement. Notwithstanding
anything contained in the Deposit Agreement or ABR, the Depositary shall not be obligated to giedice to the Company, any Holders of
ADSs or any other Custodian of its acting as Cuatogursuant to the Deposit Agreement.

Upon the appointment of any successor depositagyCaistodian then acting hereunder shall, unldssraise instructed by the
Depositary, continue to be the Custodian of thed3gpd Securities without any further act or witimnd shall be subject to the direction of
the successor depositary. The successor deposdaypointed shall, nevertheless, on the writtgonest of any Custodian, execute and deliver
to such Custodian all such instruments as may tygeprto give to such Custodian full and completegroand authority to act on the direction
of such successor depositary.

Section 5.6 Notices and ReportsOn or before the first date on which the Compamgginotice, by publication or otherwise, of any
meeting of holders of Shares or other Depositedii$@ss, or of any adjourned meeting of such hdader of the taking of any action by such
holders other than at a meeting, or of the takingny action in respect of any cash or other distions or the offering of any rights in respect
of Deposited Securities, the Company shall transmmihe Depositary and the Custodian a copy ohtiteee thereof in the English language but
otherwise in the form given or to be given to hatdef Shares or other Deposited Securities. Thegammy shall also furnish to the Custodian
and the Depositary a summary, in English, of arpliegble provisions or proposed provisions of thiéiddes of Association of the Company
that may be relevant or pertain to such notice eéting or be the subject of a vote thereat.

The Company will also transmit to the Depositafydia English language version of the other noticgsorts and communications which
are made generally available by the Company todmeldf its Shares or other Deposited Securitieqlanthe English-language versions of
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the Company’s annual and semi-annual reports pedgaraccordance with the applicable requiremefhtseoCommission. The Depositary
shall arrange, at the request of the Company atitilea€ompany’s expense, to provide copies theceafitHolders or make such notices,
reports and other communications available to altlers on a basis similar to that for holders @b or other Deposited Securities or on
other basis as the Company may advise the Deppsitars may be required by any applicable law, lagn or stock exchange requirement.
The Company has delivered to the Depositary an€tigtodian a copy of the CompasyArticles of Association along with the provisioofsor
governing the Shares and any other Deposited Siesussued by the Company in connection with sSichares, and promptly upon any
amendment thereto or change therein, the Compallydgiiver to the Depositary and the Custodiamycof such amendment thereto or
change therein. The Depositary may rely upon sogly éor all purposes of the Deposit Agreement.

The Depositary will, at the expense of the Compamgke available a copy of any such notices, remsredmmunications issued by the
Company and delivered to the Depositary for indpadby the Holders of the ADSs at the DepositaBfimcipal Office, at the office of the
Custodian and at any other designated transfegeoffi

Section 5.7 Issuance of Additional Shares, ADSs etthe Company agrees that in the event it or anisdiffiliates proposes (i) an
issuance, sale or distribution of additional Shafi§san offering of rights to subscribe for Shau@ other Deposited Securities, (iii) an issuance
or assumption of securities convertible into ortetgeable for Shares, (iv) an issuance of righssibscribe for securities convertible into or
exchangeable for Shares, (v) an elective dividdraash or Shares, (vi) a redemption of DepositetlBies, (vii) a meeting of holders of
Deposited Securities, or solicitation of consemtproxies, relating to any reclassification of séies, merger or consolidation or transfer of
assets, (viii) any assumption, reclassificationapitalization, reorganization, merger, consoligatr sale of assets which affects the Depo:
Securities, or (ix) a distribution of securitiefiet than Shares, it will obtain U.S. legal adviod &ake all steps necessary to ensure that the
proposed transaction does not violate the registrgirovisions of the Securities Act, or any othpplicable laws (including, without limitatic
the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amendedixishange Act and the securities laws of the statése U.S.). In support of the
foregoing, the Company will furnish to the Depositéa) a written opinion of U.S. counsel (reasogaiatisfactory to the Depositary) stating
whether such transaction (1) requires a registragiatement under the Securities Act to be in effie¢2) is exempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act and (b) an apirdf English counsel stating that (1) making tla@s$action available to Holders and
Beneficial Owners does not violate the laws or fatons of England and (2) all requisite regulatoopsents and approvals have been obte
in England. If the filing of a registration statembés required, the Depositary shall not have dbljgation to proceed with the transaction un
it shall have received evidence reasonably sat@fado it that such registration statement haslweelared effective. If, being advised by
counsel, the Company determines that a transaisti@yuired to be registered under the Securitigtis the Company will either (i) register st
transaction to the extent necessary, (ii) alteté¢hms of the transaction to avoid the registratequirements of the Securities Act or (iii) direct
the Depositary to take specific measures, in eash as contemplated in the Deposit Agreementetgept such transaction from violating the
registration requirements of the Securities Acte Th
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Company agrees with the Depositary that neitheCin@pany nor any of its Affiliates will at any tinf@ deposit any Shares or other Deposited
Securities, either upon original issuance or upeala of Shares or other Deposited Securities pusly issued and reacquired by the Company
or by any such Affiliate, or (ii) issue additiorfahares, rights to subscribe for such Shares, siesutonvertible into or exchangeable for Shares
or rights to subscribe for such securities or iiste securities other than Shares, unless suohaction and the securities issuable in such
transaction do not violate the registration prauisi of the Securities Act, or any other applicdées (including, without limitation, the
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, th&&hge Act and the securities laws of the statésent).S.).

Notwithstanding anything else contained in the #pAgreement, nothing in the Deposit Agreementidieadeemed to obligate the
Company to file any registration statement in respéany proposed transaction.

Section 5.8 Indemnification. The Depositary agrees to indemnify the Companyitsndirectors, officers, employees, agents and
Affiliates against, and hold each of them harmfess), any direct loss, liability, tax, charge ompexse of any kind whatsoever (including, but
not limited to, the reasonable fees and expensesuwsfsel) which may arise out of acts performedritted by the Depositary under the terms
hereof due to the negligence or bad faith of thpd3éary.

The Company agrees to indemnify the DepositaryCihgtodian and any of their respective directdifigers, employees, agents and
Affiliates against, and hold each of them harmfess), any direct loss, liability, tax, charge ompexse of any kind whatsoever (including, but
not limited to, the reasonable fees and expensesuwsfsel) that may arise (a) out of or in connectiith any offer, issuance, sale, resale,
transfer, deposit or withdrawal of ADRs, ADSs, Bieares, or other Deposited Securities, as thernagée, (b) out of or as a result of any
offering documents in respect thereof or (c) ouhatk performed or omitted, including, but not texi to, any delivery by the Depositary on
behalf of the Company of information regarding @@mpany in connection with the Deposit Agreemdrd, ADRs, the ADSs, the Shares, or
any Deposited Securities, in any such case (ihbyCtepositary, the Custodian or any of their repedirectors, officers, employees, agents
and Affiliates, except to the extent such losdjiliy, tax, charge or expense is due to the neglag or bad faith of any of them, or (ii) by the
Company or any of its directors, officers, emplagesgents and Affiliates.

The obligations set forth in this Section shallvéug the termination of the Deposit Agreement amelguccession or substitution of any
party hereto.

Any person seeking indemnification hereunder (adémnified person”) shall notify the person fromomrhit is seeking indemnification
(the “indemnifying person”) of the commencemenany indemnifiable action or claim promptly aftechundemnified person becomes aware
of such commencement (provided that the failunm#de such notification shall not affect such inddid person’s rights to seek
indemnification except to the extent the indemmifyperson is materially prejudiced by such failwed shall consult in good faith with the
indemnifying person as to the conduct of the defefssuch action or claim that may give
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rise to an indemnity hereunder, which defense $lmtleasonable in the circumstances. No indemngfiggdon shall compromise or settle any
action or claim that may give rise to an indemiiégyeunder without the consent of the indemnifyiagspn, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

Section 5.9 Fees and Charges of Depositarfhe Company, the Holders, the Beneficial Ownerd, @rsons depositing Shares or
surrendering ADSs for cancellation and withdrawdDeposited Securities shall be required to pathéoDepositary the Depositary’s fees and
related charges identified as payable by them otisiedy in the Fee Schedule attached hereto asbibx®i. All fees and charges so payable
may, at any time and from time to time, be charlgedgreement between the Depositary and the Compartyin the case of fees and charges
payable by Holders and Beneficial Owners, onlyhie manner contemplated in Section 6.1. The Depgstall provide, without charge, a
copy of its latest fee schedule to anyone uponestju

Depositary Fees payable upon (i) deposit of Shagamst issuance of ADSs and (ii) surrender of ARBsancellation and withdrawal
Deposited Securities will be charged by the Depogito the person to whom the ADSs so issued dieeded (in the case of ADS issuances)
and to the person who delivers the ADSs for caatieli to the Depositary (in the case of ADS camtielhs). In the case of ADSs issued by the
Depositary into DTC or presented to the DepositéayDTC, the ADS issuance and cancellation feekheilpayable to the Depositary by the
DTC Participant(s) receiving the ADSs from the Dsitary or the DTC Participant(s) surrendering tHaSA to the Depositary for cancellation,
as the case may be, on behalf of the Beneficialé{hand will be charged by the DTC Participantigshe account(s) of the applicable
Beneficial Owner(s) in accordance with the proceduand practices of the DTC participant(s) asfieceft the time. Depositary fees in respect
of distributions and the Depositary services feegayable to the Depositary by Holders as of tipdieable ADS Record Date established by
the Depositary. In the case of distributions othcalke amount of the applicable Depositary feekethucted by the Depositary from the funds
being distributed. In the case of distributionsestthan cash and the Depositary service fee, tip@&iary will invoice the applicable Holders
as of the ADS Record Date established by the D&grgsiFor ADSs held through DTC, the Depositarysféar distributions other than cash ¢
the Depositary service fee are charged by the Digpggo the DTC Participants in accordance with pinocedures and practices prescribed by
DTC from time to time and the DTC Participantsumt charge the amount of such fees to the Benkfsaers for whom they hold ADSs.

The Depositary may reimburse the Company for aegapenses incurred by the Company in respecteoADR program established
pursuant to the Deposit Agreement, by making alkdla portion of the Depositary fees charged ipeesof the ADR program or otherwise,
upon such terms and conditions as the CompanytenDepositary agree from time to time. The Compstrafl pay to the Depositary such ft
and charges and reimburse the Depositary for sutbfepocket expenses as the Depositary and thep@oynmay agree from time to time.
Responsibility for payment of such charges and beirsements may from time to time be changed byeageat between the Company and the
Depositary. Unless otherwise agreed, the Depos#taayl present its statement for such expense$emsdor charges to the Company once €
three months. The charges and expenses of thediastare for the sole account of the Depositary.
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The right of the Depositary to receive paymentegfsf charges and expenses as provided abovelsivatesthe termination of the
Deposit Agreement. As to any Depositary, upon #signation or removal of such Depositary as desdrib Section 5.4, such right shall
extend for those fees, charges and expenses idqunicr to the effectiveness of such resignationeonoval.

Section 5.10 PreRelease Transactions Subject to the further terms and provisions of 8gstion 5.10, the Depositary, its Affiliates and
their agents, on their own behalf, may own and deahy class of securities of the Company andffliates and in ADSs. In its capacity as
Depositary, the Depositary shall not lend Share&@$s; provided, however, that the Depositary mpisg¢ue ADSs prior to the receipt of
Shares pursuant to Section 2.3 and (ii) deliver&hprior to the receipt of ADSs for withdrawal@éposited Securities pursuant to Section
including ADSs which were issued under (i) abovefbuwhich Shares may not have been received (sach transaction a_* PiRelease
Transactior). The Depositary may receive ADSs in lieu of S¥saunder (i) above and receive Shares in lieu ags&\Dnder (ii) above. Each
such Pre-Release Transaction will be (a) subjeatvoitten agreement whereby the person or entity (Applicant”) to whom ADSs or
Shares are to be delivered (w) represents thheatrhe of the Pre-Release Transaction the Apdiicaits customer owns the Shares or ADSs
that are to be delivered by the Applicant undehdRie-Release Transaction, (x) agrees to indibat®epositary as owner of such Shares or
ADSs in its records and to hold such Shares or AD$wst for the Depositary until such Shares @S5 are delivered to the Depositary or the
Custodian, (y) unconditionally guarantees to delteethe Depositary or the Custodian, as applicaileh Shares or ADSs, and (z) agrees to
any additional restrictions or requirements thatEepositary deems appropriate, (b) at all tim#g &ollateralized with cash, U.S. government
securities or such other collateral as the Depgsitaems appropriate, (c) terminable by the Deposibn not more than five (5) business days’
notice and (d) subject to such further indemniéied credit regulations as the Depositary deemsoapipte. The Depositary will normally limit
the number of ADSs and Shares involved in suchRlease Transactions at any one time to thirtyquen80%) of the ADSs outstanding
(without giving effect to ADSs outstanding undgrgbove), provided, however, that the Depositasginees the right to change or disregard
such limit from time to time as it deems approgiat

The Depositary may also set limits with respedh®number of ADSs and Shares involved in Pre-Rel@aansactions with any one
person on a case-by-case basis as it deems ateofifine Depositary may retain for its own acc@myt compensation received by it in
conjunction with the foregoing. Collateral providedrsuant to (b) above, but not the earnings tergall be held for the benefit of the
Holders (other than the Applicant).

Section 5.11 Restricted Securities OwnersThe Company agrees to advise in writing each op#rsons or entities who, to the
knowledge of the Company, holds Restricted Seegritiat such Restricted Securities are ineligiteléposit hereunder (except under the
circumstances contemplated in Section 2.14) anithet@xtent practicable, shall require each of ebBons to represent in writing that such
person will not deposit Restricted Securities hedew (except under the circumstances contemplat8eédtion 2.14).
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ARTICLE VI
AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION

Section 6.1 Amendment/SupplementSubject to the terms and conditions of this Sediidnand applicable law, the ADRs outstanding
at any time, the provisions of the Deposit Agreetaar the form of ADR attached hereto and to beedsinder the terms hereof may at any
time and from time to time be amended or suppleetehy written agreement between the Company anDepesitary in any respect which
they may deem necessary or desirable without tloe ywritten consent of the Holders or Beneficial @axs. Any amendment or supplement
which shall impose or increase any fees or chaj@ésr than charges in connection with foreign exge control regulations, and taxes and
other governmental charges, delivery and other suplenses), or which shall otherwise materiallyyatiee any substantial existing right of
Holders or Beneficial Owners, shall not, howevegdme effective as to outstanding ADSs until thairaxion of thirty (30) days after notice
such amendment or supplement shall have been givitie Holders of outstanding ADSs. Notice of ameadment to the Deposit Agreement
or any ADR shall not need to describe in detailgpecific amendments effectuated thereby, andréatludescribe the specific amendments in
any such notice shall not render such notice idygliovided, however, that, in each such case, the notice given tditilders identifies a
means for Holders and Beneficial Owners to retrigveeceive the text of such amendmeig (, upon retrieval from the Commission’s, the
Depositary’s or the Company’s website or upon regifrem the Depositary). The parties hereto agnaedny amendments or supplements
which (i) are reasonably necessary (as agreedeb@€timpany and the Depositary) in order for (a)ADSs to be registered on Form F-6 under
the Securities Act or (b) the ADSs to be settlddlgan electronic book-entry form and (ii) do rinteither such case impose or increase any
fees or charges to be borne by Holders, shall bendd not to materially prejudice any substantgits of Holders or Beneficial Owners. Ev
Holder and Beneficial Owner at the time any amenare supplement so becomes effective shall be ddeby continuing to hold such
ADSs, to consent and agree to such amendment pltesnpnt and to be bound by the Deposit Agreemethttaa ADR, if applicable, as
amended or supplemented thereby. In no eventahglhmendment or supplement impair the right oiHbkler to surrender such ADS and
receive therefor the Deposited Securities represkthtereby, except in order to comply with mandapovisions of applicable law.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any governmertatly should adopt new laws, rules or regulationglwtvould require an amendment of,
supplement to, the Deposit Agreement to ensure tange therewith, the Company and the Depositary amend or supplement the Deposit
Agreement and any ADRs at any time in accordande suich changed laws, rules or regulations. Suandment or supplement to the
Deposit Agreement and any ADRSs in such circumstaintay become effective before a notice of such dment or supplement is given to
Holders or within any other period of time as reqdifor compliance with such laws, rules or regafs.

Section 6.2 Termination. The Depositary shall, at any time at the writtereclion of the Company, terminate the Deposit Agreset by
distributing notice of such termination to the
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Holders of all ADSs then outstanding at least yhi&0) days prior to the date fixed in such nofmesuch termination. If ninety (90) days shall
have expired after (i) the Depositary shall haviévdeed to the Company a written notice of its &t to resign, or (ii) the Company shall he
delivered to the Depositary a written notice of temoval of the Depositary, and, in either casgjaessor depositary shall not have been
appointed and accepted its appointment as provwid8eéction 5.4 of the Deposit Agreement, the Dapogimay terminate the Deposit
Agreement by distributing notice of such terminatio the Holders of all ADSs then outstanding astehirty (30) days prior to the date fixed
in such notice for such termination. The date sedifor termination of the Deposit Agreement in &ynination notice so distributed by the
Depositary to the Holders of ADSs is referred tahes” Termination Daté. Until the Termination Date, the Depositary staihtinue to
perform all of its obligations under the Depositrégment, and the Holders and Beneficial Ownersheilentitled to all of their rights under t
Deposit Agreement.

If any ADSs shall remain outstanding after the Tieation Date, the Registrar and the Depositaryl stwd| after the Termination Date,
have any obligation to perform any further actsarrttie Deposit Agreement, except that the Depgs#laall, subject, in each case, to the terms
and conditions of the Deposit Agreement, contiru@)tcollect dividends and other distributionstpéring to Deposited Securities, (ii) sell
securities and other property received in respebDeposited Securities, (iii) deliver Deposited Geties, together with any dividends or other
distributions received with respect thereto andnbieproceeds of the sale of any securities orqttaperty, in exchange for ADSs surrendered
to the Depositary (after deducting, or chargingth@scase may be, in each case, the fees and staftgmd expenses incurred by, the
Depositary, and all applicable taxes or governmatitarges for the account of the Holders and Bei@fOwners, in each case upon the terms
set forth in Section 5.9 of the Deposit Agreemeaty (iv) take such actions as may be requiredremgigicable law in connection with its role
as Depositary under the Deposit Agreement.

At any time after the Termination Date, the Depargitmay sell the Deposited Securities then helceutite Deposit Agreement and shall
after such sale hold un-invested the net procetsisah sale, together with any other cash then Imglid under the Deposit Agreement, in an
un-segregated account and without liability foenest, for the pro - rata benefit of the Holderosc ADSs have not theretofore been
surrendered. After making such sale, the Depos#thayl be discharged from all obligations underBteposit Agreement except (i) to account
for such net proceeds and other cash (after dedyair charging, as the case may be, in each tasées and charges of, and expenses
incurred by, the Depositary, and all applicableetagr governmental charges for the account of thiddts and Beneficial Owners, in each case
upon the terms set forth in Section 5.9 of the Bépdgreement), and (ii) as may be required atilmaonnection with the termination of the
Deposit Agreement. After the Termination Date, @@npany shall be discharged from all obligationdarrthe Deposit Agreement, except for
its obligations to the Depositary under Sectioi®s 5.9 and 7.6 of the Deposit Agreement. The obbiga under the terms of the Deposit
Agreement of Holders and Beneficial Owners of AD8tstanding as of the Termination Date shall serthe Termination Date and shall be
discharged only when the applicable ADSs are pteddoy their Holders to the Depositary for candelfaunder the terms of the Deposit
Agreement.
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ARTICLE VII
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 7.1 Counterparts. The Deposit Agreement may be executed in any numbasunterparts, each of which shall be deemed an
original and all of such counterparts togetherlstatstitute one and the same agreement. Copite @eposit Agreement shall be maintained
with the Depositary and shall be open to inspedbpiany Holder during business hours.

Section 7.2 No ThirdParty Beneficiaries. The Deposit Agreement is for the exclusive beradfthe parties hereto (and their success
and shall not be deemed to give any legal or ebjeitdght, remedy or claim whatsoever to any oftenson, except to the extent specifically
forth in the Deposit Agreement. Nothing in the Dgipégreement shall be deemed to give rise to tnpeship or joint venture among the
parties nor establish a fiduciary or similar redaghip among the parties. The parties hereto adleuy® and agree that (i) the Depositary and
its Affiliates may at any time have multiple bandirelationships with the Company and its Affiligté§ the Depositary and its Affiliates may
be engaged at any time in transactions in whicliggaadverse to the Company or the Holders or BeaeOwners may have interests and
(iii) nothing contained in the Deposit Agreemenalsfa) preclude the Depositary or any of its Affies from engaging in such transactions or
establishing or maintaining such relationships, @rdbligate the Depositary or any of its Affikat to disclose such transactions or
relationships or to account for any profit made@ayment received in such transactions or relatigssh

Section 7.3 Severability In case any one or more of the provisions containdkde Deposit Agreement or in the ADRs shouldbe
become invalid, illegal or unenforceable in anypexg, the validity, legality and enforceabilitytbe remaining provisions contained herein or
therein shall in no way be affected, prejudicedisturbed thereby.

Section 7.4 Holders and Beneficial Owners as ParieBinding Effect. The Holders and Beneficial Owners from time to tiohADSs
issued hereunder shall be parties to the Deposiexgent and shall be bound by all of the termscamdlitions hereof and of any ADR
evidencing their ADSs by acceptance thereof ortameficial interest therein.

Section 7.5 Notices Any and all notices to be given to the Companyldfedeemed to have been duly given if personalivered or
sent by mail, air courier or cable, telex or fad®@nransmission, confirmed by letter personallyideed or sent by mail or air courier,
addressed to Amarin Corporation plc, c/o AmarinrRtzalnc., 12 Roosevelt Ave., Mystic, Connectic385, U.S.A., Attention Chief
Financial Officer, or to any other address which @ompany may specify in writing to the Depositary.

Any and all notices to be given to the Depositdrglishe deemed to have been duly given if persprilivered or sent by mail, air
courier or cable, telex or facsimile transmissiconfirmed by letter personally delivered or sentiil or air courier, addressed to Citibank,
N.A., 388 Greenwich Street, New York, New York 180U.S.A.,Attention: Depositary Receipts Department, or to any otddress which
the Depositary may specify in writing to the Comypan
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Any and all notices to be given to any Holder shalldeemed to have been duly giveajf personally delivered or sent by mail or cable,
telex or facsimile transmission, confirmed by Ietadressed to such Holder at the address ofldalder as it appears on the books of the
Depositary or, if such Holder shall have filed witle Depositary a request that notices intendeddoh Holder be mailed to some other
address, at the address specified in such requrdbi, if a Holder shall have designated such means tifigaiion as an acceptable means of
notification under the terms of the Deposit Agreatmby means of electronic messaging addressedktorery to the enail address designat
by the Holder for such purpose. Notice to Holdérallsbe deemed to be notice to Beneficial Ownersfioppurposes of the Deposit Agreement.
Failure to notify a Holder or any defect in theifioation to a Holder shall not affect the suffioy of notification to other Holders or to the
Beneficial Owners of ADSs held by such other Hodder

Delivery of a notice sent by mail, air courier abte, telex or facsimile transmission shall be degho be effective at the time when a
duly addressed letter containing the same (or &iraoetion thereof in the case of a cable, telexagsimile transmission) is deposited, postage
prepaid, in a postifice letter box or delivered to an air couriensee, without regard for the actual receipt ordiwf actual receipt thereof by
Holder. The Depositary or the Company may, howeagtrupon any cable, telex or facsimile transmissazreived by it from any Holder, the
Custodian, the Depositary, or the Company, notuatinding that such cable, telex or facsimile tramssion shall not be subsequently confirmed
by letter.

Delivery of a notice by means of electronic messgghall be deemed to be effective at the timéefinitiation of the transmission by
the sender (as shown on the sender’s records)jthstanding that the intended recipient retrievesrnessage at a later date, fails to retrieve
such message, or fails to receive such notice ooust of its failure to maintain the designated @&traddress, its failure to designate a
substitute e-mail address or for any other reason.

Section 7.6 Governing Law and Jurisdiction The Deposit Agreement and the ADRs shall be in&teglin accordance with, and all
rights hereunder and thereunder and provisionsoharel thereof shall be governed by, the laws ef3tate of New York without reference to
the principles of choice of law thereof applicatdecontracts made and to be wholly performed in 8tate. Notwithstanding anything
contained in the Deposit Agreement, any ADR or prgsent or future provisions of the laws of tha&td New York, the rights of holders of
Shares and of any other Deposited Securities andlitigations and duties of the Company in respgttie holders of Shares and other
Deposited Securities, as such, shall be governateblaws of England and Wales (or, if applicablgh other laws as may govern the
Deposited Securities).

Except as set forth in the following paragraphhi$ Section 7.6, the Company and the Depositargeatirat the federal or state courts in
the City of New York shall have jurisdiction to lmend determine any suit, action or proceedingtarsttle any dispute between them that
may arise out of or in connection with the Depdgjteement and, for such purposes, each
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irrevocably submits to the non-exclusive jurisdiatiof such courts. The Company hereby irrevocablighates, appoints and empowers the
Company’s Chief Financial Officer (the “ Agehtnow at Amarin Corporation plc, c/o Amarin Pharina., 12 Roosevelt Ave., Mystic,
Connecticut, 06355, U.S.A., as its authorized ateenéceive and accept for and on its behalf, andehalf of its properties, assets and
revenues, service by mail of any and all legal ss¢ summons, notices and documents that may \sdsarany suit, action or proceeding
brought against the Company in any federal or statet as described in the preceding sentencetbeinext paragraph of this Section 7.6. If
for any reason the Agent shall cease to be availabhct as such, the Company agrees to desigmate agent in New York on the terms and
for the purposes of this Section 7.6 reasonablgfaatory to the Depositary. The Company furtherebg irrevocably consents and agrees ti
service of any and all legal process, summonscestaind documents in any suit, action or proceeatjainst the Company, by service by malil
of a copy thereof upon the Agent (whether or netappointment of such Agent shall for any reasowgto be ineffective or such Agent shall
fail to accept or acknowledge such service), witopy mailed to the Company by registered or gediir mail, postage prepaid, to its add
provided in Section 7.5. The Company agrees tleafaifure of the Agent to give any notice of suelvice to it shall not impair or affect in a
way the validity of such service or any judgmemtdered in any action or proceeding based thereon.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Depositary amel Company unconditionally agree that in the ettestta Holder or Beneficial Owner
brings a suit, action or proceeding against (a)dbmpany, (b) the Depositary in its capacity as@#pry under the Deposit Agreement or
(c) against both the Company and the Depositargninsuch case, in any state or federal courteofthited States, and the Depositary or the
Company have any claim, for indemnification or eottiee, against each other arising out of the subyedter of such suit, action or proceed
then the Company and the Depositary may pursuedath against each other in the state or federattan the United States in which such
suit, action, or proceeding is pending and, fohsperposes, the Company and the Depositary irrdrpcaibmit to the non-exclusive
jurisdiction of such courts. The Company agreesshavice of process upon the Agent in the manetefosth in the preceding paragraph sl
be effective service upon it for any suit, actisrpmceeding brought against it as described mgharagraph.

The Company irrevocably and unconditionally waitegthe fullest extent permitted by law, any ohj@etthat it may now or hereafter
have to the laying of venue of any actions, suitsroceedings brought in any court as providedis $ection 7.6, and hereby further
irrevocably and unconditionally waives and agreesto plead or claim in any such court that anyhsaction, suit or proceeding brought in ¢
such court has been brought in an inconvenientforu

The Company irrevocably and unconditionally waiveghe fullest extent permitted by law, and agmeeisto plead or claim, any right of
immunity from legal action, suit or proceeding,ifreetoff or counterclaim, from the jurisdictionafy court, from service of process, from
attachment upon or prior to judgment, from attachinie aid of execution or judgment, from executadjudgment, or from any other legal
process or proceeding for the giving of any retiefor the enforcement of any judgment, and corssensuch relief and enforcement against it,
its assets and its revenues in any jurisdictiomaioh case with respect to any matter arising utran connection with, the Deposit
Agreement, any ADR or the Deposited Securities.

44



No disclaimer of liability under the Securities Astintended by any provision of the Deposit Agreain The provisions of this
Section 7.6 shall survive any termination of thep@&t Agreement, in whole or in part.

Section 7.7 Assignment Subject to the provisions of Section 5.4, the Dépbgreement may not be assigned by either the Gomjor
the Depositary.

Section 7.8 Compliance with U.S. Securities LawsNotwithstanding anything in the Deposit Agreementtte contrary, the withdrawal
or delivery of Deposited Securities will not be gaisded by the Company or the Depositary exceptoagdibe permitted by Instruction 1.A.(1)
of the General Instructions to Form F-6 Registrattdatement, as amended from time to time, unde$#curities Act.

Section 7.9 England and Wales Law Referenceé&ny summary of the laws of England and Wales agdlegions and of the terms of
the Company'’s Articles of Association set forthlie Deposit Agreement have been provided by thepg@doamsolely for the convenience of
Holders, Beneficial Owners and the Depositary. Whilich summaries are believed by the Company éatigrate as of the date of the Deposit
Agreement, (i) they are summaries and as such maynclude all aspects of the materials summargmgulicable to a Holder or Beneficial
Owner, and (ii) these laws and regulations andXbeapany’s Articles of Association may change affter date of the Deposit Agreement.
Neither the Depositary nor the Company has anyabbtn under the terms of the Deposit Agreemenpttate any such summari

Section 7.10 Titles and References

(a) Deposit Agreement All references in the Deposit Agreement to exhijlatgicles, sections, subsections, and other sigiolihs refer
to the exhibits, articles, sections, subsectiomsather subdivisions of the Deposit Agreement ungpressly provided otherwise. The words
“the Deposit Agreement”, “herein”, “hereof”, “hengh “hereunder”, and words of similar import refierthe Deposit Agreement as a whole as
in effect at the relevant time between the Compéreg/Depositary and the Holders and Beneficial Owoé ADSs and not to any particular
subdivision unless expressly so limited. Pronoamaasculine, feminine and neuter gender shall betoged to include any other gender, and
words in the singular form shall be construed tiude the plural andice versaunless the context otherwise requires. Titles tbices of the
Deposit Agreement are included for convenience anly shall be disregarded in construing the langeagtained in the Deposit Agreement.
References to “applicable laws and regulationstl shéer to laws and regulations applicable to ADRBSs or Deposited Securities as in
effect at the relevant time of determination, usletherwise required by law or regulation.

(b) ADRs . All references in any ADR(s) to paragraphs, exhildtticles, sections, subsections, and other gisimlis refer to the
paragraphs, exhibits, articles, sections,
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subsections and other subdivisions of the ADR(gjuestion unless expressly provided otherwise.Wdrels “the Receipt”, “the ADR”,
“herein”, “hereof”, “hereby”, “hereunder”, and wa@f similar import used in any ADR refer to the RIas a whole and as in effect at the
relevant time, and not to any particular subdivisimless expressly so limited. Pronouns in maseufgminine and neuter gender in any ADR
shall be construed to include any other genderyvards in the singular form shall be construechtiude the plural andice versaunless the
context otherwise requires. Titles to paragraphengfADR are included for convenience only andldbaldisregarded in construing the
language contained in the ADR. References to “apple laws and regulationshall refer to laws and regulations applicable BRS, ADSs ¢

Deposited Securities as in effect at the releviam bf determination, unless otherwise requiredilay or regulation.

Section 7.11 Amendment and Restatemen®he Depositary shall arrange to have new ADRs gditihat reflect the form of ADR
attached to the Deposit Agreement. All ADRs isshereunder after the date hereof, whether uponépesit of Shares or other Deposited
Securities or upon the transfer, combination oit-sl of existing ADRs, shall be substantially etform of the specimen ADR attached as
Exhibit A hereto. However, American depositary receipts idgurer to the date hereof under the terms of thigi@al Deposit Agreement and
outstanding as of the date hereof, which do ndg¢eefhe form of ADR attached hereto_as Exhibitdo not need to be called in for exchange
and may remain outstanding until such time as tbleléts thereof choose to surrender them for angoreander the Deposit Agreement. The
Depositary is authorized and directed to take ardyal actions deemed necessary to effect the éomgg

The Company hereby instructs the Depositary tprémptly send notice of the execution of the Deppagreement to all holders of
American depositary shares outstanding under tigir@t Deposit Agreement as of the date hereof(@hahform holders of American
depositary shares issued as “certificated Ameritsgpositary shares” and outstanding under the Galigdeposit Agreement as of the date
hereof that they have the opportunity, but areraequired, to exchange their American depositargipgs for one or more ADR(s) issued
pursuant to the Deposit Agreement.

Holders and Beneficial Owners of American depogitsdrares issued pursuant to the Original Deposiedgent and outstanding as of
date hereof, shall, from and after the date hetefjeemed Holders and Beneficial Owners of ADSseid pursuant and be subject to all of the
terms and conditions of the Deposit Agreementlimegipects, provided, however, that any term ofdbposit Agreement which shall impose
increase any fees or charges (other than the fabe ®epositary for the execution and deliveryher cancellation of ADRs and taxes or other
governmental charges), or which shall otherwisgupliee any substantial existing right of Holders ¢eefined in the Original Deposit
Agreement), shall not become effective as to Haldetil three months after notice of the amendmefiectuated by the Deposit Agreement
shall have been given to holders of ADSs outstandimof the date hereof.

Section 7.12 Deposit AgreementThe Company and the Depositary hereby agree antbadidge that all references to the term
“Deposit Agreement” in each of the Letter Agreensediated March 29, 2006, April 11, 2006, Decemh@0B7, May 16, 2008, August 5,
2009, October 7, 2009 and October 15, 2009 rey@dgtishall, as of the date hereof, refer to thpd# Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, AMARIN CORPORATION PLC and CHANK, N.A. have duly executed the Deposit Agreemanbdf the
day and year first above set forth and all Holderd Beneficial Owners shall become parties herptm@acceptance by them of ADSs issue
accordance with the terms hereof, or upon acqoisitf any beneficial interest therein.
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EXECUTED BY AMARIN CORPORATION PLC

By: /s/ Joseph Zakrzewski
Name: Joseph Zakrzews
Title: Director

By: /s/ John F. Thero
Name: John F. Thetr
Title: Director/Secretar

CITIBANK, N.A.

By: /s/ Robert Franz
Name: Robert Fran
Title: Vice Presiden




DEPOSITARY FEES AND RELATED CHARGES

EXHIBIT B
FEE SCHEDULE

All capitalized terms used but not otherwise defing herein shall have the meaning given to such terms the Deposit Agreement.

Depositary Fees

The Company, the Holders, the Beneficial Owners anthe persons depositing Shares or surrendering ADSer cancellation agree
to pay the following fees of the Depositary:

Service

Rate

By Whom Paid

1)

(@)

3)

(4)

()

6)

Issuance of ADSs upon deposit of Shart
(excluding issuances as a result of
distributions described in paragraph (4)
below).

Delivery of Deposited Securities agains
surrender of ADSs.

Distribution of cash dividends or other
cash distributions (i.e ., sale of rights and
other entitlements).

Distribution of ADSs pursuant to (i) stock
dividends or other free stock
distributions, or (ii) exercise of rights to
purchase additional ADSs.

Distribution of securities other than ADS¢
or rights to purchase additional ADSs
(i.e., spin-off shares).

Depositary Services

Up to U.S. $5.00 per 100 ADSs (¢
fraction thereof) issued.

Up to U.S. $5.00 per 100 ADSs (¢
fraction thereof) surrendered.

Up to U.S. $5.00 per 100 ADSs (¢
fraction thereof) held.

Up to U.S. $5.00 per 100 ADSs (¢
fraction thereof) held.

Up to U.S. $5.00 per 100 ADSs (¢
fraction thereof) held.

Up to U.S. $5.00 per 100 ADSs (¢
fraction thereof) held on the applicable
record date(s) established by the
Depositary.

Person depositing Shares or perso
receiving ADSs.

Person surrendering ADSs for the
purpose of withdrawal of Deposited
Securities or person to whom Deposited
Securities are delivered.

Person to whom distribution is made

Person to whom distribution is made

Person to whom distribution is made

Person holding ADSs on the applicabl
record date(s) established by the
Depositary.



II.  Charges

Holders, Beneficial Owners, persons depositing Shes and persons surrendering ADSs for cancellatiomd for the purpose of
withdrawing Deposited Securities shall be responsié for the following charges:

(i) taxes (including applicable interest and penaltég) other governmental charg

(i)  such registration fees as may from time to timénkeffect for the registration of Shares or othepbDsited Securities on the share regi
and applicable to transfers of Shares or other Biggmb Securities to or from the name of the Custodihe Depositary or any nominees
upon the making of deposits and withdrawals, rethpsy;

(iii) such cable, telex and facsimile transmission atidaty expenses as are expressly provided in theoBie Agreement to be at the expe
of the person depositing or withdrawing Shares oldElrs and Beneficial Owners of AD¢

(iv) the expenses and charges incurred by the Deposgit#ng conversion of foreign currenc

(v) such fees and expenses as are incurred by the ifepas connection with compliance with exchangatrol regulations and oth
regulatory requirements applicable to Shares, OgmbSecurities, ADSs and ADRs; a

(vi) the fees and expenses incurred by the DepositayCtstodian, or any nominee in connection withséwwicing or delivery of Deposite
Securities



Exhibit 4.4
[FORM OF ADR]

Number CUSIP NUMBER: 0231112(

American Depositary Shares (each American
Depositary Share representing the right to
receive one (1) Fully Paid Ordinary Sh.

AMERICAN DEPOSITARY RECEIPT
FOR
AMERICAN DEPOSITARY SHARES
representing
DEPOSITED ORDINARY SHARES
of
AMARIN CORPORATION PLC
(Incorporated under the laws of England and Wales)

CITIBANK, N.A., a national banking association ongged and existing under the laws of the UnitedeStaf America, as depositary (1
“Depositary”), hereby certifies that is the owner of Ameridaepositary Shares (hereinafter “ADS”) representin
deposited Ordinary shares, including evidencegifts to receive such Ordinary shares (the “Share$’Amarin Corporation plc, a corporation
incorporated under the laws of England (the “CongparAs of the date of the Deposit Agreement (as hefiindefined), each ADS represe
the right to receive one (1) Share deposited utiteDeposit Agreement with the Custodian, whicthatdate of execution of the Deposit
Agreement is Citibank, N.A. London Branch, (the $tadian”). The ADS(s)-to-Share(s) ratio is subjecamendment as provided in Articles
IV and VI of the Deposit Agreement. The Depositaririncipal Office is located at 388 Greenwich &trélew York, New York 10013, U.S.

The Deposit Agreement This American Depositary Receipt is one of an issuémerican Depositary Receipts (“ADRs3|| issued an
to be issued upon the terms and conditions sét fothe Amended and Restated Deposit Agreemetdddes of November 4, 2011 (as
amended and supplemented from time to time, theptBik Agreement”), by and among the Company, thedSiary, and all Holders and
Beneficial Owners from time to time of ADSs issukdreunder. The Deposit Agreement sets forth gigsiand obligations of Holders and
Beneficial Owners of ADSs and the rights and dutiethe Depositary in respect of the Shares depadsitereunder and any and all other
securities, property and cash from time




time received in respect of such Shares and helgtimder (such Shares, securities, property ardarasherein called “Deposited Securities”).
Copies of the Deposit Agreement are on file atRhacipal Office of the Depositary and with the @dian. Each Holder and each Beneficial
Owner, upon acceptance of any ADSs (or any intéhesein) issued in accordance with the terms amditions of the Deposit Agreement,
shall be deemed for all purposes to (a) be a paraynd bound by the terms of the Deposit Agreeraadtapplicable ADR(s), and (b) appoint
the Depositary its attorney-in-fact, with full pomte delegate, to act on its behalf and to takearg/all actions contemplated in the Deposit
Agreement and the applicable ADR(s), to adopt ardyal procedures necessary to comply with apple&ckdw and to take such action as the
Depositary in its sole discretion may deem necgssaappropriate to carry out the purposes of tbpd3it Agreement and the applicable ADR
(s), the taking of such actions to be the conckisigterminant of the necessity and appropriatethessof.

The statements made on the face and reverse dkili®sare summaries of certain provisions of the @s#pAgreement and the Articles
Association of the Company (as in effect on the dditthe signing of the Deposit Agreement) andaiaified by and subject to the detailed
provisions of the Deposit Agreement and the Ariaé Association, to which reference is hereby médecapitalized terms used herein wh
are not otherwise defined herein shall have theninga ascribed thereto in the Deposit Agreemeng. Dapositary makes no representation or
warranty as to the validity or worth of the DepeditSecurities. The Depositary has made arrangerfrttee acceptance of the ADSs into
DTC. Each Beneficial Owner of ADSs held through Dif@st rely on the procedures of DTC and the DTGQi¢pants to exercise and be
entitled to any rights attributable to such ADSke Depositary may issue Uncertificated ADSs subjemivever, to the terms and conditions of
Section 2.13 of the Deposit Agreement.

Withdrawal of Deposited Securities. The Holder of this ADR (and of the ADSs evidenceddiy) shall be entitled to Delivery (at the
Custodians designated office) of the Deposited Securitighatime represented by the ADSs evidenced harpby satisfaction of each of t
following conditions: (i) the Holder (or a duly duatrized attorney of the Holder) has duly DelivefddlSs to the Depositary at its Principal
Office the ADSs evidenced hereby (and, if applieabiiis ADR) for the purpose of withdrawal of thefdsited Securities represented thereby,
(ii) if applicable and so required by the Depositdhis ADR Delivered to the Depositary for suchrgmse has been properly endorsed in blank
or is accompanied by proper instruments of trarisfeéfank (including signature guarantees in acanog with standard securities industry
practice), (iii) if so required by the Depositatlye Holder of the ADSs has executed and delivereédd Depositary a written order directing
Depositary to cause the Deposited Securities beittgirawn to be Delivered to or upon the writtederof the person(s) designated in such
order, and (iv) all applicable fees and chargesiofi expenses incurred by, the Depositary angpliaable taxes and governmental charge
are set forth in Section 5.9 of, and Exhibitd3 the Deposit Agreement) have been psidhject, however, in each cas® the terms and
conditions of this ADR evidencing the surrenderdalSs, of the Deposit Agreement, of the Company’sches of Association and of any
applicable laws and the rules of CREST, and tomnyisions of or governing the Deposited Securjtie®ach case as in effect at the time
thereof.




Upon satisfaction of each of the conditions spedifibove, the Depositary (i) shall cancel the ADS8bvered to it (and, if applicable, the
ADRs evidencing the ADSs so Delivered), (ii) shtfitect the Registrar to record the cancellatiothefADSs so Delivered on the books
maintained for such purpose, and (iii) shall ditbet Custodian to Deliver, or cause the Deliveryikach case, without unreasonable delay,
the Deposited Securities represented by the AD$ssceled together with any certificate or otherudonent of title for the Deposited
Securities, or evidence of the electronic trangfereof (if available), as the case may be, topanuhe written order of the person(s) design
in the order delivered to the Depositary for suatppse subject however, in each cas® the terms and conditions of the Deposit Agreein
of this ADR evidencing the ADS so cancelled, of Arécles of Association of the Company, of any kggble laws and of the rules of CRES
and to the terms and conditions of or governingdbposited Securities, in each case as in effatieaime thereof.

The Depositary shall not accept for surrender ABsesenting less than one (1) Share. In the dabe @elivery to it of ADSs
representing a number other than a whole numb8hafes, the Depositary shall cause ownership appeopriate whole number of Shares to
be Delivered in accordance with the terms heraul,shall, at the discretion of the Depositary, eitfi) return to the person surrendering such
ADSs the number of ADSs representing any remaifrizagtional Share, or (ii) sell or cause to be ghklfractional Share represented by the
ADSs so surrendered and remit the proceeds ofsaleh(net of (a) applicable fees and charges of eapenses incurred by, the Depositary
(b) taxes withheld) to the person surrenderingb&s. Notwithstanding anything else contained is kDR or the Deposit Agreement, the
Depositary may make delivery at the Principal Gffaf the Depositary of (i) any cash dividends ahcdistributions, or (ii) any proceeds from
the sale of any distributions of shares or rightsich are at the time held by the Depositary ipees of the Deposited Securities represente
the ADSs surrendered for cancellation and withdtaathe request, risk and expense of any Holdesigrendering ADSs represented by this
ADR, and for the account of such Holder, the Dejamgishall direct the Custodian to forward (to &x¢éent permitted by law) any cash or other
property (other than securities) held by the Custoth respect of the Deposited Securities reptteskloy such ADSs to the Depositary for
delivery at the Principal Office of the DepositaBuch direction shall be given by letter or, atribguest, risk and expense of such Holder, by
cable, telex or facsimile transmission.

Transfer, Combination and Split-Up of ADRs . The Registrar shall register the transfer of thidR\(and of the ADSs represented
hereby) on the books maintained for such purpodeta Depositary shall (x) cancel this ADR and execew ADRs evidencing the same
aggregate number of ADSs as those evidenced byADis canceled by the Depositary, (y) cause the Reggito countersign such new ADRs,
and (z) Deliver such new ADRs to or upon the oafehe person entitled thereto, if each of thediwihg conditions has been satisfied: (i) this
ADR has been duly Delivered by the Holder (or ljudy authorized attorney of the Holder) to the Dstaoy at its Principal Office for the
purpose of effecting a transfer thereof, (ii) thisrendered ADR has been properly endorsed oc@ngganied by proper instruments of tran
(including signature guarantees in accordance stithdard securities industry practice), (iii) thisrendered ADR has been duly stamped (if
required by the laws of the State of New York othaf United States), and (iv) all applicable ferg @harges of, and expenses incurred by, the
Depositary and all applicable taxes and governnhehtzrges (as are set forth in Section 5.9 of, Bxiabit B to, the Deposit Agreement) have
been paidsubject, however, in each casethe terms and conditions of this ADR, of the BeipAgreement and of applicable law, in each
as in effect at the time thereof.




The Registrar shall register the split-up or corabion of this ADR (and of the ADSs represented bgren the books maintained for
such purpose and the Depositary shall (x) cant®®BR and execute new ADRSs for the number of AD&giested, but in the aggregate not
exceeding the number of ADSs evidenced by this ARceled by the Depositary, (y) cause the Regisirapuntersign such new ADRs, and
(z) Deliver such new ADRs to or upon the orderaf Holder thereof, if each of the following condits has been satisfied: (i) this ADR has
been duly Delivered by the Holder (or by a dulyhaunized attorney of the Holder) to the DepositaritsaPrincipal Office for the purpose of
effecting a splitip or combination hereof, and (ii) all applicabde$ and charges of, and expenses incurred by gpesidary and all applicab
taxes and government charges (as are set fortbdtios 5.9 of, and Exhibit B, the Deposit Agreement) have been psidbject, however, in
each case to the terms and conditions of this ADR, of thepDsit Agreement and of applicable law, in eacle easin effect at the time there

The Depositary may appoint one or more co-traredents for the purpose of effecting transfers, doattons and split-ups of ADRs at
designated transfer offices on behalf of the DepogiIn carrying out its functions, a co-transégent may require evidence of authority and
compliance with applicable laws and other requinetsi®y Holders or persons entitled to such ADRswiticdoe entitled to protection and
indemnity to the same extent as the Depositaryh Soetransfer agents may be removed and substépiasinted by the Depositary. Each co-
transfer agent appointed under Section 2.6 of tgoBit Agreement (other than the Depositary) giadé notice in writing to the Depositary
accepting such appointment and agreeing to be boyige applicable terms of the Deposit Agreement.

Pre-Conditions to Registration, Transfer, Etc. As a condition precedent to the execution and dgliwegistration of issuance, transfer,
split-up, combination or surrender, of any ADS, dedivery of any distribution thereon, or the withdial of any Deposited Securities, the
Depositary or the Custodian may require (i) paynfirh the depositor of Shares or presenter of ADSs an ADR of a sum sufficient to
reimburse it for any tax or other governmental gkaand any stock transfer or registration fee wapect thereto (including any such tax or
charge and fee with respect to Shares being degositwithdrawn) and payment of any applicable fe@s charges of the Depositary as
provided in Section 5.9 and ExhibittB the Deposit Agreement and in this ADR, (ii) ireduction of proof satisfactory to it as to therntity
and genuineness of any signature or any other reatbmtemplated in Section 3.1 of the Deposit Agreset, and (i) compliance with (A) any
laws or governmental regulations relating to thecetion and delivery of ADRs or ADSs or to the wlitiwal of Deposited Securities and
(B) such reasonable regulations as the Depositadyttee Company may establish consistent with tbgigions of this ADR, if applicable, the
Deposit Agreement and applicable law.

The issuance of ADSs against deposits of Sharesraiynor against deposits of particular Shares beguspended, or the deposit of
particular Shares may be refused, or the registratf transfer of ADSs in particular instances rbayrefused, or the registration of transfer of
ADSs generally may be suspended, during any pevlagh the transfer books of the
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Company, the Depositary, a Registrar or the Shaggd®ar are closed or if any such action is deenss@éssary or advisable by the Depositary
or the Company, in good faith, at any time or fribme to time because of any requirement of lawegutation, any government or
governmental body or commission or any securitiehange on which the Shares or ADSs are listednder any provision of the Deposit
Agreement or this ADR, or under any provision afgoverning, the Deposited Securities, or becafisenoeeting of shareholders of the
Company or for any other reason, subject, in alksgo paragraph (24) and Section 7.8 of the Depgseement. Notwithstanding any
provision of the Deposit Agreement or this ADR lte tontrary, Holders are entitled to surrendertanting ADSs to withdraw the Deposited
Securities associated therewith at any time sulojelgt to (i) temporary delays caused by closingtthasfer books of the Depositary or the
Company or the deposit of Shares in connection witing at a shareholders’ meeting or the paymédtwdends, (ii) the payment of fees,
taxes and similar charges, (iii) compliance witly &hS. or foreign laws or governmental regulatiozlating to the ADSs or the withdrawal of
the Deposited Securities, and (iv) other circunstarspecifically contemplated by Instruction I.Adf the General Instructions to FormbHas
such General Instructions may be amended from tintiene).

Compliance With Information Requests. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Depdgiteement or this ADR, each Holder and
Beneficial Owner of the ADSs represented herebgegto comply with requests from the Company puntsteeapplicable law and any stock
exchange on which Shares or ADSs are, or will égistered, traded or listed, or the Articles of dsation of the Company, which are made to
provide informationinter alia, as to the capacity in which such Holder or BagiafiOwner owns ADSs (and Shares, as the case ejagnil
regarding the identity of any other person(s) ieséed in such ADSs and the nature of such intarestarious other matters, whether or not
they are Holders and/or Beneficial Owners at timetof such request. The Depositary agrees to sisedasonable efforts to forward, upon the
request of the Company and at the Company's expangeuch request from the Company to the Holdedsto forward to the Company any
such responses to such requests received by thesDeapy.

Ownership Restrictions. Notwithstanding any provision of this ADR or of tbeposit Agreement, the Company may restrict tiensshi
the Shares where such transfer might result in ostrig of Shares exceeding limits imposed by appletaw or the Articles of Association of
the Company. The Company may also restrict, in sn@hner as it deems appropriate, transfers of i®sAwhere such transfer may result in
the total number of Shares represented by the AIM®®d by a single Holder or Beneficial Owner toeed any such limits. The Company
may, in its sole discretion but subject to appliedaw, instruct the Depositary to take action witspect to the ownership interest of any
Holder or Beneficial Owner in excess of the linge forth in the preceding sentence, includingrtmitimited to, the imposition of restrictions
on the transfer of ADSs, the removal or limitat@frvoting rights or mandatory sale or dispositionb®half of a Holder or Beneficial Owner of
the Shares represented by the ADSs held by sudteHot Beneficial Owner in excess of such limitatipif and to the extent such disposition
is permitted by applicable law and the ArticlesfasEociation of the Company. Nothing herein or ia Breposit Agreement shall be interpreted
as obligating the Depositary or the Company to ensampliance with the ownership restrictions diésct herein or in Section 3.5 of the
Deposit Agreement.




Applicable laws and regulations may require holderd beneficial owners of Shares, including theddrd and Beneficial Owners of ADSs, to
satisfy reporting requirements and obtain reguasmprovals in certain circumstances. Holders aeweficial Owners of ADSs are solely
responsible for determining and complying with soghorting requirements, and obtaining such appgso#ach Holder and each Beneficial
Owner hereby agrees to make such determinati@nstith reports, and obtain such approvals to ttemeand in the form required by
applicable laws and regulations as in effect fromretto time. Neither the Depositary, the Custodthe,Company or any of their respective
agents or affiliates shall be required to take actjons whatsoever on behalf of Holders or Benaffiowners to determine or satisfy such
reporting requirements or obtain such regulatogyrayals under applicable laws and regulations.

Liability of Holder for Taxes and Other Charges. Any tax or other governmental charge payable byQhstodian or by the Depositary
with respect to any ADR or any Deposited Securitie8DSs shall be payable by the Holders and Bei@fDwners to the Depositary. The
Company, the Custodian and/or Depositary may withbodeduct from any distributions made in respgddeposited Securities, and may sell
for the account of a Holder and/or Beneficial Owamry or all of the Deposited Securities and apptshsdistributions and sale proceeds in
payment of, any taxes (including applicable inteeg®l penalties) or charges that are or may bebpayey Holders or Beneficial Owners in
respect of the ADSs, Deposited Securities and AlfiRsHolder and the Beneficial Owner hereof renmgjriable for any deficiency. The
Custodian may refuse the deposit of Shares anDé¢pesitary may refuse to issue ADSs, to deliver ADiegister the transfer of ADSs,
register the split-up or combination of ADRs andbfect to paragraph (24) and Section 7.8 of thedSig@g\greement) the withdrawal of
Deposited Securities until payment in full of suak, charge, penalty or interest is received. E¥ésider and Beneficial Owner agrees to
indemnify the Depositary, the Company, the Custodiamd any of their agents, officers, employeesAdfitlates for, and hold each of them
harmless from, any claims with respect to taxedl(ing applicable interest and penalties thereoisjng from any tax benefit obtained for
such Holder and/or Beneficial Owner.

Representations and Warranties of DepositorsEach person depositing Shares under the Depositetyggnt shall be deemed therek
represent and warrant that (i) such Shares ancetttificates therefor are duly authorized, validiyued, fully paid, non-assessable and legally
obtained by such person, (ii) all preemptive (aindlar) rights, if any, with respect to such Shahase been validly waived or exercised,

(iii) the person making such deposit is duly auittent so to do, (iv) the Shares presented for deposifree and clear of any lien, encumbrance,
security interest, charge, mortgage or adversencland (v) the Shares presented for deposit ateandtthe ADSs issuable upon such deposit
will not be, Restricted Securities (except as comtiated in Section 2.14 of the Deposit Agreementyl (vi) the Shares presented for deposit
have not been stripped of any rights or entitlemedtich representations and warranties shall suthisr deposit and withdrawal of Shares, the
issuance and cancellation of ADSs in respect thiened the transfer of such ADSs. If any such regméstions or warranties are false in any
way, the Company and the Depositary shall be aizdabrat the cost and expense of the person dempSihares, to take any and all actions
necessary to correct the consequences thereof.




Proofs, Certificates and Other Information . Any person presenting Shares for deposit, and angdd and any Beneficial Owner may
be required, and every Holder and Beneficial Ovatgees, from time to time to provide to the Degogitind the Custodian such proof of
citizenship or residence, taxpayer status, paymwieall applicable taxes or other governmental ceaygxchange control approval, legal or
beneficial ownership of ADSs and Deposited Seasjtcompliance with applicable laws, the termdefDeposit Agreement or the ADR(S)
evidencing the ADSs and the provisions of, or goirgy, the Deposited Securities, to execute sudiifications and to make such
representations and warranties, and to provide stier information and documentation (or, in theecaf Shares in registered form presented
for deposit, such information relating to the régison on the books of the Company or of the Sh&egistrar) as the Depositary or the
Custodian may deem necessary or proper or as tmp&u/ may reasonably require by written requetiteédDepositary consistent with its
obligations under the Deposit Agreement and thédicgie ADR(s). The Depositary and the Registrarapplicable, may withhold the
execution or delivery or registration of transféaay ADR or ADS or the distribution or sale of agiyidend or distribution of rights or of the
proceeds thereof or, to the extent not limited dsagraph (24) and Section 7.8 of the Deposit Agezgnthe delivery of any Deposited
Securities until such proof or other informatioriiied or such certifications are executed, or stggresentations and warranties are made or
such other information or documentation are pradjde each case to the Depositary’s, the Registiaand the Company’s satisfaction. The
Depositary shall provide the Company, in a timegnmer, with copies or originals if necessary angreriate of (i) any such proofs of
citizenship or residence, taxpayer status, or exgb@ontrol approval or copies of written repreatahs and warranties which it receives from
Holders and Beneficial Owners, and (ii) any otmdotimation or documents which the Company may neaisly request and which the
Depositary shall request and receive from any Habddeneficial Owner or any person presenting 8h&or deposit or ADSs for cancellation,
transfer or withdrawal. Nothing herein shall obtig¢ghe Depositary to (i) obtain any information fbe Company if not provided by the Hold
or Beneficial Owners, or (ii) verify or vouch fdre accuracy of the information so provided by tlodddrs or Beneficial Owners.

Charges of Depositary. The Depositary shall charge the following fees:

Issuance Feeto any person depositing Shares or to whom AD8ssaued upon the deposit of Shares (excludingisses as a
result of distributions described in paragraph Gg)ow), a fee not in excess of U.S. $5.00 perADSs (or fraction thereof)
issued under the terms of the Deposit Agreement;

Cancellation Feeto any person surrendering ADSs for cancellasiod withdrawal of Deposited Securities or to angspe to
whom Deposited Securities are delivered, a feémexcess of U.S. $5.00 per 100 ADSs (or fractiereof) surrendered;

Cash Distribution Feeto any Holder of ADSs, a fee not in excess of.\$500 per 100 ADSs (or fraction thereof) heldtfoe
distribution of cash dividends or other cash disttions (i.e., sale of rights and other entitlements);
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Stock Distribution /Rights Exercise Fet any Holder of ADS(s), a fee not in excess ¢ .\$5.00 per 100 ADSs (or fraction
thereof) held for (a) stock dividends or other fséack distributions, or (b) exercise of rightgtarchase additional ADSs;

Other Distribution Feeto any Holder of ADS(s), a fee not in excess d8.$5.00 per 100 ADSs (or fraction thereof) helidthe
distribution of securities other than ADSs or rigtd purchase additional ADSs (i.e., spin-off segrand

Depositary Services Fedo any Holder of ADS(s), a fee not in excess db..$5.00 per 100 ADSs (or fraction thereof) heidloe
applicable record date(s) established by the D&grysi

Holders, Beneficial Owners, persons depositing &and persons surrendering ADSs for cancellatidrfar the purpose of withdrawi
Deposited Securities shall be responsible for ¢tlewing charges:

taxes (including applicable interest and penali@®) other governmental charges;

such registration fees as may from time to timénkeffect for the registration of Shares or othepbDsited Securities on the share
register and applicable to transfers of Shareslmrdeposited Securities to or from the name efGlstodian, the
Depositary or any nominees upon the making of déepaad withdrawals, respectively;

such cable, telex and facsimile transmission atigdaty expenses as are expressly provided in thgoBie Agreement to be at the
expense of the person depositing or withdrawing&har Holders and Beneficial Owners of ADSs;

the expenses and charges incurred by the Depositéing conversion of foreign currency;

such fees and expenses as are incurred by the iBpas connection with compliance with exchangatrol regulations and
other regulatory requirements applicable to Shdveppsited Securities, ADSs and ADRs; and

the fees and expenses incurred by the DepositeyCtistodian, or any nominee in connection withdielévery or servicing of
Deposited Securities.

All fees and charges may, at any time and from tonttme, be changed by agreement between the Repoand Company but, in the
case of fees and charges payable by Holders orfisBeth®wners, only in the manner contemplated byagraph (22) of this ADR and as
contemplated in the Deposit Agreement. The Depsitéll provide, without charge, a copy of its latdee schedule to anyone upon request.
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Depositary Fees payable upon (i) deposit of Shagamst issuance of ADSs and (ii) surrender of ARBsancellation and withdrawal
Deposited Securities will be charged by the Depogito the person to whom the ADSs so issued dieeded (in the case of ADS issuances)
and to the person who delivers the ADSs for caatiel to the Depositary (in the case of ADS camtielhs). In the case of ADSs issued by the
Depositary into DTC or presented to the DepositeayDTC, the ADS issuance and cancellation feekheilpayable to the Depositary by the
DTC Participant(s) receiving the ADSs from the D&ifary or the DTC Participant(s) surrendering tH2S5 to the Depositary for cancellation,
as the case may be, on behalf of the Beneficialé{hand will be charged by the DTC Participantigshe account(s) of the applicable
Beneficial Owner(s) in accordance with the procedwand practices of the DTC participant(s) asfiecefat the time. Depositary fees in respect
of distributions and the Depositary services feepayable to the Depositary by Holders as of tipieable ADS Record Date established by
the Depositary. In the case of distributions othcalke amount of the applicable Depositary feekethucted by the Depositary from the funds
being distributed. In the case of distributionsestthan cash and the Depositary service fee, tip@fiary will invoice the applicable Holders
as of the ADS Record Date established by the DegrgsiFor ADSs held through DTC, the Depositarysfém distributions other than cash ¢
the Depositary service fee are charged by the Digpgso the DTC Participants in accordance with pinocedures and practices prescribed by
DTC from time to time and the DTC Participantsumtcharge the amount of such fees to the Benkfciamers for whom they hold ADSs.

The Depositary may reimburse the Company for aegapenses incurred by the Company in respecteoADR program established
pursuant to the Deposit Agreement, by making alskla portion of the Depositary fees charged ipeesof the ADR program or otherwise,
upon such terms and conditions as the CompanyrenBéepositary agree from time to time. The Comgsrall pay to the Depositary such ft
and charges and reimburse the Depositary for sutbfepocket expenses as the Depositary and thep@oynmay agree from time to time.
Responsibility for payment of such charges and beirsements may from time to time be changed byeageat between the Company and the
Depositary. Unless otherwise agreed, the Depos#taayl present its statement for such expense$emsdor charges to the Company once €
three months. The charges and expenses of thediarstare for the sole account of the Depositary.

The right of the Depositary to receive paymentesfs, charges and expenses as provided abovesivalesthe termination of the
Deposit Agreement. As to any Depositary, upon gsignation or removal of such Depositary as desdrib Section 5.4 of the Deposit
Agreement, such right shall extend for those felbarges and expenses incurred prior to the effawtiss of such resignation or removal.

Title to ADRs . It is a condition of this ADR, and every succesdii@der of this ADR by accepting or holding the saconsents and
agrees, that title to this ADR (and to each ADSlerced hereby) shall be transferable upon the senmes as a certificated security under the
laws of the State of New York, provided that, ie ttase of Certificated ADSs, such ADR has beengrtpgndorsed or is accompanied by
proper instruments of transfer. Notwithstanding aantice to the contrary, the Depositary and the @Gamy may deem and treat the Holder of
this ADR (that is, the person in whose name thiRAB registered on the books of the Depositaryhasibsolute owner thereof for all
purposes. Neither the Depositary nor the



Company shall have any obligation nor be subjeetpliability under the Deposit Agreement or tAIBR to any holder of this ADR or any
Beneficial Owner unless, in the case of a holdekdEs, such holder is the Holder of this ADR regjistl on the books of the Depositary or, in
the case of a Beneficial Owner, such Beneficial ©@wor the Beneficial Owner’s representative istiwdder registered on the books of the
Depositary.

Validity of ADR . The Holder(s) of this ADR (and the ADSs represeittekby) shall not be entitled to any benefits uride Deposit
Agreement or be valid or enforceable for any puepagainst the Depositary or the Company unlessMBR has been (i) dated, (ii) signed by
the manual or facsimile signature of a duly-authedisignatory of the Depositary, (iii) countersigry the manual or facsimile signature of a
duly-authorized signatory of the Registrar, and (agistered in the books maintained by the Reayigtr the registration of issuances and
transfers of ADRs. An ADR bearing the facsimilergiture of a duly-authorized signatory of the Defaogior the Registrar, who at the time of
signature was a duly authorized signatory of thpd3dary or the Registrar, as the case may be, lsinal the Depositary, notwithstanding the
fact that such signatory has ceased to be so azgldgorior to the delivery of such ADR by the Dejpary.

Available Information; Reports; Inspection of Transfer Books.

The Company is subject to the periodic reportingineements of the Exchange Act and, accordinglyedgiired to file or submit certain
reports with the Commission. These reports caretseved from the Commission's website (www.sec)@md can be inspected and copied at
the public reference facilities maintained by th@r@nission located (as of the date of the DeposieAgent) at 100 F Street, N.E., Washiny
D.C. 20549. The Depositary shall make availabldrfspection by Holders at its Principal Office aeports and communications, including
any proxy soliciting materials, received from then@pany which are both (a) received by the Depgsithe Custodian, or the nominee of
either of them as the holder of the Deposited Seesirand (b) made generally available to the hsldé such Deposited Securities by the
Company. The Depositary shall also provide or naakadlable to Holders copies of such reports whenished by the Company pursuant to
Section 5.6 of the Deposit Agreement.

The Registrar shall keep books for the registratfbADSs which at all reasonable times shall bendjpe inspection by the Company and
by the Holders of such ADSs, provided that suchéction shall not be, to the Registrar’'s knowledgethe purpose of communicating with
Holders of such ADSs in the interest of a busiressbject other than the business of the Comparogtar than a matter related to the Deposit
Agreement or the ADSs.

The Registrar may close the transfer books witpeetsto the ADSs, at any time or from time to timvben deemed necessary or
advisable by it in good faith in connection witke therformance of its duties hereunder, or at theaeable written request of the Company
subject, in all cases, to paragraph (24) and Secti® of the Deposit Agreement.
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Dated:

CITIBANK, N.A.

CITIBANK, N.A.
as Depositar

Transfer Agent and Registr

By:

By:

Authorized Signator Authorized Signator

The address of the Principal Office of the Depogita 388 Greenwich Street, New York, New York 180WU.S.A.
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FORM OF REVERSE OF ADR
SUMMARY OF CERTAIN ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS
OF THE DEPOSIT AGREEMENT

Dividends and Distributions in Cash, Shares, etcWhenever the Company intends to make a distribudfancash dividend or other
cash distribution, the Company shall give noticerelof to the Depositary at least twenty (20) dayar o the proposed distribution, specifying,
inter alia, the record date applicable for determining thieldas of Deposited Securities entitled to receivehsdistribution. Upon the timely
receipt of such notice, the Depositary shall eightdn ADS Record Date upon the terms describ&gation 4.9 of the Deposit Agreement.
Upon receipt of confirmation from the Custodiartiué receipt of any cash dividend or other cashildigion on any Deposited Securities, or
upon receipt of proceeds from the sale of any DiggbSecurities or of any entitlements held in ex¢f Deposited Securities under the terms
of the Deposit Agreement, the Depositary will {iaf the time of receipt thereof any amounts rezgtiv a Foreign Currency can, in the
judgment of the Depositary (upon the terms of $@cti.8 of the Deposit Agreement), be converted praaticable basis into Dolla
transferable to the United States, promptly conoedause to be converted such cash dividendjhlisibn or proceeds into Dollars (upon the
terms of Section 4.8 of the Deposit Agreement) jf(@pplicable and unless previously establiskestablish the ADS Record Date upon the
terms described in Section 4.9 of the Deposit Ageet, and (i) distribute promptly the amount thiaseived (net of (a) applicable fees and
charges of, and expenses incurred by, the Depypsitat (b) taxes withheld) to the Holders entitleereto as of the ADS Record Date in
proportion to the number of ADSs held as of the AR ord Date. The Depositary shall distribute anlgh amount, however, as can be
distributed without attributing to any Holder adtimn of one cent, and any balance not so diseithshall be held by the Depositary (without
liability for interest thereon) and shall be addednd become part of the next sum received bypemositary for distribution to Holders of
ADSs outstanding at the time of the next distributilf the Company, the Custodian or the Deposigngquired to withhold and does withh
from any cash dividend or other cash distributionmespect of any Deposited Securities an amouatcoaunt of taxes, duties or other
governmental charges, the amount distributed taéfslon the ADSs representing such Deposited Siesushall be reduced accordingly. S
withheld amounts shall be forwarded by the Compémgy Custodian or the Depositary to the relevanegumental authority. Evidence of
payment thereof by the Company shall be forwardethe Company to the Depositary upon request. TéygoBitary will hold any cash
amounts it is unable to distribute in a non-intebesaring account for the benefit of the applicdtddders and Beneficial Owners of ADSs until
the distribution can be effected or the funds thatDepositary holds must be escheated as unclginogerty in accordance with the laws of
the relevant states of the United States.

Whenever the Company intends to make a distribuhiahconsists of a dividend in, or free distribatiof, Shares, the Company shall ¢
notice thereof to the Depositary at least twen@) (Pays prior to the proposed distribution, speciy interalia, the record date applicable to
holders of Deposited Securities entitled to recsiveh distribution. Upon the timely receipt of sumdice from the Company, the Depositary
shall establish an ADS Record
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Date upon the terms described in Section 4.9 obtgosit Agreement. Upon receipt of confirmaticonfrthe Custodian of the receipt of the
Shares so distributed by the Company, the Depgsitaall either (i) subject to Section 5.9 of thepbsit Agreement, distribute to the Holder

of the ADS Record Date in proportion to the numiifeADSs held as of the ADS Record Date, additigkiaSs, which represent in the
aggregate the number of Shares received as suidend; or free distribution, subject to the othenis of the Deposit Agreement (including,
without limitation, (a) the applicable fees and ez of, and expenses incurred by, the Depositady(la) taxes), or (ii) if additional ADSs are
not so distributed, take all actions necessaryabdach ADS issued and outstanding after the AB&®RI Date shall, to the extent permissible
by law, thenceforth also represent rights and @stein the additional integral number of Sharegridisted upon the Deposited Securities
represented thereby (net of (a) the applicablededscharges of, and expenses incurred by, theditapg and (b) taxes). In lieu of delivering
fractional ADSs, the Depositary shall sell the nemaf Shares or ADSs, as the case may be, repegsbytthe aggregate of such fractions and
distribute the net proceeds upon the terms sédt forEection 4.1 of the Deposit Agreement.

In the event that the Depositary determines thtdistribution in property (including Shares) idgect to any tax or other governmental
charges which the Depositary is obligated to witbhor, if the Company in the fulfillment of its igations under Section 5.7 of the Deposit
Agreement, has furnished an opinion of U.S. couds&rmining that Shares must be registered uh@eBecurities Act or other laws in order
to be distributed to Holders (and no such registnastatement has been declared effective), the8igry may dispose of all or a portion of
such property (including Shares and rights to sulbstherefor) in such amounts and in such marinelyding by public or private sale, as the
Depositary deems necessary and practicable, ariddgpesitary shall distribute the net proceeds gfsauch sale (after deduction of (a) taxes
and (b) fees and charges of, and the expenseseddoy, the Depositary) to Holders entitled thergton the terms of Section 4.1 of the
Deposit Agreement. The Depositary shall hold andisiribute any unsold balance of such propertgdoordance with the provisions of the
Deposit Agreement.

Whenever the Company intends to make a distribygeyrable at the election of the holders of Sharessh or in additional Shares, the
Company shall give timely notice thereof to the Bsitary at least sixty (60) days prior to the pragub distribution specifying, inter alia, the
record date applicable to holders of Deposited fiesientitled to receive such elective distribatand whether or not it wishes such elective
distribution to be made available to Holders of ADBpon the timely receipt of a notice indicatihgttthe Company wishes such elective
distribution to be made available to Holders of AD®e Depositary shall consult with the Compangidtermine, and the Company shall assist
the Depositary in its determination, whether igisful and reasonably practicable to make suchtigkdistribution available to the Holders of
ADSs. The Depositary shall make such elective ibistion available to Holders only if (i) the Compashall have timely requested that the
elective distribution be made available to Holdéisthe Depositary shall have determined thathsdistribution is reasonably practicable and
(i) the Depositary shall have received satisfagtdocumentation within the terms of Section 5.7ha&f Deposit Agreement. If the above
conditions are not satisfied, the Depositary sestablish an ADS Record Date on the terms desciib8éction 4.9 of the Deposit Agreement
and, to the extent permitted by law, distributéh® Holders, on the basis of the same determinasds made in respect of the Shares for w
no election is

13



made, either (X) cash upon the terms describe@@ti@ 4.1 of the Deposit Agreement or (Y) addiibADSs representing such additional
Shares upon the terms described in Section 42=dDeposit Agreement. If the above conditions atisfed, the Depositary shall establish an
ADS Record Date on the terms described in Secti®mAd establish procedures to enable Holderstd #le receipt of the proposed
distribution in cash or in additional ADSs. The Quamny shall assist the Depositary in establishirg sarocedures to the extent necessary. If a
Holder elects to receive the proposed distribufdnin cash, the distribution shall be made upantérms described in Section 4.1 of the
Deposit Agreement, or (Y) in ADSs, the distributgimall be made upon the terms described in Sedtof the Deposit Agreement. Nothing
herein shall obligate the Depositary to make abléo Holders a method to receive the electiv&itiigion in Shares (rather than ADSSs).
There can be no assurance that Holders generaiynyoHolder in particular, will be given the ophanity to receive elective distributions on
the same terms and conditions as the holders aESha

Whenever the Company intends to distribute to thiddrs of the Deposited Securities rights to subedior additional Shares, the
Company shall give notice thereof to the Depositdrigast sixty (60) days prior to the proposedrithigtion specifying, inter alia, the record
date applicable to holders of Deposited Securéiggtled to receive such distribution and whethenat it wishes such rights to be made
available to Holders of ADSs. Upon the timely rgteaif a notice indicating that the Company wishashsrights to be made available to
Holders of ADSs, the Depositary shall consult with Company to determine, and the Company shafitake Depositary in its determination,
whether it is lawful and reasonably practicablenimke such rights available to the Holders. The Bigry shall make such rights available to
Holders only if (i) the Company shall have timedguested that such rights be made available todtgldii) the Depositary shall have recei
satisfactory documentation within the terms of #eck.7 of the Deposit Agreement, and (iii) the Dgipary shall have determined that such
distribution of rights is reasonably practicablkethe event any of the conditions set forth abaeenat satisfied or if the Company requests that
the rights not be made available to Holders of ADBs Depositary shall proceed with the sale ofrifplets as contemplated in Section 4.4(b
the Deposit Agreement. In the event all conditisesforth above are satisfied, the Depositary stsliblish an ADS Record Date (upon the
terms described in Section 4.9 of the Deposit Agie®) and establish procedures to (x) distribughts to purchase additional ADSs (by
means of warrants or otherwise), (y) to enable-blglers to exercise such rights (upon paymentefthbscription price and of the applicable
(a) fees and charges of, and expenses incurrettidypepositary and (b) taxes), and (z) to delivexS& upon the valid exercise of such rights.
The Company shall assist the Depositary to thenéxtecessary in establishing such procedures. hNgtiérein shall obligate the Depositary to
make available to the Holders a method to exerdgiges to subscribe for Shares (rather than ADSS).

If (i) the Company does not timely request the Bxaoy to make the rights available to Holdersemuests that the rights not be made
available to Holders, (ii) the Depositary failsrezeive satisfactory documentation within the teahSection 5.7 of the Deposit Agreement or
determines it is not reasonably practicable to mhkeights available to Holders, or (iii) any righmade available are not exercised and appea
to be about to lapse, the Depositary shall detegminether it is lawful and reasonably practicabledll such rights, in a riskless principal
capacity, at such place and upon such terms (imgualiblic or private sale) as it may deem prattieaThe Company shall assist the
Depositary to the extent necessary to determine
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such legality and practicability. The Depositanalshupon such sale, convert and distribute prosedéduch sale (net of applicable (a) fees and
charges of, and expenses incurred by, the Depypsitat (b) taxes) upon the terms set forth in Saatid of the Deposit Agreement.

If the Depositary is unable to make any rights kadé to Holders upon the terms described in Seetid(a) of the Deposit Agreement or
to arrange for the sale of the rights upon the s$edescribed in Section 4.4(b) of the Deposit Agreetnthe Depositary shall allow such rights
to lapse.

The Depositary shall not be responsible for (i) &ilure to determine that it may be lawful or pieable to make such rights available to
Holders in general or any Holders in particulay,dny foreign exchange exposure or loss incumetbinnection with such sale, or exercise, or
(iiif) the content of any materials forwarded to thelders on behalf of the Company in connectiorhwlite rights distribution.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Sectb# of the Deposit Agreement, if registration (enthe Securities Act or any other
applicable law) of the rights or the securitiesvtich any rights relate may be required in ordertifie Company to offer such rights or such
securities to Holders and to sell the securitigsagented by such rights, the Depositary will ristrihute such rights to the Holders (i) unless
and until a registration statement under the SaesrAct (or other applicable law) covering sucfedhg is in effect or (ii) unless the Company
furnishes the Depositary opinion(s) of counseltfier Company in the United States and counsel t€tmpany in any other applicable cour
in which rights would be distributed, in each caa@isfactory to the Depositary, to the effect thatoffering and sale of such securities to
Holders and Beneficial Owners are exempt from,mnaolt require registration under, the provisionshef Securities Act or any other applica
laws.

In the event that the Company, the Depositary @iGbstodian shall be required to withhold and deiéizhold from any distribution of
property (including rights) an amount on accountas®s or other governmental charges, the amosfrthiited to the Holders of ADSs
representing such Deposited Securities shall becestlaccordingly. In the event that the Depositetgrmines that any distribution in property
(including Shares and rights to subscribe therefoslbject to any tax or other governmental clargeich the Depositary is obligated to
withhold, the Depositary may dispose of all or atijpo of such property (including Shares and rigbtsubscribe therefor) in such amounts and
in such manner, including by public or private sakethe Depositary deems necessary and practimapdy any such taxes or charges.

There can be no assurance that Holders generainyoHolder in particular, will be given the opharity to receive or exercise rights on
the same terms and conditions as the holders aESloa be able to exercise such rights. Nothingiheshall obligate the Company to file any
registration statement in respect of any rightStwaires or other securities to be acquired upoaxbecise of such rights.

Whenever the Company intends to distribute to thiddrs of Deposited Securities property other ttesh, Shares or rights to purchase
additional Shares, the Company shall give timelyceathereof to the Depositary and shall indicatesthier or not it wishes such distribution to
be made to Holders of ADSs. Upon receipt of a eaticlicating that the
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Company wishes such distribution be made to HoldeADSs, the Depositary shall consult with the Qamy, and the Company shall assist
the Depositary, to determine whether such distignuto Holders is lawful and reasonably practicailee Depositary shall not make such
distribution unless (i) the Company shall have esfed the Depositary to make such distributionatiers, (ii) the Depositary shall have
received satisfactory documentation within the eohSection 5.7 of the Deposit Agreement, anjittié Depositary shall have determined
that such distribution is reasonably practicable.

Upon receipt of satisfactory documentation andrémpiest of the Company to distribute property tédds of ADSs and after making t
requisite determinations set forth in (a) above,Btepositary shall distribute the property so nee@ito the Holders of record, as of the ADS
Record Date, in proportion to the number of ADSlsl iy them respectively and in such manner as #@oBitary may deem practicable for
accomplishing such distribution (i) upon receippafyment or net of the applicable fees and chavfend expenses incurred by, the
Depositary, and (ii) net of any taxes withheld. Depositary may dispose of all or a portion of pheperty so distributed and deposited, in
such amounts and in such manner (including publprivate sale) as the Depositary may deem prditoar necessary to satisfy any taxes
(including applicable interest and penalties) ¢reotgovernmental charges applicable to the digtchu

If (i) the Company does not request the Deposiiamake such distribution to Holders or requestsdmonake such distribution to
Holders, (ii) the Depositary does not receive &atiwry documentation within the terms of Section &f the Deposit Agreement, or (iii) the
Depositary determines that all or a portion of sdigtribution is not reasonably practicable, thg&sitary shall sell or cause such property to
be sold in a public or private sale, at such ptacglaces and upon such terms as it may deem pabtgi and shall (i) cause the proceeds of
sale, if any, to be converted into Dollars anddigtribute the proceeds of such conversion receyethe Depositary (net of applicable (a) fees
and charges of, and expenses incurred by, the Dapoand (b) taxes) to the Holders as of the A d&d Date upon the terms of Section 4.1
of the Deposit Agreement. If the Depositary is uadb sell such property, the Depositary may dispafssuch property for the account of the
Holders in any way it deems reasonably practicahtier the circumstances.

Redemption. If the Company intends to exercise any right ofragtion in respect of any of the Deposited Se@g;tihe Company shall
give timely notice thereof to the Depositary aslesixty (60) days prior to the intended date oferaption which notice shall set forth the
particulars of the proposed redemption. Upon timmebeipt of (i) such notice and (ii) satisfactogcdmentation given by the Company to the
Depositary within the terms of Section 5.7 of thepDsit Agreement, and only if the Depositary shalle determined that such proposed
redemption is practicable, the Depositary shalVjgt® to each Holder a notice setting forth thendid exercise by the Company of the
redemption rights and any other particulars sehfiorthe Company’s notice to the Depositary. Thep@sitary shall instruct the Custodian to
present to the Company the Deposited Securitiessipect of which redemption rights are being esertiagainst payment of the applicable
redemption price. Upon receipt of confirmation frtime Custodian that the redemption has taken @ladehat funds representing the
redemption price have been received, the Depositaall convert, transfer, distribute the proceeds Of applicable (a) fees and charges of,
expenses incurred by, the Depositary, and (b) jJaretire ADSs and cancel ADRs, if applicable, upletivery of such ADSs by
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Holders thereof and upon the terms set forth irti®es 4.1 and 6.2 of the Deposit Agreement. If kass all outstanding Deposited Securities
are redeemed, the ADSs to be retired will be setEby lot or on a pro rata basis, as may be detexiridy the Depositary. The redemption f.
per ADS shall be the dollar equivalent of the gere amount received by the Depositary (adjustedftect the ADS(s)-t&hare(s) ratio) upc
the redemption of the Deposited Securities reptesdny ADSs (subject to the terms of Section 4.thefDeposit Agreement and the applic
fees and charges of, and expenses incurred bpapesitary, and taxes) multiplied by the numbebDeposited Securities represented by each
ADS redeemed.

Fixing of ADS Record Date. Whenever the Depositary shall receive notice offittieg of a record date by the Company for the
determination of holders of Deposited Securitietitled to receive any distribution (whether in caShares, rights or other distribution), or
whenever for any reason the Depositary causesragetia the number of Shares that are representeddiy ADS, or whenever the Depositary
shall receive notice of any meeting of, or solitita of consents or proxies of, holders of Sharestioer Deposited Securities, or whenever the
Depositary shall find it necessary or convenientannection with the giving of any notice, solitite of any consent or any other matter, the
Depositary shall fix a record date (* ADS Recordé¥a for the determination of the Holders of ADSs wétmall be entitled to receive such
distribution, to give instructions for the exercidevoting rights at any such meeting, to give ahtwold such consent, to receive such notice or
solicitation or to otherwise take action, or to e the rights of Holders with respect to sucanged number of Shares represented by each
ADS. The Depositary shall make reasonable effortsstablish the ADS Record Date as closely as Iplestsi the applicable record date for the
Deposited Securities (if any) set by the Compamyjenfenglish law and the Company's Articles of Asstian. Subject to applicable law and
the terms and conditions of this ADR and Sectiodstdrough 4.8 of the Deposit Agreement, only tludddrs of ADSs at the close of business
in New York on such ADS Record Date shall be egditio receive such distributions, to give suchrirgtons, to receive such notice or
solicitation, or otherwise take action.

Voting of Deposited Securities As soon as practicable after receipt of noticeryf meeting at which the holders of Deposited Sé¢iesri
are entitled to vote, or of solicitation of conseat proxies from holders of Deposited Securitiks,Depositary shall fix the ADS Record Date
in respect of such meeting or solicitation of saohsent or proxy in accordance with Section 4.&vefDeposit Agreement. The Depositary
shall, if requested by the Company in writing itimaely manner (the Depositary having no obligationake any further action if the request
shall not have been received by the Depositargadt Ithirty (30) days prior to the date of suclevamt meeting), at the Company’s expense and
provided no U.S. legal prohibitions exist, disttidtio Holders as of the ADS Record Date: (a) swuatice of meeting or solicitation of consent
or proxies, (b) a statement that the Holders atlbse of business on the ADS Record Date willitéled, subject to any applicable law, the
provisions of the Deposit Agreement, the Articlé®\esociation and the provisions of or governingpDsited Securities (which provisions, if
any, shall be summarized in pertinent part by then@any), to instruct the Depositary as to the @gerof the voting rights, if any, pertaining
the Deposited Securities represented by such Held&Ss and (c) a brief statement as to the maimethich such voting instructions may be
given.
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Notwithstanding anything contained in the Depogitédement or any ADR, with the Compi's prior consent, the Depositary may, to the e:
not prohibited by law or regulations, or by theuigments of the stock exchange on which the AD8disted, in lieu of distribution of the
materials provided to the Depositary in connectidgthh any meeting of, or solicitation of consentgooxies from, holders of Deposited
Securities, distribute to the Holders a notice iratvides Holders with, or otherwise publicizedHmlders, instructions on how to retrieve such
materials or receive such materials upon requiest,(by reference to a website containing the matefal retrieval or a contact for requesting
copies of the materials).

Voting instructions may be given only in respectafumber of ADSs representing an integral numb&eposited Securities. Upon the timely
receipt from a Holder of ADSs as of the ADS Reddede of voting instructions in the manner specitigdhe Depositary, the Depositary shall
endeavor, insofar as practicable and permitted umplglicable law, the provisions of the Deposit égment, Articles of Association of the
Company and the provisions of the Deposited Seesfito vote, or cause the Custodian to vote, tgoBited Securities (in person or by prc
represented by such Holder's ADSs in accordande suith voting instructions.

Neither the Depositary nor the Custodian shall uiaae circumstances exercise any discretion astioy and neither the Depositary nor
the Custodian shall vote, attempt to exerciseitite to vote, or in any way make use of the DegakBecurities represented by ADSs, except
pursuant to and in accordance with the voting irtsions timely received from Holders or as otheendsntemplated herein. If the Depositary
timely receives voting instructions from a Holddmieh fail to specify the manner in which the Depasi is to vote the Deposited Securities
represented by such Holder's ADSs, the Depositaltydeem such Holder (unless otherwise specifiethanotice distributed to Holders) to
have instructed the Depositary to vote in favothefitems set forth in such instructions. Deposgedurities represented by ADSs for whict
timely voting instructions are received by the D&ifary from the Holder shall not be voted. Notwittigling anything else contained herein,
Depositary shall, if so requested in writing by @empany, represent all Deposited Securities (wdrathnot voting instructions have been
received in respect of such Deposited Securitia® frlolders as of the ADS Record Date) for the polgpose of establishing quorum at a
meeting of shareholders. Notwithstanding anythilsg eontained in the Deposit Agreement or this ADR,Depositary shall not have any
obligation to take any action with respect to arseting, or solicitation of consents or proxiesholders of Deposited Securities if the takin
such action would violate U.S. laws. The Companmgag to take any and all actions reasonably negessanable Holders and Beneficial
Owners to exercise the voting rights accruing toBreposited Securities and to deliver to the Déaosan opinion of U.S. counsel addressing
any actions requested to be taken if so requestéidebDepositary. There can be no assurance thdektogenerally or any Holder in particular
will receive the notice described above with sudiit time to enable the Holder to return votingiinstions to the Depositary in a timely
manner.

Changes Affecting Deposited SecuritiesUpon any change in nominal or par value, splitagncellation, consolidation or any other
reclassification of Deposited Securities, or upoy gecapitalization, reorganization, merger, coiastion or sale of assets affecting the
Company or to which it is a party, any securitidgcl shall be received by the Depositary or thet@lian in exchange for, or in conversion of
or replacement of or otherwise in respect of, ddeposited Securities shall, to the extent permitiethw, be treated as new Deposited
Securities
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under the Deposit Agreement, and the ADRs shabjestito the provisions of the Deposit Agreemertt applicable law, evidence ADSs
representing the right to receive such additiomakplacement securities. In giving effect to sabhnge, splitip, cancellation, consolidation
other reclassification of Deposited Securitiesap#alization, reorganization, merger, consolidatio sale of assets, the Depositary may, with
the Company’s approval, and shall, if the Compdrallso request, subject to the terms of the Depagieement and receipt of an opinion of
counsel to the Company satisfactory to the Depoysiteat such actions are not in violation of anplagable laws or regulations, (i) issue and
deliver additional ADSs as in the case of a stdelddnd on the Shares, (i) amend the Deposit Agwea and the applicable ADRs, (i) ame
the applicable Registration Statement(s) on Forénas-filed with the Commission in respect of thesD(iv) call for the surrender of
outstanding ADRs to be exchanged for new ADRs,(&hthke such other actions as are appropriateftect the transaction with respect to the
ADSs. The Company agrees to, jointly with the Déjaog, amend the Registration Statement on FormaB-filed with the Commission to
permit the issuance of such new form of ADRs. Nttatanding the foregoing, in the event that anyisgcso received may not be lawfully
distributed to some or all Holders, the Depositaay, with the Companyg’approval, and shall, if the Company requestgestito receipt of a
opinion of Company’s counsel satisfactory to th@@stary that such action is not in violation ofyapplicable laws or regulations, sell such
securities at public or private sale, at such ptagalaces and upon such terms as it may deem paoplemay allocate the net proceeds of such
sales (net of (a) fees and charges of, and expémagsed by, the Depositary and (b) taxes) foraheount of the Holders otherwise entitled to
such securities upon an averaged or other pra&itwtsis without regard to any distinctions amamghsHolders and distribute the net proce
so allocated to the extent practicable as in tise oha distribution received in cash pursuantectin 4.1 of the Deposit Agreement. The
Depositary shall not be responsible for (i) anyuf@ to determine that it may be lawful or pradiieato make such securities available to
Holders in general or any Holder in particular) &ny foreign exchange exposure or loss incurremimection with such sale, or (iii) any
liability to the purchaser of such securities.

Exoneration . Neither the Depositary nor the Company shall bégatgd to do or perform any act which is incongisteith the
provisions of the Deposit Agreement or incur a@aypility (i) if the Depositary or the Company shiadl prevented or forbidden from, or delayed
in, doing or performing any act or thing requirgdtbe terms of the Deposit Agreement and this ABRreason of any provision of any pres
or future law or regulation of the United Statesgiand or any other country, or of any other gowszntal authority or regulatory authority or
stock exchange, or on account of the possible nahur civil penalties or restraint, or by reasdmoy provision, present or future, of the
Articles of Association of the Company or any psieh of or governing any Deposited Securities,yordason of any act of God or war or
other circumstances beyond its control (includimghout limitation, nationalization, expropriatioayrrency restrictions, work stoppage,
strikes, civil unrest, acts of terrorism, revoluts rebellions, explosions and computer failui@)by reason of any exercise of, or failure to
exercise, any discretion provided for in the DepAgireement or in the Articles of Association oét@ompany or provisions of or governing
Deposited Securities, (iii) for any action or iriantin reliance upon the advice of or informatioom legal counsel, accountants, any person
presenting Shares for deposit, any Holder, any BgakOwner or authorized representative thereofany other person believed by it in good
faith to be competent to give such advice or infation, (iv) for the inability by a Holder or Beneifal Owner to benefit from

19



any distribution, offering, right or other benefihich is made available to holders of Depositedu@iges but is not, under the terms of the
Deposit Agreement, made available to Holders of ABGS(v) for any consequential or punitive damdgesny breach of the terms of the
Deposit Agreement. The Depositary, its controlljggsons, its agents, any Custodian and the Comparogntrolling persons and its agents
may rely and shall be protected in acting uponwariten notice, request or other document belidwedt to be genuine and to have been sig
or presented by the proper party or parties. Nolaiser of liability under the Securities Act igémded by any provision of the Deposit
Agreement or this ADR.

Standard of Care. The Company and the Depositary assume no obligatidrshall not be subject to any liability undes Beposit
Agreement or this ADR to any Holder(s) or Benefi€avner(s), except that the Company and Depos#grge to perform their respective
obligations specifically set forth in the Deposijr@&ement and this ADR without negligence or bathfaVithout limitation of the foregoing,
neither the Depositary, nor the Company, nor aryeif respective controlling persons, or agertall$e under any obligation to appear in,
prosecute or defend any action, suit or other mdicey in respect of any Deposited Securities oespect of the ADSs, which in its opinion
may involve it in expense or liability, unless imaeity satisfactory to it against all expense (inlihg fees and disbursements of counsel) and
liability be furnished as often as may be requij@td no Custodian shall be under any obligationtsdgever with respect to such proceedings,
the responsibility of the Custodian being solelytte Depositary). The Depositary and its agentt sbaibe liable for any failure to carry out
any instructions to vote any of the Deposited S#esr or for the manner in which any vote is aasthe effect of any vote, provided that any
such action or omission is in good faith and incedance with the terms of the Deposit Agreemené Depositary shall not incur any liability
for any failure to determine that any distributmmnaction may be lawful or reasonably practicafdethe content of any information submitted
to it by the Company for distribution to the Holgd@r for any inaccuracy of any translation therémfany investment risk associated with
acquiring an interest in the Deposited Securif@sthe validity or worth of the Deposited Secwa#tior for any tax consequences that may resul
from the ownership of ADSs, Shares or DepositeduSiies, for the credit-worthiness of any third fyarfor allowing any rights to lapse upon
the terms of the Deposit Agreement, for the failoréimeliness of any notice from the Company,asrdny action or failure to act by, or any
information provided or not provided by, DTC or abyC participant.

The Depositary shall not be liable for any actsmissions made by a successor depositary whetl@nimection with a previous act or
omission of the Depositary or in connection witly amatter arising wholly after the removal or resitjon of the Depositary, provided that in
connection with the issue out of which such posdidbility arises the Depositary performed itdigations without negligence or bad faith
while it acted as Depositary.

Resignation and Removal of the Depositary; Appointrant of Successor DepositaryThe Depositary may at any time resign as
Depositary under the Deposit Agreement by writtetice of resignation delivered to the Company, sesignation to be effective on the
earlier of (i) the 90th day after delivery theréothe Company (whereupon the Depositary shallb¢led to take the actions contemplated in
Section 6.2 of the Deposit Agreement), or (ii) the
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appointment by the Company of a successor depysitat its acceptance of such appointment as providéhe Deposit Agreement. The
Depositary may at any time be removed by the Compgrwritten notice of such removal, which remoshall be effective on the later of

(i) the 90th day after delivery thereof to the Degipary (whereupon the Depositary shall be entittethke the actions contemplated in

Section 6.2 of the Deposit Agreement), or (ii) uplo@ appointment by the Company of a successorsitepp and its acceptance of such
appointment as provided in the Deposit Agreementalse at any time the Depositary acting hereustut resign or be removed, the
Company shall use its best efforts to appoint @sssor depositary, which shall be a bank or trostagany having an office in the Borough of
Manhattan, the City of New York. Every successqraditary shall be required by the Company to exeant deliver to its predecessor and to
the Company an instrument in writing acceptingijtpointment hereunder, and thereupon such sucagsgositary, without any further act or
deed (except as required by applicable law), sfedbme fully vested with all the rights, powerstiesiand obligations of its predecessor (other
than as contemplated in Sections 5.8 and 5.9 dD#posit Agreement). The predecessor depositann payment of all sums due it and on the
written request of the Company, shall (i) execute deliver an instrument transferring to such sssoeall rights and powers of such
predecessor hereunder (other than as contemptatektions 5.8 and 5.9 of the Deposit Agreemeiitly assign, transfer and deliver all
right, title and interest to the Deposited Secesitio such successor, and (iii) deliver to sucleesssor a list of the Holders of all outstanding
ADSs and such other information relating to ADSd blolders thereof as the successor may reasonadphest. Any such successor depositary
shall promptly provide notice of its appointmenstah Holders. Any corporation into or with whidtetDepositary may be merged or
consolidated shall be the successor of the Depgsitithout the execution or filing of any documenmtany further act.

Amendment/Supplement. Subject to the terms and conditions of this panalgi22, and Section 6.1 of the Deposit Agreement and
applicable law, this ADR and any provisions of Beposit Agreement may at any time and from timgénh@ be amended or supplemented by
written agreement between the Company and the apo® any respect which they may deem necessadgsirable without the prior
written consent of the Holders or Beneficial Owndmsy amendment or supplement which shall imposeaease any fees or charges (other
than charges in connection with foreign exchanggrobregulations, and taxes and other governmefiaiges, delivery and other such
expenses), or which shall otherwise materiallyyrtigie any substantial existing right of HolderBeaneficial Owners, shall not, however,
become effective as to outstanding ADSs until tkration of thirty (30) days after notice of suamendment or supplement shall have been
given to the Holders of outstanding ADSs. Noticeny amendment to the Deposit Agreement or any ABdl not need to describe in detail
the specific amendments effectuated thereby, ahddao describe the specific amendments in amh siotice shall not render such notice
invalid, provided, however, that, in each such case, the notice given ttilders identifies a means for Holders and Benaffidiwners to
retrieve or receive the text of such amendmeset ( upon retrieval from the Commission’s, the Depsits or the Company’s website or upon
request from the Depositary). The parties hereteathat any amendments or supplements whichgi)essonably necessary (as agreed by the
Company and the Depositary) in order for (a) theS&Mo be registered on Form F-6 under the Secuntie or (b) the ADSs to be settled
solely in electronic book-entry form and (ii) dotrio either such case impose or increase any feelsamges to be borne by Holders, shall be
deemed not to materially prejudice any substarigiats of Holders or
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Beneficial Owners. Every Holder and Beneficial Owatthe time any amendment or supplement so beseffective shall be deemed, by
continuing to hold such ADSs, to consent and atyeseich amendment or supplement and to be boutitkbpeposit Agreement and this AL

if applicable, as amended or supplemented thetabyo event shall any amendment or supplement impairight of the Holder to surrender
such ADS and receive therefor the Deposited Séesiniépresented thereby, except in order to comvjity mandatory provisions of applicable
law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any govermts body should adopt new laws, rules or regutestiovhich would require an amendment
of, or supplement to, the Deposit Agreement to ensampliance therewith, the Company and the Dégaysinay amend or supplement the
Deposit Agreement and this ADR at any time in adaace with such changed laws, rules or regulatidnsh amendment or supplement to the
Deposit Agreement and this ADR in such circumstamoay become effective before a notice of such ament or supplement is given to
Holders or within any other period of time as regdifor compliance with such laws, rules or regats.

Termination . The Depositary shall, at any time at the writtereclion of the Company, terminate the Deposit Agrest by distributing
notice of such termination to the Holders of all 83®then outstanding at least thirty (30) days gddhe date fixed in such notice for such
termination. If ninety (90) days shall have expiedtér (i) the Depositary shall have delivereditie Company a written notice of its election to
resign, or (ii) the Company shall have deliveretht Depositary a written notice of the removalhaf Depositary, and, in either case, a
successor depositary shall not have been appoamg@ccepted its appointment as provided in Seétibof the Deposit Agreement, the
Depositary may terminate the Deposit Agreementibyiduting notice of such termination to the Halslef all ADSs then outstanding at least
thirty (30) days prior to the date fixed in suchice for such termination. The date so fixed fontmation of the Deposit Agreement in any
termination notice so distributed by the Depositarthe Holders of ADSs is referred to as the “rii@ation Date’. Until the Termination
Date, the Depositary shall continue to performoéits obligations under the Deposit Agreement, tiedHolders and Beneficial Owners will
entitled to all of their rights under the Deposdréement. If any ADSs shall remain outstandingrdfte Termination Date, the Registrar and
the Depositary shall not, after the Terminationddatave any obligation to perform any further actder the Deposit Agreement, except that
the Depositary shall, subject, in each case, tadiras and conditions of the Deposit Agreementtinae to (i) collect dividends and other
distributions pertaining to Deposited Securitié$ sell securities and other property receivedespect of Deposited Securities, (iii) deliver
Deposited Securities, together with any dividendstber distributions received with respect thei@td the net proceeds of the sale of any
securities or other property, in exchange for AB@sendered to the Depositary (after deductingharging, as the case may be, in each case,
the fees and charges of, and expenses incurratéipepositary, and all applicable taxes or govermal charges for the account of the
Holders and Beneficial Owners, in each case upenettms set forth in Section 5.9 of the Deposite®gnent), and (iv) take such actions as
be required under applicable law in connection vtghole as Depositary under the Deposit Agreem&hany time after the Termination Date,
the Depositary may sell the Deposited Securities theld under the Deposit Agreement and shall afteh sale hold un-invested the net
proceeds of such sale, together with any other tashheld by it under the Deposit Agreement, iuarsegregated account and without
liability for interest, for the pro - rata benedit the Holders whose ADSs have not theretofore Iseerendered. After making such sale, the
Depositary shall be discharged from all
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obligations under the Deposit Agreement excepb(gccount for such net proceeds and other casdr @gducting, or charging, as the case
be, in each case, the fees and charges of, andseg@curred by, the Depositary, and all appleadkes or governmental charges for the
account of the Holders and Beneficial Owners, ithezase upon the terms set forth in Section 5tBeDeposit Agreement), and (ii) as may
required at law in connection with the terminatafrthe Deposit Agreement. After the Termination &@ahe Company shall be discharged fi
all obligations under the Deposit Agreement, exdéepits obligations to the Depositary under Sewi®.8, 5.9 and 7.6 of the Deposit
Agreement. The obligations under the terms of tepd3it Agreement of Holders and Beneficial OwnéraD@Ss outstanding as of the
Termination Date shall survive the Termination Deatel shall be discharged only when the applicald&#are presented by their Holders to
the Depositary for cancellation under the termthefDeposit Agreement.

Compliance with U.S. Securities Laws Notwithstanding any provisions in this ADR or thefsit Agreement to the contrary, the
withdrawal or delivery of Deposited Securities witit be suspended by the Company or the Depostampt as would be permitted by
Instruction I.A.(1) of the General Instructionstbe Form F-6 Registration Statement, as amended tirae to time, under the Securities Act.

Certain Rights of the Depositary; Limitations . Subject to the further terms and provisions of fl@gagraph (25) and Section 5.10 of
Deposit Agreement, the Depositary, its Affiliategldheir agents, on their own behalf, may own agal th any class of securities of the
Company and its Affiliates and in ADSs. In its caipaas Depositary, the Depositary shall not lehdr®s or ADSs; providedchowever, that
the Depositary may (i) issue ADSs prior to the iigicef Shares pursuant to Section 2.3 of the Depagieement and (i) deliver Shares priol
the receipt of ADSs for withdrawal of Deposited Gdiies pursuant to Section 2.7 of the Deposit &gnent, including ADSs which were
issued under (i) above but for which Shares mayhage been received (each such transaction aRElease Transactidh The Depositary
may receive ADSs in lieu of Shares under (i) abave receive Shares in lieu of ADSs under (ii) ab&aech such Pre-Release Transaction will
be (a) subject to a written agreement whereby #negnm or entity (the “ Applicari) to whom ADSs or Shares are to be delivered (w)esgmt:
that at the time of the Pre-Release Transactiodgpticant or its customer owns the Shares or Ab@s are to be delivered by the Applicant
under such Pr&elease Transaction, (x) agrees to indicate thefigpy as owner of such Shares or ADSs in itsreand to hold such Sha
or ADSs in trust for the Depositary until such S¥sor ADSs are delivered to the Depositary or thst@lian, (y) unconditionally guarantee:
deliver to the Depositary or the Custodian, asiapple, such Shares or ADSs and (z) agrees to@dhiti@nal restrictions or requirements that
the Depositary deems appropriate, (b) at all tifnég collateralized with cash, U.S. governmentig@tes or such other collateral as the
Depositary deems appropriate, (c) terminable byDtépositary on not more than five (5) business dagtice and (d) subject to such further
indemnities and credit regulations as the Depgsidaems appropriate. The Depositary will normatyit the number of ADSs and Shares
involved in such Pre-Release Transactions at amytiore to thirty percent (30%) of the ADSs outsiagdwithout giving effect to ADSs
outstanding under (i) above), provideldowever, that the Depositary reserves the right to chamghsregard such limit from time to time as it
deems appropriate. The Depositary may also setsliwith respect to the number of ADSs and Shanesived in Pre-Release Transactions
with any one person on a case by case basis asritsl
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appropriate. The Depositary may retain for its @egnount any compensation received by it in conjonawith the foregoing. Collateral
provided pursuant to (b) above, but not earningsetbn, shall be held for the benefit of the Holdetker than the Applicant).
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(ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER SIGNATURE LINES)

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned Holder herebil(s), assign(s) and transfer(s) unto hese
taxpayer identification number is and whose address inclugtiostal zip code is , the witlDS and alll

rights thereunder, hereby irrevocably constitutingl appointing

the Depositary with full power of substitution imetpremises.

Dated:

SIGNATURE GUARANTEED

attorney-in-fact to transfer said ADS on tloeks of

Name

By:
Title:

NOTICE: The signature of the Holder to this assignirmust
correspond with the name as written upon the féi¢cleeowithin
instrument in every particular, without alteratimnenlargement or any
change whatsoeve

If the endorsement be executed by an attorneyutse@dministrator,
trustee or guardian, the person executing the seduwnt must give
his/her full title in such capacity and proper @ride of authority to a
in such capacity, if not on file with the Deposjtamust be forwarded
with this ADR.

All endorsements or assignments of ADRs must besgiieed by a
member of a Medallion Signature Program approvethbySecurities
Transfer Association, In
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Exhibit 10.3

AMARIN

AMARIN CORPORATION plc 2011 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

AWARD AGREEMENT
ThisAWARD AGREEMENT (the“Agreement” ) is entered into and made effective as of [ ], 20  between Amarin Corporation
plc (the“Company” ), and [ ]'Optionee” ). Capitalized terms used and not defined heredtl slave the meanings set forth in the

Amarin Corporation plc 2011 Stock Incentive Plare(tPlan” ).

Number of Incentive Stock Options “ Options”): [

Per Share Purchase Price: $[ (provided that such Per Share Purchase Price shatlot be less than the par value ¢
the Share at any time, currently £0.50)

3. Grant Date: [ )
Date Options Become Exercisable (Vesting
Number of Ordinary Share Exercise Date

l _1
[
[
[

,_|,_|,_|,_|
[y Y ——

Expiration Date: [ ]

6. Terms of this Award Agreement:In the event of a conflict between the provisiohthts Award Agreement and the Plan, excef
relation to paragraph 7 below, the provisions efftan shall prevail. A copy of the Plan is prodderewith.

7. Non-transferable: These Options shall not be transferable by theaddpg other than by will or the laws of descent disttibution, and
the Options shall be exercisable, during the Op#’'s lifetime, only by the Optione

By signing this Award Agreement, you agree to &lihe terms and conditions described herein anblarPlan.

AMARIN CORPORATION plc OPTIONEE
By: Signature
Name Name: [

Title:



Exhibit 10.4

AMARIN CORPORATION plc 2011 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

AWARD AGREEMENT
ThisAWARD AGREEMENT (the“Agreement” ) is entered into and made effective as of [ ], 20  between Amarin Corporation
plc (the“Company” ), and [ ],"Optionee” ). Capitalized terms used and not defined herein $laakk the meanings set forth in

Amarin Corporation plc 2011 Stock Incentive Plare(tPlan” ).

Number of Non-Qualified Stock Options (“ Options”): [

2.  Per Share Purchase Price: $[ (provided that such Per Share Purchase Price shatlot be less than the par value ¢
the Share at any time, currently £0.50)

3. Grant Date: [ )
Date Options Become Exercisable (Vesting
Number of Ordinary Share: Exercise Dates

[ ] [
[ | [
[ : [
[ | [

[y Y ——

Expiration Date: [

Terms of this Award Agreement:In the event of a conflict between the provisiohthis Award Agreement and the Plan, except in
relation to paragraph 7 below, the provisions eff@tan shall prevail. A copy of the Plan is prodderewith.

7. Non-transferable: These Options shall not be transferable by theddpg other than by will or the laws of descent disttibution, and
the Options shall be exercisable, during the Op#’'s lifetime, only by the Optione

By signing this Award Agreement, you agree to &lihe terms and conditions described herein antlarPlan.

AMARIN CORPORATION plc OPTIONEE
By: Signature
Name Name: [

Title:



Exhibit 10.5

AMARIN CORPORATION plc 2011 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN
RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT

This AWARD AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is entered into and made effective as of | ], 20 by and between Amarin
Corporation plc (the Company™”), and [ ] (Participant ”). Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defineeithahall have th
meanings ascribed to such terms in the Amarin Gatjum plc 2011 Stock Incentive Plan (thBlan "), which is incorporated by this reference
in its entirety. The Company hereby grants to thgi€ipant an award (thisAward ") of restricted stock units (RSUs") as set forth below.
The Company intends that this Award shall not bestered to provide for the deferral of compensatinder section 409A of the Code and
that this Award Agreement shall be so administenedi construed. Further, the Company may modifyAliard Agreement and this Award to
the extent necessary to fulfill this intent.

1. Number of RSUs:[
2 Grant Date: [

3. Expiration Date: [
4. Date Award Vests:

[ ]

5.  Vesting: Upon vesting of each RSU, the Participant shabititled to a payment equal to the Fair Market ¥adfione Share. The
payment shall be paid to the Participant in caslat the sole discretion of the Committee in Shares combination of cash or Shares,
and any such Shares may be subject to restrictiomserning their transferability and/or forfeitae the Committee may determil

6. Termination: Notwithstanding anything in Section 8 of the Plartte contraryi n the event of termination of the Particif’s
Continuous Status as an Employee or ConsultantR&tys that have not vested will lapse immedial

7. Dilution Protection: The Plan contains detailed provisions for adjustsi@anthe number and price of Shares for varioupaate events
such as a change in capitalization, or a corpdratesaction

8.  Withholding: The Company has the right to require payment fgrneithholding tax and social security contributicaggplicable to the
vesting of the RSUs. Any withholding in the form®ftiares shall not exceed the required minimum wlthihg amount

9. Stockholder Rights: The Award itself does not confer the rights of timelerlying Shares which are the subject of the Aw&hareholder
rights derive only from Share ownersh

10. Contract: This Agreement and the Plan constitute the entjreeanent between you and the Company with regattetdward describe
herein, and may not be modified or amended exceptwriting duly executed by the Participant andtgecutive officer of the Compan

11. Applicable Law: The Plan is not subject to the Employee Retirerirame Security Act of 1974, as amended, and igjnalified unde
Section 401(a) of the Code. The laws of the Sthieov York govern the terms and conditions of tH& R, the Plan, and any
construction or interpretation of the sar



12. Conflict: In the event of a conflict between the provisiohthts Agreement and the Plan, the Plan shall cbr# copy of the Plan is
available from the Company Secretary at the Con’'s U.S. headquartet

13. Administration . The Committee will administer the Plan. The Boapgoints the members of the Committee, who witlag members
until removed by the Boar

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company and the Particigeave executed this Agreement as of the day andfiysawritten above.

AMARIN CORPORATION plc PARTICIPANT
By: Signature
Name

Title:



Exhibit 10.51
CONFIDENTIAL

CERTAIN CONFIDENTIAL PORTIONS OF THIS EXHIBIT WERBMITTED AND REPLACED WITH “[***]". A COMPLETE
VERSION OF THIS EXHIBIT HAS BEEN FILED SEPARATELY WH THE SECRETARY OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION PURSUANT TO AN APPLICATION REQUESTING Q@-IDENTIAL TREATMENT UNDER RULE 24b-2 OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934.

AMENDMENT TO API SUPPLY AGREEMENT

This A MENDMENT TOAPI SuppPLY A GREEMENT(the “Amendment”) is made as of thish9 day of @etp 2011 (the “Amendment
Effective Date”), by and between Amarin Pharmaaalsi Ireland Ltd., a corporation organized underlétws of Ireland and having its
principal office at First Floor, Block 3, The Ov&helbourne Road, Ballsbridge, Dublin 4, Irelaréinfarin”), and Equateq Limited, a compa
incorporated in England with registered number 2®8¥7and with its registered office at Lion HousedR.ion Street, London, WC1R 4GB but
with its principal offices at Callanish, Isle of wis, HS2 9ED (“Equateq”).

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into that certain 8&pply Agreement as of May 25, 2011 (the “Agreerf)eand
WHEREAS, the Parties wish to amend the Agreemesetforth herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises moitial covenants herein below, and for other gonudivaluable consideration,
the receipt and sufficiency of which are herebyraskiedged, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Capitalized terms used but not defined hereatl slave the meanings given to them in the Agregmen

2. Section 4.1(a) of the Agreement is deletedsirittirety and replaced with the following:

(a) Amarin shall make a one time payment to Equafeme million dollars ($1,000,000) (the “Upfro@bmmitment
Payment”) within five (5) Days of the Effective RatEquateq shall notify Amarin when the financiagéerform its obligations
under this Agreement is in place, which notificat&hall describe the financing terms with a reabtnkevel of detail and in the
absence of notice of objection from Amarin withif#*] of Equateq’s notification it shall be deemedaepted by Amarin. In the
event Equateq has not, in Amarin’s reasonable uhtation after good faith consultation with Equategised sufficient capital to
perform its obligations under this Agreement witftit¥] after the Effective Date, Amarin may give tioe of that determination to
Equateq at any time prior to Equateq raising swdéficgent capital, and Equateq shall refund the \dpf Commitment Payment to
Amarin and whereupon this Agreement shall termimatematically



3. The Parties acknowledge that Amarin has paiditifeont Commmittment Payment to Equateq.

4. The following is hereby added to the end of Bect.1(b):

“Notwithstanding the foregoing, until Equateq hasAmarin’s reasonable determination after goothfabnsultation with Equateq,
raised sufficient capital to perform its obligationnder this Agreement, Amarin shall not be reguicepay any Development Fees
(the “Deferred Development Fees”); provided, howetleat Amarin’s right to withhold payment of Defed Development Fees
shall not relieve Equateq of its obligation to tlynperform the Development Plan. Amarin shall haweeobligation to pay the
Deferred Development Fees at all if the Agreemgit¢iminated pursuant to

Section 4.1(a). Amarin shall pay the Deferred Depgalent Fees incurred in accordance with this Seetib(b) within[ *** ] after
Equateq has, in Amarin’s reasonable determinatiem good faith consultation with Equateq, raisatfisient capital to perform its
obligations under this Agreement prior to termioatf

5. The following is hereby added to the end of Beact.1(c) of the Agreement:

Nothwithstanding anything in this Agreement to toatrary, in no event shall Amarin be required &y pny portion of the Third
Party Materials Payment unless and until Equategrimamarin’s reasonable determination after gagthfconsultation with
Equateq and in writing, raised sufficient capitaperform its obligations under this Agreement.

6. This Amendment and any other future amendmetiteoAgreement may be executed in two (2) or motmterparts, each of which
shall be an original, but all of which together Isbhanstitute one and the same instrument. To exidehe fact that it has executed this
Amendment and any other future amendment of theéwment, a Party may send a copy of its executenteqart to the other Parties by
facsimile transmission or by email transmissiopantable document format, or similar format. Sigmes of the Parties transmitted by facsil
or by email transmission in portable document fdrraasimilar format, shall be deemed to be theéiginal signatures for all purposes.

7. Except as expressly provided in this Amendmahtther provisions of the Agreement shall remaimodified and in full force and
effect.

[signature page follows]
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[Signature Page to Amendment to APl Supply Agredinen

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused thdir duthorized representative to execute this Amesrt effective as of the
Amendment Effective Date.

AMARIN PHARMACEUTICALS IRELAND LTD.

By:  /s/ John F. Thero

Name:John F. Thert

Title: Director

EQUATEQ LIMITED

By:  /s/ Adam Kelliher

Name: Adam Kelliher

Title: CEO




Exhibit 10.61
LEASE

THIS LEASE made as of November 28, 2011 by and betvE=2hEAST MIDDLE TURNPIKE, LLC a Connecticut limited liability
companyPETER JAY ALTER, TRUSTEE of the LEON C. LECH IRREVO CABLE TRUST under Declaration of Trust dated
October 14, 1980andFERNDALE REALTY, LLC , a Connecticut limited liability company, all hagian address at c/o Readco; 6 Vista
Drive; Suite 200; Old Lyme, CT 06371 (collectivetiie “Landlord "), and Amarin Pharma, Inc a Delaware corporation 'enant”).

WITNESSETH:

1. PREMISES . Landlord leases to Tenant and Tenant rents framdlord those certain premises comprising approtéin®,162
rentable square feet (4,327 usable square feg¢hjeo8econd (2nd) floor of the building (th8utilding "), which is located on and a part of the
property commonly known as 475 Bridge Street, Grp@onnecticut (the Property "), which premises are depicted as “Lease Area” on
Exhibit A to this Lease (the Premises’) together with the reasonable use in common witters of the common areas and facilities of the
Property.

2. TERM . The term of this Lease (theT'erm ") shall commence upon the full execution and delpof this Lease (theCommencemel
Date”) and shall terminate on the Expiration Date, as sewch is defined below. The payment of all Rentdefined herein, shall commence
the later to occur of January 15, 2012 or that taiethe Pre Commencement Improvements (as deifinBdction 12(e)) are completed (the *
Rent Commencement Daté€) and shall expire on the last day of the montkwhich occurs the third (3rd) anniversary of thenRe
Commencement Date (theEkpiration Date ”) unless sooner terminated in accordance withehms of this Lease. If Landlord requests,
Tenant shall offer proof to Landlord that the labance employed by Tenant is adequately coveredidiker's compensation insurance.
Landlord shall not be liable for any loss or damamgproperty installed in the Premises by the Téramfor injuries to persons arising out of
work performed thereon by or for Tenant, and Temaneby agrees to indemnify Landlord and hold Lardlharmless from and against any
such loss, damage, or injury.

3.USE. Tenant shall use the Premises for the generiakafse and otherwise in accordance with, all apple laws. Tenant shall not
use or permit or suffer the use of the Premiseairfigrother business or purpose. Tenant acknowlgtigethe same or similar businesses may
be operated by other tenants or occupants of theelty.

4. MINIMUM RENT . The term “Lease Year’ shall mean the twelve (12) month period commegan the Rent Commencement Date
and each subsequent twelve (12) month period. ifne tCalendar Year” shall mean each calendar year in which any plateTerm falls,
through and including the year in which the Termies. Fixed minimum rent (theBase Rent’) during the term of this Lease shall be
payable by Tenant beginning on the Rent Commencebee in monthly installments in advance on thstfi1st) day of each month without
demand, offset or deduction of any kind in thedwaling amounts:

Period Annual Rent Monthly Rent Rate/Sq. Ft
Lease Year 1-3 $102,465.7 $ 8,538.8: $ 19.8¢
Lease Year -

(Extended Term $105,562.9 $ 8,796.9: $ 20.4t
Lease Year! $108,711.7 $ 9,059.3: $ 21.0¢
Lease Year | $111,963.7 $ 9,330.3: $ 21.6¢



5. SECURITY DEPOSIT . Tenant shall deposit with Landlord at the timehaf execution of this Lease the sum of Ten Thotisal
00/100 Dollars ($10,000.00) in, as security for féiehful performance by Tenant of its obligatigngsuant to this Lease. In the event that
Tenant shall default pursuant to this Lease, Laddboay apply such amount toward any and all amoexizenses and other damages owed to,
or incurred by, Landlord as a result of such defanlthe event that Landlord so applies any partibthe deposit, Tenant shall immediately
deposit with Landlord the amount necessary to redtte deposit to the amount existing prior to sagplication. Landlord agrees to return any
remaining deposit within thirty (30) days after #agiration of the Term as the same may be exterafeat first applying the deposit to any
outstanding defaults at such time. Landlord shatllbe obligated to place the deposit in an intdsearing account and may commingle the
deposit with Landlord’s other funds and Tenant lshatl be entitled to any interest on the depositess required by law. Landlord may deliver
the funds deposited by Tenant to any purchaseanéllord’s interest in the Premises in the everttgbah interest is sold and in such event
Landlord shall be discharged from any further ligpivith respect to the deposit.

6. UTILITIES . Landlord shall provide electricity for normal izl use and water service for purposes incideatabtmal office use, the
costs of which shall be included in the Operatixgéhses. Tenant agrees that it will not install agyipment, which may exceed or overload
the capacity of any utility facilities. If Tenarttal use electricity in amounts in excess of ttlmhmonly consumed for office use or if Tenant
shall consistently and regularly use electricitystie of Building Operating Hours, Landlord shale the right to require such electrical
service to be separately submetered to the Premibésh work shall be performed at Tenant’s solstcli submetered electricity is billed
separately by the utility provider, Tenant shaly fiae amount of such invoice to Landlord. If subemet! electricity is not billed separately by
the utility provider, Tenant shall pay to Landl@anonthly amount equal to the units of electriciypysumed at the Premises for such period,
multiplied by the average per unit cost chargedandlord by the utility company, which amount shal due, in either of the foregoing cases,
within ten (10) days of presentation of an invdicerefor. In the event that electricity servicematrbe separately metered, Tenant shall pay to
Landlord an amount equal to Landlord’s reasonastienate of Tenant's usage thereof. If Tenant isesply billed for all electricity usage,
Operating Expenses shall be equitably adjusteddount for Tenant’s direct payment of such utiititandlord shall not be liable for any
discontinuance of utility services to the Premized the same shall not constitute a terminatidhisfLease or an eviction of Tenant. Landlord
shall not be liable to Tenant in damages or otheav@) if any utility shall become unavailable(lmy for any interruption in any service caused
by the making of any necessary repairs or improvesner by any cause beyond Landlardeasonable control, and the same shall not t¢ote
a termination of this Lease or an eviction of Teénaanstructive or otherwise. Notwithstanding aimygito the contrary contained in this
Section 6, if: (i) Landlord ceases to furnish aaywgce in the Premises for a period in excessvaf b) consecutive days after Tenant notifies
Landlord of such cessation (the “Interruption Netj¢ (ii) such cessation does not arise as a redah act or omission of Tenant; (iii) such
cessation is not caused by fire or other casumdtwliich case Section 20 shall control); (iv) tlestoration of such service is reasonably within
the control of Landlord; and (v) as a result oftsaessation, the Premises or a material portiorettigis rendered untenantable (meaning that
Tenant is unable to use the Premises in the narmake of its business) and Tenant in fact ceasesd the Premises, or material portion
thereof, then Tenant, as its sole remedy, shadintided to receive an abatement of all Base Rihdjtional Rent and other sums payable
hereunder during the period beginning on the qi&th) consecutive day of such
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cessation and ending on the day when the servigadastion has been restored. In the event theedPtemises has not been rendered
untenantable by the cessation of service, the ahafabatement shall be prorated based upon tleepege of the Premises so rendered
untenantable and not used by Tenant.

7.ADDITIONAL RENT . In addition to the Base Rent, Tenant shall payspant to Sections 8 and 9 below, its share ointreases in
taxes and operating expenses of the Property.érhe‘tBase Year” shall mean Calendar Year 2012. The terirehant’s Proportionate
Share” shall mean the percentage represented by adrabéving a numerator equal to the rentable sqoatage the Premises and the
denominator of which is the total rentable squamdge of the Building. Tenant’s Proportionate 8hampresently 17.56%. Tenant’s
Proportionate Share may be adjusted based upor fatianges to the common areas of the buildingamibunts due from Tenant to Landlord
pursuant to Sections 8 and 9 below are collectivefigrred to as Additional Rent ”. Additional Rent shall be payable on a monthlgiban
the same manner as Base Rent. Base Rent and AddiiRent are sometimes hereafter referred to ¢oldg as “Rent”. Without limitation
on other obligations of Tenant which shall surive expiration of the Term, the obligations of Teti@ pay the Additional Rent shall survive
the expiration of the Term. For any partial Calendear included in the Term, Tenant shall be oltédao pay only a pro rata share of the
Additional Rent, based on the number of the dayt®fTerm falling within such Calendar Year.

8. TAXES .

(a) Taxes “ Taxes” shall mean all real estate taxes and assessnsp@sial or otherwise, and other impositions arat@bs of every
kind, manner and nature, extraordinary as wellrdmary, foreseen and unforeseen (including withimoitation payments to a special services
or business improvements district or similar entityd any licensing charges in the nature of atathe operation of the Property and the
Building), and each and every installment therknfied or assessed upon or with respect to thedPiyppnd ad valorem taxes for any personal
property used in connection therewith. Should tta#éeSof Connecticut, or any political subdivisitreteof, or any other governmental authority
having jurisdiction over the Property, (a) imposevg assessment, charge or fee, which Landlortll sbaequired to pay, either by way of
substitution for or as a supplement to such reatesaxes and ad valorem personal property tax€b) impose an income or franchise tax
tax on rents in substitution for or as a supplentefat tax levied against the Property and/or thiesqeal property used in connection with the
Property, all such taxes, assessments, fees qgahénereinafter defined as‘lieu of taxes”) shall be deemed to constitute Taxes hereunder.
“Taxes”shall also include all legal fees and other castsiired by Landlord in seeking to obtain a reductify or a limit on the increase in, ¢
Taxes, regardless of whether any reduction or &tigib is obtained. Except as hereinabove providiéd negard to “in lieu of taxes”, Taxes
shall not include any inheritance, estate, sucoassiansfer, gift, franchise, net income or cdpstack tax.

(b) Payment of Tenatd Share of TaxesThroughout the Term, Tenant shall pay to LandlaslAdditional Rent, an amount equal to the
Tenant’s Proportionate Share of the amount by whickes with respect to each Calendar Year exceetdldkes incurred with respect to the
Base Year. Such amount shall be paid in monthiailments, as estimated from time to time by Landli&-ollowing the close of each Calen
Year, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant a statenoéithe estimated payments made by Tenant, thelatuaunt of Taxes incurred for such
Calendar Year and the difference between such Taxeshe Taxes incurred with respect to the Base.Yieenant shall pay any deficiency on
account of its estimated payment of Taxes to Laxdis shown by such statement within thirty (30)sdafter receipt of such statement and
excess shall be refunded by Landlord, provided fieisanot then in default hereunder, or creditedisgt payments next due hereunder at
Landlord’s sole election. Tenant shall receiveeditrfor the amount by which Taxes with resped alendar Year are less than the Taxes
incurred with respect to the Base Year.




(c) Tax AppealsTenant acknowledges and agrees that Landlord Iskiedl the exclusive right to appeal or contest aame$ assessed or
imposed with respect to the Property, any suchratation being made by Landlord in its sole diore provided, however, that if Landlord
elects not to appeal or contest any Taxes, it siwdify Tenant in a timely fashion and Tenant mppeal or contest such Taxes in Landlord’s
name provided that Tenant shall indemnify, defemdl lzold Landlord harmless from all claims, lossstcexpenses and damages incurred or
suffered by Landlord on account of Tenant’s appealontest of such taxes. The foregoing shall eliéve Tenant from its obligation to pay its
share of Taxes in accordance with this Sectioro8yithstanding any pending appeal.

(d) Personal Property and Leasehold TaxbBsnant shall be solely responsible for and agi@esy, prior to delinquency, any and all
taxes, assessments, levies, fees or other govetahehiarges of whatever kind or nature levied geased upon, against or with respect to
(i) the Premises or Tenant’s leasehold interetiénPremises; (i) all furniture, fixtures, equipmend other personal property of any kind
owned by Tenant or located at the Premises; (liglterations, additions or improvements of whatekind or nature made to the Premises by
Tenant. Landlord may, but shall not be obligategptry any such amounts, in which case Tenant s#iaiburse Landlord for such amount
within five (5) days of Landlord’s demand therefore

9. OPERATING EXPENSES.

(a) Operating Expenseshe term “Operating Expenses means all costs and expenses of every kind ahdeaid or incurred by
Landlord in connection with the management, owriprahd operation of the Property, including, withbonitation, property management fe
snhow removal, landscaping, insurance previsionsdauldictibles, maintenance, repair, refurbishingrof portion of the common areas of the
Property or any fixtures or personal property ledan or on the Property, utilities and other segsi(including the repair of all utility and se
lines, whether above or below ground, and the regzad maintenance of any sprinkler system), insteamnd all other costs and expenses of
every kind and nature, foreseeable or unforesegadujaired or desired, suggested or recommendetidovperation, maintenance or otherwise
with respect to the Property in a manner reasonddéyned by Landlord to be appropriate for the imdstests of the Property in accordance
with Landlord’s method of accounting. Operating Empes shall not include: (i) depreciation or debtise, (ii) any fees paid to affiliates of
Landlord in excess of market rates, (iii) any exggnfor which Landlord has been reimbursed dirdntlg Tenant of the Building,

(iv) brokerage expenses and expenses incurrecepapr space for a prospective tenant of the Bgldiv) any expenses incurred by Landlord
to prepare leaseable space for occupancy by aspmpefvi) capital expenses, except that Operatikpehses shall include the amortized
portion on an annual basis (amortized over suchidrgment’s useful life with interest at the rateeri percent (10%) per annum, whether or
not such expense is financed by Landlord), (vijrpants of principal, interest and other chargemontgages; (viii) costs for categories of
services provided to other tenants but not to Ter{eq) salaries of executives or principals of déord; (X) interest or penalties for any failed
payments by Landlord under any contract or agreéeswept if such failed payment is a result of det's failure to pay rent in which case
they may be included); (xi) costs incurred in cartiom with any judgment, settlement or arbitratamard resulting from any negligence or
willful misconduct of Landlord or its agents; (x@psts of repairs, restoration or replacementssiooad by fire or other casualty in excess of
reasonable insurance deductible amounts, or cdiysttk exercise of the right of eminent domainij)¥he cost to make improvements,
alterations and additions to the common areas wdnielvequired in order to render the same in canpé with laws,
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rules, orders, regulations and/or directives affiect and generally enforced as of the date afltease; (xiv) depreciation; (xi) investigation,
remediation, abatement or cleanup of Hazardoushaigelf at any time the Building is less thanetinfive (95%) occupied, the components
of Operating Expenses that vary based upon thepaomy of the Building, including management feégllde increased to the amount that
would have been incurred by Landlord if the Buifglimere ninety-five (95%) occupied. Landlord shaldntitled to make an equitable
adjustment of Operating Expenses payable by Taénamtler to allocate the cost of any service prewifbr the exclusive benefit of Tenant
and/or other tenants of the Building to those pesssho benefit from such services.

(b) Payment of Tenatg Share of Operating Expenséhroughout the Term Tenant agrees to pay to laddhs Additional Rent, an
amount equal to Tenant’s Proportionate Share ohtheunt by which Operating Expenses with respeeatdh Calendar Year exceed the
Operating Expenses incurred with respect to the Basr. Such amount shall be paid in monthly ihstahts as estimated by Landlord from
time to time. Following the close of each Calendear, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant a statenténbhe estimated payments made by
Tenant, the actual amount of Operating Expensestied for such Calendar Year and the differencevden such Operating Expenses and the
Operating Expenses for the Base Year. Tenant phglany deficiency on account of Tenant’'s estimatgnents of Operating Expenses to
Landlord as shown by such statement within thig) (days after receipt of such statement and acgssxshall be refunded by Landlord,
provided Tenant is not then in default hereundecredited against payments next due hereundearadlord’s sole election.

(c) Audit Rights. Tenant and its agents will have the right to eixanand copy Landlord’s books and records relatin@perating
Expenses according to this section so long ahéetis no Event of Default under the Lease atithe that the Tenant examines Landlord’s
books and records; (b) Tenant’s has fully and prtymgaid its Base Rent, Additional Rent and all sutie herein; (¢) Tenant, its agents and
contractors agree that they will not divulge thateots of Landlord’s books and records, or theltesuheir examination; (d)ntentionally
deleted; (e) Tenant requests the examination of Landldodsks and records within one hundred twenty (H2@k after receipt of the
statement of Operating Expenses with regard tolwhanant wishes to examine Landlord’s books andrds; and (f)intentionally deleted If
Tenants examination reveals that it has overpaid its priapnate share of Operating Expenses, then thepayment will be applied to the ne
accruing Bases Rent and Additional Rent due urideLease. If the overpayment exceeds the amounstibald have been charged by more
than 15%, then Landlord will pay Tenant’s reasoeahlt-of-pocket costs incurred in connection whth €xamination (not to exceed $2,500).
Tenant’s sole remedy in the event of an overpaymwihbe the credit against its rent or, if Landldiails to do so, an offset against its rent.
Tenant will not have the right to terminate the $¢&2an account of an overpayment. Tenant will ngehhe right to challenge Landlord’s
methodology in any examination if it has not presgly challenged that methodology.

10.CERTAIN RIGHTS RESERVED BY LANDLORD.

Landlord shall have the following rights, each dfigh Landlord may exercise without notice to Tereamd without liability to Tenant for
damage or injury to property, person or businesaamount of the exercise thereof, and the exedfisay such rights shall not be deemed to
constitute an eviction or disturbance of Tenanss ar possession of the Premises and shall notigeréo any claim for sedff or abatement ¢
rent:

(a) To change the Building’s name or street address



(b) To install, affix and maintain any and all sigon the exterior and on the interior of the Buiggland to approve the design, location,
number, size and color of all signs or letteringtloa Premises that are visible from the exteridhefPremises.

(c) To decorate or to make repairs, alterationditehs, or improvements, whether structural oreottise, in and about the Building, or
any part thereof, and for such purposes to enten tipe Premises, and during the continuance obésgid work, to temporarily close doors,
entryways, public space and corridors in the Boidand to interrupt or temporarily suspend servarasse of facilities, all without affecting
any of Tenant’s obligations hereunder, so longhadremises are reasonably accessible and Teogetations are not materially adversely
affected.

(d) To furnish door keys for doors in the Premiaethe commencement of the Lease and to retaihtahas, and to use in appropriate
instances, keys to all doors within and into thenfises. Tenant agrees to purchase only from Lashdidditional duplicate keys as required, to
change no locks, and not to affix locks on doorthauit the prior written consent of the Landlord.tiithstanding the provisions for Landlosd’
access to Premises, Tenant relieves and releasésuidlord of all responsibility arising out of tfheobbery, pilferage and personal assault,
unless caused by Landlord’s gross negligence. Wp@expiration of the Term or of Tenant’s righfpmssession, Tenant shall return all keys to
Landlord and shall disclose to Landlord the comtiimeof any safes, cabinets or vaults left in therfises.

(e) To install a security card access and otharrggsystems, procedures and equipment for thédBig. The cost of installing and
operating the same shall be included in OperatixgeBses.

(f) To purchase and install, at Tenant's sole egpeall lamps and bulbs used in the Premises.

(9) To designate that window treatment shall bdddug Standard venetian blinds or curtains andesighate and approve, prior to
installation, all types of additional window shadeknds or draperies.

(h) To approve the weight, size and location oésafaults and other heavy equipment and artiolesd about the Premises and the
Building so as not to exceed the legal live loadgapiare foot designated by the structural enginfeerthe Building, and to require all such
items and furniture and similar items to be moved br out of the Building and Premises only atrstices and in such manner as Landlord
shall direct in writing. Tenant shall not instatl @perate machinery or any mechanical devicesraftare not directly related to Tenant’s
ordinary use of the Premises without the priorteritconsent of Landlord. Movements of Tenant's propinto or out of the Building and
within the Building are entirely at the risk andpensibility of Tenant, and Landlord reserves thhtrto require permits before allowing any
property to be moved into or out of the Building.

(i) To establish controls for the purpose of reginfaall property and packages, both personal aheraise, to be moved into or out of
the Building and Premises.

() To regulate delivery and service of suppliesider to insure the cleanliness and security @ffemises and to avoid congestion o
loading docks, receiving areas and freight elegator

(k) To erect, use and maintain pipes, ducts, wignd conduits, and appurtenances thereto, in andgh the Premises at reasonable
locations that do not reduce the usable area dPtemises.



() To enter the Premises upon reasonable notideglbusiness hours to inspect the Premises.

(m) To require reasonable security procedures émrant's employees and visitors during normal bissieurs, and to close the Building
after regular working hours and on Saturdays, Symdad legal holidays subject, however, to Tenaiglst to admittance to the Premises
under such regulations as Landlord may reasonablcpbe from time to time, which may include, bhall not be limited to, a requirement
that persons entering or leaving the Building ifgrihemselves to security personnel by registratio otherwise and establish their right to
enter or leave the Building. Such regulations nmyude, but shall not be limited to, the requirofgdentification from Tenant's employees,
agents, clients, customers, invitees, visitors gubsts.

11. TELECOMMUNICATION SERVICES.

(a) Tenant will contract directly with third panpyoviders and will be solely responsible for payfagall telephone, data transmission,
video and other telecommunication service$d€lecommunication Services) subject to the following:

(b) Providers Each Telecommunication Services provider thasduw already provide service to the Building sballsubject to
Landlord’s approval, which Landlord may withholdliandlord’s sole discretion. Without liability toefiant, the license of any
Telecommunications Service provider servicing thidng may be terminated under the terms of tberise, or not renewed upon the
expiration of the license.

(c) Tenants Wiring . Landlord may, in it sole discretion, designate lihcation of all wires, cables, fibers, equipmeamig connections for
Tenant's Telecommunication ServicesT€nant’'s Wiring ") and restrict and control access to telephonénedd and rooms. Tenant may not
use or access any portion of the Building, inclgdime common areas or roof, for Tenant’'s Wiringhwiit Landlord’s prior written consent,
which Landlord may withhold in Landlorsl’sole discretion or for which Landlord may chaageasonable fee. Notwithstanding anything tc
contrary and without limiting Tenant’s obligationsreunder upon the expiration or termination offteem of this Lease, at Tenant’s expense
and subject to the provisions of Section 12, Teshatl remove Tenant’s Wiring from the Premises gredBuilding and restore any damage
done as a result of such removal, provided thatload may, but shall not be obligated to, removeadrg’s Wiring and, in such event, Tenant
shall pay Landlord, as Additional Rent, the cosswéh removal, upon receipt of an invoice theréfmm Landlord.

(d) This Section is solely for Tenant’s benefitdaro one else shall be considered a third partgfi@ary of these provisions.
12.AS-IS, ALTERATIONS & IMPROVEMENTS

(a) Tenant has inspected the Premises and, exceppeessly set forth below, agrees to accept theheir present, “as is” condition.
Tenant shall be responsible for all work necessadesirable to prepare the Premises for the ogesfifenant’s business, in accordance with
plans and specifications to be approved by Landdmdi Tenant in writing (collectively, theTenant’s Work ”). The Tenant's Work shall be
completed by Tenant at its sole cost and expensge(s to the payment of the allowance set forthuhsection (g) below) in accordance with
all provisions of this Section 12.



(b) Upon the expiration of the Term or earlier teration of this Lease, all improvements to the Ases made or performed by Tenant
shall be surrendered to Landlord, except those whémdlord, by written notice to Tenant may diréehant to remove. Tenant shall promptly
repair any damage occasioned by removal of anyaugments and wiring and cabling, which obligatibalssurvive the end of the term of
this Lease.

(c) No work which Landlord permits Tenant to doadrich Tenant is obligated to perform pursuant ie tlease, whether in the nature of
construction, alteration or repair, shall be deetodok for the immediate use and benefit of Lardikw that no mechangbr other lien shall t
allowed against the estate of Landlord by reasamgfconsent given by Landlord to Tenant to imprineePremises. Tenant shall pay prom
all persons furnishing labor or materials with mspto any work performed by Tenant or its contsach or about the Premises.

(d) Tenant shall not do any construction work éeraltion, including the Tenant’'s Work, nor shalh@at install any equipment having a
cost or value in excess of Five Thousand and 00Ddars ($5,000.00) in any one instance or sesfaglated projects, without first obtaining
Landlord’s written approval and consent, which khat be unreasonably withheld or delayed. If rexjee by Landlord, Tenant shall present to
Landlord plans and specifications for such worle (tfPlans”) at the time approval is sought. Any permittettedtion shall be constructed by
Tenant, at Tenant's sole cost, in a good, lien-free workman-like manner in accordance with the®lall applicable laws and building
standards. Tenant shall not commence any suchwitiikut first delivering to Landlord a policy or jides of liability and property damage
insurance, naming Landlord as additional insunedinits and with companies acceptable to Landlesiyell as a completion bond in a form
and issued by a surety company acceptable to Lahdlpon completion of such work, Tenant shallwslito Landlord as-built drawing and
diagrams of all alterations and improvements toRfemises. Any alterations, additions, improvemants fixtures installed or paid for by
Tenant upon the interior or exterior of the Premiggher than unattached moveable trade fixturdslanorations, shall upon the expiration or
earlier termination of this Lease become the prypafrLandlord unless Landlord elects, by deliverimritten notice to Tenant at the time of
Landlord’s approval to require Tenant to removehsaiterations, improvements or fixtures.

(e) Landlord agrees to perform the following impements to the common areas of the Building andgstggprior to the Commencement
Date at Landlord’s expense (referred to hereimadre Commencement Improvements)

(i) Demise 2nd Floor Corridors. Landlord shall dentise second floor common corridors in accordandh thie demising plan
attached as Exhibit A-1 hereto, and properly firttgh walls, floor and ceiling. In addition, the caoon area bathrooms shown on the plan
shall be refurbished with new neutral colored pdixtures and flooring.

(H Landlord agrees to perform the following impemeents/repairs to the common areas of the Buildimjproperty as soon as the
weather permits, but not later than June 30, 2012:

(i) Front Entrance Repairs: Landlord to address the wear and tear on the &otry patio/walkway and the concrete support
column, repair or replace with the goal of safetyg aesthetics.

(i) Front Vestibule: Landlord to address the front patio grading andhdige in an effort to eliminate water infiltratiarto the fron
vestibule.



(9) Landlord shall provide Tenant an allowance 5 $00 to complete improvements to the Premisasatés anticipated improvements
are set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto. Landlisiall pay $50,000 to Tenant promptly upon (iefptof satisfactory evidence from Tenant
that it has installed improvements within the Pisamiof equal or greater value, and (ii) providirgdlord with a final lien waiver from its
general contractor with respect to the completibsuch improvements.

13.OPERATION OF BUSINESS. In regard to the use and occupancy of the Pramismsant will at its expense (a) keep all meclanic
apparatus free of vibration and noise which magréesmitted beyond the Premises or which may cangelamage to the Premises;
(b) conduct its business in all respects in a diigthimanner in accordance with high standardsarestperation consistent with the quality and
operation of the Property; (c) neither solicit me&sis nor distribute advertising matter in the commaas; (d) not cause or permit objection
odors to emanate or to be dispelled from the Pesnand (e) not commit, or suffer to be committed; waste upon the Premises or any public
or private nuisance or other act or thing which rdisyurb the quiet enjoyment of any other tenardamupant of the Property, or use or permit
the use of any portion of the Premises for anywfubpurpose.

14.COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS . The term “Applicable Laws”, when used herein shall mean all laws, ordinanesgulations and
directives of any governmental authority havinggdiction including, without limitation, the Amerdas with Disabilities Act, Environmental
Laws (as defined below) and all ordinance, regoilgtcovenant, condition or restriction affecting froperty or the Premises which in the
future may become applicable to the Premises apdament or future order, rule, regulation or regment of the local Board of Fire
Underwriters and the New England Fire Insurancéngaktssociation or any other body having similandtion and exercising jurisdiction over
the Premises. Tenant shall not use the Premisggronit the Premises to be used, in any mannerhw(ag violates any Applicable Laws;
(b) causes or is reasonably likely to cause dartatee Property or the Premises; (c) violates airement or condition of any fire and
extended insurance policy covering the Propertyarttie Premises, or increases the cost of sudbypdtl) constitutes or is reasonably likely
to constitute a nuisance, annoyance or inconveaiemother tenants or occupants of the Propergngrequipment, facilities or systems loce
on the Property; (e) interferes with, or is reasindikely to interfere with, the transmission @ception of microwave, television, radio,
telephone or other communication signals by antermmather facilities. Tenant shall, at Tenant'esmwst and expense, be responsible for
compliance with all Applicable Laws with respecthe Premises.

15.LANDLORD SERVICES . “ Building Operating Hours ” shall mean 7:00 am - 6:30 pm Monday through Rridad 9:00am-2:00pm
on Saturday excluding state and federal holidaysddition to the other services provided by Lardiiender this Lease, Landlord shall prov
the following services on all days included in Blirlg Operating Hours except as otherwise stated:

(a) HVAC service during Building Operating Hourdfaient for comfortable occupancy of the Premidé3.enant desires HVAC servit
outside of the Building Operating Hours, Tenantisteguest such service at least one day in advandeshall pay to Landlord upon
presentation of an invoice, Landlosd’easonable charge for such service accordirtiet8tiilding standard rates as the same may adjérstex
time to time.

(b) Passenger elevator service.



16.ASSIGNMENT/SUBLEASE .

(a) Notwithstanding any other provisions of thisake, Tenant may not assign this Lease, in whaile jaurt, nor sublet all or any part of
the Premises, nor otherwise permit any other peisoiccupy or use any portion of the Premises €ctiltely, a “Transfer ") without first
obtaining the written consent of Landlord, whickakimot be unreasonably withheld, conditioned daged. Consent by Landlord to any
Transfer shall not constitute a waiver of the regmient for such consent to any subsequent assigranenbletting. Landlord may collect
payments from any assignee, subtenant or othepaotand apply the net amount collected to the amsaequired to be paid pursuant to this
Lease, but no acceptance by Landlord of any payssall be deemed a waiver of this covenant oatlteptance of such person as Tenant
hereunder or a release of Tenant from the furteefiopnance by Tenant of its obligations under tidase. Any Transfer effected or attempted
to be effected other than in strict compliance wfith terms of this Lease and with the prior consém@andlord and, if required, any mortgagee
of the Property shall be a Default (as defined Wgland shall confer no rights whatsoever uportrtéiesferee. All reasonable costs incurred by
Landlord in connection with any request for conderd Transfer, including the cost of investigationd the fees of Landlorslcounsel, shall t
paid by Tenant on demand.

(b) If Tenant shall desire to assign this Leassutniet the Premises the entire Premises for thairetar of the Term, Landlord shall have
the option, to be exercised within thirty (30) dafter written notice to Landlord of such propo3ednsfer, of canceling this Lease. If Landl
elects to cancel this Lease, the rights and olitigatof the parties shall cease as of a date gétifoa written notice from Landlord to Tenant,
which date shall not be less than thirty (30) dafysr the date of such notice. In the event of surgh termination, all rent shall be adjusted ¢
the date of such termination.

(c) In the event of a permitted Transfer of the lglar any part of the Premises or this Lease witieeent and other payments provided
for in or in connection with the Transfer (includiany sums payable to Tenant on account of anig @roperty or interests or services to be
provided by Tenant to Transferee in excess ofliba fair market value thereof) exceed the rentdlaher payments to Landlord provided
hereunder, or the pro rata portion of such remtdl@her payments, as the case may be, aftedédiicting all commercially reasonable, actual
and verifiable costs and expenses incurred by Temidim respect to such Transfer, Tenant shall palyandlord, as Additional Rent, fifty
percent (50%) of the amount by which the rent dhdther payments or consideration

provided for or furnished in connection with thexisfer exceeds the rent in this Lease for the egipl space. Such excess shall be payable a
and when received by Tenant, and Tenant shall eseebest efforts to collect any and all sums due é@onnection with any such permitted
Transfer.

(d) Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landlord’s comisghall not be required and the provisions of 8gstion 16 shall not apply with
respect to either (i) transactions with an entity ior with which Tenant is merged or consolidatado which all or substantially all of
Tenant's assets are transferred, or (ii) transastwith any entity which controls or is controlleg Tenant or is under common control with
Tenant. No transfer or assignment of any underlgwgership interest in Tenant shall be deemed sigrament or subletting requiring
Landlord’s consent.

17.REPAIRS TO BE MADE BY LANDLORD . Landlord’s sole repair obligations with respecthie Premises under this Lease are, at its
expense, to make, or cause to be made, repahs toof, structural elements, building systemstaedcommon areas and exterior of the
Premises provided
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that the cost of such repairs shall be include@perating Expenses to the extent provided in Se&ibereof. Tenant shall give Landlord
prompt notice of the necessity for all such repdienant acknowledges and agrees that it shall haveght of self-help and waives any self-
help rights granted by any law now or hereaftezffect.

18.REPAIRS TO BE MADE BY TENANT . All repairs to the Premises or any installaticetglipment or facilities therein, ordinary or
extraordinary, excepting only those repairs speaiify required to be made by Landlord pursuantecti®n 17 above, shall be made by Tenant
at its sole expense. Except as otherwise provid&ection 20 below, all repairs which (i) arisenfror are caused directly or indirectly by
Tenant’s breach of this Lease or by the negligemaeillful act of Tenant, its agents, officers, eioyees, licensees, invitees or contractors; or
(ii) arise from Tenant’s use of the Premises; iby r@late to any work done by Tenant pursuantie Lease, shall also be made by Tenant at its
expense. Without limiting the generality of theeigoing, Tenant will keep the interior of the Pregsisn good order and repair and will make
all replacements thereto from time to time requieds expense; and will surrender the Premiséseag¢xpiration of the Term or at such other
time as it may vacate the Premises in as good tiondis when received, excepting only ordinary waat tear and damage by casualty.

19.LIENS . Should any mechanic’s or other lien be filed agathe Premises, the Property, or any part thdoeafny reason whatsoever by
reason of Tenant's acts or omissions or becauaelaim against Tenant, Tenant shall cause the sabee canceled and discharged of record
by bond or otherwise within sixty (60) days aftetioe by Landlord. Tenant'’s failure to do so slalhstitute a material default under this
Lease, without the necessity for any further notige.andlord to Tenant. If Tenant shall fail to satthe same to be bonded, Landlord may pay
the full amount of such lien or bond against thmeavithout notice or liability to Tenant of any Kiand the amount so paid by Landlord
including reasonable attorney’s fees incurred bydlard in either defending against such lien orcpring the discharge or bonding of such
lien, together with interest thereon at the Def&ate (as defined below), shall be due and payabeenant to Landlord.

20.LIABILITY/INDEMNITY . To the maximum extent permitted by law, Tenamtlshdemnify and save harmless Landlord, the g
members, directors, officers, agents and emplogekandlord and those in privity of estate with ldkord, from and against all claims,
expenses or liability of whatever nature: (i) argsfrom any default, act, omission or negligenc@efiant, or Tenant’s contractors, licensees,
agents, suppliers, servants, employees, inviteesjstomers, or the failure of Tenant or of anyhspersons to comply with any rule, order,
regulation or lawful direction now or hereafterfarce of any public authority, in each case togktent the same are related, directly or
indirectly, to the Premises or Tenant’s use thereofii) arising, directly or indirectly, from argccident, injury or damage, however caused
(but excluding accident, injury or damage causeddydlord’s own default or negligence), to any persr property on or about the Premises;
or (iii) arising, directly or indirectly, out of gndefault by Tenant under any of the terms or camémof this Lease, or in connection with any
mechanical, electrical, plumbing, or any other sy®, equipment or installations that are to be ta@iad or repaired by Tenant; or (iv) arising
from any accident, injury or damage to any persoproperty occurring outside of the Premises, wiseich accident, injury or damage results,
or is claimed to have resulted from, any act, defamission or negligence on the part of TenanfTenant’s contractors, licensees, agents,
suppliers, servants employees or customers, omanglaiming by, through or under Tenant.

21.WAIVER OF SUBROGATION . Landlord and Tenant hereby waive any rights eaak have against the other on account of any loss
or damage occasioned to Landlord or Tenant, as the
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case may be, their respective property, the Pramisdts contents or to other portions of the Brop arising from any risk to the extent of the
actual proceeds received from any applicable ik extended coverage insurance and the parties @adiehalf of their respective insurance
companies insuring the property of either Landiord enant against any such loss, waive any rigstibfogation that it may have against
Landlord or Tenant, as the case may be. LandloddTamant shall obtain such endorsements to aktiesliof insurance as may be necessary to
give full effect to the above waivers.

22. TENANT’'S INSURANCE . Tenant further covenants and agrees that thrattghe Term, Tenant will carry and maintain, atsitde
cost and expense, the following types of insuramcthe amounts specified and in the form hereargstovided for:

(a) Public Liability And Property Damag€&ommercial general liability insurance with singtaits of not less than Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000.00) insuring against any and all lighbdf the insured with respect to said Premisearting out of the maintenance, use or
occupancy thereof, and property damage liabiligurance with a limit of not less than Five Hundfémusand Dollars ($500,000) per accident
or occurrence. All such bodily injury liability insance and property damage liability insurancel specifically insure the performance by
Tenant of the indemnity agreement as to liabildyihjury to or death of persons and injury or dgméo property set forth above.

(b) Workets CompensationWorker's Compensation and disability insurancéh@minimum amounts required by law.

(c) Leasehold Improvements$nsurance covering all leasehold improvementsrations, additions or improvements, trade fix$ure
merchandise and personal property from time to timen or upon the Premises, in an amount nottless eighty percent (80%) of their full
replacement cost from time to time during the teffithis Lease, on a special form (all risk) bagigether with insurance against sprinkler
damage, vandalism and malicious mischief. Any gaticceeds shall be used for the repair or replacewf the property damaged or
destroyed unless this Lease shall cease and teevdsa result of such damage.

(d) Policy Form. All policies of insurance provided for herein Bl issued by insurance companies with generaypholder’s rating
of not less than A- and a financial rating of rextd than Class VIII as rated in the most curreati@ve “Best’s”Insurance Reports, qualified
do business in the State of Connecticut. Landlbaghdlord’s property manager and Landlord’s Lendassdefined below) shall be named as
additional insureds on all liability insurance pi#is. Complete certificates of such insurance dietlelivered to Landlord before the earlier of
the Commencement Date or the commencement of arlyiwthe Premises and thereafter, complete ceatiis thereof shall be delivered to
Landlord within thirty (30) days prior to the exaiion of the term of each such policy. All pubiiadility and property damage policies shall
contain a provision that Landlord shall be entitiedecovery under said policies for any loss oozl to it, its servants, agents and emplo
by reason of the negligence of Tenant. All cerdifécs or policies of insurance delivered to Landiorgst contain a provision that the company
writing said policy will give to Landlord twenty (3 days’ notice in writing in advance of any catet@n of insurance. All public liability,
property damage and other casualty policies slealifitten as primary policies, not contributing lwénd not in excess of coverage which
Landlord may carry.

(e) Coverage RevisionsThe insurance required pursuant to this Sectioludling, without limitation, the forms, types, anms,
insurance carrier qualifications and terms of spalicies of insurance may be changed by Landlarthftime to time as necessary or desirable
according to sound property management and buspmastices and as may be required by Landlord’sleen
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23.LANDLORD’S INSURANCE . Landlord shall at all times from and after thentonencement date of the term hereof maintain irceé
policy or policies of insurance covering the Prdpegn an amount not less than eighty percent (8624)Il replacement cost (exclusive of the
cost of excavations, foundations and footings) ftone to time during the term of this Lease, pravigdprotection against any peril generally
included within the classification “Fire and ExtendCoverage” together with insurance against sfgirdamage, vandalism and malicious
mischief. Landlord’s obligation to carry the insaca provided for herein may be satisfied within tbgerage of any scalled blanket policy ¢
policies of insurance carried and maintained bydlaml, provided that the coverage afforded will hetreduced or diminished by reason of
use of such blanket policy of insurance.

24.FIRE OR CASUALTY .

(a) If the Premises or the Building (including mieiry or equipment used in its operation) shaltlamaged by fire or other casualty
(except fires or other casualties resulting fromdre’s fault or neglect) and if such damage doeseraer all or a substantial portion of the
Premises or Building untenantable, or in Landlsndasonable judgment require more than 180 daysntplete, then Landlord shall repair :
restore the same with reasonable promptness, subjszasonable delays for insurance adjustmentsialays caused by matters beyond
Landlord’s reasonable control but shall not begdtkd to expend therefor an amount in excess girieeeds of insurance recovered with
respect thereto. If any such damage renders allsoibstantial portion of the Premises or Buildintenantable, or in Landlord’s reasonable
judgment requires more than 180 days to restattegrgparty shall have the right to terminate thésmée as of the date of such damage (
appropriate prorations of Rent being made for TEagrossession subsequent to the date of such daofdbose tenantable portions of the
Premises) upon giving written notice to the othantyat any time within sixty (60) days after thetelof such damage. Rent, however, shall
abate on those portions of the Premises as ara,tfnee to time, untenantable as a result of suchatdge. In the event that Landlord should fail
to complete such repairs and rebuilding within bnadred eighty (180) days after the date upon whaftdlord is notified by Tenant of such
damage, Tenant may at its option terminate thisédyy delivering written notice of termination taridlord as Tenant’s exclusive remedy,
whereupon all rights and obligations hereunderl slese and terminate.

(b) Tenant acknowledges that Landlord shall betledtto the full proceeds of any insurance coveradesther carried by Landlord or
Tenant, for damage to alterations, additions, impneents or decorations provided by Landlord eittiexctly or indirectly through an
allowance to Tenant.

(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary hersét forth, Landlord shall not be obligated purduarthis Section to repair or restore
any portion of the alterations, additions or imgrments in the Premises or the decorations thdrethe event this Lease is terminated as a
result of a casualty, Tenant acknowledges that loadghall be entitled to the full proceeds of &amgurance coverage, whether carried by
Landlord or Tenant, for damage to alterations, taltl, improvements or decorations provided by lamteither directly or through an
allowance to Tenant.

25. CONDEMNATION . If the Land or the Building or any portion thefsball be taken or condemned by any competenbaititfor any
public or quasi-public use or purpose (&King ), or if the configuration of any street or allagjacent to the Building is changed by any
competent authority and such taking or change ifigoration makes it necessary or desirable to @&hor reconstruct the Building, Landlord
shall have the right, exercisable at its sole éion by delivery of written notice to
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Tenant, to cancel this Lease upon the earlier toroof: (a) the ninetieth (90 ) day following suattice; or (b) the day immediately prior to
the date title is transferred to the condemnin@pauitty. No money or other consideration shall bggtde by Landlord to Tenant for the right of
cancellation. Tenant shall have no right to sharéé condemnation award or in any judgment foralges caused by such taking or change in
configuration and Tenant hereby waives any andgtits that it may have now or in the future to @epdemnation award except that Tenant
may pursue a claim against the condemning authonitgccount of any moving expenses incurred by iiepaovided that such award does
reduce or otherwise impair any claim of Landlordameount of such condemnation.

26.PAST-DUE RENT . Tenant shall pay on demand a late charge ofgiereent (5%) of the amount due when any installméRent is
paid more than five (5) days late, which shalldaddition to interest on such amount as providadvb. Any failure of Landlord to insist upon
the payment of the late charge shall not be deeaeaiver of Landlord’s right to impose such lataugje for any future delinquent payment.

27.LANDLORD’S REMEDIES .

(a) If default shall be made in the payment of Reat or any installment thereof or in the paymdrarty other sum required to be paid by
Tenant under this Lease and such default shallragmfor ten (10) days after written notice to Teingrovided that such notice and cure pe
shall only apply to the first such late paymené#ath calendar year), or under the terms of any etfieement between Landlord and Tenant or
if default shall be made in the observance or perémce of any of the other covenants or conditinoriBis Lease which Tenant is required to
observe and perform and such other default shatiroge for thirty (30) days after written noticeTenant (provided that if such cure cannot be
reasonably completed in thirty (30) days, such tmithl time as is necessary to cure such defaaltiged Tenant has commenced to cure such
default within thirty (30) days following Landlorsiwritten notice and is diligently prosecuting sacine to completion), or if a default involves
a hazardous condition and is not cured by Tenamhptly upon written notice to Tenant, or if Tenahtll be in default under the Existing
Lease, or if the interest of Tenant in this Ledsalde levied on under execution or other legatpss, or if any voluntary petition in
bankruptcy or for corporate reorganization or ainyilar relief shall be filed by Tenant, or if angvioluntary petition in bankruptcy shall be fi
against Tenant under any federal or state bankyuptsolvency act and shall not have been dissdisgithin sixty (60) days from the filing
thereof, or if a receiver shall be appointed fond® or any of the property of Tenant by any cand such receiver shall not have been
dismissed within sixty (60) days from the date isfdppointment, or if Tenant shall make an assignrfar the benefit of creditors, or if Tene
shall admit in writing Tenant'’s inability to meeefiant’s debts as they mature, or if Tenant shalhdbn or vacate the Premises during the
Term, then Landlord may treat the occurrence of@rs/or more of the foregoing events as a breathiof ease, and thereupon at its option
may, with or without notice or demand of any kindlienant or any other person, have any one or ofdree following described remedies in
addition to all other rights and remedies providethw or in equity or elsewhere herein:

(i) Landlord may terminate Tenant’s tenancy antitrigf possession and may repossess the Premisesrbyary process action, by
taking peaceful possession or otherwise, in whigneLandlord may, but shall be under no obligatmre-let the Premises for such rent
and upon such terms as shall be satisfactory tdlbath For the purpose of such re-letting or othisewLandlord is authorized to
decorate, repair, remodel or alter the Premisdfwing such termination of Tenant’s tenancy arghtiof possession, Landlord may
either:

(A) treat the Tenant’s payment obligations hereurdeaccelerated, and may recover damages for Tetaeach of this
Lease, which damages the parties stipulate ard equ@ the present value of all future Rent m®el under this Lease, together
with any other amounts that may become due, fauoing the balance of the Term, plus (ii) all rezenle costs and expenses that
are actually incurred by Landlord, or that Landlogdsonably expects it will incur in connectionhwiitandlord’s re-letting of the
Premises, including, without limitation, costs @cdration, repairs, remodeling, alterations andtixhd, and brokers and attornsy’
fees, less (iii) the amount of all rents receivgd_bndlord through the date of judgment from adtparty resulting from a re-letting
of the Premises, and less (iv) the present valikeofuture rents that Landlord reasonably expieetdl receive through the end of
the Term of this Lease from any third party resgjtirom a re-letting of the Premises, or
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(B) without treating Tenant’s payment obligatiorssagcelerated, Landlord may from time to time recalamages for
Tenant’s breach of this Lease, which damages theepatipulate are equal to: (i) the amount ofaidf@Rent reserved under this
Lease, together with any other amounts that magrheaue, through the date of judgment, plus (ipesses of re-letting through
the date of judgment, including, without limitatjaosts of decoration, repairs, remodeling, altenatand additions, and brokers
and attorney’s fees, less (iii) the amount of reateived by Landlord from a third party resultingm a re-letting of the Premises
through the date of judgment. No suit, judgmenteaovery under this provision shall be a defensmosubsequent action brought
to recover any amount subsequently due, but natded in any prior judgment.

(i) Without terminating Tenant’s tenancy or rigiftpossession, Landlord may from time to time recalamages for nonpayment
of any Rent or other sums that become due from Atamader this Lease, and to enforce any other atitigs owed by Tenant under this
Lease, through the date of judgment. No suit, jueignor recovery under this provision shall be @&dsé to any subsequent action
brought to recover any amount subsequently duendsuincluded in any prior judgment.

(b) The making of any election as provided in ®éction shall be revocable in Landlord’s sole dison and at any time Landlord may
rescind any election made hereunder and pursueeamydy provided hereunder or otherwise availablabyor in equity.

(c) In any action commenced to obtain possessidheoPremises, including any such action purswuaatrtght or remedy provided by [
or in equity that is not expressly provided fordier Tenant waives any right to assert any coulatiens or claims by way of recoupment or set-
off. The foregoing shall not limit Tenant’s rightt &ssert any counterclaims or claims by way ofupatent or set-off in any action by Landlord
seeking collection of any amounts due to Landlord.

(d) For purposes of this Section: (i) the preseti of any sums payable or to be incurred in teré shall be computed, at Landlord’s
election, either (A) by applying, as a discounérale interest rate payable on U.S. Treasurieanngtas of a date equal or near to the
Termination Date as announced by the Wall Streatnd, or (B) by applying such other discount rdds fair and equitable, and (i) in
determining the amount of Rent or other amounts tireder the Lease, would become due from Tenathigiiuture, any amounts that cannot
be determined precisely as of the date of judgreleall be computed based on the average monthly @nagaruing during the twelve
(12) month period preceding the date of terminatibfenant’s tenancy, and (iii) notwithstanding tigg herein to the
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contrary, Landlord shall not be required, in cadtinlg damages, to reduce to present value any sypested to be payable or incurred within
two years of the date of judgment payable or timberred more than two years from the date of jueigim

(e) The Tenant shall pay upon demand all Landlareésonable costs, charges and expenses includirfgeas and out-giecket expens:
of counsel, agents and others retained by Landihamuired in enforcing the Tenant’s obligations herder or incurred by the Landlord in any
litigation, negotiation or transaction in which thienant causes the Landlord without the Landlofaldt to become involved or concerned.

28.ACCESS TO PREMISES. Upon reasonable notice at reasonable times, ektemergency situations, Landlord shall haverifet to
place, maintain and repair all utility equipmentaofy kind in, upon or under the Premises as mayebessary for the servicing of the Premises
and other portions of the Property. Upon reasonabliee, except in emergency situations, Landidwalisalso have the right to enter the
Premises during business hours to inspect or tibiéthe same to prospective purchasers, mortgageestenants and to make such repairs,
additions, alterations or improvements as Landinay deem desirable. Landlord shall be allowedke &l material upon the Premises that
may be required therefor without the same constiguan eviction of Tenant in whole or in part ahd tents reserved shall not abate in whole
or in part, while said work is in progress by reasbloss or interruption of Tenant’s business thieowise and Tenant shall have no claim for
damages, provided that Tenant's access to andfilke Bremises is not materially adversely affecte@ienant shall not be personally present
to permit an entry into said premises when for @ason an entry therein shall be permissible, laddhay enter the same by a master key or
to the extent permissible by law, by the use oféarithout incurring liability and without in anyanner affecting the obligations of this Lease.
The provisions of this paragraph shall not be aomst to impose upon Landlord any obligation whateoéor the maintenance or repair of the
Property or any party thereof except as otherweeih specifically provided.

29. SUBORDINATION . This Lease and all rights of Tenant hereunder abgest and subordinate to any mortgage or mortgdgasket o
otherwise, which do now or may hereafter affectRheperty and to any and all renewals, modificatjaonsolidations, replacements and
extensions thereof, and to any ground or otheeleassimilar instrument now or hereafter placediasgt the Property, and to all other
agreements and instruments affecting the Propeittya land records in the jurisdiction where thegerty is located (collectively, the “
Superior Instruments ).

It is the intention of the parties that this praersbe self-operative and that no further instrutrsdrall be required to effect such
subordination of this Lease. Tenant shall, howewpon demand at any time or times execute, ackrigeland deliver to Landlord without
expense to Landlord, any and all instruments tret be necessary or proper to subordinate this Laxadeall rights of Tenant hereunder to any
such mortgage or mortgages or to confirm or evidesuch subordination, including any such form ag beareasonably required by Landlard’
lender or proposed lender. If a subordination, distdrbance and attornment agreement is deliverd@nant and Tenant fails or refuses to
execute the same within twenty (20) business dali@Aing Tenant’s receipt thereof, Tenant shalcbasidered in default under this Lease and
this Lease shall be deemed to be automaticallyestibnd subordinate to such Superior Instrumerthdrevent of termination or expiration of
this Lease by reason of the termination of anyhefSuperior Instruments, provided that the holdemg Superior Instruments assumes the
obligations of the Landlord hereunder, subjechsqualifications in this section, and agrees aaisturb Tenant, Tenant shall attorn to and
recognize the holder of any Superior Instrumenthadandlord under this Lease, in which event tleiase shall be deemed to be reinstated in
full force and
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effect as a direct lease between Tenant and thiehof such Superior Instruments, upon all of #i@e terms and conditions of this Lease. .
such attornment and/or reinstatement under thisé_shall be effective and self-operative as ofitite of any such termination or expiration of
this lease without the execution of any furthetrin®ent; provided, however, that Tenant agreesnuipe request of the holder of any Superior
Instruments to execute and deliver any such insgtnismin recordable form as shall be reasonablgfaatory to such underlying landlord to
evidence such attornment. Any such attornment uthieiease shall provide the holder of the Supédristruments with all rights of the
Landlord under this Lease and Tenant shall be ataijto the holder of the Superior Instrumentsatdgom all of the obligations of the Tenant
under this Lease. The holder of the Superior Imsénts shall have no obligation to Tenant nor ghallperformance by Tenant of its
obligations under this Lease, whether prior tofterssuch attornment, be subject to any defenamteoclaim or setoff by reason of any default
by Landlord in the performance of any obligatiorb®performed by Landlord under this Lease.

In the event of (i) the termination of any grourrduaderlying lease of the Building or the Propedyboth, or (ii) the purchase or other
acquisition of the Building or Landlord’s interd@kerein in a foreclosure sale or by deed in liefooéclosure under any mortgage or deed of
trust, or pursuant to a power of sale containeghinmortgage or deed or trust, then in any of gwemts Tenant shall, at the request of
Landlord or Landlord’s successor in interest, attmrand recognize the transferee or purchaseanfllord’s interest as “Landlord” hereunder,
provided that such transferee or purchaser shabb@dga) liable for any act or omission of Landlbefore such person’s succession to title or
(b) bound by any payment of Base Rent or AdditidRaht before such person’s succession to titlenfore than one month in advance.

As a condition to the effectiveness of the suba@tiom and attornment in this paragraph, Landlontlatitain a reasonably acceptable
non-disturbance agreement from the holder of tts¢ finortgage on the Property within sixty (60) d&gsn the execution of this Lease. The
non-disturbance agreement will provide that Temahmnot be disturbed by the holder of the first mgage so long as Tenant is in compliance
with the terms of this Lease.

30.QUIET ENJOYMENT . Tenant, upon paying the rents and performingfaie terms on its part to be performed, shalcpably and
quietly enjoy the Premises subject to the termthigfLease and to any mortgage, ground lease eeagnts to which this Lease is
subordinated.

31.END OF TERM . At the expiration of this Lease, Tenant shaltsnder the Premises in the same condition as tleeg im upon
delivery of possession, reasonable wear and tespted, and shall deliver all keys and combinattoriecks, safes and vaults to Landlord.
Before surrendering the Premises, Tenant shall veral its personal property including all tradetdires, and all improvements and/or
alterations and all data, electrical and commuigoatabling and wiring (whether or not locatedhe Premises) installed by Tenant or on
Tenant’s behalf to the extent required by Landlortde removed as provided elsewhere in this Leawtshall repair any damage caused by
such removal. Tenant’s obligations to perform #astion shall survive the end of the term of theage. If Tenant fails to remove its property
upon the expiration of this Lease, the said propehall be deemed abandoned and shall becomedperpy of Landlord, which Landlord may
dispose of as it sees fit, at Tenant’s sole codtexpense, which Tenant shall pay to Landlord ugpemand.

32.HOLDING OVER . Any holding over after the expiration of this Iseashall be construed to be a tenancy at will attamdred fifty
percent (150%) of the Base Rent payable immedigtédy to such expiration (prorated on a daily bpaind shall otherwise be governed by the
applicable terms of this Lease. The preceding sestshall not be deemed to limit Landlord’s right t
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recover other or further damages from Tenant iretrent Tenant holds over after the expiration eftérm. In addition to the foregoing, Ten
shall indemnify, defend and hold Landlord harmligem and against all loss, cost, expense and clanmsig as a result of Tenant’s holding
over.

33.NO WAIVER . Failure of Landlord to insist upon the strictfoemance of any provision of this Lease or to eisgrany option or any
rules and regulations herein contained shall natdmstrued as a waiver for the future of any suolvipion, rule or option. The receipt by
Landlord of rent with knowledge of the breach of gnovision of this Lease shall not be deemed a@radf such breach. No provision of this
Lease shall be deemed to have been waived unleBsaaiver be in writing signed by Landlord. No pamby Tenant or receipt by Landlord
of a lesser amount than the monthly rent shalldented to be other than on account of the earbestihhen unpaid nor shall any endorsement
or statement on any check or any letter accompagrafity check or payment as rent be deemed an aandrdatisfaction and Landlord may
accept such check or payment without prejudiceaiodlord’s right to recover the balance of such mrgursue any other remedy in this Lease
provided, and no waiver by Landlord in respectrie denant shall constitute a waiver in favor of ather tenant in the Property.

34.NOTICES . Any notice, demand, request or other instrumdritlvmay be or are required to be given underltbase shall be deliver
in person or sent by United States Certified ori®eged Mail, postage prepaid or by trackable mati@vernight carrier, and shall be addres
as follows:

if to Landlord: c¢/o READCO
6 Vista Drive
Suite 20C
Old Lyme, CT 0637:

with a copy to: Mayo Crowe LLC
CityPlace I
185 Asylum Stree
Hartford, CT 0610
Attn: Gregg T. Burtor

if to Tenant:

Amarin Pharma Inc
1430 Route 206, Suite 2(
Bedminster, NJ 0792
Attn: Fred Ahlholm

Either party may designate such other addressadisbehgiven by written notice. Notices shall bexhed given upon receipt or refusal or
three (3) days following the date sent if sent leytified Mail.

35.RECORDING . This Lease shall not be recorded in the landroescand if the Lease or any memorandum thereof Bhakcorded in tk
land records, Tenant shall execute and delivelease thereof, which obligation shall survive tRpigtion or termination of this Lease and
Tenant shall indemnify, defend and hold Landlorchiiass from all claims, loss, cost and expenserieduor suffered by Landlord as a result
of Tenant’s failure to timely deliver the same.

36.PARTIAL INVALIDITY . If any provision of this Lease shall to any extea invalid, the remainder of this Lease shalllmoaffected
and each provision of this Lease shall be valid emfdrceable to the fullest extent permitted by.law
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37.BROKER’S COMMISSION . Landlord and Tenant each represent and warrghetother that there are no claims for brokerage
commissions or finder’s fees in connection with éxecution of this Lease except to Colliers Intéomel of Connecticut, Inc., and Londregan
Commercial Real Estate Group, which commissioo is&t paid by Landlord pursuant to a separate wrdtgeement, and each agrees to
indemnify the other against and hold it harmlessnfiall liabilities arising from any such claim, lading cost of counsel fees, which are alle
to arise out of the acts or conduct of the indewimif party.

38.RULES AND REGULATIONS . Tenant agrees to abide by and conform to anynedde rules and regulations promulgated from time
to time by Landlord.

39.LIMITATION OF LIABILITY . Anything in this Lease to the contrary notwithnsteng, Tenant agrees that it shall look solelyht® t
interest of Landlord in the Property for the satidion of any claim against Landlord arising outto$ Lease, the Premises or the Property, and
no other assets of Landlord or its partners, mestagents or employees shall be subject to levggion or other procedures for the
satisfaction of Tenant’s remedies.

40.ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATES . Tenant shall, upon request by Landlord and witeim(10) days of such request, execute and detver
Landlord a written declaration in recordable fof): ratifying this Lease; (2) expressing the comosenent and termination dates thereof;
(3) certifying that this Lease is in full force aaffect and has not been assigned, modified, soppiéed or amended (except by such writings
as shall be stated); (4) that all conditions uritlier Lease to be performed by Landlord have betsfiea or stating those claimed by Tenant
not to have been performed; (5) that there areefiendes or offsets against the enforcement ot #ase by Landlord, or stating those claimed
by Tenant; (6) the amount of advance rental, if, &aynone if such is the case) paid by Tenantth&)date to which rental has been paid;
(8) the amount of security deposited with Landl@u¢ such other matters as Landlord may reasomegliest. Landlord’s mortgage lenders
and/or purchasers shall be entitled to rely uponesa

41.ENVIRONMENTAL LAW. This Section shall not limit the generality of Sent14 hereof. As used in this Lease, the term &fdaus
Materials”shall mean and include any substance that is dagswpetroleum, asbestos, polychlorinated byplsetgad, or any other substan
material or waste which is now or is hereaftersiféed or considered to be hazardous or toxic uadgrfederal, state or local law, rule,
regulation or ordinance relating to pollution oe forotection or regulation of human health, natteaburces or the environment) collectively *
Environmental Laws ") or poses or threatens to pose a hazard to thkthher safety of persons on the Premises or ajacadt property.
Tenant agrees that during its use and occupantthyed®remises it will not permit Hazardous Matertalbe present on or about the Premises,
the Building or the Land, except in a manner anangjty necessary for the ordinary performance afarg’s business and that it will comply
with all Environmental Laws relating to the userage or disposal or any such Hazardous Matetfal&nant’s use of Hazardous Materials on
or about the Premises, the Building or the Landltesn the Property being deemed to be an “eshflent” under the Connecticut Transfer
Act or in a release, discharge or disposal of Himas Materials on, in, at, under, or emanating frthra Premises, the Building or the Land,
Tenant agrees to investigate, clean up, removerediate such Hazardous Materials in full compkawith (a) the requirements of (i) all
Environmental Laws and (ii) any governmental agemrcgiuthority responsible for the enforcement of Bnvironmental Laws; and (b) any
additional requirements of Landlord that are reabbnnecessary to protect the value of the Premisesllord shall also have the right, but
the
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obligation, to take whatever action with respecany such Hazardous Materials that it deems re&dpnacessary to protect the value of the
Premises, the Building or the Land. All costs arpemses paid or incurred by Landlord in the exerofssuch right shall be payable by Tenant
upon demand. Upon reasonable notice to Tenant,lbahchay inspect Premises for the purpose of deteng whether there exists on the
Premises any Hazardous Materials or other conddiaactivity that is in violation of the requirentsrof this Lease or of any Environmental
Laws. The right granted to Landlord herein to perfanspections shall not create a duty on Land®pi#irt to inspect the Premises, or liability
on the part of Landlord for Tenant’s use, storagdigposal of Hazardous Materials, it being unaerdtthat Tenant shall be solely responsible
for all liability in connection therewith. Tenarttal surrender the Premises to Landlord upon tipération or earlier termination of this Lease
free of debris, waste or Hazardous Materials plawedr about the Premises by Tenant or its agentployees, contractors or invitees, and in a
condition which complies with all Environmental Lemfenant agrees to indemnify and hold harmlessllbath from and against any and all
claims, losses (including, without limitation, lassvalue of the Leased Premises, the Buildingherltand) liabilities and expenses (including
reasonable attorney’s fees) sustained by Landlrithatable to (i) any Hazardous Materials placedo about the Premises, the Building, or
the Land by Tenant or its agents, employees, caottor invitees or (i) Tenant’s breach of ang\psion of this Section. The provisions of
this Section shall survive the expiration or eadégmination of this Lease.

42.FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . If requested by Landlord, within sixty (60) dafter the end of each calendar year, or at any itime
connection with a sale or financing of the Propefignant and any guarantor of Tenant’s obligatjunsuant to this Lease shall submit to
Landlord a statement of a reasonable approximatidrenant’s minimum net worth in form and detadsenably satisfactory to Landlord,
subject to Landlord’s execution of Tenant’s custon@nfidentiality agreement.

43.MISCELLANEOUS .

(a) Rights Cumulative All rights and remedies of Landlord under thisake shall be cumulative and none shall excludeo#trer rights
and remedies allowed by law.

(b) Interest All payments becoming due to Landlord under tigase and remaining unpaid when due shall beaesttentil paid at the
lesser of (i) twelve (12%) percent or (ii) the héghrate which is at the time lawful in the Stat€onnecticut.

(c) Terms. The necessary grammatical changes required te thakprovisions hereof apply either to corporationpartnerships or
individuals, men or women, as the case may regsiir@)] in all cases be assumed as though in eaehfally expressed.

(d) Binding Effect. Each of the provisions of this Lease shall extenand shall, as the case may require, bind geitmthe benefit not
only of the Landlord and of Tenant, but also tlespective successors or assigns, provided thiselshall not permit any assignment by
Tenant contrary to the provisions of Section theaite.

(e) Authority. Tenant hereby represents and warrants to Lanthatdl enant is a validly created entity in goaghsling in its state of
formation, that all management action necessarthimwalid execution and deliver of this Lease besn performed and that the undersigned is
authorized to execute this Lease on behalf of Tenan
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() Lease Contains All TermsAll of the representations and obligations of dland are contained herein, and no modificationiyesor
amendment of this Lease or of any of its conditionprovisions shall be binding upon the Landlontess in writing signed by Landlord or by
a duly authorized agent of Landlord empowered fyitten authority signed by Landlord.

(g) Delivery for Examination Submission of the form of the Lease for examoratir negotiation shall not constitute an offelei@mse on
the terms contained therein, nor shall such subomgsind Landlord in any manner, and no Lease tigations of the Landlord shall arise ur
this instrument is signed by both Landlord and Tem@ad delivery is made to each.

(h) No Air Rights. No rights to any view or to light or air over apsoperty, whether belonging to Landlord or anyeotperson, are
granted to Tenant by this Lease.

(i) Madification of Lease If any lender requires, as a condition to itdlieg funds the repayment of which is to be secied mortgage
or trust deed on the Land and Building or eithieat tertain modifications be made to this Leaséchvimodifications will not require Tenant to
pay any additional amounts or otherwise materiafigl adversely change the rights or obligationsesfant hereunder, Tenant shall, upon
Landlord’s request, execute appropriate instrumefiésting such modifications.

(k) Transfer of Landlorg Interest Tenant acknowledges that Landlord has the righansfer its interest in the Land and Buildingl @n
this Lease, and Tenant agrees that in the eveaartyo$uch transfer Landlord shall automatically éleased from all liability thereafter arising
under this Lease and Tenant agrees to look saedydh transferee for the performance of Landloothigyations hereunder. Tenant further
acknowledges that Landlord may assign its intéretitis Lease to a mortgage lender as additioralritg and agrees that such an assignment
shall not release Landlord from its obligationseherder and that Tenant shall continue to look tadl@rd for the performance of its obligatic
hereunder.

() Landlords Title . Landlord’s title is and always shall be paramauorthe title of Tenant. Nothing herein containbdlsempower
Tenant to do any act which can, shall or may enaurttie title of Landlord.

(m) Captions The captions of sections and subsections areciorenience only and shall not be deemed to leoistrue, or affect the
meaning of such sections or subsections.

(n) Consent of LandlordWhere, under the terms of this Lease, the cormeagpproval of Landlord shall be required, suchsamt or
approval, unless otherwise expressly provided éveim to the contrary, may be arbitrarily withheédthtwithstanding anything to the contrary,
Tenant shall not be entitled to any claim for direcconsequential damages in the event Landlodétisrmined to have improperly withheld its
consent hereunder, it being the intention of thigmthat Tenant shall only be entitled to an ofde specific performance or injunction in st
event.

(o) Covenants and Condition#ll of the covenants of Tenant hereunder shaliéemed and construed to be “conditions”, if Lardiko
elects, as well as “covenants” as though the wepasifically expressing or importing covenants aadditions were used in each separate
instance.

(p) Only Landlord/Tenant RelationshifNothing contained in this Lease shall be deenmremnostrued by the parties hereto or by any third
party to create the relationship of principal agera,
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partnership, joint venturer or any association leetwlLandlord and Tenant, it being expressly undedsand agreed that neither the method of
computation of Rent nor any act of the parties toesball be deemed to create any relationship ti@andlord and Tenant other than the
relationship of landlord and tenant.

(q) Application of PaymentsLandlord shall have the right to apply paymeetseived from Tenant pursuant to this Lease (regasdbf
Tenant’s designation of such payments) to satisfyabligations of Tenant hereunder, in such oraer @mounts, as Landlord in its sole
discretion, may elect.

(r) Invalidity or Inapplicability. If any term or provision of this Lease or the laggiion thereof to any person or circumstanced stoa
any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the redif this Lease shall not be affected therebg,each term and provision of this Lease shall
be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent pieeich by law.

(s) Time of EssenceTime is of the essence of this Lease and eaith pfovisions.
(t) Governing Law Interpretation of this Lease shall be governedheylaw of the State of Connecticut.

(u) Signage Landlord shall provide Tenant with a sign on directory in the lobby of the Building and entrarilm®r signage on any
partial floor comprising a portion of the Premisesjch signage shall conform to building standard ahall be subject to Landlord’s approval,
which approval shall not be unreasonably withhAldditionally, the anchor tenant (66% of the propehas secured exclusive rights to place
its signage on the exterior of the Building. Lamdlavill permit building signage rights to Tenanbgct to securing express consent from the
existing anchor tenant. Any building signs that rbayinstalled following receipt of such consentlisba at the sole expense of Tenant.

(v) Intentionally Deleted.

(w) WAIVER OF RIGHT TO JURY TRIAL. TENANT HEREBY KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY AND IRREVOCABL Y
WAIVES ANY RIGHT THE TENANT MAY HAVE TO TRIAL BY JU RY IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDING OF ANY KIND OR
NATURE, IN ANY COURT IN WHICH AN ACTION MAY BE COMM ENCED, ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH
THE LEASE AND/OR THE PREMISES, OR BY REASON OF ANY OTHER CAUSE OR DISPUTE WHATSOEVER BETWEEN
TENANT AND LANDLORD OF ANY KIND OR NATURE.

(x) Joint And Several Obligations of Tenaimthe event that this Lease is executed by mae tlne person as Tenant hereunder, each
person so executing this lease shall be jointlysmcbrally liable with each such other persontiergerformance of all of the obligations of
Tenant hereunder.

(y) Counterparts This Lease may be executed in several countasrplivf which shall constitute one instrument,diirg on all parties
hereto, notwithstanding that all the parties aresignatories to the same counterpart.

(z) Force Majeureln the event that Landlord or Tenant is preventethfperforming any obligation hereunder by reasioifld unusually
severe weather and natural phenomena, includirgouitimitation, storms, floods, lightning, hurriges, and earthquakes; (2) fires; (3) wars,
civil
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disturbances, riots, acts of terrorism, insurrextiand sabotage; (4) transportation disastershehby sea, rail, air or land; (5) strikes or other
labor disputes that are not due to the breachlaba agreement by the affected party; and (6pastor failures to act of a governmental
authority not reasonably foreseeable, includinghglea in laws or codes not reasonably foreseediaewere not voluntarily induced or
promoted by the affected party or brought abouthigybreach of its obligations, the period of timmethe performance of such obligation
(except the payment of Rent) shall be extendedhéyeriod of time during which such party is praedrfrom performing its obligation by
reason of such occurrence.

(aa) Parking Tenant shall have the right, subject to the ggiftany other tenants of the Property existingfdhe date hereof, to
reasonable parking area on the Property on a nolusxe and non-reserved basis at no additionaigehm Tenant. Tenant shall cause its
employees, licensees, invitees and agents to cowifilyall reasonable rules and regulations pronmtelgéy Landlord from time to time
regarding the use of such parking areas. Landksdrves the right to designate specific parkingepéor the parking of other tenants in the
Building. Landlord shall provide Tenant four (4)pe&ssly designated parking spaces in the covendghgaarea, as noted on the parking plan
attached as Exhibit C. If Landlord shall be unablerovide the foregoing parking for reasons owsitiLandlord’s control, including, without
limitation, any condemnation or other taking, staiture shall not: (i) constitute a default hereandii) result in any reduction or abatement of
Rent due hereunder, (iii) give rise to any rightedominate this Lease, (iv) give rise to any ottiaim of Tenant against Landlord.

44 RENEWAL OPTION. Provided that Tenant has not defaulted in the perdince of any of its obligations hereunder, Teshatl have
the right to extend the Term of this Lease forapne (1) successive period(s) (eachRetewal Term”) of three (3) years, exercisable by
delivering written notice to Landlord no less thrane (9) months prior to the Expiration Date assame may be extended by virtue of the
exercise of Tenarg'right to extend the Lease for each Renewal T&a.Base Rent due during each of the Renewal Tehasbe as set for
in the table in Section 4, which reflects a 3% almocrease from the Base Rent during the Initexri.

[Signatures on following page...]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Landlord and Tenant havecated this Lease as of the date first mentionede@bo
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LANDLORD:
534 EAST MIDDLE TURNPIKE, LLC

By: /s/ Peter Jay Alter, Trustt

Peter Jay Alter, Truste
Sole Membe

FERNDALE REALTY, LLC

By: READCO Holdings, LLC
Its Membet

By: /s/ Michael P. Lech

Michael P. Lect
Duly Authorized Membe

/sl Peter Jay Alter, Trustee

Peter Jay Alter, Trustee of the Leon C. Lect
Irrevocable Trust under Declaration of Trust
Dated October 14, 198(

TENANT:

AMARIN PHARMA INC.

By: /s/ John F. Ther

John F. Ther
Its Presiden



Name

Amarin Pharmaceuticals Ireland Limit
Amarin Pharma Inc

Amarin Neuroscience Limite

Ester Neurosciences Limite

Subsidiaries of the Registrant as of December 31021

Jurisdiction
Ireland
Delaware
Scotland
Israel

EXHIBIT 21.1



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference inifteggion Statement Nos. 333-163704 and 333-17@B050rm F-3, Registration Statement
No. 33:-173132 on Form S-3, and Registration Statement BR146839, 333-143358, 333-132520, 333-110783,101775, 333-84152,
333-168054, 333-176877 and 333-168055 on Form Se8rareports dated February 29, 2012, relatintpéoconsolidated financial statements
of Amarin Corporation plc and subsidiaries anddffectiveness of Amarin Corporation pdahternal control over financial reporting, appeg
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Amarin Corption plc for the year ended December 31, 2011.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
February 29, 2012



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Joseph Zakrzewski, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Amarin Corporation plc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or anttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ aéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep

The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contamld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))3(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

b.  Designed such internal controls over financgplarting, or caused such internal controls overfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtai report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegidg’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 29, 2012 /s/ Joseph Zakrzewski

Joseph Zakrzews|
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, John F. Thero, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Amarin Corporation plc

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or anttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nigtaisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ aéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtf@ periods presented in this rep

The registrar's other certifying officer and | are responsibledetablishing and maintaining disclosure contamld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))3(d internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a. Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

b.  Designed such internal control over financiglomting, or caused such internal control over faiahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and presémtai report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyeport based on such
evaluation; ant

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegidg’s internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimrernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theiteemmmittee of the registrant’s board of directfwspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraéiofinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant

b.  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 29, 2012 /s/ John F. Thero

John F. Ther
President (Principal Financial Office



EXHIBIT 32.1
STATEMENT PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. § 1350

Pursuant to the requirement set forth in Rule 18@)lof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asrated (the “Exchange Act”), and
Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the Udiftates Code (18 U.S.C. 81350), Joseph Zakrzw@hief Executive Officer (Principal

Executive Officer) of Amarin Corporation plc anchioF. Thero, President (Principal Financial Offjogfrthe Company, each hereby certifies
that, to the best of his knowledge:

(1) The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K fa geriod ended December 31, 2011, to which thisifi@ation is attached as
Exhibit 32.1 (the“ Annual Repor”) fully complies with the requirements of Sectiond)3¢r 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act;

(2) The information contained in the Annual Regaitly presents, in all material respects, thefficial condition and results of operations of
the Company at the end of such y

/sl Joseph Zakrzews
Date: February 29, 201 Joseph Zakrzwes|

Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Offie

/s/ John F. Ther
Date: February 29, 201 John F. Ther

President (Principal Financial Office

This certification accompanies the Form 10-K toathit relates, is not deemed filed with the Se@siand Exchange Commission and is not
incorporated by reference into any filing of Ama@orporation plc under the Securities Exchangeoid934, as amended (whether made
before or after the date of the Form-K), irrespective of any general incorporation laage contained in such filin



